
If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format or language, please call Governance Services on (01432) 
260249 or e-mail councillorservices@herefordshire.gov.uk in advance of 
the meeting. 

 

 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
Cabinet 
 

 

Date: Thursday 31 July 2014 

Time: 2.00 pm 

Place: The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Governance Services 
Tel: (01432) 260249 
Email: councillorservices@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Cabinet 
Membership  
  
Chairman Councillor AW Johnson 
Vice-Chairman Councillor PM Morgan 
  

Councillor H Bramer  
Councillor JW Millar  
Councillor PM Morgan  
Councillor GJ Powell  
Councillor PD Price  
Councillor P Rone  
  

 
  

 
 

Non Voting 



 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  31 JULY 2014 

 

 

AGENDA 
 Pages 
  
   

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 

Notice has been served in accordance with Part 3, Section 9 (Publicity in 
connection with key decisions) of The Local Authorities (Executive 
Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 
2012. 
 
Item 
No 

Title Portfolio 
Responsibility 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

28 Day 
Notice Given 

9 Hoople Economy, 
Communities 
and Corporate 

General 
Overview 
and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Yes 

 

 

   
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     
   
 To receive any apologies for absence.  
   
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     
   
 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 

the Agenda. 
 

   
3. MINUTES   7 - 8  
   
 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 3 July 2014.  
   
4. BUDGET MONITORING REPORT   9 - 20  
   
 To provide Cabinet with an updated position on the projected outturn for 

2014/15 and to approve the centralisation of certain budgets via a budget 
virement to improve budgetary control. 

 

   
5. QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORT   21 - 48  
   
 To invite Cabinet Members to consider performance for the first quarter of 

2014/15 following the Quarterly Performance Review held on 15 July 2014. 
 

   
6. HEREFORDSHIRE SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN BOARD BUSINESS 

PLAN   
49 - 72  

   
 To inform Cabinet of the progress of the Herefordshire Safeguarding 

Children Board (HSCB) Business Plan 2013-2014 at year end and to 
provide Cabinet with the opportunity to comment on the 2014-2015 
Business Plan. 

 

   
7. WEST MERCIA YOUTH JUSTICE PLAN   73 - 120  
   
 To recommend the Youth Justice Plan for approval by Council.  
   
8. MARCHES LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP   121 - 128  
   
 To approve governance arrangements for the joint exercise of executive 

functions in relation to the Marches Local Enterprise Partnership (the LEP). 
 

   
9. HOOPLE   129 - 138  
   
 To consider the future approach to the commissioning of services provided 

by Hoople. 
 

   





The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business 

to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six 
years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to 
four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a report is 
given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on which the officer 
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with 
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject 
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a 
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the 
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents. 

 
 
 

Public Transport Links 
 
• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs approximately 

every 20 minutes from the City bus station at the Tesco store in Bewell Street (next to the 
roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / Edgar Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Vineyard Road near to its junction with 
Old Eign Hill.  The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 

 
 

 
 

5



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the 
nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point A which is located at the 
southern entrance to the car park.  A check will be undertaken to 
ensure that those recorded as present have vacated the building 
following which further instructions will be given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of the 
exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning to 
collect coats or other personal belongings. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-Consumer 
waste. De-inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening agents (OBA). 
Awarded the Nordic Swan for low emissions during production and the Blue Angel 
environmental label 

 

6



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 

MINUTES of the meeting of Cabinet held at Council Chamber - 
Brockington on Thursday 3 July 2014 at 2.00 pm 
  

Present: Councillor PM Morgan (chairman) 
   
 Councillors: H Bramer, JW Millar, PM Morgan, GJ Powell and PD Price 
 
  
In attendance: Councillors JA Hyde, WLS Bowen, AJW Powers, TM James, and CNH Attwood 
  
Officers: 
 

Geoff Hughes, Alistair Neill, Bill Norman and Peter Robinson  

10. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
Councillor AJ Johnson. 
 

11. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

12. MINUTES   
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 12 June 2014 be approved 
as a correct record and signed by the chairman. 
 

13. COMMUNITY SAFETY STRATEGIC PLAN 2014-17   
 
The chairman introduced the Community Safety Strategic Plan (‘the plan’) for the period 
2014 – 17.  
 
The plan sets out the work of the Community Safety Partnership, a statutory partnership 
reporting to the Herefordshire Partnership Executive Group and the Safeguarding Board 
to ensure that partnerships are in place to sustain low crime rates in the county.  
 
The Sustainable Communities Manager presented the plan, which features four priorities 
areas:   
 
• reducing re-offending and bringing offenders to account;  
• addressing harm caused by domestic violence and abuse; 
• reducing the harm caused by alcohol and drugs; and 
• promoting community cohesion and reducing the volume of anti-social behaviour. 
 
The plan was developed having regard to an annual assessment of the strategy and by 
new legislation such as the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014. In 
addition, the plan sought to address emerging issues, such as a higher than predicted 
level of youth offending and the number of teenagers presenting at accident and 
emergency with alcohol and drug-related problems. 
 
In response to a comment regarding the public’s perception that more police were 
needed despite the fall in crime generally, the chairman explained that it is intended to 
produce a monthly article in conjunction with the Superintendent in order to raise 
awareness of the plan and crime reduction activity.  
 

AGENDA ITEM 3

7



 

Responding to a question about officer resources to support the plan, it was confirmed 
by officers that this matter was to be raised formally. Funding is in place to support the 
plan to the end of the current financial year. 
 
In response to a comment regarding social and housing factors, a loss of youth services 
and a rise in drug and hate crime as a result of reduced police presence, the chairman 
explained that the Community Safety Partnership has a preventive role and the police 
are one part of that. 
 
Comments were made in support of the work of the police and that feedback from some 
wards was positive. The view was that there was a need to focus on specific problem 
areas, whilst noting that crime in Herefordshire is low and the focus should be on 
sustaining those low levels.  
 
RESOLVED THAT: the Herefordshire Community Safety Strategic Plan 2014 – 17 
be recommended to council for adoption.  
 
 

The meeting ended at 2.15 pm CHAIRMAN 

8



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Peter Robinson - Chief Financial Officer on Tel (01432) 383319 

 

 

MEETING: CABINET  

MEETING DATE: 31 JULY 2014 

TITLE OF REPORT: BUDGET MONITORING REPORT – MAY 2014 

REPORT BY: CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 

Alternative Options 

1 There are no alternative options  

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 The forecast outturn for the year, based on spend to the end of May 2014, is a break-
even position. 

Classification  

Open 

Key Decision  

This is not a key decision 

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To provide Cabinet with an updated position on the projected outturn for 2014/15 and to 
approve the centralisation of certain budgets via a budget virement to improve budgetary 
control. 

Recommendation(s) 

THAT:   
(a) Cabinet notes the council is projected to spend within its budget for this 

financial year;  
(b) Cabinet notes the capital and treasury projected outturns; and 
(c) Cabinet agrees the virement of 14/15 budgets, including £7m of budgets from 

services to centralised area to improve budgetary control and improve value 
for money 

 

AGENDA ITEM 4

9



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Peter Robinson - Chief Financial Officer on Tel (01432) 383319 

 

Key Considerations 

Revenue Outturn 

3 This report sets out the forecast outturn position based on information as at the end 
of May 2014.  Although early in the year current information indicates minor variances 
in directorate budgets it is anticipated that in the main these will be mitigated during 
the year and that the council is on target to spend within its approved budget.   

 

Whilst the current projected position for the year is break even, additional information 
on each Directorate position is attached as Appendix A 

 
Capital  

4 It is forecast that capital spending will be £1m less than budgeted, £84.4m for 
2014/15; further detail is provided in Appendix B.  Some expenditure, eg the 
Fastershire Broadband project relates to spend previously forecast in 2013/14.  The 
variance £2m in Children’s Wellbeing relates to additional grant awarded following the 
agreed budget. 

 
Treasury Management 
 

5 The treasury management budget is forecast to underspend by £520k this year as a 
result of deferring the take up of prudential borrowing and obtaining short term loans 
at a lower interest rate, further detail is provided in Appendix C. 

 
Budget virement in relation to centralising corporate budgets 

6 It has been agreed to centralise the budget for various categories of expenditure, 

Directorate Budget 
Exp. 

Budget 
(income) 

Net budget May 
Forecast 
Outturn  

Projected 
Over/  
(under) 
spend 

 £000 £000 £000 £000  £000

Adults and 
Wellbeing 77,730 (22,807) 54,923 55,173 250 

Children’s 
Wellbeing 43,420 (22,178) 21,242 21,362 120 

Economy, 
Communities & 
Corporate 

124,464 (71,399) 53,065 53,155 90 

Directorate total 245,614 (116,384) 129,230 129,690 460 

Treasury 
management 16,060 (180) 15,880 15,360 (520) 

Other budgets 
and reserves 7,459 (6,434) 1,025 1,025 0 

Total  269,133 (122,998) 146,135 146,075 (60) 

10



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Peter Robinson - Chief Financial Officer on Tel (01432) 383319 

 

totalling £7m. The main reasons for this are: 
 

• To facilitate accountability and ensure that Budget Managers are responsible for 
controllable spend. 

• To enable the owner of the centralised budget to manage spend centrally and 
deliver savings through economies of scale. 

• To enable the organisation to understand the true cost of central services and to 
derive accurate unit costs for various central services. 

• Establish corporate budgets before any further efficiency initiatives or spending 
cuts are agreed. 

 

7 These transfers include centralisation of property, legal, energy, insurance and 
facilities’ budgets. In line with the council’s financial procedures, these virements, set 
out in the table below, require Cabinet approval. 

 
 

Community Impact 

8 None 

Equality and Human Rights 

9 The recommendations do not have any equality implications 

Financial Implications 

10 These are contained within the report. 

Legal Implications 

11 The Local Government Finance Act 1988 makes it a legal requirement that the 
council’s expenditure (and proposed expenditure) in each financial year must not 
exceed the resources (including sums borrowed) available to the authority. If this 

Service Budget  Virements Net budget 

 £000 £000 £000 

Adults Wellbeing 54,933 (10) 54,923 

Children’s Wellbeing 26,613 (5,371) 21,242 

Economy, Communities & 
Corporate 40,629 11,446 52,075 

Chief Executive 6,117 (5,127) 990 

Public Health 139 (139) 0 

Directorate total 128,431 799 129,230 

Treasury management 16,679 (799) 15,880 

Other budgets and reserves 1,025 0 1,025 

Total  146,135 0 146,135 

11



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Peter Robinson - Chief Financial Officer on Tel (01432) 383319 

 

principle is likely to be breached, the Chief Financial Officer is under a statutory duty 
to make a formal report to Members.  

Risk Management 

12 Monthly reporting gives the Chief Finance Officer assurance on the robustness of 
budget control and monitoring, highlighting key risks and identifying any mitigation to 
reduce the impact of pressures on the council’s overall position 

Consultees 

13 None 

Appendices 

A Revenue forecast 

B Capital Forecast 

C Treasury Forecast 

Background Papers 

• None identified 

 

 
 
 

12



Appendix A 

Directorate Revenue Monitoring Issues – At May 2014 

1. Adults and Wellbeing including Public Health 
 

The Directorate has a target of £5.5m savings to deliver in 2014/15 and the majority of 
transformation and project plans are underway to address these efficiencies.  
 
Demand pressures of £250k are forecast, mitigating action is being sought.  The 
national approach to managing increased pressure within the health and social care 
system during the winter months has changed. The approach is now through a 
national allocation which requires an integrated plan for £1.1m of system resilience 
funding to be agreed and submitted by the end of July 2014. This plan has to 
demonstrate how the additional non recurrent investment not only supports winter 
pressures but also delivers transformational change in demand management. It is 
anticipated that the available sum for the local authority from this pot will be circa 
£400k 
 
Savings around the cost of residential and nursing home fees for older people has 
emerged as a high risk to delivery and was originally planned to achieve £300k saving. 
Following the open book review exercise the plans are not expected to deliver any 
savings in 2014/15. To mitigate this shortfall it is proposed to utilise the use of the one 
off care bill grant £125k and unused grant reserves of £175k for 2014/15 only and to 
seek further permanent efficiencies for 2015/16 onwards.  
 
Slippage on the implementation date to the reduction to homecare hourly rates 
(expected saving £765k) is anticipated to create a pressure in 2014/15 of £165k and 
again unused grant reserves will mitigate this in 2014/15. The £165k will when fully 
achieved in 2015/16 mitigate other pressures within 2015/16, such as the open book 
review previously referred to. 
 
The majority of the contracts in Public Health need to be procured in 2014/15. A 
commissioning and procurement plan has been developed, with drug and alcohol and 
sexual health re-commissioning activity starting during September and October 2014. 
Planned reductions and re investment from high cost into lower cost preventative 
approaches are integrated into the commissioning plans. 
 
2. Children’s Wellbeing  

 
The Directorate savings plans for 2014/15 total £2.5m. The majority of these savings 
are around remodelling service delivery in the Safeguarding and Early Help service. 
Reductions have been secured in these areas, and further strategies are currently 
being shaped and the impact on this financial year assessed.  

The current forecast is to overspend by £120k as a result of the unbudgeted costs 
expected to be incurred in relocating the Colwall Primary School as essential flood 
investigation works are carried out over the coming months.  

13



Strategies are in place to reduce the numbers of children in high cost placements, 
although this budget remains under pressure due to the numbers of children in care. 
The financial impact will be measured during the year. The recruitment and retention of 
social workers was provided for in 2013/14, mitigating the pressures in year. 

 
Savings in Education and Commissioning are on track for delivery, although the cost of 
short breaks provision could be a concern due to price increases from Wye Valley 
NHS Trust. This is currently being reviewed.  
 
3.  Economy, Communities and Corporate 

 
The Directorate savings plan for 2014/15 of £7.3m, including HR and ICT services 
transferred from Organisational Development, are on track for delivery. Some risk 
remains in relation to the Public Realm savings of £1.1m. Whilst the annual savings 
have been identified through detailed negotiation and contract management, with 
Balfour Beatty Living Places, the resultant reductions in street cleansing and grass 
cutting remain high profile issues. To provide additional grass cutting a current 
overspend of £90k is forecast.  
 
As seen at the end of the previous financial year, fee income from Planning to the end 
of May continues to improve, being £150k higher than the same period in 2013. 
Income levels will continue to be closely monitored throughout the year.  
 
Other risks within the Directorate budgets, such as the national dispute in relation to 
land charges, are covered by reserves. 

 

14



 

Appendix B 

2014/15 Capital Forecast Outturn  

1. The capital outturn forecast for 2014/15 totals £84.4m, summaries by directorate and schemes 
above £500k are provided below:  

 

Table A –Summary forecast and sources of funding 2014/15 

 

 Budget  
£’000 

May Forecast  
£’000 

Directorate Forecast   

Adults Wellbeing 483 279 

Children’s Wellbeing 9,048 11,196 

Economy, Communities & Corporate 75,501 72,239 

Contingency 319 695 

Total  85,351 84,409 

Funding   

Capital Grants  24,905 30,049 

Prudential Borrowing 57,237 49,457 

Capital Receipts 3,209 4,903 

Total 85,351 84,409 

15



Table B - Schemes with a forecast exceeding £500k in 2014/15 

 Scheme Capital 
Budget 
£’000 

May 
Forecast 
£’000 

Comments 

Children’s Wellbeing    

Leominster Primary School 5,729 4,674 New school to open in October 2014 

Condition property works - 1,513 Annual programme of works at various school 
sites committed on a highest need first basis, 
grant funding confirmed post the approved budget 

Affordable Housing Grants 317 935 Housing improvement grant programme increased 
by spend previously forecast in 2013/14 

Westfield’s SEN school 184 831 Grant funded extension work 

Disabled Facilities Grants 462 1,217 Individual grants awarded through an application 
process, enabling independent  living, grant 
funding confirmed post the approved budget 

Economy, Communities &  

Corporate 

   

Corporate accommodation 5,510 5,674 Works nearing completion at Plough Lane and 
continuing on the new heritage, archive and 
record centre and Civic hub  

Leisure Centre Improvements 2,000 2,000 Works commencing at Leominster, Ross and 
Hereford leisure sites 

Local Transport Plan  10,645 10,645 Annual programme of capital works to highways, 
footways and bridges 

Fastershire Broadband 7,600 9,700 Investment in broadband infrastructure includes 
spend previously forecast in 2013/14 

Yazor Flood Alleviation 450 960 Continued improvement works includes spend 
previously forecast in 2013/14 

Hereford Enterprise Zone 1,967 2,203 Utilities, access and Skylon Court works 
underway to enable plot sales and unit rentals 

Link Road 10,708 6,500 Acquisition costs and start of construction works, 
grant funding secured for 2015/16 

Destination Hereford 1,044 1,044 Grant funded cycle improvement schemes 

LED Street Lighting 5,655 3,260 Phased installation of LED street lighting 

Solar Panel Installations 1,841 1,286 Photovoltaic instalment at various locations 

Masters House, Ledbury 606 606 Continuing refurbishment works 

Road investment 15,000 15,000 Investment into the highway infrastructure 

EnviRecover 11,000 10,700 Energy from Waste plant construction 

Chief Executive    

Electronic Record & Document 
Management System 

700 700 Supporting the better ways of working programme 

Sub Total  81,418 79,448  

Schemes with a forecast 

<£500k in 2014/15 

3,933 4,961  

Total 85,351 84,409  

 

16



Treasury Management Interim Report                                                          Appendix C   
Three months to 30 June 2014 
 
 

This report ensures the council demonstrates best practice in accordance with CIPFA’s 
recommendations in their Code of Practice for Treasury Management, by keeping Members informed 
of treasury management activity.   
 
1. The Economy 
1.1. Recent economic events and statistics show the following: 

• The UK economic recovery has continued and now appears more sustainable.  GDP 
for the first quarter of 2014 showed the UK economy growing by 0.8% over the quarter 
and 3.0% year-on-year 

• The year-on-year Consumer Price Index (CPI) fell to 1.5% in May. 
• The unemployment rate fell to 6.6% in the three months to April.  However, earnings 

growth has weakened with total pay slowing to just 0.7% yearly growth in the same 
period. 

• There has been no change in the Bank Base Rate.  However, there has recently been 
a marked shift in tone from the Bank of England’s Governor and other Monetary Policy 
Committee (MPC) members warning that interest rates might rise sooner than financial 
markets are expecting.  Continuing positive economic momentum in the second half of 
2014 may mean that some MPC members will start to vote for a rise sooner rather than 
later. 

• With slack in the labour markets, low inflation and weak earnings growth, the council’s 
treasury advisers, Arlingclose, forecast the first increase to be late 2015 at the earliest. 
 

 
2. The Council’s Investments 
2.1 At 30th June 2014 the council held the following investments: 
 

Investment Term Maturity 
Date 

Interest 
Rate 

Amount invested 
£m £m 

 Instant Access Bank Accounts: 
 

    
 National Westminster  N/A N/A 0.25% 0.05  
 Handelsbanken N/A N/A 0.60% 5.00 5.05 
      
Instant Access Money Market Funds:     
 Ignis N/A N/A 0.44% 5.00  
 Prime Rate N/A N/A 0.41% 2.82 7.82 
      
1 Month Notice Account      
 Close Bros  N/A N/A 1.00% 5.00 5.00 
      
Fixed Term Deposits:      
 Lloyds 182 days 25/07/14 0.75% 1.50  
 Lloyds 181 days 19/08/14 0.70% 2.00  
 Nationwide 298 days 23/01/15 0.72% 2.00  
 Barclays 365 days 19/02/15 0.85% 1.00  
 Nationwide 279 days 25/03/15 0.79% 2.00  
 Barclays 279 days 25/03/15 0.79% 1.00  
 Lloyds 364 days 27/03/15 0.95% 1.00  
 Barclays 364 days 27/03/15 0.86% 1.00  
 Bank of Scotland 364 days 30/03/15 0.95% 2.00  
 Barclays 364 days 30/03/15 0.86% 1.00 14.50 
      

Total   0.71%   32.37 

17



Treasury Management Interim Report                                                          Appendix C   
Three months to 30 June 2014 
 

Shaded investments represents term deposits made in the three months to 30th June 2014. 
 
2.2 The council’s current eligible UK counterparties, together with the maximum maturity periods 

(as recommended by the council’s treasury advisers, Arlingclose), are as follows: 
  

Counterparty Maximum maturity period from: 
 01/04/14 01/07/14 

Close Brothers Ltd 100 days 100 days 
Santander UK 6 months 13 months 
Nat West and RBS Overnight Overnight 
Bank of Scotland and Lloyds TSB 12 months 13 months 
Nationwide 12 months 13 months 
Barclays 12 months 13 months 
HSBC and Standard Chartered Bank 12 months 13 months 

 
2.3 New European banking regulations came into force from 1st January 2014.  The measures are 

to strengthen the banking sector’s resilience to financial and economic shocks.  Whilst the 
banks have to hold larger capital and liquidity buffers, they need to set aside less liquidity cover 
for deposits over 12 months and, in response, are tailoring products to reflect this.  The result 
is a small pick-up in return for deposits between 12 and 13 months hence Arlingclose flexing 
the above limits to accommodate this. 

 
2.4 The council has earned interest on its investments as follows: 
 

Month 

Amount invested Average rate of 
interest earned 

Amount 
of interest 
earned / 
Forecast 

£ 

Budget 
 
£ 

Actual 
Surplus / 
Forecast 

£ 

Actual / 
Forecast 

£m 

Budget 
£m 

Actual / 
Forecast 

% 

Budget 
% 

Apr-14 35.09 20 0.68 0.60% 19,439 10,000 9,439 
May-14 40.21 40 0.63 0.60% 21,580 20,000 1,580 
Jun-14 33.96 40 0.67 0.60% 18,815 20,000 -1,185 
     59,834 50,000 9,834 
Jul-14  40  0.60% 20,000 20,000 - 
Aug-14  40  0.60% 20,000 20,000 - 
Sep-14  40  0.60% 20,000 20,000 - 
Oct-14  30  0.60% 15,000 15,000 - 
Nov-14  30  0.60% 15,000 15,000 - 
Dec-14  30  0.60% 15,000 15,000 - 
Jan-15  20  0.60% 10,000 10,000 - 
Feb-15  20  0.60% 10,000 10,000 - 
Mar-15  10  0.60% 5,070 5,070 - 
Budget and projected outturn 189,904 180,070 9,834 
 

2.5 Investment balances in April were higher than budgeted resulting in a surplus for the month of 
£9,439.  In the remainder of the year investment balances and/or rates of interest earned may 
be below the amounts budgeted and so at this stage in the year the forecast outturn is taken to 
be the same as the budget. 

 
 

18



Treasury Management Interim Report                                                          Appendix C   
Three months to 30 June 2014 
 
 
3. The Council’s Borrowing 
 

 Short-term borrowing 
3.1 The council is continuing its policy of utilising short-term borrowing from other local authorities 

to fund its capital programme and for short-term liquidity needs.  These short-term interest 
rates are significantly below levels available from other sources. 

 
3.2 Historically the council has always borrowed for longer periods at fixed interest rates.  Whilst 

achieving stability in the amount of its interest payments, the council currently has a large cost 
of carry when comparing its fixed interest debt to current (variable) investment rates. 

 
3.3 It is considered good practice to have an element of variable rate borrowing that removes or 

reduces this cost of carry and, to the extent that the level of short-term debt does not exceed 
the level of the council’s investments, when interest rates rise increased investment income 
provides a hedge against increased borrowing costs.  

 
3.4 The council can only borrow up to its Capital Financing Requirement, which represents the 

need to borrow for capital spend, and cannot borrow beyond this to finance the revenue 
budget. 

 
3.5 At the end of June 2014 short-term borrowing from other local authorities consisted of seven 

loans totalling £24 million.  Five loans totalling £14 million were taken out for 364 days at an 
average interest rate of 0.46% (including brokers commission) with the other two loans of £5 
million each taken out for 87 days (at 0.36%) and 179 days (at 0.43%). 

 
 
 Long-term borrowing 
3.6 No long-term loans have been taken out in the period to date. 
 
3.7 The budget includes provision to take out up to £10 million of longer term loans from the Public 

Works Loan Board.  This is still a possibility although analysis suggests that PWLB rates will 
have to fall significantly from their current levels for any savings in future years to outweigh the 
associated cost of carry in the short-term.   

 
3.8 The current position is summarised below. 
 
 

Summary of Borrowing Budget Budget Forecast Savings 

 £m £m £m 

Minimum Revenue Provision 10.19 9.93 0.26 

 
Interest on existing longer-term PWLB and bank 
loans  

5.52 5.52      - 

 
Variable rate borrowing  
 
Budget 
Borrowing required £68 million 
Rate 1.00% 
 

 
 
 
 
 

0.55 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

19



Treasury Management Interim Report                                                          Appendix C   
Three months to 30 June 2014 
 

Forecast 
Borrowing required £60 million 
Average rate used 0.80% 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

0.29 
 

 
 

0.26 

Fixed rate borrowing 
 
Budget 
Provision for longer term-borrowing 

 
 
 
0.10 

 
 
 
 

0.10 
 

  
 
 

- 

Less capitalised interest (see 3.11 below) (0.30)   (0.30)  - 

Forecast savings compared to budget  16.06 15.54 0.52 

 
 
3.9 The reduction in the Minimum Revenue Provision required for 2014/15 is due to slippage in the 

capital spend for 2013/14, as reported in June. 
 
3.10 The external borrowing requirement is calculated after maximising internal borrowing by 

offsetting usable reserves.  The usable reserves as at 31 March 2014 (of £41 million) were 
higher than forecast leading to an upward revision of the usable reserves available for 2014/15.  
The borrowing requirement shown above has been prudently calculated assuming usable 
reserves throughout the year of at least £30 million, whereas a figure of £20 million had 
previously been used. 

 
3.11 The council is able to capitalise interest costs relating to interest paid on borrowing used to 

fund large capital schemes that take substantial periods of time to get to the point at which the 
assets may be utilised.  Such interest, incurred at the construction or installation phase, may 
be added to the cost of the associated asset.  At can be seen from the table above, capitalised 
interest of £300,000 has been included in the 2014/15 budget for capital financing costs.   

 
4. Summary of Outturn Position 
 
4.1 The current net treasury position, compared to budget, is estimated to be a surplus of at least 

£520,000. 
 

Summary of Budget underspend £m 

Investment income receivable  - 

Interest payable on borrowing  0.52 

Total savings 0.52 

 
4.2 The savings will be £100,000 greater if no longer-term fixed rate borrowing is taken out. 
 
4.3 The savings will also be higher/lower if capitalised interest is more/less than £300,000. 
 
 
 
 

20



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Richard Ball, Assistant Director Place Based Community on Tel (01432) 260965 

 

 

MEETING:  CABINET  

MEETING DATE: 31 JULY 2014 

TITLE OF REPORT: CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REPORT 
2014/15: QUARTER 1 

REPORT BY: ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, PLACE BASED 
COMMISSIONING 

 

Alternative Options 

1 Cabinet may: choose to review performance more or less frequently than quarterly; or 
request alternative actions to address any identified areas of under-performance, 
including referral to the relevant scrutiny committee. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 To provide assurance that progress is being made towards achievement of the 
agreed outcomes and service delivery targets, and that the reasons for important 
areas of actual or potential under-performance are understood and are being 
addressed to the Cabinet’s satisfaction. 

Classification  

Open 

Key Decision 

This is not a key decision. 

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To invite Cabinet Members to consider performance for the first quarter of 2014/15 following 
the Quarterly Performance Review held on 15th July 2014. 

Recommendation(s) 

THAT: 

(a)  Performance for the first quarter be considered. 

AGENDA ITEM 5

21



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Richard Ball, Assistant Director Place Based Community on Tel (01432) 260965 

 

Key Considerations 

3 Council approved the Corporate Plan 2013-15 in November 2012, framed around the 
two key priorities of: enabling residents to be independent and lead fulfilling lives with 
resources focussed on supporting the most vulnerable; and creating and maintaining 
a successful economy. The supporting delivery plan for 2014/15 was approved by 
Cabinet in April 2014. 

4 It is proposed that Cabinet receive three in-year reviews of performance (in July, 
November and February), and an annual report in June, to coincide with the 
Understanding Herefordshire report, that reports progress towards achieving the 
outcomes set out in the corporate delivery plan.  

5 The chief executive has launched a renewed focus on performance this year, entitled 
‘raising our game’. This seeks to embed performance management throughout the 
organisation and ensure delivery of corporate plans and priorities. 

6 Underneath the overall corporate delivery plan are more detailed directorate delivery 
plans, and below those yet more detailed service delivery plans. Performance 
monitoring and review of the measures within those plans is carried out on a monthly 
basis within directorates. Directors also meet regularly with their respective cabinet 
portfolio leads to review performance. 

7 Directors, assistant directors and heads of service will also meet quarterly with the 
chief executive, cabinet, cabinet support, group leaders, and scrutiny chairs and vice 
chairs to assess performance. 

8 Formal Quarterly Performance Reviews have been established where directorates 
present and are challenged on their performance. The first challenge session took 
place on 15 July 2014 and considered reports and data which have formed the basis 
of this report. It is proposed that Quarterly Performance Reviews will take place 
immediately preceding the formal report to Cabinet for each quarter. 

9 Progress is measured through a number of performance measures. These have been 
selected because they demonstrate progress towards achievement of the council’s 
priorities and also provide an overview of the council’s performance from a resident’s 
perspective. Where monitoring information is available only on an annual basis, these 
measures will be reported at the point that it becomes available. Appendices A, B and 
C contain the latest performance outturn available. 

10 To support the renewed focus upon performance management and to generate new 
ideas and initiatives to improve service delivery and ensure value for money, a 
Continuous Performance Improvement Programme (C-PiP) has been launched by 
the chief executive. Key individuals within directorates have been identified to work 
together over the next year in order to deliver real change. It is anticipated that these 
groups will make a valued contribution to the success of the organisation. 

11 The Council’s forecast outturn for the year, based on spends to the end of May 2014, 
is a break-even position. 

Adults and Wellbeing 

Impact that has been made during the last quarter 

12 Reduced demand on Adult Wellbeing Services. Existing and potential service 

22



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Richard Ball, Assistant Director Place Based Community on Tel (01432) 260965 

 

users are now being assessed in a new way following the introduction of a new 
assessment framework, contained within which is a new Resource Allocation System, 
clearly identifying the appropriate level of resource for clients based on assessed 
needs. Information captured within this assessment will also enable us to better 
analyse urgent care pathways in order to offer more timely responses to need. 

13 We have reduced the waiting list of clients registered on the waiting list for Social 
Housing; this has reduced by 86% since the end of the last quarter. This has helped 
by providing better alternatives through signposting to other services. We have 69 
households in temporary accommodation at the end of June, but bed and breakfasts 
have not had to be used to house homeless people since November 2012. 

14 Supporting Carers is a priority in reducing demand and increasing the number that 
are supported to continue in their caring role. This year we have assessed 225 carers 
in their own right and a Carers Strategy is due to be produced, jointly with Health. 

15 Targeted Care & Support. The Home and Community Support framework has now 
gone live, offering savings due to a set ceiling hourly rate on the cost of Domiciliary 
Care. Herefordshire Housing are now providing a Reablement service which is 
expected to have a throughput of 48 cases per month, with the goal of maximising the 
independence of these clients following discharge from hospital – this service will be 
monitored closely over the coming months. Only 46% of safeguarding referrals are 
being completed within the 28 day target. The next quarter will aim to put systems in 
place to address this performance. 

16 Following on from the improved assessment process above and the identification of 
the appropriate resource for each client, personal budgets are now being offered in a 
greater proportion of cases and 81% of clients with ongoing long term care have a 
personal budget. Promotion of Direct Payments and exploration of more creative use 
of these, will aim to increase the current level of these clients receiving Direct 
Payments from 31% to in excess of 40% by year end. 

17 Manage the Provider Market. A Market Position Statement which has in conjunction 
with providers been developed sets out local market conditions and has recently been 
approved and published. This enables both commissioners and local providers to 
adapt their business models to respond to local need. Twenty-one new affordable 
houses have been completed during the quarter, which is on target for meeting year 
end targets with much greater levels of completion expected during summer and 
autumn. Disabled Facilities Grants have been completed within targets in 87.5% of 
instances, an improvement on last year with a reduced workforce; this helps to keep 
people in their own homes and independent as long as possible. The residential and 
nursing home older people rates have been agreed, a new contractual framework 
been developed and third party contribution policy agreed. In addition, all elements of 
the Next Stage Integration project including Day Opportunities now have new 
providers identified and are in the process of mobilisation. 

18 Increased Integration. Significant work has been done as part of the Better Care 
Fund development, with several projects being identified which will help; to meet the 
requirement for increased integration. A new integrated approach to managing the 
urgent care pathway and reducing the pressure for all organisations, with a health 
and social care system resilience plan has been developed and will be approved by 
the end of July 2014. 

What is going well? 

23



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Richard Ball, Assistant Director Place Based Community on Tel (01432) 260965 

 

19 As part of the recent Peer Review of Adults and Wellbeing, the team acknowledged 
the political and senior management buy in to the required change agenda within 
Adult Social Care. There was recognition of an open and honest workforce who were 
keen to realise the changes required by the department. The move to bring Social 
Care back into the council was identified as a positive move by the Peer Review 
team. 

20 There is evidence of good performance, particularly against our comparators in the 
West Midlands within some of our Outcome Framework measures, particularly in 
areas such as admissions to residential and nursing and the number of clients 
receiving of self-directed support. 

What needs improving further? 

21 The Peer Review also highlighted areas which hadn’t gone so well. They identified 
the requirement to strengthen our commissioning processes and our ability to shape 
the market. They also said that we needed to promote co-production throughout 
much of our commissioning to ensure that communities, service users and their 
carers were included in the development of their services.  

22 There will also be re-engineering of our safeguarding process which needs to be 
strengthened significantly following the Peer Review feedback, to ensure its fit for 
purpose for practitioners, but also that it ensures the safest possible outcomes for 
service users. 

23 The Peer Review also highlighted the need to improve the performance framework 
within the directorate; this should provide managers with the information necessary to 
make decisions and also fill in the blanks where data is currently missing from the 
Service Delivery Plan. 

Priorities for the next quarter? 

24 The Care Act is a significant piece of work which will continue to be worked on over 
the coming quarters in order to meet the statutory timescales. This will have 
significant implications for the Local Authority and partner agencies, both in terms of 
process change and financial costs.  

Many of the priorities for improvement will be linked to this Act; including: 

• Improving our information advice and guidance through the development of a 
single point of access; and 

• Completion of a Market Position Statement 

Further work will need to continue to ensure that we meet the required deadlines for 
the Better Care Fund submissions. 

Public Health 

Impact that has been made during the last quarter 

25 Improve substance misuse services. The overarching drug and alcohol pathway 
across all agencies is now ready for consultation and a commissioning and 
procurement plan, meeting public health commissioning responsibilities, is now 
underway. The Police and Crime Commissioner has agreed to continue to fund some 

24



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Richard Ball, Assistant Director Place Based Community on Tel (01432) 260965 

 

specific drugs and alcohol services in Herefordshire and proposed new early 
intervention model. Useful service delivery models and specifications from elsewhere 
have been identified, to re-procure alcohol & drugs services and a service 
specification for residential detoxification services has been developed and potential 
providers identified. The Community Safety Partnership and the overarching 
commissioning of drug and alcohol services will now take place across a single 
governance structure. 

26 Improve sexual health services. A 28 day audit of Wye Valley Trust’s laboratory 
activity and costs of STI tests has been initiated to inform our current contractual 
arrangements and the tender process. A draft service specification has now been 
developed for sexual health services based on national framework. The development 
of a draft set of outcome measures, activity data and quality indicators have been 
included which will help inform the tender. A chlamydia service specification and 
tender documents have been produced and a Syphilis and HIV outreach pilot service 
specification developed. 

27 Improve public health services for children & young people (CYP). Progress has 
been made in establishing and agreement on the role of school nurses (and other 
health professionals) in supporting the child protection process. A service 
specification is now out for consultation for School Nurse services. 

28 Review the lifestyle behaviours of young people in Herefordshire to inform 
better, targeted service provision. Surveys have been completed with young 
people aged 16-24 across Herefordshire, including those not in employment, 
education or training. The results will inform additional detailed work with young 
people to establish what drives their health behaviours with a final report due in the 
autumn.  

29 Review local action against the latest evidence-based practice to stop people 
smoking. Smoking is the leading cause of premature death and avoidable ill health. 
During 2013/14, 1,054 smokers accessed the stop smoking services we commission 
and 441 smokers were supported to quit (measured as 4-week quitters) as a result of 
this support. 

30 Review & commission services that achieve behaviour change for health 
improvement. Last year the Healthy Lifestyle Trainer Service supported 369 clients 
(93% were from the most deprived quartile of Herefordshire) and 685 community 
activities. As part of this support they offered to support lifestyle changes a strong 
focus on addressing health inequalities. 

What is going well? 

31 Herefordshire’s uptake of the NHS Health Check programme in 2013/14 was fifth out 
of fourteen local authorities at 49%, in line with the national rate and more than the 
45% uptake for the West Midlands. This programme aims to identify 40-70 year olds 
who are at risk of cardiovascular disease and help them to make lifestyle changes. 
Quarter 1 has seen an additional 15% more people invited to do a health check 
(3,550) than the target; however the uptake rate was only 30%. 

32 Understanding Herefordshire 2014: an integrated needs assessment has been 
completed and published to schedule in June. The content and style of this report 
was well received by users, including the health and well-being board and councillors. 

What needs improving further? 

25



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Richard Ball, Assistant Director Place Based Community on Tel (01432) 260965 

 

33 There needs to be an increased and coordinated focus across agencies on tackling 
Herefordshire’s biggest causes of premature death and avoidable ill health – in 
particular: smoking, obesity (diet, physical activity) and alcohol. 

34 The take up of the National Child Measurement Programme needs to increase and 
the implementation of interventions to improve and protect health (e.g. reduce 
obesity, reduce dental decay rates, immunisation) 

35 Improve drug and alcohol misuse services and sexual health services, in order to 
reduce the incidences of alcohol attributable admissions to hospital and rates of both 
Syphilis and HIV. 

36 The governance and steering of needs assessments needs to ensure that they are 
clearly scoped from the outset and are integrated to meet the commissioning needs 
of all parties involved.  

Priorities for the next quarter? 

37 Re-commissioning of public health contracts is a key priority for 2014/15 and the 
immediate priorities for the next quarter will include: 

• The completion of the Children’s Integrated Needs Assessment; and 

• Preparations to re-commission Stop Smoking, Healthy Living, Health Checks, 
Drug & Alcohol and Sexual Health services 

As part of this work we will need to develop the market and also engage with service 
users and other key stakeholders. 

In order to support children the Healthy Start vitamin programme will be implemented 
along with an improvement plan for child immunisations. 

Children’s Wellbeing 

Impact that has been made during the last quarter 

38 There has been a significant increase in the percentage of children attending good or 
outstanding schools (86% primary, 88% secondary) over the last period. 

39 There are currently 362 (6.5%) young people that are Not in Education Employment 
or Training (NEET). There has been a significant reduction in young people whose 
status is not known, currently reporting at 131 (2.3%), most of whom are in the 18 
plus age group and have gone into work without training. 

40 The Families First programme has currently turned around 27 families and is 
attracting reward grant into the authority of £17,600 out of a target of attracting 
£240,000 in 2014/15. 

41 Improvements in social care and safeguarding services were recognised by the 
recent Ofsted inspection in the last quarter, with all services being graded as 
requiring improvement, other than Adoption services, which are judged as Good. 

 

What is going well? 

26



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Richard Ball, Assistant Director Place Based Community on Tel (01432) 260965 

 

42 The percentage of primary schools judged as requiring improvement is reducing and 
currently 85.7% are good or outstanding. However, the percentage of senior schools 
that are good or outstanding has decreased from last year due to one large academy 
being judged inadequate and two academies having been judged as requiring 
improvement. All other inspections have judged senior schools to be good or 
outstanding; the local authority is monitoring progress directly with the academies and 
with the Department of Education. 

43 There has been a significant reduction in the number of 16-19 year olds whose 
destination is not known, this has reduced from 13% that was reported last year to 
2.3% in this quarter. This has been achieved through much stronger procedures and 
good relationships with colleges and training providers. 

44 The implementation of the Children and Families Act 2014 has been progressing and 
a significant part of this has been the approach to the implementation and 
development of Education, Health and Care Plans which will commence in 
September 2014. 

45 The School Improvement Partnership approach continues with engagement from 
academies and community schools; this approach appropriately builds on peer to 
peer support between schools and enables the Council to fulfil its school 
improvement responsibilities. 

46 As evidenced by the recent Ofsted inspection from the beginning of 2014, the quality 
of social work and operational management has improved. Staff morale has also 
improved with good engagement with senior managers. Children in need of protection 
are identified and assessed well. Looked after Children (LAC) are in stable and 
supportive foster placements or high standard residential care; this is being reviewed 
over the next 6-12 months and will need to be balanced to reduce the number of 
LAC; in addition adoption is promptly considered and progressed through Court 
rapidly. 

47 Caseloads are now more manageable (currently reported as 18 on average) across 
the social work teams, with social workers having more capacity to work effectively 
with children and families by ensuring staff have a manageable range of work and a 
caseload consistent with their level of experience and competence. 

What needs improving further? 

48 The outcomes for children and young people requires further improvement in a 
number of areas; for example there needed to be improvement in the management 
information for those Not in Education Employment or Training. Some 14 of this 
cohort are care leavers, where support and services need to be significantly better 
planned and targeted.  

49 In order to reach the most vulnerable groups, the Families First programme needs to 
be more strongly understood and embedded across directorates and partner 
agencies; this will lead to multi-disciplinary approaches and will in turn, improve 
outcomes for more families, reduce the cost burden on tax payers and maximise the 
reward grant received into Herefordshire to secure further change. 

50 Improvement of the electronic case and performance systems to provide enhanced 
quality assurance and performance management and drive improvement; this work 
will continue over the next 9-12 months. A new system for staff supervision is now in 
place and all managers have been trained and are providing regular supervision to 

27



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Richard Ball, Assistant Director Place Based Community on Tel (01432) 260965 

 

their staff; during the next month a supervision survey is being completed to assess 
progress of this change.  

51 The understanding of all agencies regarding access to child protection services. The 
threshold document to access services has been reviewed and reduced and is being 
made more accessible to staff across the council and in other agencies.  

52 The Children with Disabilities Service is being reviewed and more significant 
transformation work continues to be done to ensure that it is both fit for purpose and 
modernised. 

53 Partnership working is being enhanced for children who go missing; systems and 
processes have been developed and the police have appointed a dedicated officer to 
the multi-agency safeguarding hub to assist in improving the quality of the work to 
reduce the number of children who go missing. 

54 We need to improve further the identification and support to private fostering 
arrangements. 

Priorities for the next quarter? 

55 Our priorities for the next quarter are to: 

• Ensure positive destinations for all school leavers; 

• Analyse summer examination results to target improvement activity in schools 
and settings; 

• Implement the Children’s Act 2014, including: 

o Enhancing and developing how parents and carers access information 
advice and guidance; 

o Implementing and delivering Education Health Care plans, which 
includes the local offer for children with disabilities and their families, 
and personalised budgets. 

 
• Refresh the Improvement Plan and incorporate new Ofsted recommendations 

and progress actions; 

• Refresh the 3 Year Financial Plan, having regard to Ofsted requirements; 

• Launch the Children of Herefordshire Improvement & Partnership Plan 
(CHIPP) which will enable us to transform the services that we deliver for the 
young people of Herefordshire, encompassing the issues set out above; and 

• Further develop the Children & Young Peoples Partnership (CYPP) and 
ensuring clarity of relationship to the Health and Wellbeing Board. 

Economy, Communities and Corporate 

Impact that has been made during the last quarter 

56 The private sector-led Marches Local Enterprise Partnership, made up of business 
and local authority leaders, has been successful in securing £43m Government 
funding for two key infrastructure projects in Herefordshire over the next three years. 

28



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Richard Ball, Assistant Director Place Based Community on Tel (01432) 260965 

 

The Hereford City Centre Transport Package (Inner Link Road) will open up further 
development land and deliver much needed jobs and new homes. The South Wye 
Transport Package will provide funding certainty to deliver the package of transport 
improvements to the south of the city, including a new A49/A465 link road. The 
package, the details of which are currently out to public consultation, will reduce 
congestion and support jobs at the Enterprise Zone and development of 1,000 new 
homes. 

57 The Old Market development opened for trade in May 2014. As well as offering 
shoppers a greater choice of retail outlets, the development included the opening of a 
department store, as well as seven new restaurants. Newmarket Street was also 
upgraded and traffic was carefully managed so as to minimise impact on the public 
and maintain access to the city. 

58 A variation was successfully negotiated to the Waste Management Service Contract 
that Herefordshire Council and Worcestershire County Council have with Mercia 
Waste Management. Amongst other things, this variation allows for the provision of 
an Energy from Waste Plant at Hartlebury in Worcestershire. The Plant is scheduled 
to be operational in 2017 and will divert some 200,000 tonnes of waste from landfill 
sites each year. 

What is going well? 

59 Preparatory work continues in advance of changes to residents’ general rubbish 
collection service from November 2014. The move to alternate weekly collections will 
mean that recycling will be collected one week and general rubbish will be collected 
on the other week. From August 2014, householders will be delivered a black bin 
which can be used to safely and hygienically store general rubbish between 
collections. 

60 There has been significant progress made on the delivery of broadband with the total 
of live structures now standing at 108 across the Fastershire and some 4,000 
premises in Herefordshire having access to fibre services. A new website has been 
launched which provides more information on where and when fibre comes to an 
area. Business advisors have been appointed to work with companies on maximising 
use of the internet. An offer of £5.5m has been received from the government for the 
second phase of the project. 

61 Good progress continues to be made with the accommodation strategy. Works at 
Plough Lane and Shire Hall are continuing and are on target. As works are 
completed, Plough Lane occupancy levels are increasing.  

62 Almost two-thirds of Herefordshire’s parish councils are now in the process of 
producing a neighbourhood plan. This equates to 10% of the total number of 
neighbourhood plans being produced within England. Positive promotion has resulted 
in additional planning policy now being produced for around three quarters of those 
places highlighted within the Core Strategy for growth. Our work in this area can be 
highlighted by the fact that we qualified for a £100,000 grant from DCLG to support 
neighbourhood plans at examination and referendum. However, we must ensure that 
these plans are undertaken in a timely fashion, as parish councils are required to 
spend all grant monies by December 2014. 
 

63 Financial outturn for 2013/14 resulted in a positive break even position with good 
progress made in reaching required savings targets. In addition to this, the directorate 
remains on track to deliver its savings plan this year. As part of this, Herefordshire 

29



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Richard Ball, Assistant Director Place Based Community on Tel (01432) 260965 

 

Council’s Management Board has recently approved the centralisation of certain 
budgets which it is intended will result in both time and resource savings.  

64 The Herefordshire Archives and Records Centre (HARC) project remains both on 
time and on budget. The new building will have better access for visitors and be more 
energy efficient, with running costs significantly less because of the leading edge 
‘passivhaus’ design. This £8.1m facility, funded from the council's capital programme, 
is due to open to the public during Spring 2015. 

What needs improving further? 

65 Work continues on devolved services and community asset transfers with Phase 1 
transfers progressing in Kington, Leominster, Bromyard and Ross-on-Wye. However, 
this is a resource intensive process and the cost of implementation, including legal 
considerations and staff requirements to see the transfers through are considerable. 

66 The speed in which we process minor planning applications needs to be improved as 
the percentage currently dealt with within 8 weeks is 53.1%, compared to our internal 
target of 65%. It is hoped that the addition of two planning officers will help improve 
performance. 

67 Whilst much work has been undertaken to improve website functionality, more work is 
required over the coming period to further increase the level of e-reporting taking 
place to help reduce the overall number of calls received and streamlining of email 
queries. 

68 Herefordshire has benefited from a significant increase in central government funding 
to help fix our roads. Along with Severe Weather Funding which was awarded earlier 
this year, the county will receive additional government funding for road maintenance 
exceeding £6m for this year. This is in addition to the council’s £20m investment. A 
detailed programme has been developed based on known highway conditions, in 
consultation with local members and parish councils. Resurfacing schemes are 
already underway all across the county and it is expected that these works will make 
a visible difference to all who travel around the county. 

69 Grounds maintenance and grass cutting services have attracted significant adverse 
feedback during the quarter. This related to planned savings. However, given the 
concerns expressed the council has responded by increasing frequencies on high 
priority amenity areas, revising schedules and including an additional rural verge cut 
over the summer. In addition, a Herefordshire Public Green Spaces Community Grant 
scheme has been established to support community activity. Full details of the 
council’s approach to grass cutting are set out on our website. 

Priorities for the next quarter? 

70 Our priorities for the next quarter are to: 

• Continue to progress the new road infrastructure; 
• Further develop the Economic Masterplan; 
• Conclude final consultation stage of Core Strategy; 
• Continue the roads maintenance programme; 
• Progress the council’s accommodation programme; and 
• Continue to ensure that the requisite in-year savings are achieved. 

30



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Richard Ball, Assistant Director Place Based Community on Tel (01432) 260965 

 

Equality and Human Rights 

71 There are no specific implications in the report. As regards demonstrating due regard 
to the council’s Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED), as part of our decision making 
processes we ensure that individual directorates and service areas assess the 
potential impact of any proposed project, leading to fairer, transparent and informed 
decisions being made. 

Financial Implications 

72 Projects and activity within the delivery plan must be delivered within the budget 
agreed by Council in February 2014; they include projects and activity to deliver the 
cost reductions required for a balanced budget. 

73 Slippage in projects and activity to deliver cost reductions will impact on the overall 
council budget and will require remedial or mitigating actions to maintain financial 
stability. A detailed budget monitoring report appears elsewhere on the Cabinet 
agenda. 

Legal Implications 

74 None.  

Risk Management 

75 The corporate plan and its delivery plan are integral elements of the council’s risk 
management framework. Risks associated with each objective and project are 
entered onto the relevant service or directorate risk register and escalated as 
appropriate. Any significant risks will be reported to Cabinet as part of the quarterly 
performance report. 

76 Risks are also considered in the ‘What needs improving further’ and ‘Priorities for the 
next quarter’ sections of this report above. 

Consultees 

77 None in relation to this report. The development of the delivery plan was informed by 
the evidence base already gathered during the year and which includes user, resident 
and partner feedback where available. 

Appendices 

Appendix A – Adults and Wellbeing databook 

Appendix B – Children’s Wellbeing databook 

Appendix C – Economy, Communities and Corporate databook 

 

Background Papers 

• None identified. 

31



32



Q
1

20
13

-1
4

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 u
se

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
ca

re
rs

 w
ho

 fi
nd

 it
 e

as
y 

to
 fi

nd
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t s
up

po
rt

An
nu

al
 S

ur
ve

y
73

%
70

%

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 re

du
ct

io
n 

of
 th

os
e 

re
gi

st
er

ed
 o

n 
H

om
ep

oi
nt

65
2

86
%

47
35

28
41

(4
0%

)
(a

) T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
us

in
g 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

w
ho

 re
ce

iv
e 

se
lf-

di
re

ct
ed

 s
up

po
rt

, 
an

d
82

%
85

%
Ch

an
ge

s 
to

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
do

 n
ot

 a
llo

w
 c

om
pa

ris
on

 w
ith

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
ye

ar
s.

 T
he

 fi
gu

re
 

in
di

ca
te

s 
th

at
 th

e 
la

rg
e 

m
aj

or
ity

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
re

ce
iv

in
g 

lo
ng

 te
rm

 s
up

po
rt

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

of
fe

re
d 

a 
pe

rs
on

al
 b

ud
ge

t;
 a

 s
m

al
le

r p
ro

po
rt

io
n 

ch
oo

se
 to

 ta
ke

 s
om

e 
or

 a
ll 

of
 th

is
 a

s 
a 

di
re

ct
 p

ay
m

en
t t

o 
co

m
m

is
si

on
 th

ei
r o

w
n 

se
rv

ic
es

.

(b
) t

ho
se

 re
ce

iv
in

g 
di

re
ct

 p
ay

m
en

ts
31

%
40

%
A

s 
Ab

ov
e

O
ve

ra
ll 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ho
 u

se
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

w
ith

 th
ei

r c
ar

e 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t
An

nu
al

 S
ur

ve
y

65
%

70
%

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f p
eo

pl
e 

on
 th

e 
w

ai
tin

g 
lis

t f
or

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
D

D
<1

0%
Av

er
ag

e 
tim

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
ca

re
 p

ac
ka

ge
 a

ut
ho

ris
at

io
n 

to
 d

el
iv

er
y 

to
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
us

er
D

D
28

 d
ay

s

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

in
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n

69
55

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

in
 B

&
B 

(e
xc

lu
di

ng
 u

se
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 a
n 

em
er

ge
nc

y)
0

0

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f r
ou

gh
 s

le
ep

er
s 

(a
s 

re
po

rt
ed

 to
 th

e 
D

CL
G

)
A

nn
ua

l C
al

cu
la

tio
n

15
(a

) D
el

ay
ed

 tr
an

sf
er

s 
of

 c
ar

e 
fr

om
 h

os
pi

ta
l, 

an
d 

3.
95

 
5.

8
D

at
a 

is
 fo

r f
irs

t 2
 m

on
th

s 
on

ly
 - 

Ju
ne

 d
at

a 
no

t y
et

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fr

om
 N

H
S.

 In
 A

pr
il-

M
ay

 
th

er
e 

w
er

e 
12

 p
eo

pl
e 

de
la

ye
d 

ov
er

al
l.

(b
) t

ho
se

 a
tt

rib
ut

ab
le

 to
 a

du
lt 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

- r
at

e 
pe

r 1
00

,0
00

 a
du

lt 
po

pu
la

tio
n

2.
63

2.
7

2.
7

D
at

a 
is

 fo
r f

irs
t 2

 m
on

th
s 

on
ly

 - 
Ju

ne
 d

at
a 

no
t y

et
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fr
om

 N
H

S.
 In

 A
pr

il-
M

ay
 

th
er

e 
w

er
e 

8 
pe

op
le

 d
el

ay
ed

 fo
r r

ea
so

ns
 a

tt
rib

ut
ab

le
 to

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e.

Ca
re

r r
ep

or
te

d 
qu

al
ity

 o
f l

ife
An

nu
al

 S
ur

ve
y

n/
a

tb
c

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f c
ar

er
s 

w
ho

 re
po

rt
 th

at
 th

ey
 h

av
e 

be
en

 in
cl

ud
ed

 o
r c

on
su

lte
d 

in
 

di
sc

us
si

on
s 

ab
ou

t t
he

 p
er

so
n 

th
ey

 c
ar

e 
fo

r
An

nu
al

 S
ur

ve
y

n/
a

75
%

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f r
ef

er
ra

ls
 to

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

is
in

g 
fr

om
 th

e 
br

ea
kd

ow
n 

of
 c

ar
er

 s
up

po
rt

D
D

<1
0%

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f C
ar

er
s'

 A
ss

es
sm

en
ts

22
5

80
%

 o
f t

ho
se

 
el

ig
ib

le
Th

is
 is

 o
nl

y 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
ca

re
r a

ss
es

sm
en

ts
; c

ar
er

's
 n

ee
ds

 a
re

 a
ls

o 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 in
 a

ll 
cl

ie
nt

 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
.

Th
e 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 d
ire

ct
 p

ay
m

en
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

us
er

s 
th

at
 h

av
e 

a 
pr

e-
pa

id
 c

ar
d

D
D

50
%

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f o
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e 
(6

5 
an

d 
ov

er
) w

ho
 w

er
e 

st
ill

 a
t h

om
e 

91
 d

ay
s 

af
te

r d
is

ch
ar

ge
 fr

om
 h

os
pi

ta
l i

nt
o 

re
ab

le
m

en
t/

re
ha

bi
lit

at
io

n 
se

rv
ic

es
D

D
85

%

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f s
up

po
rt

 p
la

ns
 c

on
ta

in
in

g 
el

em
en

ts
 o

f a
ss

is
tiv

e 
te

ch
no

lo
gy

D
D

70
%

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 u
se

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
w

ho
 s

ay
 th

at
 th

os
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 h
av

e 
m

ad
e 

th
em

 fe
el

 s
af

e 
an

d 
se

cu
re

An
nu

al
 S

ur
ve

y
86

%
90

%

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f c
om

pl
et

ed
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

re
fe

rr
al

s 
w

he
re

 p
eo

pl
e 

re
po

rt
 th

at
 

th
ey

 fe
el

 s
af

e
D

D
80

%

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

 w
hi

ch
 w

er
e 

co
nc

lu
de

d 
w

ith
in

 2
8 

da
ys

 
of

 th
e 

de
ci

si
on

 to
 in

ve
st

ig
at

e
46

%
80

%
Th

is
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

re
co

gn
is

ed
 a

s 
an

 a
re

a 
fo

r i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t, 
w

ith
 s

ys
te

m
 c

ha
ng

es
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

a 
be

tt
er

 w
or

kf
lo

w
 is

 in
 p

la
ce

.
Th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f h

om
es

 b
ui

lt 
fo

r o
ld

er
 a

nd
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
pe

rs
on

s
A

nn
ua

l C
al

cu
la

tio
n

tb
c

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
 (w

ha
t i

s 
th

e 
da

ta
 te

lli
ng

 u
s)

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 M
ea

su
re

Ta
rg

et
 2

01
4-

15
O

ut
tu

rn

A
P
P
E
N
D
I
X

A

33



Th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f n
ew

 a
ff

or
da

bl
e 

ho
m

es
 b

ui
lt 

an
d 

ac
qu

ire
d

21
14

0
Th

e 
le

ve
l o

f d
el

iv
er

y 
is

 a
s 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
ex

pe
ct

ed
 fo

r t
hi

s 
tim

e 
of

 y
ea

r,
 a

s 
co

m
pl

et
io

ns
 

te
nd

 to
 o

cc
ur

 d
ur

in
g 

Su
m

m
er

/A
ut

um
n 

m
on

th
s 

w
ith

 th
e 

fin
al

 d
el

iv
er

y 
af

te
r t

he
 n

ew
 

ye
ar

.
Th

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f D

FG
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 w
ith

in
 a

gr
ee

d 
tim

es
ca

le
s

87
.5

%
85

%
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d,
 d

es
pi

te
 a

 re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 h
ea

dc
ou

nt
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e.

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

ag
ed

 1
8 

an
d 

ov
er

 s
uf

fe
rin

g 
fr

om
 a

 lo
ng

 te
rm

 c
on

di
tio

n 
fe

el
in

g 
su

pp
or

te
d 

to
 m

an
ag

e 
th

ei
r c

on
di

tio
n

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f a
vo

id
ab

le
 h

os
pi

ta
l a

dm
is

si
on

s 
fo

r b
ot

h 
ad

ul
ts

 a
nd

 c
hi

ld
re

n

D
D

 =
 D

at
a 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t

34



Q
1

20
13

-1
4

N
um

be
r o

f y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
of

fe
re

d 
a 

pe
rs

on
al

 b
ud

ge
t

N
/A

N
/A

2
Th

is
 fi

gu
re

 m
ay

 a
pp

ea
r l

ow
 b

ut
 it

 is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

pr
ev

io
us

 ta
ke

 u
p 

of
 D

ire
ct

 P
ay

m
en

t 
an

d 
ha

s 
re

ga
rd

 to
 th

e 
fa

ct
 th

at
 th

e 
m

aj
or

 le
gi

sl
at

iv
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

do
 n

ot
 c

om
e 

in
to

 
ef

fe
ct

 u
nt

il 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

fin
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r

N
um

be
r o

f s
ch

oo
ls

 re
po

rt
in

g 
de

fic
it 

sp
en

d
6

0
Pl

an
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 d

ef
ic

its
 in

 a
ll 

bu
t o

ne
 s

ch
oo

l. 
 O

ng
oi

ng
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f 
pl

an
s 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t d
ef

ic
it 

in
 o

ne
 s

ch
oo

l.

Re
du

ce
 th

e 
sp

en
d 

in
 in

st
itu

tio
na

lis
ed

 c
ar

e
H

IP
PS

 w
ill

 n
ot

 b
ec

om
e 

fu
lly

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l u

nt
il 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
01

4
Re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 th

e 
co

st
 o

f L
oo

ke
d 

A
ft

er
 C

hi
ld

re
n 

su
pp

or
t s

er
vi

ce
£8

0,
00

0
Re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 th

e 
co

st
 o

f C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

Ce
nt

re
s

£5
70

,0
00

Th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f i
nc

om
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 o

th
er

 lo
ca

l 
au

th
or

iti
es

Th
er

e 
is

 n
o 

an
tic

ip
at

ed
 in

co
m

e 
du

rin
g 

th
is

 fi
na

nc
ia

l y
ea

r

Am
ou

nt
 o

f R
ew

ar
d 

G
ra

nt
 R

ec
ei

ve
d

£1
7,

60
0

£3
5,

80
0

£2
40

k

At
 ri

sk
 o

f n
ot

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 ta

rg
et

.  
Pr

om
ot

io
n 

am
on

gs
t t

ea
m

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

 lo
gg

in
g 

of
  

w
or

k 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 im

pr
ov

e 
da

ta
.  

W
or

k 
pl

an
ne

d 
to

 re
co

nf
ig

ur
e 

co
un

ci
l 

su
pp

or
t,

 e
nh

an
ce

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
w

ith
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

an
d 

ad
ul

ts
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
.

Re
w

ar
d 

G
ra

nt
 re

ce
iv

ed
 2

01
2/

13
 £

53
,2

00

N
um

be
r o

f f
am

ili
es

 't
ur

ne
d 

ar
ou

nd
' v

ia
 th

e 
re

-s
ha

pi
ng

 o
f i

nt
eg

ra
te

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r 
fa

m
ili

es
27

35
18

4
Pl

ea
se

 s
ee

 c
om

m
en

t c
ov

er
in

g 
re

w
ar

d 
gr

an
t a

bo
ve

91
 fa

m
ili

es
 tu

rn
ed

 a
ro

un
d 

in
 2

01
2/

13

%
 o

f y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
no

t i
n 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t,

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
or

 tr
ai

ni
ng

6.
50

%
6%

5.
50

%

Cu
rr

en
tly

 3
62

 y
/p

 N
EE

T 
(6

.5
%

); 
an

al
ys

is
 o

f t
he

 m
ak

e 
up

 o
f t

he
 c

oh
or

t c
ur

re
nt

ly
 

un
de

r w
ay

 to
 d

et
er

m
in

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
ris

tic
s 

/ 
ne

ed
s 

of
 y

/p
 N

EE
T 

to
 a

id
 fu

tu
re

 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
  1

4 
ar

e 
ca

re
 le

av
er

s.
  W

or
k 

be
in

g 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 w
ith

 1
6+

 
te

am
 to

 o
ff

er
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 s
up

po
rt

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
ag

ed
 1

6-
25

 w
ith

 L
ea

rn
in

g 
D

iff
ic

ul
tie

s 
an

d 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
su

pp
or

te
d 

in
to

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t
A 

ne
w

 in
di

ca
to

r w
ith

 tr
ac

ki
ng

 b
ei

ng
 d

ev
el

op
ed

.

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f 1
6+

 c
ar

e 
le

av
er

s 
in

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 h
ou

si
ng

, i
n 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t,

 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

or
 tr

ai
ni

ng
[a

] 9
0%

  [
b]

 9
0%

   
   

  Th
is

 in
di

ca
to

r n
ee

ds
 fu

rt
he

r w
or

k 
to

 c
la

rif
y 

th
e 

de
fin

iti
on

 o
f [

a]
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

[b
] c

ar
e 

le
av

er
s 

in
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t,

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
or

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 u
p 

to
 th

e 
ag

e 
of

 1
9 

ye
ar

s.
  A

t p
re

se
nt

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 s
ys

te
m

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 to

 a
cc

ur
at

el
y 

re
po

rt
 o

n 
th

is
 

da
ta

:  
th

is
 is

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 in
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
4.

Ed
uc

at
io

na
l a

tt
ai

nm
en

t o
n 

an
 a

nn
ua

l b
as

is
 a

nd
 re

po
rt

 a
ga

in
st

 a
ll 

ke
y 

st
ag

es
.

N
/A

N
/A

%
 o

f c
hi

ld
re

n 
at

te
nd

in
g 

a 
pr

im
ar

y 
sc

ho
ol

/s
et

tin
g 

th
at

 is
 g

oo
d/

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g

85
.7

%
85

.3
%

>8
5%

%
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f s
ch

oo
ls

 ju
dg

ed
 a

s 
Re

qu
iri

ng
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
re

du
ci

ng

%
 o

f c
hi

ld
re

n 
at

te
nd

in
g 

a 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
/s

et
tin

g 
th

at
 is

 g
oo

d/
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g
87

.6
%

88
.5

%
>9

0%

%
 d

ec
re

as
ed

 fr
om

 la
st

 y
ea

r d
ue

 to
 o

ne
 la

rg
e 

ac
ad

em
y 

be
in

g 
ju

dg
ed

 in
ad

eq
ua

te
 

an
d 

tw
o 

ac
ad

em
ie

s 
ju

dg
ed

 a
s 

re
qu

iri
ng

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t.

  A
ll 

ot
he

r i
ns

pe
ct

io
ns

 h
av

e 
ju

dg
ed

 s
ch

oo
ls

 to
 b

e 
go

od
 o

r b
et

te
r.

  T
he

 L
A

 is
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

pr
og

re
ss

 d
ire

ct
ly

 w
ith

 
th

e 
ac

ad
em

ie
s 

an
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
fE

.
Th

e 
%

 o
f a

ud
its

 th
at

 d
em

on
st

ra
te

 a
 c

on
si

st
en

t a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

of
 th

re
sh

ol
ds

 a
cr

os
s 

ag
en

ci
es

70
%

Ev
id

en
ce

 th
at

 th
re

sh
ol

ds
 fo

r t
im

el
y 

an
d 

sa
fe

 in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

ar
e 

co
ns

is
te

nt
ly

 a
pp

lie
d

Sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

of
 c

us
to

m
er

s 
w

ith
 E

ar
ly

 H
el

p 
se

rv
ic

es
80

%

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 M
ea

su
re

O
ut

tu
rn

Ta
rg

et
 2

01
4-

15
N

ar
ra

ti
ve

 (w
ha

t i
s 

th
e 

da
ta

 te
lli

ng
 u

s)

A
P
P
E
N
D
I
X

B

35



%
 o

f y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ho
se

 d
es

tin
at

io
n 

is
 n

ot
 k

no
w

n 
(1

6-
19

 y
ea

r o
ld

s)
2.

30
%

3%
2%

Cu
rr

en
tly

 1
31

 y
/p

 N
ot

 K
no

w
n,

 m
os

t o
f w

ho
m

 a
re

 in
 th

e 
18

 p
lu

s 
ag

e 
gr

ou
p 

an
d 

ha
ve

 g
on

e 
in

to
 w

or
k 

w
ith

ou
t t

ra
in

in
g.

 W
or

k 
w

ith
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s 
to

 lo
ca

te
 th

e 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 y
/p

 is
 ta

ki
ng

 p
la

ce
.

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 d

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
su

pp
or

te
d 

in
 to

 lo
ca

l s
er

vi
ce

s
>2

01
3/

14

Re
du

ce
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 in
st

itu
tio

na
lis

ed
 c

ar
e 

fo
r c

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s

<2
01

3/
14

Re
du

ce
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 in
st

itu
tio

na
lis

ed
 c

ar
e 

fo
r c

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s

<2
01

3/
14

Av
er

ag
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f c
as

es
 p

er
 s

oc
ia

l w
or

ke
r

14
16

16
 - 

18
So

ci
al

 w
or

ke
rs

 h
av

e 
th

e 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 to

 w
or

k 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
w

ith
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

fa
m

ili
es

 b
y 

en
su

rin
g 

st
af

f h
av

e 
a 

m
an

ag
ea

bl
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 w
or

k 
an

d 
a 

ca
se

lo
ad

 c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 

th
ei

r l
ev

el
 o

f e
xp

er
ie

nc
e 

an
d 

co
m

pe
te

nc
e

%
 o

f f
am

ili
es

 b
ei

ng
 re

fe
rr

ed
 to

 h
ig

he
r l

ev
el

s 
of

 n
ee

d 
se

rv
ic

es
20

%
 re

du
ct

io
n

Th
e 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 u
ni

ve
rs

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 d
ea

lin
g 

w
ith

 lo
w

 le
ve

l 
is

su
es

 th
em

se
lv

es
>2

01
3/

14
M

ay
 n

ee
d 

to
 re

fle
ct

 o
n 

th
is

 in
di

ca
to

r d
ue

 to
 th

e 
di

ff
ic

ul
tie

s 
in

 g
at

he
rin

g 
an

d 
pr

od
uc

in
g 

re
lia

bl
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

Th
e 

%
 o

f c
on

ta
ct

s 
sc

re
en

ed
 w

ith
in

 2
4 

ho
ur

s 
by

 a
 q

ua
lif

ie
d 

pr
ac

tit
io

ne
r

99
.1

0%
49

.3
8%

10
0%

Le
ve

l o
f p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

n 
th

e 
tim

el
in

es
s 

of
 d

ec
is

io
n 

m
ak

in
g 

at
 th

e 
po

in
t o

f c
on

ta
ct

 
by

 a
 q

ua
lif

ie
d 

pr
ac

tit
io

ne
r

Th
e 

%
 o

f C
hi

ld
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
vi

si
ts

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 w

ith
in

 ti
m

es
ca

le
73

.7
8%

77
.1

2%
95

%
Ch

ild
re

n 
re

ce
iv

e 
th

e 
su

pp
or

t a
nd

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

th
ey

 n
ee

d 
in

 a
 ti

m
el

y 
m

an
ne

r

Th
e 

%
 o

f L
oo

ke
d 

Af
te

r C
hi

ld
re

n 
vi

si
ts

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 w

ith
in

 ti
m

es
ca

le
92

.7
7%

89
.8

4%
95

%
Ch

ild
re

n 
re

ce
iv

e 
th

e 
su

pp
or

t a
nd

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

th
ey

 n
ee

d 
in

 a
 ti

m
el

y 
m

an
ne

r

Th
e 

%
 o

f 1
6+

 c
ar

e 
le

av
er

s 
th

at
 h

av
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 d
en

ta
l s

er
vi

ce
s

80
%

A 
de

gr
ee

 o
f t

hi
s 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 c
ol

la
te

d 
by

 o
ur

 H
ea

lth
 c

ol
le

ag
ue

s:
  w

ill
 

be
 a

bl
e 

to
 re

po
rt

 a
s 

fr
om

 N
ov

em
be

r 2
01

4

Th
e 

%
 o

f 1
6+

 c
ar

e 
le

av
er

s 
th

at
 h

av
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 G
P 

se
rv

ic
es

80
%

a 
de

gr
ee

 o
f t

hi
s 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 c
ol

la
te

d 
by

 o
ur

 H
ea

lth
 c

ol
le

ag
ue

s:
  w

ill
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 re
po

rt
 a

s 
fr

om
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
4

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f 1
6+

 c
ar

e 
le

av
er

s 
ac

ce
ss

in
g 

w
or

k 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

an
d 

in
te

rv
ie

w
 s

up
po

rt
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 o

f H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
W

e 
ne

ed
 to

 c
on

si
de

r w
he

th
er

 th
is

 c
on

tin
ue

s 
to

 b
e 

a 
ta

rg
et

 d
ue

 to
 th

e 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 
di

ff
ic

ul
tie

s 
in

 g
at

he
rin

g 
an

d 
re

po
rt

in
g 

on
 th

e 
da

ta

Th
e 

%
 o

f c
hi

ld
re

n 
pl

ac
ed

 in
 fa

m
ily

 b
as

ed
 s

et
tin

gs
 w

ith
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 in
 h

ou
se

 
fo

st
er

 c
ar

er
s

95
%

 (o
ve

r n
ex

t 3
 

ye
ar

s)
Ch

ild
re

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
pl

ac
ed

 in
 fa

m
ily

 b
as

ed
 s

et
tin

gs
 in

 c
ou

nt
y 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
th

em
 to

 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

th
e 

be
st

 p
os

si
bl

e 
ca

re
 a

nd
 a

ch
ie

ve
 th

ei
r f

ul
l p

ot
en

tia
l 

Th
e 

%
 o

f c
as

es
 s

te
pp

ed
 u

p 
to

 M
ul

ti 
Ag

en
cy

 G
ro

up
 d

is
cu

ss
io

n
25

%
 re

du
ct

io
n

Th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

te
nu

re
 o

f s
ta

ff
 w

ith
in

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e

6.
1 

Ye
ar

s 
Pe

rm
an

en
t

0.
6 

Ye
ar

s 
In

te
rim

>2
01

3/
14

Th
e 

%
 o

f e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

ro
le

s 
w

ith
in

 s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

fil
le

d 
by

 in
te

rim
 s

ta
ff

36
<3

0%

So
ci

al
 w

or
ke

r a
tt

rit
io

n 
ra

te
24

<5

At
tr

iti
on

 y
td

 is
 2

4 
(p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

 in
te

rim
 w

or
ke

rs
). 

Th
is

 w
ou

ld
 e

qu
at

e 
to

 
an

nu
al

is
ed

 tu
rn

ov
er

 ra
te

 o
f 4

6%
 p

er
 a

nn
um

.  
At

tr
iti

on
 c

on
tin

ue
s 

to
 b

e 
a 

pr
io

rit
y.

 
As

 s
uc

h 
w

e’
ve

 in
tr

od
uc

ed
 a

 re
te

nt
io

n 
bo

nu
s 

fo
r p

er
m

an
en

t s
ta

ff
. S

in
ce

 th
en

 
w

e’
ve

 h
ad

 n
o 

pe
rm

an
en

t l
ea

ve
rs

 (M
ar

ch
 –

 Ju
ne

). 
At

tr
iti

on
 c

on
tin

ue
s 

to
 b

e 
a 

co
nc

er
n 

am
on

gs
t i

nt
er

im
 w

or
ke

rs
 re

fle
ct

in
g 

th
e 

hi
gh

 le
ve

l o
f c

om
pl

et
io

n 
fo

r 
in

te
rim

 s
ta

ff
, a

nd
 o

ur
 lo

ca
tio

n.
 T

he
 ra

te
 is

 in
flu

en
ce

d 
(u

p)
 b

y 
a 

po
lic

y 
of

 
de

lib
er

at
el

y 
m

an
ag

in
g 

ou
t p

oo
r p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
in

te
rim

s.
 W

e 
no

w
 o

ff
er

 lo
ng

 te
rm

 
as

si
gn

m
en

ts
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 re
ta

in
 h

ig
h 

pe
rf

or
m

in
g 

in
te

rim
s.

W
e 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 s

tr
ug

gl
e 

to
 re

cr
ui

t e
xp

er
ie

nc
ed

 S
W

’s
 a

nd
 a

s 
su

ch
 h

av
e 

a 
ve

ry
 h

ig
h 

%
 o

f i
nt

er
im

 w
or

ke
rs

 in
 th

is
 ro

le
. W

e 
ha

ve
 h

ad
 g

re
at

 s
uc

ce
ss

 re
cr

ui
tin

g 
N

Q
SW

s 
an

d 
m

an
ag

er
ia

l r
ol

es
. O

ur
 lo

ng
 te

rm
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

is
 to

 re
cr

ui
t N

ew
ly

 Q
ua

lif
ie

d 
SW

’s
 

an
d 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 th

em
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 re
pl

ac
e 

in
te

rim
 S

W
’s

. T
he

 8
 N

Q
SW

s 
w

e 
re

cr
ui

te
d 

in
 S

ep
t /

 O
ct

 o
f 2

01
3 

w
ill

 o
ve

r t
he

 n
ex

t 6
 m

on
th

s 
en

ab
le

 u
s 

to
 re

le
as

e 
in

te
rim

 
w

or
ke

rs
. I

n 
ad

di
tio

n 
w

e’
ve

 re
cr

ui
te

d 
a 

fu
rt

he
r 8

 N
Q

SW
s 

w
ho

 a
re

 in
 th

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
of

 
jo

in
in

g 
H

C.
 

36



Phase Provision Count

Pre school 1
Childminders registered for Nursery Education 

Funding (NEF) 1 19

2- 5 years Pre school nurseries 2 100
Primary schools with Nursery classes 15

1 Early Years Census 2014

2 Private, Voluntary and Independent providers claiming 

NEF

Primary
5- 11 years Community 33

Voluntary Controlled 8
Voluntary Aided 19
Foundation 1
Academy 16
Academy (Free school) 1
UTC 0
Studio 0

Secondary 
11-16 years Community 3

Voluntary Controlled 0
Voluntary Aided 2
Foundation 0
Academy 10
Academy (Free school) 1
UTC 0
Studio 0

All through Academy 1

Special schools Community 3
Voluntary Controlled 0
Voluntary Aided 0
Foundation 0
Academy 1
Free school 0
UTC 0
Studio 0

Pupil referral units Community 3

Number of pupils in years group 3

R (Reception) 1,861
1 1,880
2 1,865
3 1,774
4 1,778
5 1,814
6 1,751
7 1,680
8 1,745
9 1,794
10 1,917
11 1,874

3 Summer14 School Census

37



Overall preschool 

% of children funded through nursery 
education funding attending a good or 
outstanding provision  

Child-minders 1
%  of  children attending good or outstanding 
provision 100.0%
Number of outstanding providers 7
% outstanding providers 36.8%
Number of inadequate providers 0

% inadequate providers 0.0%

Pre school nurseries 3
%  of  children attending good or outstanding 
provision 89.9%
Number of outstanding providers 25

% outstanding providers 26.3%

Number of inadequate providers 2

% inadequate providers 2.1%
3 private and voluntary settings

Primary schools with Nursery classes
%  of  children attending good or outstanding 
provision 89.6%

Number of outstanding providers 1

% outstanding providers 6.7%

Number of inadequate providers 0

% inadequate providers 0.0%

Primary schools 
%  of  children attending good or outstanding 
schools 85.7%

Number of outstanding schools 12

% outstanding schools 15.6%

Number of inadequate schools 0

% inadequate schools 0.0%

LA authority rank 

Secondary schools
%  of  children attending good or outstanding 
schools 87.6%

Number of outstanding schools 2

% outstanding schools 13.3%

Number of inadequate schools 1

% inadequate schools 6.7%

LA rank 

Overall post 16 
% of  good or outstanding provision for 
Herefordshire students 87.5%

Colleges Number of out standing 1

% outstanding 33.3%

Number inadequate 1

% inadequate 33.3%

38



Training providers Number of out standing 2

% outstanding 25.0%

Number inadequate 0

% inadequate 0.0%

Schools ( 6th forms) Number of out standing 1

% outstanding 14.3%

Number inadequate 1

% inadequate 14.3%

39



40



ht
tp

:/
/w

w
w

.w
at

ch
st

ed
.c

o
m

/t
ab

le
s#

W
AT

CH
ST

ED
 A

N
AL

YS
IS

02
/0

7/
14

02
/0

7/
14

02
/0

7/
14

06
/0

5/
14

06
/0

5/
14

06
/0

5/
14

01
/0

4/
14

01
/0

4/
14

01
/0

4/
14

18
/0

3/
14

18
/0

3/
14

18
/0

3/
14

O
fs

et
d 

An
nu

al
 

Re
po

rt
 2

01
3

N
at

io
na

l
W

.M
id

s
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

N
at

io
na

l
W

.M
id

s
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

N
at

io
na

l
W

.M
id

s
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

N
at

io
na

l
W

.M
id

s
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

RA
N

K
(G

oo
d 

or
 O

ut
st

an
di

ng
)

49
2

50
50

65

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 
18

.1
%

14
.5

%
15

.9
%

18
.2

%
14

.7
%

15
.6

%
18

.2
%

14
.8

%
15

.6
%

18
.3

%
14

.8
%

12
.3

%
G

oo
d

61
.9

%
63

.1
%

69
.8

%
61

.4
%

62
.0

%
69

.7
%

61
.3

%
62

.0
%

69
.7

%
61

.2
%

62
.1

%
71

.7
%

Re
qu

ire
s 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t

17
.6

%
18

.2
%

14
.3

%
18

.0
%

19
.4

%
14

.7
%

18
.1

%
19

.6
%

14
.7

%
18

.2
%

19
.4

%
16

.0
%

In
ad

eq
ua

te
2.

4%
4.

2%
0%

2.
4%

3.
9%

0%
2.

4%
3.

6%
0%

2.
3%

3.
7%

0%
G

oo
d 

or
 O

ut
st

an
di

ng
79

.9
%

77
.6

%
85

.7
%

79
.6

%
76

.7
%

85
.3

%
79

.5
%

76
.7

%
85

.3
%

79
.5

%
76

.9
%

84
.0

%
72

.0
%

N
at

io
na

l
W

.M
id

s
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

N
at

io
na

l
W

.M
id

s
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

N
at

io
na

l
W

.M
id

s
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

N
at

io
na

l
W

.M
id

s
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

RA
N

K
(G

oo
d 

or
 O

ut
st

an
di

ng
)

33
1

26
25

25
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

25
.4

%
23

.1
%

9.
4%

24
.9

%
22

.6
%

9.
0%

25
.0

%
22

.4
%

9.
0%

25
.0

%
22

.4
%

9.
0%

G
oo

d
48

.9
%

47
.9

%
78

.2
%

48
.4

%
47

.2
%

79
.5

%
48

.2
%

47
.8

%
79

.5
%

48
.3

%
47

.8
%

79
.5

%
Re

qu
ire

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t
20

.3
%

21
.6

%
3.

9%
21

.2
%

23
.3

%
3.

9%
21

.2
%

23
.2

%
3.

9%
21

.2
%

22
.9

%
3.

9%
In

ad
eq

ua
te

5.
5%

7.
4%

8.
6%

5.
5%

6.
9%

7.
6%

5.
6%

6.
6%

7.
6%

5.
4%

6.
8%

7.
6%

G
oo

d 
or

 O
ut

st
an

di
ng

74
.3

%
71

.0
%

87
.6

%
73

.2
%

69
.8

%
88

.5
%

73
.2

%
70

.2
%

88
.5

%
73

.3
%

70
.2

%
88

.5
%

89
.0

%

W
AT

CH
ST

ED
 A

N
AL

YS
IS

02
/0

7/
14

02
/0

7/
14

02
/0

7/
14

06
/0

5/
14

06
/0

5/
14

06
/0

5/
14

01
/0

4/
14

01
/0

4/
14

01
/0

4/
14

18
/0

3/
14

18
/0

3/
14

18
/0

3/
14

N
at

io
na

l
W

.M
id

s
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

N
at

io
na

l
W

.M
id

s
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

N
at

io
na

l
W

.M
id

s
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

N
at

io
na

l
W

.M
id

s
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

RA
N

K
(G

oo
d 

or
 O

ut
st

an
di

ng
)

72
2

59
61

78
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

17
.3

%
14

.3
%

15
.6

%
17

.4
%

14
.4

%
15

.6
%

17
.4

%
14

.4
%

15
.6

%
17

.4
%

14
.4

%
14

.3
%

G
oo

d
63

.3
%

64
.0

%
67

.5
%

63
.1

%
63

.1
%

68
.8

%
62

.9
%

63
.0

%
68

.8
%

62
.8

%
63

.2
%

67
.5

%
Re

qu
ire

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t
17

.1
%

18
.2

%
16

.9
%

17
.3

%
19

.1
%

15
.6

%
17

.5
%

19
.4

%
15

.6
%

17
.6

%
19

.3
%

18
.2

%
In

ad
eq

ua
te

2.
3%

3.
5%

0.
0%

2.
2%

3.
3%

0.
0%

2.
2%

3.
1%

0.
0%

2.
1%

3.
1%

0.
0%

G
oo

d 
or

 O
ut

st
an

di
ng

80
.7

%
78

.4
%

83
.1

%
80

.5
%

77
.6

%
84

.4
%

80
.3

%
77

.4
%

84
.4

%
80

.2
%

77
.5

%
81

.8
%

N
at

io
na

l
W

.M
id

s
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

N
at

io
na

l
W

.M
id

s
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

N
at

io
na

l
W

.M
id

s
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

N
at

io
na

l
W

.M
id

s
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

RA
N

K
(G

oo
d 

or
 O

ut
st

an
di

ng
)

20
1

20
22

22
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

21
.7

%
20

.2
%

13
.3

%
21

.7
%

20
.1

%
13

.3
%

21
.9

0%
19

.8
0%

13
.3

%
21

.9
0%

19
.9

0%
13

.3
%

G
oo

d
48

.9
%

49
.5

%
73

.3
%

48
.6

%
49

.1
%

73
.3

%
48

.6
0%

49
.7

0%
73

.3
%

48
.7

0%
49

.6
0%

73
.3

%
Re

qu
ire

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t
23

.0
%

23
.6

%
6.

7%
23

.5
%

24
.5

%
6.

7%
23

.3
0%

24
.3

0%
6.

7%
23

.3
0%

24
.1

0%
6.

7%
In

ad
eq

ua
te

6.
4%

6.
8%

6.
7%

6.
2%

6.
3%

6.
7%

6.
20

%
6.

10
%

6.
7%

6.
10

%
6.

40
%

6.
7%

G
oo

d 
or

 O
ut

st
an

di
ng

70
.6

%
69

.6
%

70
.3

%
69

.1
%

86
.7

%
70

.5
0%

69
.6

0%
86

.7
%

70
.6

0%
69

.5
0%

86
.7

%

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f p
up

ils
:

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f p
up

ils
:

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f p
up

ils
:

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f p
up

ils
:

PR
IM

AR
Y

PR
IM

AR
Y

PR
IM

AR
Y

PR
IM

AR
Y

SE
CO

N
D

AR
Y

SE
CO

N
D

AR
Y

SE
CO

N
D

AR
Y

SE
CO

N
D

AR
Y

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f s
ch

oo
ls

:
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f s

ch
oo

ls
:

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f s
ch

oo
ls

:
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f s

ch
oo

ls
:

PR
IM

AR
Y

PR
IM

AR
Y

SE
CO

N
D

AR
Y

SE
CO

N
D

AR
Y

SE
CO

N
D

AR
Y

SE
CO

N
D

AR
Y

A
P
P
E
N
D
I
X
B

41



42



Monthly statistics: May 2014

`

May-14 Apr-14 Mar-14 Feb-14 Jan-14 Dec-13 Nov-13 Oct-13 Sep-13 Aug-13 Jul-13 Jun-13 May-13
Adjusted NEET% 6.5% 6.1% 6.8% 6.9% 6.7% 6.4% 6.1% 5.5% 12.2% 8.5% 8.2% 8.0% 7.8%

NEET Total 362 339 375 378 371 349 323 260 244 440 416 402 394
EET Total 5176 5190 5140 5088 5141 5108 5004 4520 1725 4675 4674 4642 4675
In Learning Total 4529 4534 4538 4559 4589 4577 4554 4340 1572 4310 4309 4279 4287
Not Known Total 131 148 173 249 200 258 390 977 3785 733 752 813 779
Other (Not In EET or NEET) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 2 2 3
Not Known % 2.3% 2.6% 3.0% 4.4% 3.5% 4.5% 6.8% 17.0% 65.8% 12.5% 12.9% 13.9% 13.3%
In Learning % 79.9% 79.9% 79.8% 79.8% 80.3% 80.1% 79.7% 75.4% 27.3% 73.7% 73.7% 73.0% 73.3%

Broken down by NC year group
Year 12 Year 13 Year 14 Year 12-14

Adjusted NEET% 3.3% 6.2% 10.0% 6.5%

NEET Total 60 120 182 362
EET Total 1727 1819 1630 5176
In Learning Total 1693 1709 1127 4529
Not Known Total 12 36 83 131
Other (Not In EET or NEET) 0 0 0 0
Not Known % 0.7% 1.8% 4.4% 2.3%
In Learning % 94.1% 86.5% 59.5% 79.9%

Estimated no. %
Somerset 5.3% 5.0% 80.5%          17,405               870 5.0% 4.8%
Devon 5.4% 2.5% 81.7%          24,744            1,360 5.5% 2.1%
Shropshire 5.0% 6.8% 80.8%            9,375               490 5.2% 15.1%
Cornwall 4.5% 1.8% 86.9%          17,904               820 4.6% 1.5%
Suffolk 6.7% 7.9% 79.1%          23,892            1,480 6.2% 8.2%
Norfolk 5.7% 8.2% 77.4%          26,711            1,550 5.8% 8.1%
Wiltshire 4.8% 6.8% 82.4%          14,474               680 4.7% 18.2%
Dorset 3.9% 1.9% 83.6%          12,822               500 3.9% 3.0%
Gloucestershire 5.2% 9.8% 77.2%          19,508               940 4.8% 11.6%
East Sussex 7.9% 5.8%          15,970            1,260 7.9% 9.8%
Herefordshire 6.8% 3.0% 79.8%            5,715               370 6.4% 4.9%

*2013 data are are an average at the end of November 2013, December 2013 and January 2014.

DfE Nnational Curriculum (NC) year groups 12-14

Latest Statistical Neighbour comparator data - MARCH 2014
ANNUAL OUTURN*: 16 - 18 year olds NEET and not known - 

summary (End 2013)

Local Authority

Academic 
Age16-18 
(Y12-Y14) 
NEET %

Academic 
Age 16 - 18 

(Y12-Y14) Not 
Known %

Academic 
Age 16 - 18 
(Y12-14) In 
Learning %

 16-18 year 
olds known to 

the local 
authority 

16-18yr olds NEET % whose 
activity is Not 

Known

APPENDIX B

43



44



Q
PR

 - 
Fa

m
ili

es
 F

ir
st

 O
ut

co
m

es
20

12
/1

3
20

13
/1

4
20

14
/1

5
TO

TA
L

RA
G

 R
at

in
g

Tr
aj

ec
to

ry
Fa

m
ili

es
 "

tu
rn

ed
 a

ro
un

d"
O

rig
in

al
 ta

rg
et

 p
ro

fil
e

10
3

15
5

52
31

0
M

ax
 P

ay
m

en
t b

y 
Re

su
lts

 (P
BR

) t
ha

t c
ou

ld
 b

e 
cl

ai
m

ed
£6

8,
80

0
£2

06
,4

00
£1

03
,2

00
£3

78
,4

00
Re

al
is

tic
 fo

re
ca

st
s 

fo
r 

PB
R 

ba
se

d 
on

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
is

tic
s 

of
 c

oh
or

t 
£6

0,
20

0
£1

80
,6

00
£9

0,
30

0
£3

31
,1

00

Ad
ju

st
ed

 ta
rg

et
s 

- n
um

be
r o

f f
am

ili
es

91
35

18
4

31
0

Ac
hi

ev
ed

 to
 M

ay
 2

01
4

91
35

27
15

3
13

1*

Ad
ju

st
ed

 P
BR

 ta
rg

et
s

£5
3,

20
0

£3
5,

80
0

£2
42

,1
00

£3
31

,1
00

Pa
ym

en
t B

y 
Re

su
lts

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
to

 M
ay

 2
01

4
£5

3,
20

0
£3

5,
80

0
£1

7,
60

0
£1

06
,6

00
£1

39
k*

*

it
em

s 
in

 b
ol

d 
ar

e 
ta

rg
et

s 
an

d 
ac

tu
al

s 
fr

om
 th

e 
co

rp
or

at
e 

de
liv

er
y 

pl
an

Ch
ar

ac
te

ri
st

ic
s 

of
 1

53
 fa

m
ili

es
 "

tu
rn

ed
 a

ro
un

d"
  

  
 4

8
%

 h
it 

th
e 

C
rim

e 
&

 A
nt

i S
oc

ia
l B

eh
av

io
ur

 (
A

S
B

) 
cr

ite
ria

 (
na

tio
na

l c
rit

er
ia

)
   

   
   
49

%
 h

it 
th

e 
at

te
nd

an
ce

 c
rit

er
ia

 (
na

tio
na

l c
rit

er
ia

)
   

   
   
28

 %
 h

it 
th

e 
ou

t o
f w

or
k 

cr
ite

ria
 (

na
tio

na
l c

rit
er

ia
)

   
   

   
47

%
 h

av
e 

do
m

es
tic

 a
bu

se
 in

 th
e 

ho
us

eh
ol

d
   

   
   
39

%
 h

av
e 

m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 is
su

es
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

ho
us

eh
ol

d
   

   
   
36

%
 o

f F
am

ili
es

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
ha

ve
 h

ad
 a

 c
hi

ld
 a

ss
es

se
d 

as
 a

 C
hi

ld
 In

 N
ee

d 
un

de
r 

S
ec

tio
n 

17
 o

f t
he

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
A

ct
 1

98
9.

   
   

   
35

%
 h

av
e 

dr
ug

/a
lc

oh
ol

 m
is

us
e 

is
su

es
   

   
   
26

%
 h

av
e 

ho
us

in
g/

ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s 
is

su
es

   
   

   
20

%
 o

f c
hi

ld
re

n 
ar

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

ch
ild

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

(C
P

) 
pl

an
s

N
B 

Lo
ca

l a
nd

 n
at

io
na

l d
at

a 
sh

ow
 th

es
e 

fa
m

ili
es

 h
av

e 
up

 to
 8

 is
su

es
 th

ey
 a

re
 d

ea
lin

g 
w

it
h 

ie
 m

an
y 

m
or

e 
th

an
 th

e 
th

re
e 

na
ti

on
al

 T
ro

ub
le

d 
Fa

m
ili

es
 c

ri
te

ri
a

O
f t

he
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 m

ad
e 

in
 1

53
 fa

m
ili

es
:

N
um

be
r o

f c
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ith
 s

ch
oo

l a
tt

en
da

nc
e 

ra
te

 >
85

%
76

Re
du

ce
d 

ra
te

 o
f c

rim
e 

an
d 

AS
B

70
N

um
be

r o
f f

am
ili

es
 w

ith
 a

du
lts

 n
ow

 m
ak

in
g 

pr
og

re
ss

 to
w

ar
ds

 w
or

k
14

N
um

be
r o

f f
am

ili
es

 w
ith

 a
du

lts
 n

ow
 in

 c
on

tin
uo

us
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t

6

*b
as

ed
 o

n 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

ve
r l

as
t 2

 c
la

im
 p

er
io

ds
 w

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
sh

or
t b

y 
ap

pr
ox

 5
3 

fa
m

ili
es

**
ba

se
d 

on
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f l
as

t 2
 c

la
im

s 
an

d 
ch

ar
ac

te
ris

tic
s 

of
 o

ur
 c

oh
or

t w
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

un
ab

le
 to

 c
la

im
 a

pp
ro

x 
£1

03
k

N
B 

th
es

e 
fig

ur
es

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fin
al

 c
la

im
 o

f t
he

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

du
e 

in
 M

ay
 2

01
5

A
P
P
E
N
D
I
X
B

45



46



Q
1

20
13

-1
4

Im
pr

ov
ed

 r
oa

d 
co

nd
iti

on
s:

N
um

be
r o

f p
ot

ho
le

s 
(D

ef
ec

ts
) r

ep
ai

re
d

To
ta

l m
ile

ag
e 

of
 r

oa
ds

 re
su

rf
ac

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 in
ve

st
m

en
t p

ro
gr

am
m

e
76

04
37

.5
9

M
in

im
is

e 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f p

eo
pl

e 
ki

lle
d 

an
d 

se
rio

us
ly

 in
ju

re
d 

(K
SI

's
) i

n 
ro

ad
 tr

af
fic

 
co

lli
si

on
s 

in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

17
(J

an
 to

 M
ar

)
61

<8
5

Ja
n-

M
ar

 v
al

id
at

ed
 d

at
a.

 

Re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 r
es

id
ua

l w
as

te
 p

er
 h

ou
se

ho
ld

98
.4

9
 (t

o 
M

ay
)

55
4 

kg
 (t

bc
*)

<6
00

kg
20

13
/1

4 
ou

tt
ur

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
fin

al
ly

 c
on

fir
m

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
EA

 in
 S

ep
te

m
be

r.
 

Th
e 

%
 o

f h
ou

se
ho

ld
 w

as
te

 s
en

t f
or

 re
us

e,
 re

cy
cl

in
g 

an
d 

co
m

po
st

in
g

41
.6

 
(A

pr
)

40
.2

%
 (t

bc
*)

>4
1%

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

on
ce

  A
lte

rn
at

e 
W

ee
k 

Co
lle

ct
io

ns
 a

re
 

in
tr

od
uc

ed
 in

 N
ov

em
be

r.

Th
e 

%
 o

f m
un

ic
ip

al
 w

as
te

 g
oi

ng
 to

 la
nd

fil
l

55
.3

0 
(A

pr
)

56
.5

%
 (t

bc
*)

<6
0%

20
13

/1
4 

ou
tt

ur
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

fin
al

ly
 c

on
fir

m
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

EA
 in

 S
ep

te
m

be
r.

Th
e 

%
 o

f t
he

 w
or

ki
ng

 a
ge

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

in
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t

75
.3

%
 

(G
B 

ra
te

 7
1.

7%
)

3.
5%

 a
bo

ve
 th

e 
G

B 
ra

te

La
te

st
 O

N
S 

St
at

is
tic

s 
on

 N
O

M
IS

, t
o 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
4,

 re
po

rt
 th

at
 th

er
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
 

no
te

ab
le

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t i

n 
th

e 
%

 o
f w

or
ki

ng
 a

ge
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
in

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t a
nd

 is
 

th
e 

hi
gh

es
t %

 le
ve

l i
n 

th
e 

co
un

ty
 s

in
ce

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
0.

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 is

 7
5.

3%
, 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 6
9.

3%
 fo

r W
es

t M
id

la
nd

s 
an

d 
71

.7
%

 fo
r G

B.
Ac

re
s 

of
 la

nd
 s

ol
d 

on
 th

e 
En

te
rp

ris
e 

Zo
ne

5.
4

60
 

(b
y 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
01

5)

Th
re

e 
pl

ot
s 

so
ld

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
Zo

ne
. O

ne
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t i

s 
co

m
pl

et
e,

 th
es

e 
ot

he
rs

 a
re

 
in

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t.
  N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 a

re
 p

ro
gr

es
si

ng
 o

n 
a 

nu
m

be
r o

f o
th

er
 p

lo
ts

 w
ith

 a
 

vi
ew

 to
 fu

rt
he

r s
al

es
 in

 th
e 

ne
xt

 q
ua

rt
er

.

Jo
b 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 in
ve

st
m

en
t c

om
m

itm
en

ts
 m

ad
e 

on
 E

nt
er

pr
is

e 
Zo

ne
49

1,
50

0 
(b

y 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
5)

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 6
 jo

bs
 a

lre
ad

y 
cr

ea
te

d,
 a

 fu
rt

he
r 4

3 
ar

e 
co

m
m

itt
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t t

ha
t i

s 
cu

rr
en

tly
 b

ei
ng

 m
ad

e 
in

 th
e 

on
go

in
g 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

ac
tiv

ity
 o

n 
si

te
.

Th
e 

%
 o

f p
re

m
is

es
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

el
ig

ib
le

 a
re

a 
of

 F
as

te
rs

hi
re

 w
ith

 th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

ac
ce

ss
 N

G
A 

Br
oa

db
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
8.

6 
(N

o 
39

96
)

78
%

 
(b

y 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
6)

Eq
ua

te
s 

to
 th

e 
pr

op
or

tio
na

l %
 o

f c
ov

er
ag

e 
w

hi
ch

 is
 3

99
6.

  T
he

 n
ex

t m
on

th
 s

ho
ul

d 
se

e 
a 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t.

Th
e 

%
 o

f k
no

w
n 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

  s
ec

ur
in

g 
ex

te
rn

al
 fu

nd
in

g
92

.3
%

(£
74

6,
00

0)
 

80
%

Th
e 

%
 o

f p
ar

is
h 

an
d 

to
w

n 
co

un
ci

ls
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 le
ng

th
sm

an
 s

ch
em

e
74

%
 (9

9/
13

4)
74

%
 (9

9/
13

4)
W

or
k 

is
 b

ei
ng

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
en

ha
nc

ed
 p

ilo
t s

ch
em

e 
as

 in
 1

5/
16

 
th

er
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

a 
ne

w
 L

en
gt

hs
m

an
 s

ch
em

e 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 in
co

rp
or

at
e 

po
th

ol
e 

fil
lin

g.

Sp
en

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l's

 o
ve

ra
ll 

bu
dg

et
(V

ar
ia

nc
e 

fr
om

 b
ud

ge
t)

0%
(M

ay
)

0%
0%

0%
 v

ar
ia

nc
e 

as
 a

t e
nd

 o
f M

ay
.

Co
lle

ct
io

n 
ra

te
s 

fo
r C

ou
nc

il 
Ta

x;
 a

nd
 

Bu
si

ne
ss

 ra
te

s 
31

.5
7%

30
.3

9%
98

.5
0%

Th
e 

%
 o

f n
ew

 H
ou

si
ng

 B
en

ef
it 

Cl
ai

m
s 

th
at

 a
re

 d
ea

lt 
w

ith
 in

 le
ss

 th
at

 2
0 

w
or

ki
ng

 
da

ys
:

Ti
m

e 
ta

ke
n 

to
 d

ea
l w

ith
 n

ew
 c

la
im

s 
an

d 
ch

an
ge

s 
of

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s
Ti

m
e 

ta
ke

n 
to

 d
ea

l w
ith

 n
ew

 c
la

im
s 

Ti
m

e 
ta

ke
n 

to
 d

ea
l c

ha
ng

es
 o

f c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s

15
.7

9 
da

ys
14

.4
8 

da
ys

16
.0

1 
da

ys
(J

un
e 

on
ly

)

Al
th

ou
gh

 th
is

 to
p 

m
ea

su
re

 a
pp

ea
rs

 in
 th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
pl

an
, i

t d
oe

s 
no

t f
or

m
 p

ar
t o

f 
th

e 
SL

A 
w

ith
 H

oo
pl

e.
Th

e 
3 

ad
di

tio
na

l m
ea

su
re

s 
ar

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

SL
A,

 b
ut

 a
re

 re
po

rt
ed

 fo
r t

he
 

m
on

th
, a

nd
 n

ot
 Y

TD
.  

Th
e 

fig
ur

es
 re

pr
es

en
te

d 
ar

e 
fo

r J
un

e 
on

ly
.

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 p

ay
 p

oi
nt

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

30
61

4
10

%
 m

on
th

ly
 in

cr
ea

se
 o

n 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
3 

ba
se

lin
e

U
sa

ge
 o

f t
hi

s 
pa

ym
en

t c
ha

nn
el

 fo
r J

un
e 

is
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 la
st

 m
on

th
 a

nd
 

m
at

ch
es

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
pr

of
ile

s 
as

 u
se

rs
 a

re
 lo

ck
ed

 in
to

 th
is

 m
et

ho
d 

of
 m

ak
in

g 
pa

ym
en

t.

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 s

el
f s

er
ve

 w
eb

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

21
42

10
%

 m
on

th
ly

 in
cr

ea
se

 o
n 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
01

3 
ba

se
lin

e

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 Ju
ne

, d
riv

en
 b

y 
th

e 
la

un
ch

 o
f t

he
 A

lte
rn

at
e 

W
ee

kl
y 

W
as

te
 

Co
lle

ct
io

n 
ca

m
pa

ig
n 

w
hi

ch
 u

se
s 

th
e 

w
eb

si
te

 a
s 

its
 p

rim
ar

y 
cu

st
om

er
 c

on
ta

ct
 

ch
an

ne
l.

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f c
ou

nc
il 

fu
ll 

tim
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nt
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s
1,

06
5.

03
1,

09
0.

02
<1

,0
90

.0
2

To
ta

l c
os

t o
f t

he
 w

or
kf

or
ce

£3
,1

68
,6

15
Si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 Ju

ne
, d

riv
en

 b
y 

th
e 

la
un

ch
 o

f t
he

 A
lte

rn
at

e 
W

ee
kl

y 
W

as
te

 
Co

lle
ct

io
n 

ca
m

pa
ig

n 
w

hi
ch

 u
se

s 
th

e 
w

eb
si

te
 a

s 
its

 p
rim

ar
y 

cu
st

om
er

 c
on

ta
ct

 
ch

an
ne

l.

Co
un

ci
l's

 a
ge

nc
y 

sp
en

d
£6

02
,3

84
Sp

en
d 

on
 A

ge
nc

y 
St

af
f n

ow
 r

ep
re

se
nt

s 
19

%
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l w
or

kf
or

ce
 s

pe
nd

.

Si
ck

ne
ss

 a
bs

en
ce

 - 
EC

C
3.

80
%

<4
.9

4%
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
av

er
ag

e 
is

 a
t l

ow
es

t l
ev

el
 s

in
ce

 Ja
nu

ar
y,

 a
lth

ou
gh

 th
er

e 
w

as
 a

 s
lig

ht
 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 s

ic
kn

es
s 

du
rin

g 
M

ar
ch

.

Si
ck

ne
ss

 a
bs

en
ce

 - 
O

rg
an

is
at

io
n

3.
93

%
<3

.7
5%

Sp
ik

e 
in

 s
ic

kn
es

s 
in

 th
e 

la
st

 m
on

th
 h

as
 s

ee
n 

th
e 

ro
lli

ng
 a

ve
ra

ge
 r

ea
ch

 it
s 

hi
gh

es
t 

le
ve

l s
in

ce
 re

po
rt

in
g 

st
ar

te
d 

in
 A

pr
il 

20
12

.
Si

ck
ne

ss
 a

bs
en

ce
 is

 a
 ro

lli
ng

 1
2 

m
on

th
 a

ve
ra

ge
 a

nd
 in

cl
ud

es
 th

e 
pe

rio
d 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

13
 - 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
4 

w
he

n 
si

ck
ne

ss
 w

as
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 h

ig
h 

(a
bo

ve
 4

%
 e

ac
h 

m
on

th
). 

 
If 

cu
rr

en
t m

on
th

ly
 a

bs
en

ce
 ra

te
s 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 im

pr
ov

e,
 th

e 
ro

lli
ng

 a
ve

ra
ge

 s
ho

ul
d 

im
pr

ov
e 

to
 b

e 
m

or
e 

in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 ta

rg
et

 in
 th

e 
ne

xt
 q

ua
rt

er
.

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
a 

fu
rt

he
r s

et
 o

f m
ea

su
re

s 
w

ith
in

 E
CC

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 d
at

a 
is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
le

ss
 fr

eq
ue

nt
ly

 o
f a

nn
ua

lly
, a

nd
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

da
ta

bo
ok

 a
t t

he
 r

el
ev

an
t p

er
io

d 
in

 th
e 

ye
ar

N
ar

ra
ti

ve
 (w

ha
t i

s 
th

e 
da

ta
 te

lli
ng

 u
s)

Ta
rg

et
 2

01
4-

15
Pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 M

ea
su

re
O

ut
tu

rn

A
P
P
E
N
D
I
X

C

47



48



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Andy Churcher, HSCB Business Manager on Tel (01432) 260278 

 

 

MEETING: CABINET  

MEETING DATE: 31 July 2014 

TITLE OF REPORT: Herefordshire Safeguarding Children Board 
Business Plan  

REPORT BY: Director for Children’s Wellbeing Services 
 

Alternative Options 

1. Cabinet can request that the HSCB consider suggestions which are made for the HSCB 
to amend their priorities or actions.  

Reasons for Recommendations 

2. To ensure that Cabinet is informed of the progress of the 2013-2014 HSCB Business 
Plan.   

3. To ensure that Cabinet has the opportunity to challenge the Board’s priorities and assure 
itself that the Business Plan is in line with the Council’s Delivery Plan, is sufficient to 

Classification  

Open 

Key Decision  

This is not a key decision. 

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To inform Cabinet of the progress of the Herefordshire Safeguarding Children Board 
(HSCB) Business Plan 2013-2014 at year end and to provide Cabinet with the opportunity 
to comment on the 2014-2015 Business Plan. 

Recommendation(s) 

THAT Cabinet: 
(a) notes the progress achieved in the 2013-2014 Business Plan at Appendix 1; 
(b) considers the 2014-2015 Business Plan at Appendix 2 

AGENDA ITEM 6

49



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Andy Churcher, HSCB Business Manager on Tel (01432) 260278 

 

meet the recommendations from the recent Ofsted review of the effectiveness of the 
HSCB and will enable the Council to meet its obligations to have well functioning multi-
agency safeguarding arrangements for children and young people. 

Key Considerations 

4. Councils are legally obliged to establish an effective Safeguarding Children Board. 
Further detail is in paragraphs 9-11 below  

5. Cabinet receives annual update on progress made with regard to the implementation of 
the Business Plan.  This also enables Cabinet to assure itself of the functioning of the 
Board. This report highlights areas of the Business Plan that have been successfully 
achieved and those that remain outstanding.  Appendix 1 gives more detail for each 
item. 

6. HSCB Strategic Board reviewed the progress of the 2013-2014 Business Plan at their 
April meeting. The plan was an ambitious one, and whilst progress has been made in a 
number of areas, some have not progressed as fully as the Board would wish. 

7. In respect of the recommendation from last year’s Cabinet Report that stated 
consideration be given to continual service improvement through commissioning with 
regard to safeguarding.  The following assurance can be given that ‘safeguarding’ is a 
key consideration in all commissioning activity within Children’s Wellbeing Directorate. 

8. In respect of Corporate Parenting, Cabinet is due to receive a report in the autumn. 

9. The following Action Areas have been fully implemented during the year as planned 
and are therefore fully “RAG” (red, amber, green) rated green.  A number of these are 
planned for the next stage of development within the Board’s 2014-2015 Business Plan 
in line with the three year strategic priorities: 

• DA1: Implement changes in safeguarding practices and HSCB functioning to meet 
the statutory changes within Working Together 2013.  Ofsted stated that HSCB 
complies with its statutory responsibilities.  It also stated that the Board has detailed 
action plans aimed at increasing the effectiveness of safeguarding activity.  

• DA3: Domestic Abuse (DA).  Information received confirms previous knowledge that 
Herefordshire has a higher rate of DA than its regional neighbours and that the 
increase in reported incidents recorded this year is also higher. HSCB has been 
proactive in ensuring its strategic partners within the DA mutli-agency task and finish 
group progress the prevention agenda in Herefordshire. 

• DA3: Sexual Exploitation and Trafficking (SET):  Following key activities to increase 
awareness across the children’s workforce and to build a greater level of intelligence 
around sexual exploitation in Herefordshire, cases highlighted and reviewed by the 
SET Case Evaluation Panel have shown that an increased knowledge of SET among 
the workforce has resulted in some better intervention with young people affected by 
SET.  Ofsted identified the response made to date to this agenda and how we will be 
taking that forward. 

10. The following action areas have made significant progress during the year, but have 
not yet been fully implemented during the year as planned and have at least one action 
“RAG” rated red in the Business Plan.  More detail of the plans for each activity is 
included within Appendix 1. In brief however: 

50



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Andy Churcher, HSCB Business Manager on Tel (01432) 260278 

 

• DA1: Every agency to ensure the voice of children, young people and their families is 
captured and used to improve services.  This is a two year priority for HSCB in line 
with the Board’s strategic priorities.  During the past year all statutory agencies of the 
Board have developed their processes for capturing the voice of children and young 
people and have begun to report their mechanisms and their findings to the Board.  
During 2014-2015 agencies have committed to further development of these which 
will support the Board in planning its own processes for directly capturing the voice of 
children and young people and will be able to identify themes across all this work 
which will inform future strategic priorities.    

• DA2: Improving multi-agency case decision making.  This action will be completed 
once quality assurance work confirms the consistently improving work that is being 
evidenced through performance data. 

• DA2: Improving multi-agency assessments within Children’s Social Care. This is a 
significant piece of work being driven within the Children’s Wellbeing improvement 
agenda – currently being delivered through HSCIB (Improvement Board) and as part 
of the Directorate’s Transformation Programme (CHIPP). Additionally training for 
practitioners involved in Initial Child Protection Conferences (ICPCs) is being 
developed and is scheduled to be available during the summer to improve multi-
agency engagement and accountability for child protection decision making. 

• DA3: Children Missing from Care (to include all missing children).  HSCB is currently 
engaged in a regional piece of work to re-draft the Missing Person’s Protocol in line 
with the requirements of the statutory guidance on children who run away or go 
missing from home or care published in January 2014 which requires each LSCB to 
publish a Local Runaway and Missing from Home Protocol.  This will clearly define 
the roles and responsibilities of all agencies in respect of missing children.  DA3:  
Children Placed in Herefordshire by Other Local Authorities. The decision was taken 
to delay finalisation of the Best Practice Agreement (previously the Contract of 
Expectations) with providers in order that it is fully conversant with the West Mercia 
Regional Protocol and will be incorporated into the launch of the protocol by October 
2014.  

• DA4: Develop the culture of constructive challenge within the Board.  All Board 
members have given verbal commitment to prioritise the completion of HSCB’s 
Safeguarding in Leadership e-learning course, procured in response to the 
identification of development needs of HSCB Strategic Board members.   

• DA4: Develop an evidence base of safeguarding casework across all agencies to 
demonstrate and learn from best practice. The rationale for this is two fold: to 
evidence that the HSCB are meeting and at times exceeding the statutory 
responsibilities; and to promote a ‘learning culture’ across agencies.  Moving forward 
this will be delivered via the HSCB’s Communications Strategy. 

11. DA4: Develop the Board’s knowledge of the children’s workforce and its development 
needs.  While the training needs analysis has only given a partial picture of the training 
needs across the children’s workforce, the intelligence gathered has been used in line 
with other evidence to inform the provision of training during 2014-2015.The 2014-2015 
Business Plan is currently being finalised by members of HSCB’s Strategic Board and 
its development has been based upon the Board’s agreed 2013-2016 Strategic 
Priorities.  It is pleasing that the Ofsted findings are generally in line with the 
development agenda already planned by HSCB.  The draft business plan has also 
been developed to include the following additional areas that Ofsted identified for 

51



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Andy Churcher, HSCB Business Manager on Tel (01432) 260278 

 

improvement: 

• DA3: Private Fostering (3.4); and 

• DA4: The effectiveness of HSCB Training (4.5) 

Community Impact 

12. There are few items within the Business Plan that can yet be successfully measured for 
impact at this stage.  The Board’s Annual Report is due to be considered by Cabinet in 
September 2014.  and within this process impact analysis of relevant actions will be 
undertaken where it is possible to judge at this stage.  However, the recent Ofsted 
inspection confirmed that there are no widespread or serious failures that create or 
leave children being harmed or at risk of harm in Herefordshire. The inspection report 
evidences ongoing improvements in the delivery of services to children and their 
families in line with the Council’s statutory responsibilities and the statutory duties to 
cooperate placed on other partners. 

13. The draft Business Plan (Appendix 2) includes expectations of how and when impact 
will be measured and what the expected impact will be. 

Equality and Human Rights 

14. As the Business Plan is implemented, equality impact assessments will be carried out 
to ensure that due regard is paid to the public sector equality duty as set out below: 

 Under Section 149, the "General Duty" on public authorities is set out thus: 

"A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need 
to - 

eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct ... 
prohibited by or under this Act;  

advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it;  

foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 
and persons who do not share it."  

Financial Implications 

15. In order to enable the delivery of the HSCB Business Plan, the Council will need to at 
least maintain its current contribution to the Business Unit of £147,016 per annum, 
comprising £127,016 from Children’s Wellbeing and £20k from Adults and Health 
Wellbeing. 

16. Overall annual contributions for 2013-2014 to the Herefordshire Safeguarding Boards 
from partner agencies are calculated to an agreed formula and breakdown as follows: 
 

Herefordshire Council   £127,016 
NHS Herefordshire    £45,203 
West Mercia Police    £30,165 
Youth Offending Service   £645 

52



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Andy Churcher, HSCB Business Manager on Tel (01432) 260278 

 

West Mercia Probation   £4,612 
CAFCASS     £550 

17. In 2013-2014 Herefordshire Safeguarding Boards expenditure broke down as 
 

Independent Chair    £15,600 
Support Staff     £109,623 
Training & Workforce development  £21,901 
Serious & significant Case Reviews  £30,921 
Additional Costs    £14,388 
 

These figures will be finalised for inclusion within the Annual Report. 

18. The Business Unit is responsible for writing the Annual Reports; writing and monitoring 
the Business Plans; delivering and commissioning training to meet the needs of the 
HSCB Training Strategy; contributing to pieces of work to promote the safeguarding 
agenda across the partnership and the region; managing and coordinating 
Conferences and Learning Events (SCR/SILP); monitoring the Board’s Learning and 
Improvement Action Plan and Risk Register; communications and website 
development; facilitating and servicing the Boards’ portfolio of meetings, approximately 
2-3 per week.   

19. There is currently a review into the resourcing of the Business Unit to ensure it is able 
to support the increasing demands of both Herefordshire Safeguarding Boards. 

Legal Implications 

20. Section 13 of the Children Act 2004 requires each local authority to establish a Local 
Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) for their area and specifies the organisations and 
individuals (other than the local authority) that should be represented on LSCBs. 

21. Section 14 of the Children Act 2004 sets out the objectives of LSCBs, which are: 

• to coordinate what is done by each person or body represented on the Board for 
the purposes of safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children in the area; 
and 

• to ensure the effectiveness of what is done by each such person or body for those 
purposes. 
 

22. Regulation 5 of the Local Safeguarding Children Boards Regulations 2006 sets out that 
the functions of the LSCB, which are covered in the business plan, namely: 

(a)  developing policies and procedures for safeguarding and promoting the welfare 
of children in the area of the authority, including policies and procedures in 
relation to: 

i. the action to be taken where there are concerns about a child’s safety 
or welfare, including thresholds for intervention; 

ii. training of persons who work with children or in services affecting the 
safety and welfare of children; 

iii. recruitment and supervision of persons who work with children; 
iv. investigation of allegations concerning persons who work with children; 
v. safety and welfare of children who are privately fostered; 
vi. cooperation with neighbouring children’s services authorities and their 

Board partners; 

53



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Andy Churcher, HSCB Business Manager on Tel (01432) 260278 

 

b. communicating to persons and bodies in the area of the authority the need to 
safeguard and promote the welfare of children, raising their awareness of how 
this can best be done and encouraging them to do so; 

c. monitoring and evaluating the effectiveness of what is done by the authority 
and their Board partners individually and collectively to safeguard and 
promote the welfare of children and advising them on ways to improve; 

d. participating in the planning of services for children in the area of the authority; 
and 

e. undertaking reviews of serious cases and advising the authority and their 
Board partners on lessons to be learned. 
 

23. The LSCB is also able to engage in any other activity that facilitates, or is conducive 
to, the achievement of its objectives. 

Risk Management 

24. There are no risks contained within the recommendations as this is an opportunity for 
Cabinet to consider and challenge the HSCB progress and priorities. 

25. The main risk is that failing to have a strong and effective Safeguarding Children Board 
will leave children and young people more at risk of suffering harm. 

Consultees 

26. HSCB Strategic Board  

27. HSCB Steering Group Sub Group Chairs 

28. Herefordshire Safeguarding Children Improvement Board 

29. Herefordshire Health and Wellbeing Board 

30. All comments received from the consultees have been reviewed and built into the 
Business Plan as appropriate 

31. The Council’s Health and Social Care Overview Scrutiny Committee will be considering 
the Business Plan in September. 

Appendices 

Appendix 1 - HSCB 2013-2014 Business Plan Monitoring Sheet 

Appendix 2 - HCSB 2014-15 Draft Business Plan 

Background Papers 

• None identified. 

 

 
 
 

54



H
S

C
B

 B
u

si
n

es
s 

P
la

n
 2

01
3-

20
14

P
ro

gr
es

s 
R

ep
or

t: 
 A

pr
il 

20
14

Pr
oc

es
s

An
 A

gr
ee

d 
Pr

oc
es

s 
Is

 In
 P

la
ce

Pr
oc

es
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

Bu
t N

ot
 A

gr
ee

d
N

o 
Pr

og
re

ss
 In

 A
gr

ee
in

g 
Pr

oc
es

s

Co
m

pl
et

io
n 

to
 T

im
es

ca
le

Co
m

pl
et

e 
O

R 
O

n 
Ta

rg
et

Ri
sk

 o
f M

is
si

ng
 T

im
es

ca
le

In
co

m
pl

et
e 

&
 O

ut
si

de
 T

im
es

ca
le

Im
pa

ct

L
ea

d
 O

rg
 &

 
O

ff
ic

er

H
o

w
 im

p
ac

t 
an

d
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ea

su
re

d
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 w

e 
w

ill
 k

n
o

w
 

w
h

en
 it

 is
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

T
im

e-
 

sc
al

es

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 
M

ec
h

an
is

m
 a

n
d

 
F

re
q

u
en

cy

H
S

C
B

, I
nt

er
im

 
C

ha
ir 

of
 Q

A
, 

Ly
nn

e 
R

en
to

n

A
ll 

m
em

be
r 

ag
en

ci
es

 r
ep

or
t t

he
 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

th
ey

 a
re

 u
si

ng
 fo

r 
ca

pt
ur

in
g 

th
e 

vi
ew

s 
of

 c
hi

ld
re

n,
 y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

 a
nd

 th
ei

r 
fa

m
ili

es
 a

t a
ll 

st
ag

es
 

of
 th

ei
r 

w
or

k 
to

 th
e 

Q
A

 s
ub

 g
ro

up
 

w
ith

in
 th

ei
r 

qu
ar

te
rly

 r
ep

or
ts

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 

in
 Q

2.

S
ep

 1
3

T
hr

ou
gh

 Q
A

 S
ub

 
G

ro
up

’s
 r

ep
or

ts
 to

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
.

G
G

N
S

ta
tu

to
ry

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
w

ith
 r

em
it 

fo
r 

w
or

ki
ng

 d
ire

ct
ly

 w
ith

 c
hi

ld
re

n,
 y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

 a
nd

 fa
m

ili
es

 r
ep

or
te

d 
th

ei
r 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

fo
r 

ca
pt

ur
in

g 
th

e 
vi

ew
s 

of
 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

in
 th

ei
r 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 R

ep
or

ts
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 to
 

D
ec

em
be

r's
 Q

A
 s

ub
 g

ro
up

.

T
he

 im
pa

ct
 o

f t
hi

s 
w

or
k 

w
ill

 b
e 

un
de

rs
to

od
 o

nc
e 

ag
en

ci
es

 
re

po
rt

 in
 Q

4.
  F

ro
m

 Q
4 

H
S

C
B

 
w

ill
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 r
ev

ie
w

 le
ar

ni
ng

 
ac

ro
ss

 H
ea

lth
, P

ol
ic

e,
 

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

W
el

lb
ei

ng
 a

nd
 

Y
O

S
 a

nd
 b

eg
in

 to
 b

ui
ld

 a
 

co
lle

ct
iv

e 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g.

N
/A

N
/A

H
S

C
B

, I
nt

er
im

 
C

ha
ir 

of
 Q

A
, 

Ly
nn

e 
R

en
to

n

A
ll 

m
em

be
rs

 r
ep

or
t t

o 
H

S
C

B
 le

ar
ni

ng
 

fr
om

 th
ei

r 
an

al
ys

is
 o

f t
he

 v
ie

w
s 

of
 

ch
ild

re
n,

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
th

ei
r 

fa
m

ili
es

 to
 th

e 
Q

A
 s

ub
 g

ro
up

 w
ith

in
 

th
ei

r 
qu

ar
te

rly
 r

ep
or

ts
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 in
 Q

3 
on

w
ar

ds
.

N
ov

 1
3

T
hr

ou
gh

 Q
A

 S
ub

 
G

ro
up

’s
 r

ep
or

ts
 to

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
.

G
R

N
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 R
ep

or
ts

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 to

 
D

ec
em

be
r's

 Q
A

 s
ub

 g
ro

up
 in

cl
ud

ed
 

le
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

 a
na

ly
si

s 
of

 v
oi

ce
 o

f c
hi

ld
 

w
or

k,
 a

lth
ou

gh
 th

is
 is

 n
ot

 fu
lly

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

ac
ro

ss
 a

ll 
ag

en
ci

es
.  

D
ev

el
op

ed
 r

ep
or

ts
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

fr
om

 Y
O

S
 

an
d 

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

W
el

lb
ei

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s.

T
he

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

s 
pu

t 
in

 p
la

ce
 b

y 
ag

en
ci

es
 h

av
e 

ye
t t

o 
de

m
on

st
re

 a
n 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f t

he
 

vi
ew

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 u
se

rs
. 

N
/A

H
S

C
B

, I
nt

er
im

 
C

ha
ir 

of
 Q

A
, 

Ly
nn

e 
R

en
to

n

H
S

C
B

 m
on

ito
rs

 th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 
ac

tio
ns

 a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 a
na

ly
si

s 
of

 v
ie

w
s 

of
 c

hi
ld

re
n,

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
th

ei
r 

fa
m

ili
es

.  
T

hi
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 to
 th

e 
Q

A
 s

ub
 g

ro
up

 w
ith

in
 a

ge
nc

y 
qu

ar
te

rly
 

re
po

rt
s 

de
liv

er
ed

 in
 fr

om
 Q

4.

M
ar

 1
4

T
hr

ou
gh

 Q
A

 S
ub

 
G

ro
up

’s
 r

ep
or

ts
 to

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
.

G
R

N
A

ge
nc

y 
qu

ar
te

rly
 r

ep
or

ts
 fr

om
 Q

4 
w

ill
 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
re

e 
su

b-
se

ct
io

ns
 o

n 
vo

ic
e 

of
 

th
e 

ch
ild

:
 1

. W
ho

, H
ow

 m
uc

h,
 a

nd
 H

ow
 a

re
 y

ou
 

ca
pt

ur
in

g;
 2

. W
ha

t i
s 

th
is

 te
lli

ng
 y

ou
 a

bo
ut

 y
ou

r 
se

rv
ic

e;
 3

. W
ha

t a
ct

io
ns

 h
av

e 
yo

u 
ta

ke
n/

ar
e 

yo
u 

pl
an

ni
ng

 to
 ta

ke
 r

es
ul

tin
g 

fr
om

 
th

is
.

T
he

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

s 
pu

t 
in

 p
la

ce
 b

y 
ag

en
ci

es
 h

av
e 

ye
t t

o 
de

m
on

st
re

 a
n 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f t

he
 

vi
ew

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 u
se

rs
 o

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
as

 a
 

re
su

lt 
of

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

us
er

's
 v

oi
ce

N
/A

H
S

C
B

, 
B

us
in

es
s 

M
an

ag
er

, A
nd

y 
C

hu
rc

he
r

H
S

C
B

 a
na

ly
se

s 
an

d 
re

po
rt

s 
on

 
co

m
m

on
 th

em
es

 a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 
ag

en
ci

es
’ c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

vi
ew

s 
of

 
ch

ild
re

n,
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

th
ei

r 
fa

m
ili

es
, p

ro
po

si
ng

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
ac

tio
ns

.

M
ar

 1
4

R
ep

or
t t

o 
be

 
pr

es
en

te
d 

to
 A

pr
il 

20
14

’s
 S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 m

ee
tin

g.

G
R

N
W

ith
ou

t a
na

ly
si

s 
w

hi
ch

 w
as

 d
ue

 in
 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
4,

 H
S

C
B

 B
us

in
es

s 
U

ni
t i

s 
un

ab
le

 to
 p

ro
du

ce
 a

 r
ep

or
t o

n 
co

m
m

on
 

th
em

es
.

N
/A

A
ct

io
n 

to
 b

e 
ca

rr
ie

d 
fo

rw
ar

d 
in

to
 

20
14

-2
01

5 
B

us
in

es
s 

P
la

n.
F

in
di

ng
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

bu
ilt

 in
to

 
H

S
C

B
's

 2
01

4-
15

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

la
n.

N
/A

Li
nk

ed
 to

 H
S

P
C

IB
 P

rio
rit

y 
4.

22
; 4

.2
4;

 4
.2

5
M

on
ito

re
d 

by
: H

S
C

B
 T

ra
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
S

u
b

 G
ro

u
p

Impact

P
ro

g
re

ss
 a

s 
at

 A
p

ri
l 2

01
4,

 P
la

n
n

ed
 

F
u

tu
re

 A
ct

io
n

s 
an

d
 L

in
ks

 t
o

 
ev

id
en

ce
 (

w
h

er
e 

ap
p

ro
p

ri
at

e)
.

W
h

at
 d

if
fe

re
n

ce
 h

as
 t

h
e 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 m

ad
e 

so
 f

ar
 m

ad
e 

o
n

 t
h

e 
liv

es
 o

f 
ch

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 
yo

u
n

g
 p

eo
p

le
?

P
ro

p
o

se
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 w
o

rk
 

n
ee

d
ed

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 a
ll 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
es

 
ar

e 
co

m
p

le
te

d
 t

o
 t

im
es

ca
le

.

W
h

at
 e

ls
e 

ca
n

 w
e 

d
o

 t
o

 
en

su
re

 t
h

is
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
w

o
rk

 is
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

?

R
A

G

A
ct

io
n 

ar
ea

: E
ve

ry
 a

g
en

cy
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
e 

vo
ic

e 
o

f 
ch

ild
re

n
, y

o
u

n
g

 p
eo

p
le

 
an

d
 t

h
ei

r 
fa

m
ili

es
 is

 c
ap

tu
re

d
 a

n
d

 u
se

d
 t

o
 im

p
ro

ve
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

Li
nk

ed
 to

 H
S

P
C

IB
 P

rio
rit

y 
1.

2;
 1

.6
; 1

.1
0;

 1
.1

1;
 4

.7
M

o
n

it
o

re
d

 b
y:

  H
S

C
B

 Q
ua

lit
y 

A
ss

ur
an

ce
 a

nd
 

E
va

lu
at

io
n 

S
ub

 G
ro

up

A
ct

io
n 

ar
ea

: I
m

p
ro

ve
 t

h
e 

q
u

al
it

y 
o

f 
re

fl
ec

ti
ve

 s
u

p
er

vi
si

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t 

o
f 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

in
 c

as
e 

d
ec

is
io

n
 m

ak
in

g
.

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 A

R
E

A
 1

: 
 Im

p
ro

vi
n

g
 t

h
e 

ex
p

er
ie

n
ce

 o
f 

ch
ild

re
n

, 
yo

u
n

g
 p

eo
p

le
 a

n
d

 f
am

ili
es

 w
h

en
 t

h
ey

 a
re

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

ed
 in

 
sa

fe
g

u
ar

d
in

g
 s

ys
te

m
s 

(i
.e

. C
A

F
, S

o
ci

al
 C

ar
e)

Ju
dg

em
en

t w
ill

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
an

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f i
m

pa
ct

.

Process

Completion

v1
.1

1 
of

 9

A
P
P
E
N
D
I
X
A

55



H
S

C
B

 B
u

si
n

es
s 

P
la

n
 2

01
3-

20
14

P
ro

gr
es

s 
R

ep
or

t: 
 A

pr
il 

20
14

Pr
oc

es
s

An
 A

gr
ee

d 
Pr

oc
es

s 
Is

 In
 P

la
ce

Pr
oc

es
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

Bu
t N

ot
 A

gr
ee

d
N

o 
Pr

og
re

ss
 In

 A
gr

ee
in

g 
Pr

oc
es

s

Co
m

pl
et

io
n 

to
 T

im
es

ca
le

Co
m

pl
et

e 
O

R 
O

n 
Ta

rg
et

Ri
sk

 o
f M

is
si

ng
 T

im
es

ca
le

In
co

m
pl

et
e 

&
 O

ut
si

de
 T

im
es

ca
le

Im
pa

ct

L
ea

d
 O

rg
 &

 
O

ff
ic

er

H
o

w
 im

p
ac

t 
an

d
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ea

su
re

d
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 w

e 
w

ill
 k

n
o

w
 

w
h

en
 it

 is
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

T
im

e-
 

sc
al

es

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 
M

ec
h

an
is

m
 a

n
d

 
F

re
q

u
en

cy

Impact

P
ro

g
re

ss
 a

s 
at

 A
p

ri
l 2

01
4,

 P
la

n
n

ed
 

F
u

tu
re

 A
ct

io
n

s 
an

d
 L

in
ks

 t
o

 
ev

id
en

ce
 (

w
h

er
e 

ap
p

ro
p

ri
at

e)
.

W
h

at
 d

if
fe

re
n

ce
 h

as
 t

h
e 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 m

ad
e 

so
 f

ar
 m

ad
e 

o
n

 t
h

e 
liv

es
 o

f 
ch

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 
yo

u
n

g
 p

eo
p

le
?

P
ro

p
o

se
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 w
o

rk
 

n
ee

d
ed

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 a
ll 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
es

 
ar

e 
co

m
p

le
te

d
 t

o
 t

im
es

ca
le

.

W
h

at
 e

ls
e 

ca
n

 w
e 

d
o

 t
o

 
en

su
re

 t
h

is
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
w

o
rk

 is
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

?

R
A

G
D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

 A
R

E
A

 1
: 

 Im
p

ro
vi

n
g

 t
h

e 
ex

p
er

ie
n

ce
 o

f 
ch

ild
re

n
, 

yo
u

n
g

 p
eo

p
le

 a
n

d
 f

am
ili

es
 w

h
en

 t
h

ey
 a

re
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
ed

 in
 

sa
fe

g
u

ar
d

in
g

 s
ys

te
m

s 
(i

.e
. C

A
F

, S
o

ci
al

 C
ar

e)

Ju
dg

em
en

t w
ill

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
an

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f i
m

pa
ct

.

Process

Completion

H
S

C
B

, C
ha

ir 
of

 
T

&
W

D
H

az
el

 B
la

nk
le

y

A
n 

ag
re

ed
 s

et
 o

f m
in

im
um

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

fo
r 

ca
se

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 s
up

er
vi

si
on

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
be

en
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d.
Im

pa
ct

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ea

su
re

d 
in

 th
e 

lo
ng

er
 

te
rm

 th
ro

ug
h 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
fo

r 
lis

te
ni

ng
 to

 
th

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
es

 o
f c

hi
ld

re
n,

 y
ou

ng
 

pe
op

le
 a

nd
 fa

m
ili

es
 in

vo
lv

ed
 w

ith
 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 s
ys

te
m

s.

Ju
ly

 2
01

3

M
ar

ch
 

20
14

T
o 

be
 r

ep
or

te
d 

to
 

Ju
ly

’s
 S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 M

ee
tin

g.

G
R

N
S

up
er

vi
si

on
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
a 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
fo

r 
ho

w
 m

an
ag

er
s 

sh
ou

ld
 

be
 in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 c
as

e 
de

ci
si

on
 m

ak
in

g 
w

as
 r

at
ifi

ed
 b

y 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 in

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

14
 a

nd
 is

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

H
S

C
B

's
 w

eb
si

te
.  

It 
is

 a
ls

o 
sc

he
du

le
d 

fo
r 

di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

ac
ro

ss
 

ag
en

ci
es

 d
ur

in
g 

Ja
nu

ar
y.

U
nt

il 
m

in
im

um
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
re

 
em

be
dd

ed
 w

ith
in

 p
ra

ct
ic

e,
 

th
er

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
no

 im
pa

ct
 fr

om
 

th
is

 w
or

k.

N
/A

M
ul

ti-
A

ge
nc

y 
S

pe
ci

al
is

t C
as

e 
S

up
er

vi
si

on
 T

ra
in

in
g 

to
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

by
 H

S
C

B
's

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 
of

fic
er

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 m

an
ag

er
s 

us
in

g 
th

e 
to

ol
.  

T
hi

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
la

un
ch

ed
 fo

r 
th

e 
st

ar
t o

f t
he

 
ne

w
 fi

na
nc

ia
l y

ea
r.

H
S

C
B

, I
nt

er
im

 
C

ha
ir 

of
 Q

A
, 

Ly
nn

e 
R

en
to

n

A
n 

ag
re

ed
 s

et
 o

f p
ro

ce
ss

es
 fo

r 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

su
pe

rv
is

io
n 

of
 m

in
im

um
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 
ac

ro
ss

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

te
d.

Im
pa

ct
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

ea
su

re
d 

in
 th

e 
lo

ng
er

 
te

rm
 th

ro
ug

h 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

fo
r 

lis
te

ni
ng

 to
 

th
e 

ex
pe

rie
nc

es
 o

f c
hi

ld
re

n,
 y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

 a
nd

 fa
m

ili
es

 in
vo

lv
ed

 w
ith

 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 s

ys
te

m
s.

S
ep

t 
20

13

M
ar

ch
 

20
14

In
cl

us
io

n 
w

ith
in

 
qu

ar
te

rly
 r

ep
or

ts
 

fr
om

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
to

 th
e 

Q
A

 S
ub

 G
ro

up
.

G
R

N
T

he
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t f

or
 a

ge
nc

ie
s 

to
 

pr
ov

id
e 

ev
id

en
ce

 th
at

 th
ey

 h
av

e 
ev

al
ua

te
d 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 a

nd
 im

pa
ct

 o
f i

ts
 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 s
up

er
vi

si
on

 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

m
in

im
um

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 is

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
do

cu
m

en
t. 

 D
ue

 to
 th

e 
le

ng
th

 o
f t

im
e 

it 
to

ok
 to

 w
rit

e 
an

d 
ra

tif
y 

th
e 

st
an

da
rd

s,
 

th
is

 w
or

k 
is

 d
el

ay
ed

, e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 s
ta

rt
 

w
he

n 
re

po
rt

s 
fo

r 
Q

4 
ar

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 in

 
Ju

ne
 2

01
4.

U
nt

il 
m

in
im

um
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
re

 
em

be
dd

ed
 w

ith
in

 p
ra

ct
ic

e,
 

th
er

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
no

 im
pa

ct
 fr

om
 

th
is

 w
or

k.

T
he

 m
ul

ti 
ag

en
cy

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

th
e 

su
pe

rv
is

io
n 

m
in

im
um

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 d

oc
um

en
t 

ha
s 

ye
t t

o 
be

 d
el

iv
er

ed
. T

hi
s 

ha
s 

ha
m

pe
re

d 
th

e 
em

be
dd

in
g 

of
 th

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

an
d 

th
e 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 s
uc

h 

N
/A

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

C
ou

nc
il,

 A
D

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

E
ar

ly
 H

el
p

P
au

l M
er

ed
ith

T
he

 a
re

as
 o

f p
ra

ct
ic

e 
w

hi
ch

 m
us

t 
ch

an
ge

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
be

en
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

a 
m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 to

 o
ut

lin
e 

ho
w

 
th

is
 w

ill
 b

e 
do

ne
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
ag

re
ed

.

Ju
l 1

3

B
im

on
th

ly
 r

ep
or

tin
g 

to
 S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 

on
 p

ro
gr

es
s.

G
G

N

H
S

C
B

, C
ha

ir 
of

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
P

au
l M

er
ed

ith

T
he

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
be

en
 fu

lly
 

im
pl

em
en

te
d.

O
ct

 1
3

B
im

on
th

ly
 r

ep
or

tin
g 

to
 S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 

on
 p

ro
gr

es
s.

G
G

N

A
ct

io
n 

ar
ea

: I
m

p
le

m
en

t 
ch

an
g

es
 in

 s
af

eg
u

ar
d

in
g

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 a

n
d

 H
S

C
B

 
fu

n
ct

io
n

in
g

 t
o

 m
ee

t 
th

e 
st

at
u

to
ry

 c
h

an
g

es
 w

it
h

in
 W

o
rk

in
g

 T
o

g
et

h
er

 
Li

nk
ed

 to
 H

S
P

C
IB

 P
rio

rit
y 

3.
2

M
on

ito
re

d 
by

: H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g
 G

ro
u

p

A
n 

as
se

ss
m

en
t o

f t
he

 im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 o
f 

W
or

ki
ng

 T
og

et
he

r 
20

13
 w

as
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

by
 H

S
C

B
 S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 in

 A
pr

il 
20

13
 

an
d 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
ac

tio
ns

 w
er

e 
ag

re
ed

.  
T

he
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t t

o 
m

ov
e 

to
 a

 s
in

gl
e 

ch
ild

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

as
se

ss
m

en
t (

as
 

op
po

se
d 

to
 In

iti
al

 a
nd

 C
or

e 
A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
) 

is
 th

e 
on

ly
 o

ut
st

an
di

ng
 

ch
an

ge
.  

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

W
el

lb
ei

ng
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
ha

s 
ta

ke
n 

an
 in

fo
rm

ed
 

de
ci

si
on

 to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

In
tia

l a
nd

 C
or

e 
A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 fo

r 
th

e 
fo

rs
ea

bl
e 

fu
tu

re
 

w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

es
 ti

m
es

ca
le

s 
th

at
 a

re
 

m
or

e 
pr

es
cr

ip
tiv

e 
th

an
 th

os
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

w
ith

in
 W

T
13

.  
T

hi
s 

de
ci

si
on

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
en

do
rs

ed
 b

y 
bo

th
 H

S
C

B
 a

nd
 th

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t B
oa

rd
.

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

v1
.1

2 
of

 9

56



H
S

C
B

 B
u

si
n

es
s 

P
la

n
 2

01
3-

20
14

P
ro

gr
es

s 
R

ep
or

t: 
 A

pr
il 

20
14

Pr
oc

es
s

An
 A

gr
ee

d 
Pr

oc
es

s 
Is

 In
 P

la
ce

Pr
oc

es
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

Bu
t N

ot
 A

gr
ee

d
N

o 
Pr

og
re

ss
 In

 A
gr

ee
in

g 
Pr

oc
es

s

Co
m

pl
et

io
n 

to
 T

im
es

ca
le

Co
m

pl
et

e 
O

R 
O

n 
Ta

rg
et

Ri
sk

 o
f M

is
si

ng
 T

im
es

ca
le

In
co

m
pl

et
e 

&
 O

ut
si

de
 T

im
es

ca
le

Im
pa

ct

L
ea

d
 O

rg
 &

 
O

ff
ic

er

H
o

w
 im

p
ac

t 
an

d
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ea

su
re

d
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 w

e 
w

ill
 k

n
o

w
 

w
h

en
 it

 is
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

T
im

e-
 

sc
al

es

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 
M

ec
h

an
is

m
 a

n
d

 
F

re
q

u
en

cy

H
S

C
B

, C
ha

ir 
of

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
, P

au
l 

M
er

ed
ith

A
 p

ro
ce

ss
 fo

r 
ag

en
ci

es
 n

ot
 in

 o
n-

go
in

g 
su

pp
or

t r
el

at
io

ns
hi

ps
 w

ith
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

fa
m

ili
es

 to
 in

st
ig

at
e 

an
d 

in
pu

t i
nt

o 
a 

C
A

F
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

be
en

 d
ev

el
op

ed
.

S
ep

 1
3

B
i-m

on
th

ly
 r

ep
or

ts
 

fr
om

 n
om

in
at

ed
 

ag
en

ci
es

 to
 S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
.

G
G

N

T
he

 B
oa

rd
 is

 a
ss

ur
ed

 th
at

 c
ur

re
nt

 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

ar
e 

fit
-f

or
-p

ur
po

se
 th

ro
ug

h 
M

A
G

s 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

a 
re

po
rt

 fr
om

 
ag

en
ci

es
 a

bo
ut

 th
ei

r 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t. 
 

F
ur

th
er

m
or

e,
 th

e 
P

ee
r 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 la
st

 
O

fs
te

d 
re

po
rt

 b
ot

h 
co

m
m

en
t o

n 
th

e 
st

re
ng

th
 o

f t
he

 E
ar

ly
 H

el
p 

m
od

el
 in

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

. 

H
S

C
B

 Q
A

 m
on

ito
r 

ag
en

cy
 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t i

n 
C

A
F

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
qu

ar
te

rly
 r

ep
or

ts
, t

ria
ng

ul
at

ed
 

w
ith

 d
at

a 
fr

om
 th

e 
ce

nt
ra

l 
C

A
F

 r
eg

is
tr

y.
 P

ol
ic

e 
en

ga
ge

 
w

el
l w

ith
 th

e 
M

A
G

 p
ro

ce
ss

 
an

d 
P

ro
ba

tio
n 

an
d 

P
ol

ic
e 

en
ga

ge
 w

ith
 th

e 
M

A
S

H
 

re
su

lti
ng

 in
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

to
 

en
su

re
 a

 C
A

F
 is

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

w
he

re
 c

on
ce

rn
s 

ex
is

t.

N
/A

M
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 in
vo

lv
em

en
t i

n 
C

A
F

 a
nd

 M
A

G
s 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 
w

ith
in

 H
S

C
B

's
 Q

A
 S

ub
 G

ro
up

 
an

d 
co

nc
er

ns
 w

ill
 b

e 
es

ca
la

te
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

B
oa

rd
's

 M
on

th
ly

 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 R

ep
or

t s
ho

ul
d 

th
ey

 a
ris

e.

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

C
ou

nc
il,

 H
ea

d 
of

 L
oc

al
ity

 
S

er
vi

ce
s

T
in

a 
M

cG
ra

th

A
 b

as
el

in
e 

of
 C

A
F

 ti
m

el
in

es
s 

an
d 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d;
 a

n 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 

tim
el

in
es

s 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

re
po

rt
in

g 
w

ith
in

 c
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e’

s 
qu

ar
te

rly
 

re
po

rt
s 

to
 Q

A
 S

ub
 G

ro
up

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
be

en
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

te
d.

S
ep

 1
3

T
hr

ou
gh

 Q
A

 S
ub

 
G

ro
up

’s
 m

on
th

ly
 

re
po

rt
s 

to
 S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
.

N
N

N
T

he
 u

se
 o

f C
A

F
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 
re

vi
ew

ed
 b

y 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

as
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

ir 
E

ar
ly

 H
el

p 
re

vi
ew

.  
F

ol
lo

w
in

g 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 a
ud

it 
w

or
k 

th
e 

B
oa

rd
 h

as
 a

gr
ee

d 
th

at
 a

 C
A

F
 

tim
el

in
es

s 
is

 r
el

ev
an

t, 
on

ly
 w

he
re

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

is
 p

ro
ve

n 
to

 m
ak

e 
a 

di
ffe

re
nc

e.
T

hi
s 

A
ct

io
n 

is
 th

er
ef

or
e 

no
 lo

ng
er

 
re

le
va

nt
 fo

r 
re

vi
ew

  

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 A

R
E

A
 2

: 
 Im

p
ro

vi
n

g
 m

u
lt

i-
ag

en
cy

 c
as

e 
w

o
rk

.
Ju

dg
em

en
t w

ill
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

an
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f i

m
pa

ct
.

Process

Completion

Impact

P
ro

g
re

ss
 a

s 
at

 A
p

ri
l 2

01
4,

 P
la

n
n

ed
 

F
u

tu
re

 A
ct

io
n

s 
an

d
 L

in
ks

 t
o

 
ev

id
en

ce
 (

w
h

er
e 

ap
p

ro
p

ri
at

e)
.

W
h

at
 d

if
fe

re
n

ce
 h

as
 t

h
e 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 m

ad
e 

so
 f

ar
 m

ad
e 

o
n

 t
h

e 
liv

es
 o

f 
ch

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 
yo

u
n

g
 p

eo
p

le
?

P
ro

p
o

se
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 w
o

rk
 

n
ee

d
ed

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 a
ll 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
es

 
ar

e 
co

m
p

le
te

d
 t

o
 t

im
es

ca
le

.

W
h

at
 e

ls
e 

ca
n

 w
e 

d
o

 t
o

 
en

su
re

 t
h

is
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
w

o
rk

 is
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

?

R
A

G

A
ct

io
n 

ar
ea

: I
m

p
ro

vi
n

g
 m

u
lt

i-
ag

en
cy

 c
as

e 
d

ec
is

io
n

 m
ak

in
g

.
Li

nk
ed

 to
 H

S
P

C
IB

 P
rio

rit
y 

1.
5;

 2
.5

; 2
.1

1;
 2

.1
3;

 3
.1

; 
3.

21
; 3

.2
7;

 3
.3

6;
 4

.2
6

M
o

n
it

o
re

d
 b

y:
  H

S
C

B
 S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up

v1
.1

3 
of

 9

57



H
S

C
B

 B
u

si
n

es
s 

P
la

n
 2

01
3-

20
14

P
ro

gr
es

s 
R

ep
or

t: 
 A

pr
il 

20
14

Pr
oc

es
s

An
 A

gr
ee

d 
Pr

oc
es

s 
Is

 In
 P

la
ce

Pr
oc

es
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

Bu
t N

ot
 A

gr
ee

d
N

o 
Pr

og
re

ss
 In

 A
gr

ee
in

g 
Pr

oc
es

s

Co
m

pl
et

io
n 

to
 T

im
es

ca
le

Co
m

pl
et

e 
O

R 
O

n 
Ta

rg
et

Ri
sk

 o
f M

is
si

ng
 T

im
es

ca
le

In
co

m
pl

et
e 

&
 O

ut
si

de
 T

im
es

ca
le

Im
pa

ct

L
ea

d
 O

rg
 &

 
O

ff
ic

er

H
o

w
 im

p
ac

t 
an

d
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ea

su
re

d
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 w

e 
w

ill
 k

n
o

w
 

w
h

en
 it

 is
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

T
im

e-
 

sc
al

es

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 
M

ec
h

an
is

m
 a

n
d

 
F

re
q

u
en

cy

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 A

R
E

A
 2

: 
 Im

p
ro

vi
n

g
 m

u
lt

i-
ag

en
cy

 c
as

e 
w

o
rk

.
Ju

dg
em

en
t w

ill
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

an
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f i

m
pa

ct
.

Process

Completion

Impact

P
ro

g
re

ss
 a

s 
at

 A
p

ri
l 2

01
4,

 P
la

n
n

ed
 

F
u

tu
re

 A
ct

io
n

s 
an

d
 L

in
ks

 t
o

 
ev

id
en

ce
 (

w
h

er
e 

ap
p

ro
p

ri
at

e)
.

W
h

at
 d

if
fe

re
n

ce
 h

as
 t

h
e 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 m

ad
e 

so
 f

ar
 m

ad
e 

o
n

 t
h

e 
liv

es
 o

f 
ch

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 
yo

u
n

g
 p

eo
p

le
?

P
ro

p
o

se
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 w
o

rk
 

n
ee

d
ed

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 a
ll 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
es

 
ar

e 
co

m
p

le
te

d
 t

o
 t

im
es

ca
le

.

W
h

at
 e

ls
e 

ca
n

 w
e 

d
o

 t
o

 
en

su
re

 t
h

is
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
w

o
rk

 is
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

?

R
A

G

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

C
ou

nc
il,

 A
D

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

E
ar

ly
 H

el
p,

P
au

l M
er

ed
ith

A
 b

as
el

in
e 

of
 m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t i

n 
st

ra
te

gy
 d

ec
is

io
ns

 w
ill

 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d;

 a
n 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

vo
lv

em
en

t r
ep

or
tin

g 
w

ith
in

 c
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e’

s 
qu

ar
te

rly
 

re
po

rt
s 

to
 Q

A
 S

ub
 G

ro
up

, t
ria

ng
ul

at
ed

 
w

ith
 r

ep
or

ts
 fr

om
 o

th
er

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
w

ill
 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

te
d.

S
ep

 1
3

T
hr

ou
gh

 Q
A

 S
ub

 
G

ro
up

’s
 m

on
th

ly
 

re
po

rt
s 

to
 S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
.

G
G

N
E

vi
de

nc
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

au
di

t a
ct

iv
ity

 a
nd

 
th

e 
P

ee
r 

R
ev

ie
w

, M
A

S
H

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

in
iti

al
 s

ta
ge

s 
w

as
 

in
co

ns
is

te
nt

 (
W

or
ki

ng
 T

og
et

he
r 

co
m

pl
ia

nt
) 

w
ith

 r
eg

ar
d 

to
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

m
ee

tin
gs

 a
nd

 d
is

cu
ss

io
ns

.  
T

hi
s 

w
as

 
al

so
 e

vi
de

nt
 a

cr
os

s 
ot

he
r 

so
ci

al
 w

or
k 

te
am

s.
  T

hi
s 

ac
tio

n 
w

as
 th

er
ef

or
e 

m
et

 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
H

S
C

B
 M

A
S

H
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 

an
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

w
id

er
 w

or
k 

un
de

r 
ta

ke
n 

au
sp

ic
es

 o
f t

he
 w

or
k 

un
de

rt
ka

en
 

by
 th

e 
P

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
P

ro
ce

du
re

s 
su

b 
gr

ou
p.

  T
hi

s 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

 m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 
w

or
ks

ho
p 

de
liv

er
ed

 to
 k

ey
 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 in
 M

ar
ch

 w
hi

ch
 

be
nc

hm
ar

ke
d 

qu
al

ity
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
w

hi
ch

 r
es

ul
te

d 
in

 a
n 

ag
re

ed
 

'a
id

 m
em

oi
re

/s
cr

ip
t' 

fo
r 

ch
ai

r 
pe

rs
on

s 
an

d 
a 

re
vi

se
d 

re
co

rd
in

g 
te

m
pl

at
e 

w
hi

ch
 e

vi
de

nc
es

 W
T

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

an
d 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t o

f a
ge

nc
ie

s.

H
S

C
B

's
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

an
d 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

ro
gr

am
m

e'
s 

re
-

au
di

t o
f t

he
 s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
fr

on
t 

do
or

 h
as

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
im

po
rv

em
en

ts
 w

ith
in

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
m

ee
tin

gs
 a

nd
 d

is
cu

ss
io

ns
. 

N
/A

C
on

in
tu

ed
 s

cr
ut

in
y 

th
ro

ug
h 

au
di

t a
nd

 q
ua

lit
y 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 w

ill
 e

na
bl

e 
H

S
C

B
 to

 
m

on
ito

r 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 

on
go

in
g 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 
as

su
re

 th
em

se
lv

es
 o

f t
he

 
co

nt
in

ue
d 

qu
al

ity
 o

f p
ra

ct
ic

e 
in

 
th

is
 a

re
a.

R
E

C
O

M
M

E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
 F

O
R

 
20

14
-2

01
5:

  H
S

C
B

 c
om

m
is

si
on

 
an

 e
xt

er
na

lly
 fa

ci
lit

at
ed

 la
rg

e 
sc

al
e 

au
di

t (
st

at
is

tic
al

ly
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 a

ud
it 

sa
m

pl
e)

 o
f 

m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ak
in

g 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

st
ra

te
gy

 m
ee

tin
gs

/ 
di

su
cs

si
on

s)
.

H
S

C
B

, C
ha

ir 
of

 
M

A
S

H
 s

ub
 

gr
ou

p
Jo

n 
R

ob
er

ts

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 M
ul

ti-
A

ge
nc

y 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

H
ub

 w
ill

 b
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
M

A
S

H
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

P
la

n.

S
ep

 1
3

T
hr

ou
gh

 M
A

S
H

 S
ub

 
G

ro
up

’s
 q

ua
rt

er
ly

 
re

po
rt

s 
to

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

.

G
R

N
A

ud
it 

w
or

k 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

M
A

S
H

 a
lo

ng
si

de
 

ev
id

en
ce

 fr
om

 th
e 

P
ee

r 
R

ev
ie

w
 r

ai
se

d 
co

nc
er

ns
 a

bo
ut

 d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ak
in

g 
an

d 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sh

ar
in

g 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

in
 th

e 
ea

rly
 s

ta
ge

s 
af

te
r 

M
A

S
H

 la
un

ch
.  

S
ig

ni
fic

an
t w

or
k 

ha
s 

be
en

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
pa

st
 4

 m
on

th
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

ar
e 

sa
fe

 a
nd

 W
T

13
 

co
m

pl
ia

nt
.

B
et

te
r 

in
fo

rm
ed

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
de

ci
si

on
s 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
m

ad
e.

  
H

ow
ev

er
, u

nt
il 

ag
re

ed
 

w
or

ki
ng

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 a

re
 fu

lly
 

im
pl

em
en

te
d,

 th
e 

M
A

S
H

 w
ill

 
no

t d
el

iv
er

 a
ll 

th
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t i

n 
m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 

ca
se

 w
or

k 
or

ig
in

al
ly

 in
te

nd
ed

.

H
S

C
B

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 B

oa
rd

 to
 

re
ce

iv
e 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
re

po
rt

 a
t 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

m
ee

tin
g 

to
 in

fo
rm

 th
em

 
to

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 m

ak
e 

fu
rt

he
r 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 a

s 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y.

H
S

C
B

's
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

an
d 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
to

 r
e-

au
di

t s
oc

ia
l c

ar
e 

fr
on

t d
oo

r 
(in

c.
 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
D

ec
is

io
ns

) 
du

rin
g 

20
14

-1
5 

Q
1.

A
ct

io
n 

ar
ea

: I
m

p
ro

vi
n

g
 m

u
lt

i-
ag

en
cy

 c
as

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 w

it
h

in
 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 S
o

ci
al

 C
ar

e.
Li

nk
ed

 to
 H

S
P

C
IB

 P
rio

rit
y 

3.
28

; 3
.3

3;
 3

.3
4

M
on

ito
re

d 
by

: H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g
 G

ro
u

p

v1
.1

4 
of

 9

58



H
S

C
B

 B
u

si
n

es
s 

P
la

n
 2

01
3-

20
14

P
ro

gr
es

s 
R

ep
or

t: 
 A

pr
il 

20
14

Pr
oc

es
s

An
 A

gr
ee

d 
Pr

oc
es

s 
Is

 In
 P

la
ce

Pr
oc

es
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

Bu
t N

ot
 A

gr
ee

d
N

o 
Pr

og
re

ss
 In

 A
gr

ee
in

g 
Pr

oc
es

s

Co
m

pl
et

io
n 

to
 T

im
es

ca
le

Co
m

pl
et

e 
O

R 
O

n 
Ta

rg
et

Ri
sk

 o
f M

is
si

ng
 T

im
es

ca
le

In
co

m
pl

et
e 

&
 O

ut
si

de
 T

im
es

ca
le

Im
pa

ct

L
ea

d
 O

rg
 &

 
O

ff
ic

er

H
o

w
 im

p
ac

t 
an

d
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ea

su
re

d
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 w

e 
w

ill
 k

n
o

w
 

w
h

en
 it

 is
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

T
im

e-
 

sc
al

es

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 
M

ec
h

an
is

m
 a

n
d

 
F

re
q

u
en

cy

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 A

R
E

A
 2

: 
 Im

p
ro

vi
n

g
 m

u
lt

i-
ag

en
cy

 c
as

e 
w

o
rk

.
Ju

dg
em

en
t w

ill
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

an
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f i

m
pa

ct
.

Process

Completion

Impact

P
ro

g
re

ss
 a

s 
at

 A
p

ri
l 2

01
4,

 P
la

n
n

ed
 

F
u

tu
re

 A
ct

io
n

s 
an

d
 L

in
ks

 t
o

 
ev

id
en

ce
 (

w
h

er
e 

ap
p

ro
p

ri
at

e)
.

W
h

at
 d

if
fe

re
n

ce
 h

as
 t

h
e 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 m

ad
e 

so
 f

ar
 m

ad
e 

o
n

 t
h

e 
liv

es
 o

f 
ch

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 
yo

u
n

g
 p

eo
p

le
?

P
ro

p
o

se
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 w
o

rk
 

n
ee

d
ed

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 a
ll 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
es

 
ar

e 
co

m
p

le
te

d
 t

o
 t

im
es

ca
le

.

W
h

at
 e

ls
e 

ca
n

 w
e 

d
o

 t
o

 
en

su
re

 t
h

is
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
w

o
rk

 is
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

?

R
A

G

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

C
ou

nc
il,

 A
D

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

E
ar

ly
 H

el
p,

P
au

l M
er

ed
ith

A
 b

as
el

in
e 

of
 m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t i

n 
IC

P
C

s 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d;
 a

n 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t r

ep
or

tin
g 

w
ith

in
 c

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
so

ci
al

 c
ar

e’
s 

qu
ar

te
rly

 r
ep

or
ts

 to
 Q

A
 

S
ub

 G
ro

up
, t

ria
ng

ul
at

ed
 w

ith
 r

ep
or

ts
 

fr
om

 o
th

er
 a

ge
nc

ie
s 

w
ill

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
te

d.

Ju
ly

 2
01

3

S
ep

t 
20

13

T
hr

ou
gh

 Q
A

 S
ub

 
G

ro
up

’s
 m

on
th

ly
 

re
po

rt
s 

to
 S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
.

G
G

N
A

 b
as

el
in

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

w
ith

 
re

gu
la

r 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

po
rt

ed
 in

to
 H

S
C

B
’s

 Q
A

 s
ub

 a
nd

 
tr

ia
ng

ul
at

ed
 a

ga
in

st
 r

ep
or

tin
g 

ag
en

ci
es

.  
A

ud
it 

w
or

k 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 b
y 

th
e 

B
oa

rd
 h

as
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
m

ad
e 

in
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 in

vo
lv

em
en

t i
n 

ch
ild

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

co
nf

er
en

ce
s 

(t
he

 r
ig

ht
 p

eo
pl

e 
be

in
g 

th
er

e)
. H

ow
ev

er
, p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

sh
ow

s 
th

at
 o

ve
ra

ll 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 a
tte

nd
an

ce
 a

nd
 

re
po

rt
in

g 
to

 c
on

fe
re

nc
es

 is
 n

ot
 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
at

 th
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 r
at

e.
  

N
/A

N
/A

R
es

ul
tin

g 
fr

om
 th

is
 w

or
k,

 H
S

C
B

 
ha

s 
a 

gr
ea

te
r 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 
w

ha
t i

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 d
riv

e 
fu

rt
he

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f 
co

nf
er

en
ce

s.
  T

hi
s 

is
 b

ei
ng

 
pr

og
re

ss
ed

 a
nd

 m
on

ito
re

d 
by

 
th

e 
P

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
P

ro
ce

du
re

s 
su

b 
gr

ou
p 

(r
ef

 C
hi

ld
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
P

ro
ce

ss
 P

ro
po

sa
ls

 a
nd

 
D

is
cu

ss
io

n 
P

ap
er

, J
an

 2
01

4)
.

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

C
ou

nc
il,

 H
ea

d 
of

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
&

 
F

am
ili

es
 

C
as

ew
or

k
Jo

n 
R

ou
gh

to
n

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 R
is

k 
an

d 
R

es
ili

en
ce

 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t T
oo

l w
ill

 b
e 

ro
lle

d 
ou

t 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

so
ci

al
 w

or
k 

an
d 

m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 w
or

kf
or

ce
 a

nd
 u

se
d 

w
ith

 1
00

%
 

of
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

en
te

rin
g 

th
e 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

sy
st

em
.

S
ep

 1
3

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 u

pd
at

es
 to

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
.

G
G

N

P
ro

ce
ss

es
 a

re
 in

 p
la

ce
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 R
is

k 
an

d 
R

es
ili

en
ce

 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t T
oo

l i
s 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 b
e 

us
ed

 fo
r 

ev
er

y 
ch

ild
 a

s 
a 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

fr
om

 IC
P

C
.

H
S

C
B

 h
as

 a
gr

ee
d 

to
 fu

nd
 a

 
re

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 

us
e 

of
 th

e 
R

is
k 

an
d 

R
es

ili
en

ce
 to

ol
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 ta
ke

 
pl

ac
e 

du
rin

g 
Q

4 
- 

q1
 2

01
4-

20
15

.  
T

hi
s 

w
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
n 

IM
P

A
C

T
 R

A
G

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t.

A
dd

iti
on

al
 S

pe
ci

al
is

t t
ra

in
in

g 
on

 
th

e 
R

is
k 

an
d 

R
es

ili
en

ce
 m

od
el

 
is

 b
ei

ng
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 a
nd

 
sc

he
du

le
d 

in
to

 H
S

C
B

's
 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 s
em

in
ar

s 
fo

r 
20

14
-

20
15

.

Im
pa

ct
 a

ud
it 

w
ill

 b
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 

w
ith

 H
S

C
B

's
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

an
d 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
la

te
r 

in
 2

01
4-

20
15

 to
 a

ss
es

s 
R

&
R

's
 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s.

H
S

C
B

, C
ha

ir 
of

 
T

&
W

D
H

az
el

 B
la

nk
le

y

A
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 le
ve

ls
 o

f t
ra

in
in

g 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t w
ill

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r 
pr

ac
tit

io
ne

rs
 in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 IC
P

C
s.

S
ep

 1
3

T
hr

ou
gh

 T
&

W
D

 S
ub

 
G

ro
up

’s
 q

ua
rt

er
ly

 
re

po
rt

s 
to

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

.

G
R

N

T
ra

in
in

g 
fo

r 
pr

ac
tit

io
ne

rs
 in

vo
lv

ed
 w

ith
 

C
hi

ld
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
C

on
fe

re
nc

es
 w

ill
 fo

rm
 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 n

ew
 s

ui
te

 o
f p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l 

se
m

in
ar

s 
w

hi
ch

 is
 b

ei
ng

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 b

y 
H

S
C

B
's

 T
ra

in
in

g 
an

d 
W

or
kf

or
ce

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t s

ub
 g

ro
up

.

N
/A

H
S

C
B

's
 T

ra
in

ig
n 

an
d 

W
or

kf
or

ce
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t s
ub

 g
ro

up
 w

ill
 b

e 
fo

cu
ss

in
g 

on
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
m

en
t 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 it
s 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 s
em

in
ar

s 
an

d 
th

e 
S

up
er

vi
si

on
 T

ra
in

in
g 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
fir

st
 q

ua
rt

er
 o

f 2
01

4-
20

15
.

N
/A

v1
.1

5 
of

 9

59



H
S

C
B

 B
u

si
n

es
s 

P
la

n
 2

01
3-

20
14

P
ro

gr
es

s 
R

ep
or

t: 
 A

pr
il 

20
14

Pr
oc

es
s

An
 A

gr
ee

d 
Pr

oc
es

s 
Is

 In
 P

la
ce

Pr
oc

es
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

Bu
t N

ot
 A

gr
ee

d
N

o 
Pr

og
re

ss
 In

 A
gr

ee
in

g 
Pr

oc
es

s

Co
m

pl
et

io
n 

to
 T

im
es

ca
le

Co
m

pl
et

e 
O

R 
O

n 
Ta

rg
et

Ri
sk

 o
f M

is
si

ng
 T

im
es

ca
le

In
co

m
pl

et
e 

&
 O

ut
si

de
 T

im
es

ca
le

Im
pa

ct

L
ea

d
 O

rg
 &

 
O

ff
ic

er

H
o

w
 im

p
ac

t 
an

d
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ea

su
re

d
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 w

e 
w

ill
 k

n
o

w
 

w
h

en
 it

 is
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

T
im

e-
 

sc
al

es

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 
M

ec
h

an
is

m
 a

n
d

 
F

re
q

u
en

cy

C
C

G
, 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
Le

ad
Ly

nn
e 

R
en

to
n

H
S

C
B

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
in

te
lli

ge
nc

e 
ab

ou
t D

A
 

as
 a

 fa
ct

or
 in

 c
as

es
 fo

r 
co

nc
er

n 
as

 a
 

re
su

lt 
of

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f a
dd

iti
on

al
 

D
A

 q
ue

st
io

ns
 fo

r 
th

e 
B

oa
rd

’s
 o

n-
go

in
g 

au
di

t p
ro

gr
am

 fo
cu

ss
in

g.
  R

ep
or

t t
o 

Ju
ly

’s
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
oa

rd
.

Ju
l 1

3

B
i-m

on
th

ly
 u

pd
at

es
 

to
 H

S
C

B
 S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
.

G
G

N

H
S

C
B

 r
ec

ie
ve

s 
re

gu
la

r 
in

te
lli

ge
nc

e 
fr

om
 p

ar
tn

er
s,

 v
ia

 a
 q

ua
rt

er
ly

 m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 D
A

 r
ep

or
t a

nd
 s

pe
ci

fic
 

qu
es

tio
ns

 in
 a

ll 
th

em
at

ic
 a

ud
it 

w
or

k.

N
/A

C
C

G
, 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
Le

ad
Ly

nn
e 

R
en

to
n

W
or

ki
ng

 in
 c

on
ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

A
 

F
or

um
, r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
of

fe
re

d 
fo

r 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 to

 O
ct

ob
er

’s
 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 B

oa
rd

 w
ith

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

fr
om

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
an

d,
 if

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

, H
S

C
B

.

O
ct

 1
3

B
i-m

on
th

ly
 u

pd
at

es
 

to
 H

S
C

B
 S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
.

G
G

N
H

S
C

B
's

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 h
as

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
th

e 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
ov

er
vi

ew
 r

ep
or

t 
ou

tli
ni

ng
 th

e 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
re

cv
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 m

ad
e 

by
 th

e 
D

A
 

m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 ta
sk

 a
nd

 fi
ni

sh
 g

ro
up

.  
T

hi
s 

w
as

 p
ro

du
ce

d 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
D

A
 N

ee
ds

 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t.

N
/A

C
C

G
, 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
Le

ad
Ly

nn
e 

R
en

to
n

In
flu

en
ce

 th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

of
 

re
qu

ire
d 

D
A

 p
re

ve
nt

io
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 
th

ro
ug

h 
pa

rt
ne

r 
ag

en
ci

es
 a

nd
/o

r 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 c
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

bo
di

es
.

A
pr

 1
4

B
i-m

on
th

ly
 u

pd
at

es
 

to
 H

S
C

B
 S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
.

G
G

N
E

xt
ra

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 fo

r 
do

m
es

tic
 a

bu
se

 
w

or
k 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
co

m
m

is
si

on
ed

 a
nd

 
ar

e 
in

 p
la

ce
N

/A

H
S

C
B

, C
ha

ir 
S

E
T

 W
or

ki
ng

 
G

ro
up

 
D

ia
ne

 P
ar

tr
id

ge

T
he

 H
S

C
B

 S
E

T
 A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

20
13

-1
4 

to
 r

ai
se

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
p 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f S

E
T

 
ca

se
s 

w
ill

 h
av

e 
be

en
 im

pl
em

en
te

d.

M
ar

 1
4

T
hr

ou
gh

 S
E

T
 

W
or

ki
ng

 G
ro

up
’s

 
m

on
th

ly
 r

ep
or

ts
 to

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
.

G
G

N

D
el

iv
er

y 
of

 S
ET

 A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

 la
rg

el
y 

co
m

pl
et

e 
an

d 
th

e 
la

te
st

 u
pd

at
es

 c
an

 b
e 

do
w

nl
oa

de
d 

fr
om

 th
e 

H
SC

B 
To

o 
Cl

os
e 

fo
r 

Co
m

fo
rt

...
 w

eb
pa

ge
.  

Re
po

rt
 o

ut
lin

in
g 

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g 

ac
tio

ns
 a

nd
 fu

rt
he

r 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t d
el

iv
er

ed
 to

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 
(2

01
4-

03
)

E
xp

ec
ta

tio
ns

 o
n 

th
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lie

s 
of

 L
S

C
B

s 
ha

ve
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
ov

er
 th

e 
pa

st
 y

ea
r 

an
d 

H
S

C
B

 is
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
a 

ne
w

 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 S
E

T
 P

la
n 

su
pp

or
te

d 
by

 a
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 G
ro

up
 w

ho
 w

ill
 

bu
ild

 o
n 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 
m

ad
e 

du
rin

g 
20

13
-1

4.
  

A
s 

ag
re

ed
 w

ith
in

 o
ur

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 

P
rio

rit
ie

s 
fo

r 
20

13
-1

6,
 S

E
T

 w
ill

 
re

m
ai

n 
an

 A
ct

io
n 

A
re

a 
fo

r 
H

S
C

B
 in

 2
01

4-
15

.  
W

ith
in

 th
is

 
co

nt
in

ue
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t w

or
k 

H
S

C
B

 a
re

 u
nd

er
ta

ki
ng

 a
 s

el
f 

as
se

ss
m

en
t a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t o
f t

he
 th

e 
N

at
io

na
l 

S
E

T
 A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n.

H
S

C
B

, C
ha

ir 
S

E
T

 W
or

ki
ng

 
G

ro
up

 
D

ia
ne

 P
ar

tr
id

ge

H
S

C
B

’s
 S

E
T

 W
or

ki
ng

 G
ro

up
 w

ill
 

ev
ol

ve
 in

to
 a

 S
E

T
 C

as
e 

E
va

lu
at

io
n 

P
an

el
.

Ju
l 1

3

T
hr

ou
gh

 S
E

T
 

W
or

ki
ng

 G
ro

up
’s

 
m

on
th

ly
 r

ep
or

ts
 to

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
.

G
G

N
S

E
T

 C
as

e 
E

va
lu

at
io

n 
P

an
el

 tr
ia

lle
d 

du
rin

g 
20

13
.

Le
ar

ni
ng

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

fr
om

 th
e 

gr
ou

p 
an

d 
w

ill
 b

e 
fe

d 
in

to
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f o

ur
 n

ew
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 S
E

T
 

P
la

n 
an

d 
D

is
ru

pt
io

n 
P

la
n 

fo
r 

20
14

-1
5.

T
he

 a
gr

ee
d 

w
ay

 fo
rw

ar
d 

it 
to

 
de

ve
lo

p 
a 

ne
w

 O
pe

ra
tio

na
l S

E
T

 
gr

ou
p 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 o

ve
rs

ee
 c

as
es

 
w

he
re

 th
er

e 
is

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t r

is
k 

of
 

ha
rm

 fr
om

 S
E

T
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 
P

la
n.

A
ct

io
n 

ar
ea

: D
o

m
es

ti
c 

A
b

su
e

Li
nk

ed
 to

 H
S

P
C

IB
 P

rio
rit

y 
5.

2;
 5

.3
M

o
n

it
o

re
d

 b
y:

  H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

M
on

ito
re

d 
by

: H
S

C
B

 S
ex

u
al

 E
xp

lo
it

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 
T

ra
ff

ic
ki

n
g

 W
o

rk
in

g
 G

ro
u

p

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 A

R
E

A
 3

: 
 T

ac
kl

in
g

 e
vi

d
en

ce
d

 s
af

eg
u

ar
d

in
g

 
is

su
es

 in
 H

er
ef

o
rd

sh
ir

e.
Ju

dg
em

en
t w

ill
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

an
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f i

m
pa

ct
.

Process

Completion

Impact

P
ro

g
re

ss
 a

s 
at

 A
p

ri
l 2

01
4,

 P
la

n
n

ed
 

F
u

tu
re

 A
ct

io
n

s 
an

d
 L

in
ks

 t
o

 
ev

id
en

ce
 (

w
h

er
e 

ap
p

ro
p

ri
at

e)
.

W
h

at
 d

if
fe

re
n

ce
 h

as
 t

h
e 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 m

ad
e 

so
 f

ar
 m

ad
e 

o
n

 t
h

e 
liv

es
 o

f 
ch

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 
yo

u
n

g
 p

eo
p

le
?

P
ro

p
o

se
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 w
o

rk
 

n
ee

d
ed

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 a
ll 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
es

 
ar

e 
co

m
p

le
te

d
 t

o
 t

im
es

ca
le

.

W
h

at
 e

ls
e 

ca
n

 w
e 

d
o

 t
o

 
en

su
re

 t
h

is
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
w

o
rk

 is
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

?

R
A

G

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

re
ce

iv
ed

 c
on

fir
m

s 
pr

ev
io

us
 k

no
w

le
dg

e 
th

at
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 h

as
 a

 h
ig

he
r 

ra
te

 o
f D

A
 th

an
 it

s 
re

gi
on

al
 

ne
ig

hb
ou

rs
 a

nd
 th

at
 th

e 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 r
ep

or
te

d 
in

ci
de

nt
s 

re
co

rd
ed

 th
is

 y
ea

r 
is

 a
ls

o 
hi

gh
er

.  
H

S
C

B
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

pr
oa

ct
iv

e 
in

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
its

 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
D

A
 m

ut
li-

ag
en

cy
 ta

sk
 a

nd
 

fin
is

h 
gr

ou
p 

pr
og

re
ss

 th
e 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
ag

en
da

 in
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
. 

H
S

C
B

's
 Q

A
 S

ub
 G

ro
up

 w
ill

 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 r
ec

ei
ve

 a
nd

 m
on

ito
r 

th
e 

m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 D
A

 r
ep

or
t o

n 
a 

qu
ar

te
rly

 b
as

is
 a

nd
 in

fo
rm

 
st

ra
tg

ic
 b

oa
rd

 o
f i

ts
 c

on
ce

rn
s.

A
ct

io
n 

ar
ea

: S
ex

u
al

 E
xp

lo
it

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 T
ra

ff
ic

ki
n

g
.

C
as

es
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

ed
 a

nd
 

re
vi

ew
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

S
E

T
 C

as
e 

E
va

lu
at

io
n 

P
an

el
 h

av
e 

sh
ow

n 
th

at
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
of

 S
E

T
 a

m
on

g 
th

e 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 
ha

s 
re

su
lte

d 
in

 s
om

e 
be

tte
r 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

w
ith

 y
ou

ng
 

pe
op

le
 a

ffe
ct

ed
 b

y 
S

E
T

.

v1
.1

6 
of

 9

60



H
S

C
B

 B
u

si
n

es
s 

P
la

n
 2

01
3-

20
14

P
ro

gr
es

s 
R

ep
or

t: 
 A

pr
il 

20
14

Pr
oc

es
s

An
 A

gr
ee

d 
Pr

oc
es

s 
Is

 In
 P

la
ce

Pr
oc

es
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

Bu
t N

ot
 A

gr
ee

d
N

o 
Pr

og
re

ss
 In

 A
gr

ee
in

g 
Pr

oc
es

s

Co
m

pl
et

io
n 

to
 T

im
es

ca
le

Co
m

pl
et

e 
O

R 
O

n 
Ta

rg
et

Ri
sk

 o
f M

is
si

ng
 T

im
es

ca
le

In
co

m
pl

et
e 

&
 O

ut
si

de
 T

im
es

ca
le

Im
pa

ct

L
ea

d
 O

rg
 &

 
O

ff
ic

er

H
o

w
 im

p
ac

t 
an

d
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ea

su
re

d
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 w

e 
w

ill
 k

n
o

w
 

w
h

en
 it

 is
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

T
im

e-
 

sc
al

es

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 
M

ec
h

an
is

m
 a

n
d

 
F

re
q

u
en

cy

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 A

R
E

A
 3

: 
 T

ac
kl

in
g

 e
vi

d
en

ce
d

 s
af

eg
u

ar
d

in
g

 
is

su
es

 in
 H

er
ef

o
rd

sh
ir

e.
Ju

dg
em

en
t w

ill
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

an
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f i

m
pa

ct
.

Process

Completion

Impact

P
ro

g
re

ss
 a

s 
at

 A
p

ri
l 2

01
4,

 P
la

n
n

ed
 

F
u

tu
re

 A
ct

io
n

s 
an

d
 L

in
ks

 t
o

 
ev

id
en

ce
 (

w
h

er
e 

ap
p

ro
p

ri
at

e)
.

W
h

at
 d

if
fe

re
n

ce
 h

as
 t

h
e 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 m

ad
e 

so
 f

ar
 m

ad
e 

o
n

 t
h

e 
liv

es
 o

f 
ch

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 
yo

u
n

g
 p

eo
p

le
?

P
ro

p
o

se
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 w
o

rk
 

n
ee

d
ed

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 a
ll 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
es

 
ar

e 
co

m
p

le
te

d
 t

o
 t

im
es

ca
le

.

W
h

at
 e

ls
e 

ca
n

 w
e 

d
o

 t
o

 
en

su
re

 t
h

is
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
w

o
rk

 is
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

?

R
A

G

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

C
ou

nc
il,

 H
ea

d 
of

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

R
ev

ie
w

D
ia

ne
 P

ar
tr

id
ge

T
he

re
 a

re
 c

le
ar

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 p

ro
ce

ss
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 o
th

er
 lo

ca
l 

au
th

or
iti

es
 a

nd
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

in
 n

ot
ify

in
g 

ag
en

ci
es

 o
f 

ch
ild

re
n 

pl
ac

ed
 w

ith
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 b

y 
ot

he
r 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s.

Ju
n 

13

T
hr

ou
gh

 q
ua

rt
er

ly
 

th
em

ed
 r

ep
or

ts
 to

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
.

G
R

N

M
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 in

 p
la

ce
 a

nd
 

su
pp

or
te

d 
by

 n
ew

 le
gi

sl
at

io
n.

  W
or

k 
is

 
on

go
in

g 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
ar

e 
us

ed
 

co
ns

is
te

nt
ly

 b
y 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

pr
ov

id
er

s.

H
S

C
B

's
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
p 

w
ith

 
A

cc
om

od
at

io
n 

P
ro

vi
de

rs
 h

as
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
ov

er
 th

e 
ye

ar
 a

nd
 

th
er

e 
is

 g
re

at
er

 e
ng

ag
em

en
t 

fr
om

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
 w

he
n 

ch
ild

re
n 

ar
e 

pl
ac

ed
 fr

om
 o

ut
he

r 
lo

ca
l 

au
th

or
iti

es
.

H
S

C
B

 is
 in

vo
lv

ed
 s

ha
pi

ng
 a

nd
 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 th

e 
W

es
t M

er
ci

a 
M

is
si

ng
 C

hi
ld

re
n 

P
ro

to
co

l, 
a 

pr
oc

es
s 

w
hi

ch
 in

vl
ud

es
 th

e 
sh

ar
in

g 
of

 g
oo

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
ac

ro
ss

 
th

e 
re

gi
on

.  
W

ith
in

 th
is

 w
or

k,
 

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

W
el

lb
ei

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

al
so

 le
ar

ni
ng

 fr
om

 n
at

io
na

l 
le

ad
er

s 
in

 th
e 

fie
ld

.

H
S

C
B

 A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

P
ro

vi
de

r's
 F

or
um

 w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 
to

 b
e 

he
ld

 th
re

e 
tim

es
 p

er
 y

ea
r 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

fo
cu

s 
on

 
m

is
si

ng
 c

hi
ld

re
n.

  H
S

C
B

 is
 a

ls
o 

en
ga

ge
d 

in
 th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 r

eg
io

na
l p

ro
to

co
ls

.

H
S

C
B

, 
B

us
in

es
s 

M
an

ag
er

A
nd

y 
C

hu
rc

he
r

F
ol

lo
w

in
g 

th
e 

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
M

is
si

ng
 C

hi
ld

re
n 

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t t
o 

th
e 

Q
A

 S
ub

 G
ro

up
 (

Ju
ne

 2
01

3)
 th

e 
B

us
in

es
s 

U
ni

t w
ill

 h
av

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 fo

r 
th

e 
B

oa
rd

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 r

es
po

ns
es

 to
 in

ci
de

nc
es

 
of

 m
is

si
ng

 c
hi

ld
re

n.

A
ug

 1
3

P
re

se
nt

ed
 to

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r’s
 

m
ee

tin
g 

of
 th

e 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
.

G
G

N
H

S
C

B
's

 M
is

si
ng

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
gr

ee
d 

by
 th

e 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 a

nd
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

 fo
r 

th
e 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 a

ct
io

ns
 is

 h
el

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
B

oa
rd

, C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

W
el

lb
ei

ng
 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
W

es
t M

er
ci

a 
P

ol
ic

e.
  T

he
 

P
la

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
m

on
ito

re
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 th

e 
S

E
T

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 G

ro
up

.

D
el

ay
s 

in
 th

e 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
of

  
th

e 
pl

an
, r

ep
or

te
d 

to
 H

S
C

B
 

S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

, m
ea

n 
th

at
 

pr
og

re
ss

 to
 d

at
e 

ha
s 

no
t 

m
ad

e 
a 

m
ea

su
ra

bl
e 

di
ffe

re
nc

e 
to

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
.  

H
ow

ev
er

 
be

ttw
e 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
ar

e 
in

 p
la

ce
 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

os
e 

w
ho

 g
o 

m
is

si
ng

 fr
om

 c
ar

e.
 

N
/A

F
ur

th
er

 w
or

k 
is

 o
ng

oi
ng

 a
nd

 
ou

tli
ne

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

M
is

si
ng

 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n.

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

C
ou

nc
il,

 H
ea

d 
of

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

R
ev

ie
w

D
ia

ne
 P

ar
tr

id
ge

T
he

re
 a

re
 c

le
ar

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 p

ro
ce

ss
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 o
th

er
 lo

ca
l 

au
th

or
iti

es
 a

nd
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

in
 n

ot
ify

in
g 

ag
en

ci
es

 o
f 

ch
ild

re
n 

pl
ac

ed
 w

ith
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 b

y 
ot

he
r 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s.

Ju
n 

13

T
hr

ou
gh

 q
ua

rt
er

ly
 

th
em

ed
 r

ep
or

ts
 to

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
.

G
G

N
M

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 in
 p

la
ce

 a
nd

 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 n

ew
 le

gi
sl

at
io

n.
  W

or
k 

is
 

on
go

in
g 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

ar
e 

us
ed

 
co

ns
is

te
nt

ly
 b

y 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
pr

ov
id

er
s.

  W
hi

le
 th

e 
sp

ec
ifi

cs
 o

f t
hi

s 
ac

tio
n 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
m

et
, i

t i
s 

ac
kn

ow
le

dg
ed

 th
at

 fu
rt

he
r 

w
or

k 
is

 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
co

nt
in

ue
s.

N
/A

H
S

C
B

 A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

P
ro

vi
de

r's
 F

or
um

 w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 
to

 b
e 

he
ld

 th
re

e 
tim

es
 p

er
 y

ea
r 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

fo
cu

s 
on

 
m

is
si

ng
 c

hi
ld

re
n.

  H
S

C
B

 is
 a

ls
o 

en
ga

ge
d 

in
 th

e 
re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 r

eg
io

na
l p

ro
to

co
ls

.

H
S

C
B

's
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
p 

w
ith

 
A

cc
om

od
at

io
n 

P
ro

vi
de

rs
 h

as
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
ov

er
 th

e 
ye

ar
 a

nd
 

th
er

e 
is

 g
re

at
er

 e
ng

ag
em

en
t 

fr
om

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
 w

he
n 

ch
ild

re
n 

ar
e 

pl
ac

ed
 fr

om
 o

ut
he

r 
lo

ca
l 

A
ct

io
n 

ar
ea

: C
h

ild
re

n
 M

is
si

n
g

 f
ro

m
 C

ar
e.

Li
nk

ed
 to

 H
S

P
C

IB
 P

rio
rit

y 
2.

14
M

on
ito

re
d 

by
: H

S
C

B
 S

te
er

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

M
on

ito
re

d 
by

: H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
A

ct
io

n 
ar

ea
: C

h
ild

re
n

 P
la

ce
d

 in
 H

er
ef

o
rd

sh
ir

e 
b

y 
O

th
er

 L
o

ca
l A

u
th

o
ri

ti
es

.
Li

nk
ed

 to
 H

S
P

C
IB

 P
rio

rit
y 

2.
14

v1
.1

7 
of

 9

61



H
S

C
B

 B
u

si
n

es
s 

P
la

n
 2

01
3-

20
14

P
ro

gr
es

s 
R

ep
or

t: 
 A

pr
il 

20
14

Pr
oc

es
s

An
 A

gr
ee

d 
Pr

oc
es

s 
Is

 In
 P

la
ce

Pr
oc

es
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

Bu
t N

ot
 A

gr
ee

d
N

o 
Pr

og
re

ss
 In

 A
gr

ee
in

g 
Pr

oc
es

s

Co
m

pl
et

io
n 

to
 T

im
es

ca
le

Co
m

pl
et

e 
O

R 
O

n 
Ta

rg
et

Ri
sk

 o
f M

is
si

ng
 T

im
es

ca
le

In
co

m
pl

et
e 

&
 O

ut
si

de
 T

im
es

ca
le

Im
pa

ct

L
ea

d
 O

rg
 &

 
O

ff
ic

er

H
o

w
 im

p
ac

t 
an

d
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ea

su
re

d
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 w

e 
w

ill
 k

n
o

w
 

w
h

en
 it

 is
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

T
im

e-
 

sc
al

es

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 
M

ec
h

an
is

m
 a

n
d

 
F

re
q

u
en

cy

H
S

C
B

, 
B

us
in

es
s 

M
an

ag
er

A
nd

y 
C

hu
rc

he
r

A
n 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
sy

st
em

 fo
r 

do
cu

m
en

tin
g 

ch
al

le
ng

e 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

B
oa

rd
 to

 c
ap

tu
re

 
le

ar
ni

ng
 a

nd
 g

oo
d 

pr
ac

tic
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d.

S
ep

 1
3

S
yn

op
si

s 
to

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
’s

 q
ua

rt
er

ly
 

re
po

rt
 to

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 

B
oa

rd
.

G
G

N
In

ci
de

nc
es

 o
f c

ha
lle

ng
ea

re
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

at
 a

ll 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
oa

rd
 m

ee
tin

gs
 a

nd
 

S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 m
ee

tin
gs

 a
nd

 
re

co
rd

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

B
us

in
es

s 
U

ni
t.

N
/A

N
/A

H
S

C
B

, 
B

us
in

es
s 

M
an

ag
er

A
nd

y 
C

hu
rc

he
r

A
 r

ob
us

t s
ys

te
m

 o
f c

om
m

un
ic

at
in

g 
qu

al
ita

tiv
e 

an
d 

qu
an

tit
at

iv
e 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

an
al

ys
is

 is
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
fr

om
 th

e 
su

b 
gr

ou
ps

 to
 th

e 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
oa

rd
 s

o 
th

at
 it

 c
an

 e
ffe

ct
iv

el
y 

m
on

ito
r 

an
d 

ch
al

le
ng

e 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 c

hi
ld

 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

pr
ac

tic
e

Ju
l 1

3

M
on

th
ly

 r
ep

or
ts

 to
 

be
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 to
 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 B

oa
rd

 
m

em
be

rs
.

G
G

N

M
on

th
ly

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 b
ul

le
tin

s 
fo

r 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 B

oa
rd

 in
 

pl
ac

e 
an

d 
de

liv
er

ed
 w

ith
in

 ti
m

es
ca

le
.

N
/A

N
/A

H
S

C
B

, C
ha

ir 
of

 
T

&
W

D
H

az
el

 B
la

nk
le

y

A
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 n

ee
ds

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t w

ith
 

B
oa

rd
 m

em
be

rs
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
al

l m
em

be
rs

 
ha

ve
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 

th
ei

r 
ro

le
.

Ju
l 1

3
S

yn
op

si
s 

to
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

’s
 q

ua
rt

er
ly

 
re

po
rt

 to
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 
B

oa
rd

.

G
G

N
R

ep
or

t p
re

se
nt

ed
 to

 H
S

C
B

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 

B
oa

rd
 in

 J
an

ua
ry

 (
fo

llo
w

in
g 

de
la

ys
 in

 
co

m
pl

et
in

g 
th

e 
T

N
A

) 
an

d 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 a

cc
ep

te
d.

N
/A

H
S

C
B

, C
ha

ir 
of

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
, P

au
l 

M
er

ed
ith

A
ll 

B
oa

rd
 m

em
be

rs
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

T
N

A
.

D
ec

 1
3

S
yn

op
si

s 
to

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
’s

 q
ua

rt
er

ly
 

re
po

rt
 to

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 

B
oa

rd
.

G
R

N

3 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
oa

rd
 m

em
be

rs
 h

av
e 

re
gi

st
er

ed
 fo

r 
th

is
 c

ou
rs

e.

D
av

e 
M

cC
al

lu
m

, I
nd

ep
en

de
nt

 
C

ha
ir,

 to
 c

on
ta

ct
 a

ll 
B

oa
rd

 
m

em
be

rs
 a

nd
 a

sk
 th

em
 to

 
pr

ov
id

e 
re

as
on

s 
w

hy
 th

ey
 h

av
e 

no
t c

om
pl

et
ed

 th
e 

tr
ai

ni
ng

.

H
S

C
B

, C
ha

ir 
of

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
, P

au
l 

M
er

ed
ith

A
tte

nd
an

ce
 a

t a
ll 

B
oa

rd
 m

ee
tin

gs
 w

ill
 

be
 m

on
ito

re
d;

 a
n 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 to

 
in

cr
ea

se
 le

ve
l a

nd
 c

on
si

st
en

cy
 o

f 
at

te
nd

an
ce

 o
f m

em
be

r 
ag

en
ci

es
 w

ill
 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

te
d.

D
ec

 1
3

S
yn

op
si

s 
to

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
’s

 q
ua

rt
er

ly
 

re
po

rt
 to

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 

B
oa

rd
.

G
G

N
A

tte
nd

an
ce

 a
t a

ll 
su

b 
gr

ou
p 

m
ee

tin
gs

 
is

 m
on

ito
re

d 
on

 a
 m

on
th

ly
 b

as
is

.  
F

ol
lo

w
in

g 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 Q
4 

th
e 

In
de

pe
nd

en
t C

ha
ir 

re
ce

iv
ed

 a
 r

ep
or

t 
on

 a
ll 

m
em

be
rs

 fa
ili

ng
 to

 a
tte

nd
 th

ei
r 

la
st

 th
re

e 
sc

he
du

le
d 

m
ee

tin
gs

 s
o 

th
at

 
ac

tio
n 

co
ul

d 
be

 ta
ke

n.

N
/A

N
/A

A
 g

re
at

er
 le

ve
l o

f 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 th

e 
co

nt
ex

t 
an

d 
qu

al
ity

 o
f s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

w
or

k 
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 h

as
 

en
ab

le
d 

th
e 

B
oa

rd
 to

 b
rin

g 
a 

gr
ea

te
r 

le
ve

l o
f c

ha
lle

ng
e 

to
 

di
sc

us
si

on
s 

w
ith

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

e 
its

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s.
  

T
he

 B
us

in
es

s 
U

ni
t a

re
 w

rit
in

g 
ca

se
 s

tu
di

es
 w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

w
ay

 th
e 

B
oa

rd
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ch
al

le
ng

in
g 

to
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

in
 it

s 
w

or
k.

A
ct

io
n 

ar
ea

: D
ev

el
o

p
 t

h
e 

cu
lt

u
re

 o
f 

co
n

st
ru

ct
iv

e 
ch

al
le

n
g

e 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e 

B
o

ar
d

.
Li

nk
ed

 to
 H

S
P

C
IB

 P
rio

rit
y 

3.
9;

 3
.1

0;
 3

.1
2;

 3
.2

4;
 3

.3
0;

 
3.

43
M

o
n

it
o

re
d

 b
y:

  H
S

C
B

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 B

oa
rd

M
on

ito
re

d 
by

: H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g
 G

ro
u

p

H
S

C
B

 B
us

in
es

s 
U

ni
t h

av
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

th
e 

ag
re

ed
 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 B

oa
rd

 m
em

be
r 

in
di

ct
io

n 
pr

oc
es

se
s,

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 
an

d 
fu

rt
he

r 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
.

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 A

R
E

A
 4

: 
 Im

p
ro

vi
n

g
 t

h
e 

fu
n

ct
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
H

er
ef

o
rd

sh
ir

e’
s 

S
af

eg
u

ar
d

in
g

 B
o

ar
d

s.
Ju

dg
em

en
t w

ill
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

an
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f i

m
pa

ct
.

Process

Completion

Impact

P
ro

g
re

ss
 a

s 
at

 A
p

ri
l 2

01
4,

 P
la

n
n

ed
 

F
u

tu
re

 A
ct

io
n

s 
an

d
 L

in
ks

 t
o

 
ev

id
en

ce
 (

w
h

er
e 

ap
p

ro
p

ri
at

e)
.

W
h

at
 d

if
fe

re
n

ce
 h

as
 t

h
e 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 m

ad
e 

so
 f

ar
 m

ad
e 

o
n

 t
h

e 
liv

es
 o

f 
ch

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 
yo

u
n

g
 p

eo
p

le
?

P
ro

p
o

se
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 w
o

rk
 

n
ee

d
ed

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 a
ll 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
es

 
ar

e 
co

m
p

le
te

d
 t

o
 t

im
es

ca
le

.

W
h

at
 e

ls
e 

ca
n

 w
e 

d
o

 t
o

 
en

su
re

 t
h

is
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
w

o
rk

 is
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

?

R
A

G

A
ct

io
n 

ar
ea

: D
ev

el
o

p
 a

n
 e

vi
d

en
ce

 b
as

e 
o

f 
sa

fe
g

u
ar

d
in

g
 c

as
ew

o
rk

 a
cr

o
ss

 a
ll 

ag
en

ci
es

 t
o

 d
em

o
n

st
ra

te
 a

n
d

 le
ar

n
 f

ro
m

 o
u

r 
g

o
o

d
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

an
d

 s
h

o
w

 h
o

w
 w

e 
ar

e 
m

ee
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 e

xc
ee

d
in

g
 o

u
r 

st
at

u
to

ry
 r

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es
.

v1
.1

8 
of

 9

62



H
S

C
B

 B
u

si
n

es
s 

P
la

n
 2

01
3-

20
14

P
ro

gr
es

s 
R

ep
or

t: 
 A

pr
il 

20
14

Pr
oc

es
s

An
 A

gr
ee

d 
Pr

oc
es

s 
Is

 In
 P

la
ce

Pr
oc

es
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

Bu
t N

ot
 A

gr
ee

d
N

o 
Pr

og
re

ss
 In

 A
gr

ee
in

g 
Pr

oc
es

s

Co
m

pl
et

io
n 

to
 T

im
es

ca
le

Co
m

pl
et

e 
O

R 
O

n 
Ta

rg
et

Ri
sk

 o
f M

is
si

ng
 T

im
es

ca
le

In
co

m
pl

et
e 

&
 O

ut
si

de
 T

im
es

ca
le

Im
pa

ct

L
ea

d
 O

rg
 &

 
O

ff
ic

er

H
o

w
 im

p
ac

t 
an

d
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ea

su
re

d
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 w

e 
w

ill
 k

n
o

w
 

w
h

en
 it

 is
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

T
im

e-
 

sc
al

es

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 
M

ec
h

an
is

m
 a

n
d

 
F

re
q

u
en

cy

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 A

R
E

A
 4

: 
 Im

p
ro

vi
n

g
 t

h
e 

fu
n

ct
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
H

er
ef

o
rd

sh
ir

e’
s 

S
af

eg
u

ar
d

in
g

 B
o

ar
d

s.
Ju

dg
em

en
t w

ill
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

an
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f i

m
pa

ct
.

Process

Completion

Impact

P
ro

g
re

ss
 a

s 
at

 A
p

ri
l 2

01
4,

 P
la

n
n

ed
 

F
u

tu
re

 A
ct

io
n

s 
an

d
 L

in
ks

 t
o

 
ev

id
en

ce
 (

w
h

er
e 

ap
p

ro
p

ri
at

e)
.

W
h

at
 d

if
fe

re
n

ce
 h

as
 t

h
e 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 m

ad
e 

so
 f

ar
 m

ad
e 

o
n

 t
h

e 
liv

es
 o

f 
ch

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 
yo

u
n

g
 p

eo
p

le
?

P
ro

p
o

se
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 w
o

rk
 

n
ee

d
ed

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 a
ll 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
es

 
ar

e 
co

m
p

le
te

d
 t

o
 t

im
es

ca
le

.

W
h

at
 e

ls
e 

ca
n

 w
e 

d
o

 t
o

 
en

su
re

 t
h

is
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
w

o
rk

 is
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

?

R
A

G

H
S

C
B

, 
B

us
in

es
s 

M
an

ag
er

A
nd

y 
C

hu
rc

he
r

A
 s

ys
te

m
 fo

r 
do

cu
m

en
tin

g 
ca

se
s 

of
 

go
od

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
an

d 
ex

ce
lle

nt
 o

ut
co

m
es

 
ac

ro
ss

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d,

 a
nd

 w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 

an
on

ym
ou

s 
ca

se
 s

tu
di

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

on
 H

S
C

B
 w

eb
si

te
.

S
ep

 1
3

B
us

in
es

s 
U

ni
t t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
qu

ar
te

rly
 

up
da

te
 to

 th
e 

S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

.

G
R

N
H

S
C

B
's

 d
ra

ft 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
re

ly
s 

on
 th

e 
w

ill
in

gn
es

s 
of

 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 c
as

e 
st

ud
ie

s 
hi

gh
lig

ht
in

g 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 in
te

ra
ge

nc
y 

w
or

ki
ng

.  
T

he
 c

as
e 

st
ud

ie
s 

w
ill

 th
en

 b
e 

us
ed

 to
 h

ig
hl

ig
ht

 th
e 

go
od

 w
or

k 
of

 
B

oa
rd

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
an

d 
le

ar
ni

ng
 fo

r 
pr

ac
tit

io
ne

rs
.  

T
he

 B
us

in
es

s 
un

it 
is

 
re

ad
y 

to
 r

ec
ie

ve
 th

es
e.

N
/A

N
/A

H
S

C
B

, 
In

de
pe

nd
en

t 
C

ha
ir

D
av

e 
M

cC
al

lu
m

A
ll 

ag
en

ci
es

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
su

bm
itt

ed
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 c

as
es

 a
nd

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
ed

 
le

ar
ni

ng
 w

ith
in

 th
ei

r 
go

od
 p

ra
ct

ic
e.

D
ec

 1
3

B
us

in
es

s 
U

ni
t t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
qu

ar
te

rly
 

up
da

te
 to

 th
e 

S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

.

G
R

N
T

im
es

ca
le

 a
dj

us
te

d 
(p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
Ju

ly
 

20
13

 w
hi

ch
 w

as
 a

 m
is

ta
ke

 a
s 

it 
w

as
 

pl
an

ne
d 

be
fo

re
 th

e 
ab

ov
e 

ac
tio

n)
. 

N
/A

N
/A

H
S

C
B

, C
ha

ir 
of

 
JC

R
 S

ub
 

G
ro

up
P

au
l M

er
ed

ith

C
as

e 
re

vi
ew

s 
us

in
g 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

fo
rm

at
s 

w
ill

 h
av

e 
be

en
 e

va
lu

at
ed

 b
y 

th
os

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
an

d 
re

po
rt

ed
 

to
 S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
.

S
ep

 1
3

R
ep

or
t a

nd
 p

ro
po

sa
l 

to
 b

e 
pr

es
en

te
d 

to
 

S
ep

t’s
 S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
.

G
G

N
A

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
fo

rm
at

s 
ev

al
ua

te
d 

by
 J

C
R

 
su

b 
gr

ou
p 

an
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

re
po

rt
in

g 
fr

om
 

re
gi

on
al

 p
ar

tn
er

s.
N

/A
N

/A
N

/A

H
S

C
B

, C
ha

ir 
of

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
, P

au
l 

M
er

ed
ith

T
he

 m
os

t a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 fo
rm

at
 fo

r 
re

vi
ew

s 
w

ith
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

be
en

 d
ec

id
ed

 u
po

n.

S
ep

 1
3

S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 to
 

re
po

rt
 th

ei
r 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

to
 

O
ct

ob
er

’s
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 
B

oa
rd

.

G
R

N
T

he
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
ha

s 
re

su
lte

d 
in

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f a
 d

ra
ft 

pr
oc

es
s 

fo
r 

le
ar

ni
ng

 fr
om

 c
as

e 
re

vi
ew

s 
in

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 w
ith

 m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 
su

pp
or

t. 
 

N
/A

T
he

 d
ra

ft 
pr

oc
es

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
d 

pr
og

re
ss

ed
 

th
ro

ug
h 

H
S

C
B

 d
ur

in
g 

Q
1 

fo
r 

ra
tif

ic
at

io
n 

at
 J

ul
y'

s 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 
B

oa
rd

.

N
/A

E
na

ge
m

en
t o

f p
ar

tn
er

s 
in

 th
e 

su
bm

is
si

on
 o

f c
as

es
 to

 b
e 

le
d 

by
 H

S
C

B
's

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 B

oa
rd

.

M
on

ito
re

d 
by

: H
S

C
B

 J
o

in
t 

C
as

e 
R

ev
ie

w
 S

u
b

 
G

ro
u

p
A

ct
io

n 
ar

ea
: A

g
re

e 
a 

m
o

d
el

 o
f 

S
C

R
s 

an
d

 s
ig

n
if

ic
an

t 
ca

se
 r

ev
ie

w
s 

w
it

h
in

 H
er

ef
o

rd
sh

ir
e.

v1
.1

9 
of

 9

63



64



H
S

C
B

 B
u

si
n

es
s 

P
la

n
 2

01
4-

20
15

D
R

A
F

T
  3

0t
h 

Ju
ne

 2
01

4

Pr
oc

es
s

An
 A

gr
ee

d 
Pr

oc
es

s 
Is

 In
 P

la
ce

Pr
oc

es
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

Bu
t N

ot
 A

gr
ee

d
N

o 
Pr

og
re

ss
 In

 A
gr

ee
in

g 
Pr

oc
es

s

Co
m

pl
et

io
n 

to
 T

im
es

ca
le

Co
m

pl
et

e 
O

R 
O

n 
Ta

rg
et

Ri
sk

 o
f M

is
si

ng
 T

im
es

ca
le

In
co

m
pl

et
e 

&
 O

ut
si

de
 T

im
es

ca
le

L
ea

d
 O

rg
 &

 
O

ff
ic

er

H
o

w
 im

p
ac

t 
an

d
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ea

su
re

d
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 w

e 
w

ill
 k

n
o

w
 

w
h

en
 it

 is
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

T
im

e-
sc

al
es

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

M
ec

h
an

is
m

 a
n

d
 

F
re

q
u

en
cy

H
S

C
B

, C
ha

ir 
of

 
Q

A
,

A
ll 

m
em

be
rs

 r
ep

or
t t

o 
H

S
C

B
 le

ar
ni

ng
 

fr
om

 th
ei

r 
an

al
ys

is
 o

f t
he

 v
ie

w
s 

of
 

ch
ild

re
n,

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
th

ei
r 

fa
m

ili
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f t
he

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

is
 le

ar
ni

ng
 in

to
 

pr
ac

tic
e,

 to
 th

e 
Q

A
 s

ub
 g

ro
up

 w
ith

in
 a

ll 
th

ei
r 

qu
ar

te
rly

 r
ep

or
ts

.

O
ng

oi
ng

fr
om

 A
pr

il 
20

14

T
hr

ou
gh

 Q
A

 S
ub

 
G

ro
up

’s
 r

ep
or

ts
 to

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
.

N
N

H
S

C
B

, C
ha

ir 
of

 
Q

A
,

H
S

C
B

 a
na

ly
se

s 
an

d 
re

po
rt

s 
on

 
co

m
m

on
 th

em
es

 a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 
ag

en
ci

es
’ c

ol
le

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

vi
ew

s 
of

 
ch

ild
re

n,
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

th
ei

r 
fa

m
ili

es
, p

ro
po

si
ng

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
ac

tio
ns

.

S
ep

 1
4

R
ep

or
t t

o 
be

 
pr

es
en

te
d 

to
 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

14
’s

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 

m
ee

tin
g.

N
N

H
S

C
B

B
us

in
es

s
M

an
ag

er
, A

nd
y 

C
hu

rc
he

r

H
S

C
B

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
t i

ts
 

ow
n 

re
gu

la
r 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

fo
r 

ca
pt

ur
in

g 
th

e 
vo

ic
e 

of
 th

e 
ch

ild
 w

ith
 fi

nd
in

gs
 

pr
es

en
te

d 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 to
 Q

A
 s

ub
 g

ro
up

.

O
ct

 1
4

M
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

to
 b

e 
in

 
pl

ac
e 

by
 d

ur
in

g 
Q

3 
w

ith
 fi

rs
t q

ua
rt

er
ly

 
re

po
rt

 to
 b

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
5

N
N

H
S

C
B

, C
ha

ir 
of

 
T

&
W

D
H

az
el

 B
la

nk
le

y

A
n 

ag
re

ed
 s

et
 o

f p
ro

ce
ss

es
 fo

r 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

su
pe

rv
is

io
n 

of
 m

in
im

um
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 
ac

ro
ss

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

te
d.

D
ec

 1
4

In
cl

us
io

n 
w

ith
in

 
qu

ar
te

rly
 r

ep
or

ts
 

fr
om

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
to

 th
e 

Q
A

 S
ub

 G
ro

up
.

N
N

H
S

C
B

, C
ha

ir 
of

 
T

&
W

D
H

az
el

 B
la

nk
le

y

D
ev

el
op

 H
S

C
B

's
 e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
 o

f 
pa

rt
ne

r 
se

ct
or

s 
(i.

e.
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

3r
d 

S
ec

to
r)

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 e

nh
an

ce
d 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t w
ith

in
 th

ei
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

, d
ev

el
op

in
g 

H
S

C
B

 
su

pp
or

t m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

as
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

.

F
eb

 1
5

T
hr

ou
gh

 T
&

W
D

 S
ub

 
G

ro
up

’s
 r

ep
or

ts
 to

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
.

N
N

H
S

C
B

, C
ha

ir 
of

 
T

&
W

D
H

az
el

 B
la

nk
le

y

D
ev

el
op

 H
S

C
B

's
 e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
 o

f 
pa

rt
ne

r 
ag

en
ci

es
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 e
nh

an
ce

d 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t w

ith
in

 th
ei

r 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
.

F
eb

 1
5

T
hr

ou
gh

 T
&

W
D

 S
ub

 
G

ro
up

’s
 r

ep
or

ts
 to

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
.

N
N

E
vi

de
nc

e 
su

bm
itt

ed
 to

 H
S

C
B

 
Q

A
 s

ub
 g

ro
up

 w
ill

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
ho

w
 H

S
C

B
's

 S
up

er
vi

si
on

 
S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
re

 b
ei

ng
 a

pp
lie

d 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 p
ar

tn
er

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
to

 
en

su
re

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

re
 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 c

as
e 

de
ci

si
on

 
m

ak
in

g.
  T

he
 im

pa
ct

 w
ill

 b
e 

ev
id

en
ce

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 o
ut

co
m

es
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
ca

se
 a

ud
it 

an
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

ca
pt

ur
in

g 
of

 
th

e 
vo

ic
e 

of
 th

e 
ch

ild
.

M
on

ito
re

d 
by

:
Q

A
 S

u
b

 G
ro

u
p

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 O

ve
rs

ig
ht

:
L

es
 K

n
ig

h
t

A
ct

io
n 

ar
ea

 1
.2

: I
m

p
ro

ve
 t

h
e 

q
u

al
it

y 
o

f 
re

fl
ec

ti
ve

 s
u

p
er

vi
si

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t 

o
f 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

in
 c

as
e 

d
ec

is
io

n
 m

ak
in

g
.

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 A

R
E

A
 1

: 
 Im

p
ro

vi
n

g
 t

h
e 

ex
p

er
ie

n
ce

 o
f 

ch
ild

re
n

, 
yo

u
n

g
 p

eo
p

le
 a

n
d

 f
am

ili
es

 w
h

en
 t

h
ey

 a
re

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

ed
 in

 
sa

fe
g

u
ar

d
in

g
 s

ys
te

m
s 

(i
.e

. C
A

F
, S

o
ci

al
 C

ar
e)

Process

Completion
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t n

ee
d 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 O
fs

te
d'

s 
20

12
 

in
sp

ec
tio

n 
re

po
rt

 a
nd

 b
ui

ld
s 

up
on

 2
01

3-
20

14
 w

or
k.

M
on

ito
re

d 
by

:
T

&
W

D
 S

u
b

 G
ro

u
p

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 O

ve
rs

ig
ht

:

P
ro

g
re

ss
 a

s 
at

 X
X

X
 2

01
4.

W
h

at
 im

p
ac

t 
h

as
 t

h
e 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 m

ad
e 

so
 f

ar
 m

ad
e 

o
n

 t
h

e 
liv

es
 o

f 
ch

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 
yo

u
n

g
 p

eo
p

le
?

W
h

at
 im

p
ac

t 
is

 e
xp

ec
te

d
 

o
n

ce
 A

ct
io

n
 A

re
a 

is
 

co
m

p
le

te
d

?
  H

o
w

 a
n

d
 w

h
en

 
w

ill
 im

p
ac

t 
b

e 
m

ea
su

re
d

?

H
S

C
B

 w
ill

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

ho
w

 a
ll 

pa
rt

ne
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 
(in

cl
ud

in
g 

al
l s

ta
tu

to
ry

 p
ar

tn
er

s)
 

ha
ve

 c
ap

tu
re

d 
th

e 
vo

ic
e 

of
 th

e 
ch

ild
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
ly

 a
nd

 u
se

d 
th

e 
fin

di
ng

s 
of

 th
is

 w
or

k 
to

 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

of
 

ch
ild

re
n,

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
an

d 
th

ei
r 

fa
m

ili
es

 w
hi

le
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 in
 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 s
ys

te
m

s.
  H

S
C

B
 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
be

 a
bl

e 
to

 u
se

 th
e 

fin
di

ng
s 

of
 it

s 
ow

n 
w

or
k 

to
 

ca
pt

ur
e 

th
e 

vo
ic

e 
of

 th
e 

ch
ild

 to
 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 
w

or
k 

to
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

e 
th

ei
r 

w
el

fa
re

 a
cr

os
s 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

.

P
ro

p
o

se
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 w
o

rk
 t

o
 

en
su

re
 a

ll 
p

ri
o

ri
ti

es
 a

re
 

co
m

p
le

te
d

 t
o

 
ti

m
es

ca
le

/d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t

w
o

rk
 is

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
.

R
A

G

A
ct

io
n 

ar
ea

 1
.1

: E
ve

ry
 a

g
en

cy
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
e 

vo
ic

e 
o

f 
ch

ild
re

n
, y

o
u

n
g

 
p

eo
p

le
 &

 f
am

ili
es

 is
 c

ap
tu

re
d

 &
 u

se
d

 t
o

 im
p

ro
ve

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t n

ee
d 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
Q

A
's

 2
01

3-
14

 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
f t

he
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 V
ot

C
.

v1
.1

1 
of

 7

A
P
P
E
N
D
I
X
B

65



H
S

C
B

 B
u

si
n

es
s 

P
la

n
 2

01
4-

20
15

D
R

A
F

T
  3

0t
h 

Ju
ne

 2
01

4

Pr
oc

es
s

An
 A

gr
ee

d 
Pr

oc
es

s 
Is

 In
 P

la
ce

Pr
oc

es
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

Bu
t N

ot
 A

gr
ee

d
N

o 
Pr

og
re

ss
 In

 A
gr

ee
in

g 
Pr

oc
es

s

Co
m

pl
et

io
n 

to
 T

im
es

ca
le

Co
m

pl
et

e 
O

R 
O

n 
Ta

rg
et

Ri
sk

 o
f M

is
si

ng
 T

im
es

ca
le

In
co

m
pl

et
e 

&
 O

ut
si

de
 T

im
es

ca
le

L
ea

d
 O

rg
 &

 
O

ff
ic

er

H
o

w
 im

p
ac

t 
an

d
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ea

su
re

d
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 w

e 
w

ill
 k

n
o

w
 

w
h

en
 it

 is
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

T
im

e-
sc

al
es

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

M
ec

h
an

is
m

 a
n

d
 

F
re

q
u

en
cy

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 A

R
E

A
 1

: 
 Im

p
ro

vi
n

g
 t

h
e 

ex
p

er
ie

n
ce

 o
f 

ch
ild

re
n

, 
yo

u
n

g
 p

eo
p

le
 a

n
d

 f
am

ili
es

 w
h

en
 t

h
ey

 a
re

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

ed
 in

 
sa

fe
g

u
ar

d
in

g
 s

ys
te

m
s 

(i
.e

. C
A

F
, S

o
ci

al
 C

ar
e)

Process

Completion

P
ro

g
re

ss
 a

s 
at

 X
X

X
 2

01
4.

W
h

at
 im

p
ac

t 
h

as
 t

h
e 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 m

ad
e 

so
 f

ar
 m

ad
e 

o
n

 t
h

e 
liv

es
 o

f 
ch

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 
yo

u
n

g
 p

eo
p

le
?

W
h

at
 im

p
ac

t 
is

 e
xp

ec
te

d
 

o
n

ce
 A

ct
io

n
 A

re
a 

is
 

co
m

p
le

te
d

?
  H

o
w

 a
n

d
 w

h
en

 
w

ill
 im

p
ac

t 
b

e 
m

ea
su

re
d

?

P
ro

p
o

se
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 w
o

rk
 t

o
 

en
su

re
 a

ll 
p

ri
o

ri
ti

es
 a

re
 

co
m

p
le

te
d

 t
o

 
ti

m
es

ca
le

/d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t

w
o

rk
 is

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
.

R
A

G

H
S

C
B

, C
ha

ir 
of

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
P

au
l M

er
ed

ith

T
he

 p
la

nn
ed

 r
el

au
nc

h 
of

 th
e 

M
A

S
H

, 
Le

ve
ls

 o
f N

ee
d 

G
ui

da
nc

e,
 M

ul
ti-

A
ge

nc
y 

R
ef

er
ra

l F
or

m
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
gu

id
an

ce
 w

ill
 b

e 
us

ed
 b

y 
ag

en
ci

es
 a

nd
 

se
ct

or
s 

to
 e

m
be

d 
th

re
sh

ol
ds

 o
f 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
to

 
su

pp
or

t a
ge

nc
ie

s 
in

 m
ak

in
g 

m
or

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

re
fe

rr
al

s.

S
ep

 1
4

B
im

on
th

ly
 r

ep
or

tin
g 

to
 S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 

on
 p

ro
gr

es
s.

N
N

H
S

C
B

, C
ha

ir 
of

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
P

au
l M

er
ed

ith

A
ll 

co
ns

tit
ue

nt
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 r

ep
or

t t
o 

th
e 

B
oa

rd
 a

ny
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
pr

op
os

ed
 c

ha
ng

es
 a

cr
os

s 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 th

at
 a

re
 li

ke
ly

 to
 im

pa
ct

 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

 to
 e

na
bl

e 
th

e 
B

oa
rd

 to
 c

ha
lle

ng
e 

sh
ou

ld
 th

is
 b

e 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y.

  A
ll 

ag
en

ci
es

 w
ill

 r
ep

or
t 

cu
rr

en
t s

itu
at

io
n 

to
 S

ep
te

m
be

r's
 

S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

.

S
ep

 1
4

R
ep

or
ts

 to
 b

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 a

nd
 

di
sc

us
se

d 
at

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
.

N
N

H
S

C
B

 w
ill

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 c

om
m

en
t 

up
on

 h
ow

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ch

an
ge

s 
ar

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

ch
ild

re
n,

 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 a

nd
 th

ei
r 

fa
m

ili
es

 
w

ith
in

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
sy

st
em

s 
in

 
th

e 
co

nt
ex

t o
f s

im
pl

ifi
ed

 r
ef

er
ra

l 
pa

th
w

ay
s.

  H
S

C
B

 w
ill

 th
er

ef
or

e 
be

 m
or

e 
ab

le
 to

 in
flu

en
ce

 th
e 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g 

of
 m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 

se
rv

ic
es

.

M
on

ito
re

d 
by

:
S

te
er

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 O

ve
rs

ig
ht

: 
A

ct
io

n 
ar

ea
 1

.3
: P

ar
tn

er
s 

w
o

rk
 t

o
g

et
h

er
 t

o
 m

ee
t 

sa
fe

g
u

ar
d

in
g

 n
ee

d
s 

as
 t

h
e 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e 

ch
an

g
es

 d
u

e 
to

 r
ed

u
ce

d
 f

u
n

d
in

g
.

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t n
ee

d 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

as
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

ha
ve

 b
ec

om
e 

aw
ar

e 
of

 c
ur

re
nt

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

na
l c

ha
ng

e.

v1
.1

2 
of

 7

66



H
S

C
B

 B
u

si
n

es
s 

P
la

n
 2

01
4-

20
15

D
R

A
F

T
 3

0t
h 

Ju
ne

 2
01

4

Pr
oc

es
s

An
 A

gr
ee

d 
Pr

oc
es

s 
Is

 In
 P

la
ce

Pr
oc

es
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

Bu
t N

ot
 A

gr
ee

d
N

o 
Pr

og
re

ss
 In

 A
gr

ee
in

g 
Pr

oc
es

s

Co
m

pl
et

io
n 

to
 T

im
es

ca
le

Co
m

pl
et

e 
O

R 
O

n 
Ta

rg
et

Ri
sk

 o
f M

is
si

ng
 T

im
es

ca
le

In
co

m
pl

et
e 

&
 O

ut
si

de
 T

im
es

ca
le

L
ea

d
 O

rg
 &

 
O

ff
ic

er

H
o

w
 im

p
ac

t 
an

d
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ea

su
re

d
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 w

e 
w

ill
 k

n
o

w
 

w
h

en
 it

 is
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

T
im

e-
sc

al
es

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

M
ec

h
an

is
m

 a
n

d
 

F
re

q
u

en
cy

H
S

C
B

,
B

us
in

es
s

M
an

ag
er

, A
nd

y 
C

hu
rc

he
r

H
S

C
B

 e
xp

ec
ta

tio
ns

 fo
r 

ho
w

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
ta

ke
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

 fo
r 

en
su

rin
g 

 th
at

 
C

P
C

 a
tte

nd
ee

s 
ha

ve
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

an
d 

sk
ill

s 
to

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

w
ill

 b
e 

ag
re

ed
.

Ju
l 1

4
R

ep
or

t t
o 

be
 

re
ce

iv
ed

 fo
r 

di
sc

us
si

on
 a

t J
ul

y 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
.

N
N

H
S

C
B

, C
ha

ir 
of

 
T

&
W

D
H

az
el

 B
la

nk
le

y

A
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 s
up

po
rt

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

nd
 

le
ar

ni
ng

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r 
ag

en
ci

es
 

an
d 

se
ct

or
s 

w
ith

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e 

at
 C

P
 

co
nf

er
en

ce
s 

w
ill

 h
av

e 
be

en
 s

co
pe

d,
 

ag
re

ed
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
te

d.

D
ec

 1
4

T
hr

ou
gh

 T
&

W
D

 
U

pd
at

e 
to

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 in
 N

ov
em

be
r 

an
d 

D
ec

em
be

r.

N
N

H
S

C
B

,
B

us
in

es
s

M
an

ag
er

, A
nd

y 
C

hu
rc

he
r

T
he

 n
ec

es
si

ty
 o

f q
ua

lit
y 

ca
se

 
re

co
rd

in
g 

w
ill

 h
av

e 
be

en
 p

ro
m

ot
ed

 
th

ro
ug

h 
bo

th
 H

S
C

B
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 

to
 th

e 
ch

ild
re

n'
s 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 a

nd
 th

ro
ug

h 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ge
nc

y 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 to

 
m

an
ag

er
s 

hi
gh

lig
ht

in
g 

th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 

su
pp

or
t a

nd
 c

he
ck

 th
is

 th
ro

ug
h 

ca
se

 
su

pe
rv

is
io

n.

N
ov

 1
4

B
i-m

on
th

ly
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
fr

om
 J

ul
y 

20
14

.

N
N

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
C

ou
nc

il,
 H

ea
d 

of S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g
an

d 
R

ev
ie

w
,

D
ia

ne
P

ar
tr

id
ge

A
 s

ho
rt

 te
rm

 m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ak
in

g 
at

 C
hi

ld
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
C

on
fe

re
nc

es
 (

in
cl

ud
in

g 
en

su
rin

g 
th

e 
rig

ht
 p

eo
pl

e 
ar

e 
in

vi
te

d,
 th

e 
ra

te
 o

f 
at

te
nd

an
ce

 a
nd

 th
e 

ra
te

 o
f r

ep
or

ts
 

re
ce

iv
ed

 a
t c

on
fe

re
nc

e)
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 

C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

W
el

lb
ei

ng
 S

er
vi

ce
s.

N
ov

 1
4

B
i-m

on
th

ly
 r

ep
or

ts
 

to
 S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 

fr
om

 J
ul

y 
20

14
 

(p
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
of

 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

) 
to

 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
14

.

N
N

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
R

ev
ie

w
 w

ill
 

le
ad

 o
n 

th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 
m

ilt
i-a

ge
nc

y 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 fo

rm
s 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 
ch

ild
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n 
co

nf
er

en
ce

s.
O

ve
ra

ll 
re

po
rt

s 
on

 th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f 
co

nf
er

en
ce

s 
w

ill
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

an
 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 th

e 
ra

te
 o

f t
ho

se
 

ra
te

d 
gr

ee
n.

  T
he

se
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 s
ho

ul
d 

co
nt

rib
ut

e 
to

 a
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

in
 th

e 
le

ng
th

 o
f t

im
e 

ch
ild

re
n 

ar
e 

on
 

pl
ac

es
 d

ue
 to

 m
or

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

de
ci

si
on

 m
ak

in
g 

an
d 

pu
rp

os
ef

ul
 

di
re

ct
io

n 
of

 C
or

e 
G

ro
up

s 
w

hi
ch

 
w

ill
 in

 tu
rn

 in
cr

ea
se

 th
ei

r 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s.

  T
he

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
im

pa
ct

 w
ill

 th
er

ef
or

e 
be

 th
at

 
ch

ild
re

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

on
 

ch
ild

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s 
w

hi
ch

 
re

ac
h 

a 
de

si
re

d 
ou

tc
om

e 
in

 a
 

sh
or

te
r 

le
ng

th
 o

f t
im

e.

A
ct

io
n 

ar
ea

 2
.1

: I
m

p
ro

vi
n

g
 m

u
lt

i-
ag

en
cy

 c
as

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 w

it
h

in
 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 S
o

ci
al

 C
ar

e.
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t n

ee
d 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
Q

A
's

 2
01

3-
14

 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 c

on
fe

re
nc

es
.

M
on

ito
re

d 
by

:
S

te
er

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 O

ve
rs

ig
ht

:

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 A

R
E

A
 2

: 
 Im

p
ro

vi
n

g
 m

u
lt

i-
ag

en
cy

 c
as

e 
w

o
rk

.

Process

Completion

P
ro

g
re

ss
 a

s 
at

 X
X

X
 2

01
4.

P
ro

p
o

se
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 w
o

rk
 t

o
 

en
su

re
 a

ll 
p

ri
o

ri
ti

es
 a

re
 

co
m

p
le

te
d

 t
o

 
ti

m
es

ca
le

/d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t

w
o

rk
 is

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
.

W
h

at
 im

p
ac

t 
h

as
 t

h
e 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 m

ad
e 

so
 f

ar
 m

ad
e 

o
n

 t
h

e 
liv

es
 o

f 
ch

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 
yo

u
n

g
 p

eo
p

le
?

W
h

at
 im

p
ac

t 
is

 e
xp

ec
te

d
 

o
n

ce
 A

ct
io

n
 A

re
a 

is
 

co
m

p
le

te
d

?
  H

o
w

 a
n

d
 w

h
en

 
w

ill
 im

p
ac

t 
b

e 
m

ea
su

re
d

?

R
A

G

v1
.1

3 
of

 7

67



H
S

C
B

 B
u

si
n

es
s 

P
la

n
 2

01
4-

20
15

D
R

A
F

T
 3

0t
h 

Ju
ne

 2
01

4

Pr
oc

es
s

An
 A

gr
ee

d 
Pr

oc
es

s 
Is

 In
 P

la
ce

Pr
oc

es
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

Bu
t N

ot
 A

gr
ee

d
N

o 
Pr

og
re

ss
 In

 A
gr

ee
in

g 
Pr

oc
es

s

Co
m

pl
et

io
n 

to
 T

im
es

ca
le

Co
m

pl
et

e 
O

R 
O

n 
Ta

rg
et

Ri
sk

 o
f M

is
si

ng
 T

im
es

ca
le

In
co

m
pl

et
e 

&
 O

ut
si

de
 T

im
es

ca
le

L
ea

d
 O

rg
 &

 
O

ff
ic

er

H
o

w
 im

p
ac

t 
an

d
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ea

su
re

d
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 w

e 
w

ill
 k

n
o

w
 

w
h

en
 it

 is
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

T
im

e-
 

sc
al

es

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 
M

ec
h

an
is

m
 a

n
d

 
F

re
q

u
en

cy

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

C
ou

nc
il,

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
S

af
et

y 
M

an
ag

er
, 

A
dr

ia
n 

T
ur

to
n

S
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r 
ch

ild
re

n 
&

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
ef

fe
ct

ed
 b

y 
D

om
es

tic
 A

bu
se

 (
e.

g.
 

C
ru

sh
 a

nd
 G

re
at

) 
w

ill
 b

e 
sc

op
ed

 a
nd

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 to

 c
om

m
is

si
on

er
s 

to
 

su
pp

or
t s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

w
ill

 b
e 

m
ad

e.

N
N

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

C
ou

nc
il,

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
S

af
et

y 
M

an
ag

er
, 

A
dr

ia
n 

T
ur

to
n

S
er

vi
ce

s 
fo

r 
pe

rp
et

ra
to

rs
 o

f D
om

es
tic

 
A

bu
se

 w
ill

 b
e 

sc
op

ed
 a

nd
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 to
 c

om
m

is
si

on
er

s 
to

 
su

pp
or

t s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
w

ill
 b

e 
m

ad
e.

N
N

H
S

C
B

, C
ha

ir 
S

E
T

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 

G
ro

up
 

D
ia

ne
 P

ar
tr

id
ge

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 a

 s
el

f a
ss

es
sm

en
t a

ga
in

st
 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t o

f t
he

 N
at

io
na

l S
E

T
 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

p 
a 

ne
w

 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 P
la

n 
an

d 
D

is
ru

pt
io

n 
P

la
n 

fo
r 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
.

Ju
l 1

4
T

hr
ou

gh
 S

E
T

 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 G
ro

up
’s

 
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

 r
ep

or
ts

 to
 

S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

.

N
N

H
S

C
B

, C
ha

ir 
S

E
T

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 

G
ro

up
 

D
ia

ne
 P

ar
tr

id
ge

E
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

S
E

T
 O

pe
ra

tio
na

l G
ro

up
 to

 
dr

iv
e 

fo
rw

ar
d 

th
e 

S
E

T
 a

ge
nd

a 
in

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n.

S
ep

 1
4

T
hr

ou
gh

 S
E

T
 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 G

ro
up

’s
 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 r

ep
or

ts
 to

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
.

N
N

H
S

C
B

B
us

in
es

s
M

an
ag

er
, A

nd
y 

C
hu

rc
he

r

E
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

W
es

t M
id

la
nd

s 
Jo

in
t 

P
ro

to
co

l o
n 

M
is

si
ng

 is
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 o
n 

ta
rg

et
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

ro
bu

st
 in

te
ra

ge
nc

y 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

in
ci

de
nc

es
 o

f 
ch

ild
re

n 
go

in
g 

m
is

si
ng

 a
re

 a
de

qu
at

el
y 

re
sp

on
de

d 
to

.

Ju
l 1

4

T
hr

ou
gh

 q
ua

rt
er

ly
 

th
em

ed
 r

ep
or

ts
 to

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
.

N
N

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

C
ou

nc
il,

 H
ea

d 
of

 L
A

C
,

Jo
 K

in
g

H
S

C
B

's
 M

is
si

ng
 C

hi
ld

re
n 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
to

 b
e 

fu
lly

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
a 

hi
gh

 q
ua

lit
y 

jo
in

ed
 u

p 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 
in

ci
de

nc
es

 o
f c

hi
ld

re
n 

m
is

si
ng

 fr
om

 
ca

re
.

S
ep

 1
4

T
hr

ou
gh

 q
ua

rt
er

ly
 

th
em

ed
 r

ep
or

ts
 to

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
.

N
N

A
ct

io
n 

ar
ea

 3
.3

: M
is

si
n

g
 C

h
ild

re
n

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t n
ee

d 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 
di

sc
us

si
on

 o
n 

M
is

si
ng

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 a

nd
 n

ew
 g

ui
da

nc
e.

M
on

ito
re

d 
by

: S
te

er
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 O
ve

rs
ig

ht
:  

In
ci

de
nc

es
 o

f c
hi

ld
re

n 
be

in
g 

se
xu

al
ly

 e
xp

lo
ite

d 
an

d 
tr

af
fic

ke
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

m
an

ga
ed

 b
y 

a 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 k
no

w
le

dg
ab

le
 a

bo
ut

  
th

e 
is

su
e 

an
d 

sk
ill

ed
 in

 d
ea

lin
g 

w
ith

 it
.  

H
S

C
B

's
 r

es
ul

tin
g 

di
sr

up
tio

n 
w

or
k 

w
ill

 h
av

e 
re

su
lte

d 
in

 p
re

ve
nt

ed
 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 fo
r 

pe
rp

et
ra

to
rs

 to
 

en
ga

ge
 w

ith
 c

hi
ld

re
n.

In
ci

de
nc

es
 o

f c
hi

ld
re

n 
go

in
g 

m
is

si
ng

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
an

ga
ed

 b
y 

a 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 k
no

w
le

dg
ab

le
 a

bo
ut

  
th

e 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 is

su
es

 a
nd

 
sk

ill
ed

 in
 d

ea
lin

g 
w

ith
 it

.  
M

is
si

ng
 e

pi
so

de
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
al

t 
w

ith
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y,
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

W
M

 P
ro

to
co

l a
nd

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ill
 

be
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
su

pp
or

te
d 

to
 

A
ct

io
n 

ar
ea

 3
.1

: D
o

m
es

ti
c 

A
b

u
se

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t n
ee

d 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

Q
A

's
 o

ng
oi

ng
 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 D
om

es
tic

 A
bu

se
.

M
on

ito
re

d 
by

:  
Q

A
 S

u
b

 G
ro

u
p

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 O

ve
rs

ig
ht

:  
L

yn
n

e 
R

en
to

n

M
on

ito
re

d 
by

: S
E

T
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 G
ro

u
p

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 O

ve
rs

ig
ht

:  
D

C
I D

am
ie

n
 P

et
ti

t

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 A

R
E

A
 3

: 
 T

ac
kl

in
g

 e
vi

d
en

ce
d

 s
af

eg
u

ar
d

in
g

 
is

su
es

 in
 H

er
ef

o
rd

sh
ir

e.

Process

Completion

P
ro

g
re

ss
 a

s 
at

 X
X

X
 2

01
4.

P
ro

p
o

se
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 w
o

rk
 t

o
 

en
su

re
 a

ll 
p

ri
o

ri
ti

es
 a

re
 

co
m

p
le

te
d

 t
o

 
ti

m
es

ca
le

/d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

w
o

rk
 is

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
.

W
h

at
 im

p
ac

t 
h

as
 t

h
e 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 m

ad
e 

so
 f

ar
 m

ad
e 

o
n

 t
h

e 
liv

es
 o

f 
ch

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 
yo

u
n

g
 p

eo
p

le
?

W
h

at
 im

p
ac

t 
is

 e
xp

ec
te

d
 

o
n

ce
 A

ct
io

n
 A

re
a 

is
 

co
m

p
le

te
d

?
  H

o
w

 a
n

d
 w

h
en

 
w

ill
 im

p
ac

t 
b

e 
m

ea
su

re
d

?

R
A

G

T
he

re
 w

ill
 b

e 
a 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

ex
po

se
d 

to
 

do
m

es
tic

 a
bu

se
 a

nd
 n

um
be

r 
of

 
ch

ild
re

n 
ex

po
se

d 
to

 d
om

es
tic

 
ab

us
e 

on
 m

ul
tip

le
 o

cc
as

io
ns

.

T
B

C
 -

 A
ct

io
n 

A
re

a 
is

 
de

pe
nd

en
t u

po
n 

th
e 

w
or

k 
of

 
th

e 
C

S
P

's
 D

om
es

tic
 A

bu
se

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
.  

Ite
m

s 
re

le
va

nt
 

to
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

ch
ild

re
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
po

rt
ed

 to
 Q

A
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
qu

ar
te

rly
 D

om
es

tic
 A

bu
se

 
re

po
rt

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 in

 M
ay

, A
ug

us
t 

an
d 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

14
 a

nd
 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
.

A
ct

io
n 

ar
ea

 3
.2

: S
ex

u
al

 E
xp

lo
it

at
io

n
 a

n
d

 T
ra

ff
ic

ki
n

g
.

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t n
ee

d 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

H
S

C
B

 S
E

T
 w

or
k 

&
 e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
 o

f C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

C
om

m
is

si
on

er
.

v1
.1

4 
of

 7

68



H
S

C
B

 B
u

si
n

es
s 

P
la

n
 2

01
4-

20
15

D
R

A
F

T
 3

0t
h 

Ju
ne

 2
01

4

Pr
oc

es
s

An
 A

gr
ee

d 
Pr

oc
es

s 
Is

 In
 P

la
ce

Pr
oc

es
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

Bu
t N

ot
 A

gr
ee

d
N

o 
Pr

og
re

ss
 In

 A
gr

ee
in

g 
Pr

oc
es

s

Co
m

pl
et

io
n 

to
 T

im
es

ca
le

Co
m

pl
et

e 
O

R 
O

n 
Ta

rg
et

Ri
sk

 o
f M

is
si

ng
 T

im
es

ca
le

In
co

m
pl

et
e 

&
 O

ut
si

de
 T

im
es

ca
le

L
ea

d
 O

rg
 &

 
O

ff
ic

er

H
o

w
 im

p
ac

t 
an

d
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ea

su
re

d
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 w

e 
w

ill
 k

n
o

w
 

w
h

en
 it

 is
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

T
im

e-
 

sc
al

es

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 
M

ec
h

an
is

m
 a

n
d

 
F

re
q

u
en

cy

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 A

R
E

A
 3

: 
 T

ac
kl

in
g

 e
vi

d
en

ce
d

 s
af

eg
u

ar
d

in
g

 
is

su
es

 in
 H

er
ef

o
rd

sh
ir

e.

Process

Completion

P
ro

g
re

ss
 a

s 
at

 X
X

X
 2

01
4.

P
ro

p
o

se
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 w
o

rk
 t

o
 

en
su

re
 a

ll 
p

ri
o

ri
ti

es
 a

re
 

co
m

p
le

te
d

 t
o

 
ti

m
es

ca
le

/d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

w
o

rk
 is

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
.

W
h

at
 im

p
ac

t 
h

as
 t

h
e 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 m

ad
e 

so
 f

ar
 m

ad
e 

o
n

 t
h

e 
liv

es
 o

f 
ch

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 
yo

u
n

g
 p

eo
p

le
?

W
h

at
 im

p
ac

t 
is

 e
xp

ec
te

d
 

o
n

ce
 A

ct
io

n
 A

re
a 

is
 

co
m

p
le

te
d

?
  H

o
w

 a
n

d
 w

h
en

 
w

ill
 im

p
ac

t 
b

e 
m

ea
su

re
d

?

R
A

G

H
S

C
B

B
us

in
es

s
M

an
ag

er
, A

nd
y 

C
hu

rc
he

r

D
ev

el
op

 H
S

C
B

 m
ec

ha
ni

sm
 fo

r 
th

e 
on

go
in

g 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

ov
er

si
gh

t o
f c

o-
or

di
na

te
d 

m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 r
es

po
ns

es
 fo

r 
ch

ild
re

n 
w

ho
 g

o 
m

is
si

ng
.

S
ep

 1
4

T
hr

ou
gh

 q
ua

rt
er

ly
 

th
em

ed
 r

ep
or

ts
 to

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
.

N
N

H
S

C
B

B
us

in
es

s
M

an
ag

er
, A

nd
y 

C
hu

rc
he

r

P
riv

at
e 

F
or

st
ei

ng
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 a

s 
a 

ris
k 

fa
ct

or
 in

 th
e 

re
la

un
ch

ed
 H

S
C

B
 

Le
ve

ls
 o

f N
ee

d 
w

ith
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
H

S
C

B
;s

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

ch
an

ne
ls

.

S
ep

 1
4

T
hr

ou
gh

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

's
 g

ov
er

an
ce

 
pr

oc
es

se
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

Le
ve

ls
 o

f N
ee

d 
(s

ee
 

1.
3)

.

N
N

H
S

C
B

B
us

in
es

s
M

an
ag

er
, A

nd
y 

C
hu

rc
he

r

P
ro

m
ot

e 
P

riv
at

e 
F

os
te

rin
g 

to
 th

e 
ch

ild
re

n'
s 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 b

y 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 it
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
ey

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 n

ot
ify

 
ch

ild
re

n’
s 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 o
f 

pr
iv

at
e 

fo
st

er
in

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
.

A
pr

 1
5

T
hr

ou
gh

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

's
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 H

S
C

B
 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

.

N
N

A
ct

io
n 

ar
ea

 3
.4

: P
ri

va
te

 F
o

st
er

in
g

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t n
ee

d 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

as
 o

ng
oi

ng
 r

is
k 

in
 

H
S

C
B

's
 R

is
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
an

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
O

fs
te

d 
re

po
rt

.
M

on
ito

re
d 

by
: S

te
er

in
g

 G
ro

u
p

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 O

ve
rs

ig
ht

:  

G
re

at
er

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

of
 th

e 
ne

ed
 

to
 r

ep
or

t P
riv

at
e 

F
os

te
rin

g 
A

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 w
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 

m
or

e 
co

m
pl

et
e 

pi
ct

ur
e 

of
 th

es
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
an

d 
en

su
re

 C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

W
el

lb
ei

ng
 a

re
 a

bl
e 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 

su
ita

bl
e 

su
pp

or
t, 

w
he

re
 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y,
 to

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
fa

m
ili

es
 in

 th
es

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
.

re
du

ce
 th

e 
lik

el
yh

oo
d 

of
 fu

rt
he

r 
ep

is
od

es
.

v1
.1

5 
of

 7

69



H
S

C
B

 B
u

si
n

es
s 

P
la

n
 2

01
4-

20
15

D
R

A
F

T
 3

0t
h 

Ju
ne

 2
01

4

Pr
oc

es
s

An
 A

gr
ee

d 
Pr

oc
es

s 
Is

 In
 P

la
ce

Pr
oc

es
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

Bu
t N

ot
 A

gr
ee

d
N

o 
Pr

og
re

ss
 In

 A
gr

ee
in

g 
Pr

oc
es

s

Co
m

pl
et

io
n 

to
 T

im
es

ca
le

Co
m

pl
et

e 
O

R 
O

n 
Ta

rg
et

Ri
sk

 o
f M

is
si

ng
 T

im
es

ca
le

In
co

m
pl

et
e 

&
 O

ut
si

de
 T

im
es

ca
le

L
ea

d
 O

rg
 &

 
O

ff
ic

er

H
o

w
 im

p
ac

t 
an

d
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ea

su
re

d
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 w

e 
w

ill
 k

n
o

w
 

w
h

en
 it

 is
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

T
im

e-
 

sc
al

es

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 
M

ec
h

an
is

m
 a

n
d

 
F

re
q

u
en

cy

H
S

C
B

In
de

pe
nd

en
t 

C
ha

ir,
 D

av
e 

M
cC

al
lu

m

D
ev

el
op

 th
e 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 b
et

w
ee

n 
H

S
C

B
 a

nd
 th

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t B
oa

rd
, t

he
 C

Y
P

P
F

 a
nd

 
th

e 
H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
 B

oa
rd

 to
 

en
su

re
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

in
flu

en
ce

 n
ur

tu
re

s 
pu

rp
os

ef
ul

 d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ak
in

g.

O
ct

 1
4

U
pd

at
e 

re
po

rt
s 

to
 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 B

oa
rd

 
(J

ul
y 

an
d 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
)

N
N

H
S

C
B

B
us

in
es

s
M

an
ag

er
, A

nd
y 

C
hu

rc
he

r

P
ro

vi
de

 o
ng

oi
ng

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r 
H

S
C

B
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
oa

rd
 m

em
be

rs
 to

 
de

ve
lo

p 
th

ei
r 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
of

 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 a

nd
 th

e 
sk

ill
s 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 th

ei
r 

ro
le

s.
 

Ju
l 1

4
M

id
 y

ea
r 

re
po

rt
 to

 b
e 

pr
es

en
te

d 
to

 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
oa

rd
's

 
O

ct
ob

er
 m

ee
tin

g.

N
N

H
S

C
B

B
us

in
es

s
M

an
ag

er
, A

nd
y 

C
hu

rc
he

r

E
ns

ur
e 

in
ci

de
nc

es
 o

f c
ha

lle
ng

e 
ar

e 
cl

ea
rly

 m
ar

ke
d 

w
ith

in
 a

ll 
H

S
C

B
 

m
in

ut
es

/ m
ee

tin
g 

no
te

s.

Ju
l 1

4
M

on
ito

re
d 

w
he

n 
an

y 
se

t o
f m

in
ut

es
 a

re
 

ag
re

ed
.

N
N

H
S

C
B

B
us

in
es

s
M

an
ag

er
, A

nd
y 

C
hu

rc
he

r

In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 H

S
C

B
's

 C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 
P

ro
to

co
l, 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 B

oa
rd

 m
em

be
rs

 w
ill

 
ov

er
se

e 
th

e 
m

on
th

ly
 s

ub
m

is
si

on
 o

f 
ca

se
s 

of
 g

oo
d 

pr
ac

tic
e 

fr
om

 a
ll 

ag
en

ci
es

.  
T

he
se

 w
ill

 b
e 

us
ed

 a
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 H
S

C
B

's
 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

.

Ju
n 

14
M

id
 y

ea
r 

re
po

rt
 to

 b
e 

pr
es

en
te

d 
to

 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
oa

rd
's

 
O

ct
ob

er
 m

ee
tin

g.

N
N

H
S

C
B

B
us

in
es

s
M

an
ag

er
, A

nd
y 

C
hu

rc
he

r

H
S

C
B

's
 B

us
in

es
s 

U
ni

t t
o 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

re
gi

st
er

 o
f g

oo
d 

pr
ac

tic
e 

ca
se

s 
su

bm
itt

ed
.

Ju
n 

14
M

id
 y

ea
r 

re
po

rt
 to

 b
e 

pr
es

en
te

d 
to

 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
oa

rd
's

 
O

ct
ob

er
 m

ee
tin

g.

N
N

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

C
ou

nc
il,

 H
ea

d 
of

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

R
ev

ie
w

, 
D

ia
ne

P
ar

tr
id

ge

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 a

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 B

us
in

es
s 

U
ni

t, 
th

e 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
 u

po
n 

it,
 a

nd
 th

e 
re

so
ur

ce
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 it

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
it 

is
 

ab
le

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

ly
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
B

oa
rd

.

S
ep

 1
4

U
pd

at
e 

re
po

rt
s 

to
 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 B

oa
rd

 
(J

ul
y 

an
d 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
)

N
N

M
on

ito
re

d 
by

:  
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
o

ar
d

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 O

ve
rs

ig
ht

:  
D

av
e 

M
cC

al
lu

m

A
ct

io
n 

ar
ea

 4
.2

: D
ev

el
o

p
 a

n
 e

vi
d

en
ce

 b
as

e 
o

f 
sa

fe
g

u
ar

d
in

g
 c

as
ew

o
rk

 a
cr

o
ss

 a
ll 

ag
en

ci
es

 t
o

 d
em

o
n

st
ra

te
 a

n
d

 le
ar

n
 f

ro
m

 
o

u
r 

g
o

o
d

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
an

d
 s

h
o

w
 h

o
w

 w
e 

ar
e 

m
ee

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 e
xc

ee
d

in
g

 o
u

r 
st

at
u

to
ry

 r
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ti
es

.

A
ct

io
n 

ar
ea

 4
.3

: D
ev

el
o

p
 t

h
e 

re
so

u
rc

e 
av

ai
la

b
le

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 H
S

C
B

 b
y 

th
e 

B
u

si
n

es
s 

U
n

it
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

it
s 

fu
n

ct
io

n
in

g
 

an
d

 t
h

e 
n

ee
d

s 
o

f 
b

o
th

 H
S

A
B

 a
n

d
 H

S
C

B
.

H
S

C
B

 w
ill

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

its
 g

oo
d 

w
or

k 
an

d 
us

e 
it 

to
 

pr
om

ot
e 

th
e 

im
po

rt
an

ce
 o

f h
ig

h 
qu

al
ity

 p
la

nn
in

g,
 c

as
e 

w
or

k 
an

d 
re

co
rd

in
g,

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
ou

tc
om

es
 fo

r 
ch

ild
re

n 
ac

ro
ss

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

.

H
S

C
B

 w
ill

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 it
s 

M
on

ito
re

d 
by

:  
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
o

ar
d

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 O

ve
rs

ig
ht

:  
D

av
e 

M
cC

al
lu

m

M
on

ito
re

d 
by

:  
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
o

ar
d

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 O

ve
rs

ig
ht

:  
D

av
e 

M
cC

al
lu

m

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 A

R
E

A
 4

: 
 Im

p
ro

vi
n

g
 t

h
e 

fu
n

ct
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
H

er
ef

o
rd

sh
ir

e’
s 

S
af

eg
u

ar
d

in
g

 B
o

ar
d

s.

Process

Completion

P
ro

g
re

ss
 a

s 
at

 X
X

X
 2

01
4.

P
ro

p
o

se
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 w
o

rk
 t

o
 

en
su

re
 a

ll 
p

ri
o

ri
ti

es
 a

re
 

co
m

p
le

te
d

 t
o

 
ti

m
es

ca
le

/d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

w
o

rk
 is

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
.

W
h

at
 im

p
ac

t 
h

as
 t

h
e 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 m

ad
e 

so
 f

ar
 m

ad
e 

o
n

 t
h

e 
liv

es
 o

f 
ch

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 
yo

u
n

g
 p

eo
p

le
?

W
h

at
 im

p
ac

t 
is

 e
xp

ec
te

d
 

o
n

ce
 A

ct
io

n
 A

re
a 

is
 

co
m

p
le

te
d

?
  H

o
w

 a
n

d
 w

h
en

 
w

ill
 im

p
ac

t 
b

e 
m

ea
su

re
d

?

R
A

G

S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 w
ill

 r
ec

ei
ve

 
re

gu
la

r 
in

st
ru

ct
io

n 
fr

om
 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 B

oa
rd

 to
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
w

or
k 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

B
oa

rd
's

 s
ub

 g
ro

up
s.

  E
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 th
is

 w
or

k 
w

ill
 s

ho
w

 th
e 

B
oa

rd
's

 a
bi

lit
y 

to
 r

es
po

nd
 

qu
ic

kl
y 

to
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

is
su

es
 

in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 a
nd

 in
flu

en
ce

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t.

A
ct

io
n 

ar
ea

 4
.1

: D
ev

el
o

p
 t

h
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o

f 
B

o
ar

d
 m

ee
ti

n
g

s 
th

ro
u

g
h

 c
o

n
st

ru
ct

iv
e 

ch
al

le
n

g
e 

an
d

 c
le

ar
 g

o
ve

rn
an

ce
.

v1
.1

6 
of

 7

70



H
S

C
B

 B
u

si
n

es
s 

P
la

n
 2

01
4-

20
15

D
R

A
F

T
 3

0t
h 

Ju
ne

 2
01

4

Pr
oc

es
s

An
 A

gr
ee

d 
Pr

oc
es

s 
Is

 In
 P

la
ce

Pr
oc

es
s 

Pl
an

ne
d 

Bu
t N

ot
 A

gr
ee

d
N

o 
Pr

og
re

ss
 In

 A
gr

ee
in

g 
Pr

oc
es

s

Co
m

pl
et

io
n 

to
 T

im
es

ca
le

Co
m

pl
et

e 
O

R 
O

n 
Ta

rg
et

Ri
sk

 o
f M

is
si

ng
 T

im
es

ca
le

In
co

m
pl

et
e 

&
 O

ut
si

de
 T

im
es

ca
le

L
ea

d
 O

rg
 &

 
O

ff
ic

er

H
o

w
 im

p
ac

t 
an

d
 p

ro
g

re
ss

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ea

su
re

d
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 w

e 
w

ill
 k

n
o

w
 

w
h

en
 it

 is
 a

ch
ie

ve
d

T
im

e-
 

sc
al

es

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 
M

ec
h

an
is

m
 a

n
d

 
F

re
q

u
en

cy

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 A

R
E

A
 4

: 
 Im

p
ro

vi
n

g
 t

h
e 

fu
n

ct
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
H

er
ef

o
rd

sh
ir

e’
s 

S
af

eg
u

ar
d

in
g

 B
o

ar
d

s.

Process

Completion

P
ro

g
re

ss
 a

s 
at

 X
X

X
 2

01
4.

P
ro

p
o

se
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 w
o

rk
 t

o
 

en
su

re
 a

ll 
p

ri
o

ri
ti

es
 a

re
 

co
m

p
le

te
d

 t
o

 
ti

m
es

ca
le

/d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

w
o

rk
 is

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
.

W
h

at
 im

p
ac

t 
h

as
 t

h
e 

p
ro

g
re

ss
 m

ad
e 

so
 f

ar
 m

ad
e 

o
n

 t
h

e 
liv

es
 o

f 
ch

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 
yo

u
n

g
 p

eo
p

le
?

W
h

at
 im

p
ac

t 
is

 e
xp

ec
te

d
 

o
n

ce
 A

ct
io

n
 A

re
a 

is
 

co
m

p
le

te
d

?
  H

o
w

 a
n

d
 w

h
en

 
w

ill
 im

p
ac

t 
b

e 
m

ea
su

re
d

?

R
A

G

H
S

C
B

B
us

in
es

s
M

an
ag

er
, A

nd
y 

C
hu

rc
he

r

A
gr

ee
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
t t

he
 r

es
po

ns
e 

to
 

th
e 

re
po

rt
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 a
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

B
us

in
es

s 
U

ni
t i

s 
in

 p
la

ce
.

O
ct

 1
4

U
pd

at
e 

re
po

rt
s 

to
 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 B

oa
rd

 
(J

ul
y 

an
d 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
)

N
N

H
S

C
B

B
us

in
es

s
M

an
ag

er
, A

nd
y 

C
hu

rc
he

r

D
ev

el
op

 m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

fo
r 

en
su

rin
g 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
an

d 
re

le
va

nc
e 

of
 

H
S

C
B

's
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 o

ffe
r 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
 fo

r 
ag

en
ci

es
 a

cc
es

si
ng

 
tr

ai
ni

ng
.

Ja
n 

15
U

pd
at

e 
re

po
rt

s 
to

 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
oa

rd
 

(J
ul

y 
an

d 
O

ct
ob

er
 

20
14

)

N
N

H
S

C
B

B
us

in
es

s
M

an
ag

er
, A

nd
y 

C
hu

rc
he

r

U
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

a 
LG

A
 D

ia
gn

os
tic

/P
ee

r 
C

ha
lle

ng
e 

in
 S

ep
t/O

ct
 2

01
4 

to
 a

ss
es

s 
th

e 
re

ad
in

es
s 

of
 H

S
C

B
 to

 ta
ke

 o
ve

r 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
fr

om
 th

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t B
oa

rd
 a

nd
 to

 a
ss

es
s 

in
iti

al
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
O

fs
te

d'
s 

re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 B
oa

rd
 in

 2
01

4.

S
ep

 1
4

U
pd

at
e 

re
po

rt
s 

to
 

S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 (
A

ug
 

20
14

)

N
N

P
ee

r 
re

vi
ew

 w
ill

 r
es

ul
t i

n 
a 

tim
el

y 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
f p

ro
gr

es
s 

fo
r 

H
S

C
B

 a
nd

 fo
cu

s 
co

nt
in

ue
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 d
ur

in
g 

20
15

-
20

16
.

H
S

C
B

, C
ha

ir 
of

 
T

&
W

D
H

az
el

 B
la

nk
le

y

C
ou

rs
e 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

se
s,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

Im
pa

ct
 e

va
lu

at
io

ns
, w

ill
 h

av
e 

be
en

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
to

 
pr

ov
id

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 H

S
C

B
 to

 in
fo

rm
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f 

its
 m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 
of

fe
r.

O
ct

 1
4

T
hr

ou
gh

 Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 

R
ep

or
ts

 fr
om

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 to

 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
oa

rd
 

(f
ro

m
 J

ul
y 

20
14

).

N
N

H
S

C
B

B
us

in
es

s
M

an
ag

er
, A

nd
y 

C
hu

rc
he

r

A
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

pr
oc

es
s 

fo
r 

en
ga

gi
ng

 th
e 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 in

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f H
S

C
B

 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

be
en

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

an
d 

us
ed

 to
 in

fo
rm

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 fo

r 
th

e 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 

an
d 

th
en

 a
pp

lie
d 

to
 o

th
er

 c
ou

rs
es

 la
te

r 
in

 th
e 

ye
ar

.

O
ct

 1
4  

fo
r 

E
du

ca
tio

n

M
ar

 1
5 

fo
r 

w
id

er
 

ap
pl

ic
at

io
n

T
hr

ou
gh

 Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 

R
ep

or
ts

 fr
om

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 to

 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
oa

rd
 

(f
ro

m
 J

ul
y 

20
14

).

N
N

A
ct

io
n 

ar
ea

 4
.5

: E
n

su
re

 t
h

at
 m

u
lt

i-
ag

en
cy

 s
af

eg
u

ar
d

in
g

 t
ra

in
in

g
 is

 s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t,
 t

ak
en

 u
p

 b
y 

p
ar

tn
er

s 
an

d
 is

 r
o

b
u

st
ly

 
ev

al
u

at
ed

.
M

on
ito

re
d 

by
:  

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 B

o
ar

d
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 O
ve

rs
ig

ht
:  

D
av

e 
M

cC
al

lu
m

H
S

C
B

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 w
ill

 m
or

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
m

ee
t t

he
 n

ee
ds

 o
f 

th
e 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 th

ro
ug

h 
an

 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 th
e 

ra
te

 o
f p

os
iti

ve
 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
fr

om
 

co
ur

se
s 

an
d 

m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

of
 

im
pr

ov
ed

 q
ua

lit
y.

M
on

ito
re

d 
by

:  
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 B
o

ar
d

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 O

ve
rs

ig
ht

:  
D

av
e 

M
cC

al
lu

m
A

ct
io

n 
ar

ea
 4

.4
: U

n
d

er
ta

ke
 a

 p
ee

r 
le

ar
n

in
g

 p
ro

ce
ss

 w
it

h
 a

n
o

th
er

 B
o

ar
d

 a
n

d
 im

p
le

m
en

t 
h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d

 a
re

as
 f

o
r 

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t.

Le
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

th
ro

ug
h 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
 

pr
ac

tic
e 

w
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

re
su

lte
d 

fr
om

 it
s 

le
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t a
ct

iv
iti

es
/

v1
.1

7 
of

 7

71



72



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Jo Davidson on Tel (01432) 260039 

 

 

MEETING: CABINET  

MEETING DATE: 31 JULY 2014 

TITLE OF REPORT: YOUTH JUSTICE PLAN 

REPORT BY: DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S WELLBEING 
 

Alternative Options 

1 There are no alternative options as a Youth Justice Plan is required to be produced 
on an annual basis. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 The Youth Justice Plan is prepared on an annual basis on behalf of Herefordshire 
Council, Shropshire Council, Telford and Wrekin Council and Worcestershire County 
Council. The basic plan preparation is undertaken by the West Mercia Youth 
Offending Service according to the deadlines and guidance from the Youth Justice 
Board for England and Wales (YJB). 

3 The Youth Justice Plan sets out how youth justice services across West Mercia are 
structured and resourced and identifies key actions to address identified risks to 
service delivery and improvement. 

 

Classification   

Open 

Key Decision   

This is not a key decision. 

Wards Affected 
County-wide 

Purpose 
To recommend the Youth Justice Plan for approval by Council 

Recommendation(s) 

THAT:   
(a) the Youth Justice Plan (at Appendix A) is recommended to Council for 

approval. 

AGENDA ITEM 7

73



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Jo Davidson on Tel (01432) 260039 

 

4 Under section 40 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 each Local Authority has a duty 
to produce a Youth Justice Plan setting out how Youth Justice Services in their area 
are provided and funded and how the Youth Offending Service for the area is funded 
and composed. The plan is submitted to the Youth Justice Board for England and 
Wales.  

5 The Plan was considered by the Herefordshire Community Safety Partnership at its 
meeting on 20 June 2014 and was supported as an important element in addressing 
the community safety priorities in the county.  

6 The Youth Justice Plan for 2014/15 was prepared in April 2014 in line with the 
guidance issued by the YJB, and agreed at the West Mercia Youth Offending 
Management Board on 23 May 2014. It is officially due to be submitted to the YJB by 
the end of September 2014. A provisional copy was forwarded to the YJB in June. 

Key Considerations 

7 The Youth Offending Service is subject to three national indicators. Performance 
against the indicators is outlined in the plan and actions identified to address risks to 
performance improvement. The Herefordshire specific information is set out on pages 
24-28 of the plan. Since the plan was prepared there has been a further quarterly 
update on the performance. The updated performance for Herefordshire is outlined 
below. 

8 The first time entrant (FTE) indicator which is expressed as the number of first time 
entrants to the youth justice per 100,000 youth population was 547 for Herefordshire 
in the year ending December 2013, representing a reduction of 7% from the year 
ending September 2013 where the FTE rate was 589. The Herefordshire rate for the 
year ending December 2013 is higher than for West Mercia, 442, but lower than for 
England, 556. The actual number of first time entrants in Herefordshire in 2013 was 
92. 

9 At 547, Herefordshire has the highest rate of FTEs across West Mercia and some 
analysis into the reasons for the higher rate was undertaken in 13/14, and found that 
in part it is due to a higher detection rate and lower proportional use of informal 
disposals. Further analysis is planned for 14/15, including consideration of a wider 
range of issues which impact on the likelihood of a young person offending (e.g. non-
school attendance). This will enable more targeted and integrated activity to take 
place to address the higher numbers. 

10 The second indicator is the use of custody indicator, which is measured as the 
number of custodial sentences per 1,000 youth population. The use of custody 
performance for the year ending March 2014 was 0.30, which is the same as for the 
year ending December 2013, and in line with the West Mercia performance of 0.29. 
The Herefordshire rate is significantly lower than the national rate of 0.44. The actual 
number of custodial sentences on Herefordshire young people in the year ending 
March 2014 was 5.   

11 The third indicator is re-offending. There are two measures both measuring re-
offending in the same cohort of offenders over a 12 month period following the youth 
justice sanction that placed the young person in the cohort. The first, the frequency 
rate, is the average number of re-offences per young person in the cohort. The 
second is the percentage of the young people in the cohort who have re-offended. 

 

74



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Jo Davidson on Tel (01432) 260039 

 

12 The frequency measure for Herefordshire for the year ending June 2012 is 1.19 and 
this shows improved performance from the year ending March 2012 when the rate 
was 1.35.  The Herefordshire rate of 1.19 is slightly higher than the West Mercia rate 
of 0.96. 

13 The percentage of young people who have re-offended in Herefordshire for the year 
ending June 2012 is 40.5% and has slightly reduced from the year ending March 
2012 when it was 40.8%. However, the Herefordshire rate of 40.5% is higher than for 
West Mercia which is at 34.4%.   

14 There has been a trend of increasing re-offending rates nationally and there is 
currently little evidence as to why this is happening. It is thought, in part, it is due to 
decreasing numbers in cohorts due to the successful diversion of first time offenders 
from the formal justice system, leaving a cohort of more serious and complex 
offenders who are more likely to offend. Local analysis undertaken during 13/14 
supports this hypothesis. 

15 The YJB is working with youth offending services during 14/15 in order to understand 
more what is driving the trend in performance and has launched, in the first quarter of 
the year, a re-offending tool kit to assist services in understanding better the 
characteristics of their cohorts. This analysis will be used to target activity on a 
system wide basis to tackle the issue. 

16 In addition to the national indicator information the plan provides information on the 
education status of young offenders and the proportion of young people on YOS 
caseloads that are looked after children including those that are looked after children 
temporarily based in Herefordshire by other local authorities. 

17 In 13/14 the YOS Management Board has concentrated on increasing the proportion 
of school age offenders who receive a minimum of 25 hours education a week on the 
basis that this leads to better outcomes for the young person. In Herefordshire this 
has seen a rise in the proportion receiving at least 25 hours from 79% in 13/14 to 
92% in the calendar year 2013. 

18 In common with Shropshire, Herefordshire has a large number of children’s 
residential units used by other Local Authorities. This creates pressures for the Youth 
Offending Service, as no additional funding is made available to meet the increased 
offending issues caused by some of these placements. The Youth Justice Plan 
identifies that at the end of December, 17% of the cases open in the Herefordshire 
YOS Team were other authorities looked after children. 

19 The recent Ofsted inspection has stipulated that Herefordshire Council should ensure 
effective joint working with the police and youth offending services to routinely record 
and analyse information about looked after children engaged in offending behaviour. 

20 Inspectors also identified an increased number of Children held in custody overnight 
and insufficient emergency placements to meet the need of this group of vulnerable 
young people when they are required to attend court or be interviewed the following 
morning.  This will be a priority area for Herefordshire Council in 2014/2015.  

75



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Jo Davidson on Tel (01432) 260039 

 

 

Community Impact 

21 The principal aim of the Youth Justice System is the prevention of offending and re-
offending by children and young people. The Youth Justice Plan sets out an action 
plan to address the significant risks identified to future service delivery and 
improvement. 

22 The Youth Justice Plan supports both the Herefordshire Council Corporate Plan and 
the Children and Young Peoples Plan (“Yes We Can” Plan), by planning actions to 
improve the outcomes for children and young people who are in the youth justice 
system and working to minimise that risks associated with any harm they may pose to 
others and any harm posed to them. 

23 The Youth Justice Plan directly contributes to the reducing re-offending priority in the 
Herefordshire Community Safety Strategic Plan 2014/17, in particular in relation to 
identified joint work with the YOS Management Board to reduce the rate of first time 
entrants to the youth justice system. 

Equality and Human Rights 

24 The Youth Justice Plan does pay due regard to equality and human rights.   

Financial Implications 

25 The 2014/15 financial contribution to the YOS by the Council is £232,324 which 
 includes a cash contribution and two FTE staff. This contribution represents a 16% 
 reduction from 13/14 and a 25% saving from the 11/12 contribution as part of a 
 planned reduction created by the successful reduction in the number of offenders and 
 efficiencies created by the establishment of the West Mercia YOS. 

Legal Implications 

26 Section 40 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 imposes a statutory duty on the 
Council, after consulting with the Police, Probation and Health, to formulate and 
implement for each year a Youth Justice Plan. The plan must set out: how youth 
justice services in Herefordshire are to be provided and funded; how the youth 
offending service is to be composed, how it is to operate, and what functions it will 
carry out. The Council must submit its Youth Justice Plan to the Youth Justice Board 
for England and Wales in a form and by a date set by the Secretary of State. 

Risk Management 

27 The risks are identified in the Plan, together with the actions to mitigate them.  
 
28 As a result of the closure of West Mercia Probation Trust on 31 May 2014, due to 
 national changes regarding the delivery of probation services, WMYOS is being 
 hosted, on an interim basis, by Worcestershire County Council.  During 2014/15 work 
 will be undertaken by the four Local Authorities and the other statutory partners to 
 evaluate and agree the longer term hosting and delivery arrangements for West 
 Mercia YOS. 
 

76



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Jo Davidson on Tel (01432) 260039 

 

Consultees 

29   As detailed in the Youth Justice Plan 

Appendices 

• Youth Justice Plan 

Background Papers  

• None identified. 

 

 
 
 

77



78



W
E

S
T

 M
E

R
C

IA
 Y

O
U

T
H

 O
F

F
E

N
D

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

 
 

 
  

Y
O

U
T

H
 J

U
S

T
IC

E
 P

L
A

N
 

20
14

/1
5 

   
  

A
P
P
E
N
D
I
X

A

79



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
3 

C
O

N
T

E
N

T
S

 
  1 

 
 

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

 
 

 
 

 
 

3 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

2 
 

 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 R

ev
ie

w
 

 
 

 
 

5 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 3 
 

 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
9 

 
 

 
4 

 
 

S
tr

uc
tu

re
, G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

 
 

10
 

 
 

 5 
 

 
P

rio
rit

ie
s 

fo
r 

20
14

/1
5 

 
 

 
 

14
 

 6 
 

 
R

is
ks

 to
 F

ut
ur

e 
D

el
iv

er
y 

- 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

 
 

19
 

 
 

 
 

 7 
 

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t B
oa

rd
 A

pp
ro

va
l 

 
 

 
23

 
 

 
 

 
 A

pp
en

di
x 

1 
 

A
re

a 
P

ro
fil

e 
– 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

 
 

 
24

 
 A

pp
en

di
x 

2 
 

A
re

a 
P

ro
fil

e 
– 

S
hr

op
sh

ire
 

 
 

 
 

29
 

 A
pp

en
di

x 
3 

 
A

re
a 

P
ro

fil
e 

– 
T

el
fo

rd
 a

nd
 W

re
ki

n 
 

 
 

34
 

 A
pp

en
di

x 
3 

 
A

re
a 

P
ro

fil
e 

– 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 
 

 
 

39
 

       

80



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
4 

1.
 

IN
T

R
O

D
U

C
T

IO
N

 

W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

ou
th

 O
ffe

nd
in

g 
S

er
vi

ce
 w

as
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
on

 t
he

 1
st
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
2 

an
d 

re
pl

ac
ed

 t
he

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
S

hr
op

sh
ire

, 
T

el
fo

rd
 a

nd
 

W
re

ki
n 

Y
ou

th
 O

ffe
nd

in
g 

S
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

 t
he

 W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 a

nd
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 Y
ou

th
 O

ffe
nd

in
g 

S
er

vi
ce

 f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

a 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

ho
w

 
yo

ut
h 

ju
st

ic
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 w
er

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
W

es
t M

er
ci

a 
ar

ea
. 

In
iti

al
ly

 a
 c

or
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

w
as

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 t

hr
ou

gh
 a

re
a 

ba
se

d 
te

am
s 

al
ig

ne
d 

to
 t

he
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
ar

ea
s 

su
pp

or
te

d 
by

 a
 c

en
tr

al
 t

ea
m

 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

, 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
an

d 
fin

an
ce

 s
up

po
rt

. 
T

he
 c

or
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
re

 c
ou

rt
 f

ac
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
, 

as
se

ss
m

en
t, 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
, 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
re

vi
ew

 f
un

ct
io

ns
, 

al
on

g 
w

ith
 v

ic
tim

 l
ia

is
on

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

 o
f 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

an
el

 M
em

be
rs

. 
A

ll 
ot

he
r 

se
rv

ic
es

, 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Y

ou
th

 O
ffe

nd
in

g 
S

er
vi

ce
s,

 h
av

e 
be

en
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 in
 1

3/
14

 b
y 

an
 in

te
rim

 p
ro

vi
de

r 
se

rv
ic

es
 t

ea
m

 
w

hi
ls

t 
be

in
g 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 a

 c
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

pr
oc

es
s.

  
T

he
 c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
pr

oc
es

s 
w

as
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 i
n 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

3,
 a

nd
 a

 d
ec

is
io

n 
ta

ke
n 

to
 i

nt
eg

ra
te

 k
ey

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
 i

nc
lu

di
ng

 r
ep

ar
at

io
n,

 I
S

S
, 

ba
il 

su
pe

rv
is

io
n,

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 a
nd

 m
en

to
rin

g 
in

to
 t

he
 Y

ou
th

 O
ffe

nd
in

g 
S

er
vi

ce
. A

 n
ew

 s
er

vi
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

re
 w

as
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
on

 1
st
 A

pr
il 

20
14

 to
 ta

ke
 a

cc
ou

nt
 o

f t
he

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 th
es

e 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

In
iti

al
ly

 W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
P

ro
ba

tio
n 

T
ru

st
 h

os
te

d 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
on

 b
eh

al
f 

of
 t

he
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

th
e 

Y
ou

th
 J

us
tic

e 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
. 

T
he

 
di

ss
ol

ut
io

n 
of

 t
he

 P
ro

ba
tio

n 
T

ru
st

 f
ro

m
 1

st
 J

un
e 

20
14

 h
as

 l
ed

 t
o 

th
e 

ho
st

in
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 b
ei

ng
 t

ra
ns

fe
rr

ed
 o

n 
an

 i
nt

er
im

 b
as

is
, 

un
til

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
5,

 to
 W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 C
ou

nt
y 

C
ou

nc
il.

 

D
ur

in
g 

14
/1

5 
th

e 
Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ill

 b
e 

un
de

rt
ak

in
g 

a 
re

vi
ew

 in
 o

rd
er

 t
o 

re
ac

h 
a 

de
ci

si
on

 r
eg

ar
di

ng
 t

he
 f

ut
ur

e 
de

liv
er

y 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 f

ro
m

 A
pr

il 
20

15
. 

F
ur

th
er

 w
or

k 
w

ill
 b

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 t
o 

co
m

pl
et

e 
th

e 
tr

an
si

tio
n 

fr
om

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
de

liv
er

y 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
re

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
to

 
in

te
gr

at
e 

th
e 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 

se
rv

ic
es

 
in

to
 

th
e 

Y
ou

th
 

O
ffe

nd
in

g 
S

er
vi

ce
 

an
d 

th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 a
 s

in
gl

e 
IC

T
 s

ys
te

m
 fo

r 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e.
 

         

81



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
5 

2.
 

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 R

E
V

IE
W

 

Y
ou

th
 J

us
tic

e 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

ar
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
th

re
e 

na
tio

na
l i

nd
ic

at
or

s;
 

· 
F

irs
t T

im
e 

E
nt

ra
nt

s 
(F

T
E

) 
to

 th
e 

Y
ou

th
 J

us
tic

e 
S

ys
te

m
 

· 
U

se
 o

f C
us

to
dy

 
· 

R
e-

O
ffe

nd
in

g 

1 
F

ir
st

 T
im

e 
E

n
tr

an
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e 
Y

o
u

th
 J

u
st

ic
e 

S
ys

te
m

 (
F

T
E

s)
 

T
he

 f
irs

t 
tim

e 
en

tr
an

t 
m

ea
su

re
 is

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 a

s 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 f
irs

t 
tim

e 
en

tr
an

ts
 p

er
 1

00
,0

00
 o

f 
10

 t
o 

17
 y

ea
r 

ol
d 

po
pu

la
tio

n.
 F

irs
t 

tim
e 

en
tr

an
ts

 a
re

 t
ho

se
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
a 

fir
st

 f
or

m
al

 y
ou

th
 ju

st
ic

e 
sa

nc
tio

n 
(Y

ou
th

 C
au

tio
n,

 Y
ou

th
 C

on
di

tio
na

l C
au

tio
n 

or
 

C
on

vi
ct

io
n)

. A
 lo

w
er

 fi
gu

re
 d

en
ot

es
 g

oo
d 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

. 

T
he

 r
at

e 
of

 F
T

E
s 

ac
ro

ss
 W

es
t 

M
er

ci
a 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

in
g 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
13

 w
as

 
48

7,
 w

hi
ch

 i
s 

an
 i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t 

on
 t

he
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 f

or
 y

ea
r 

en
di

ng
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

12
 

w
he

n 
th

e 
F

T
E

 
ra

te
 

w
as

 
58

1.
 

T
he

 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 
en

di
ng

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

13
 i

s 
sl

ig
ht

ly
 h

ig
he

r 
na

tio
na

l 
ra

te
 o

f 
46

0 
an

d 
th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
fa

m
ily

 g
ro

up
 a

t 4
40

.  
 

 T
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 F
T

E
s 

in
 W

es
t 

M
er

ci
a 

ov
er

 t
he

 t
hr

ee
 y

ea
r 

pe
rio

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
in

g 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

10
 a

nd
 th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
in

g 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

13
 

w
as

 -
34

%
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 -

59
%

 fo
r 

E
ng

la
nd

 a
nd

 -
50

%
 fo

r 
th

e 
fa

m
ily

 g
ro

up
.  

 W
ith

in
 W

es
t 

M
er

ci
a 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
di

ffe
rin

g 
F

T
E

 
ra

te
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

fo
ur

 
Lo

ca
l 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
ar

ea
s,

 w
ith

 t
he

 h
ig

he
st

 b
ei

ng
 5

89
 a

nd
 t

he
 l

ow
es

t 
32

9.
 S

om
e 

in
iti

al
 

an
al

ys
is

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

in
 2

01
3/

14
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
d 

th
at

 t
he

 h
ig

he
st

 r
at

e 
w

as
 i

n 
pa

rt
, 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 h

ig
he

r 
de

te
ct

io
n 

ra
te

s 
an

d 
a 

lo
w

er
 p

ro
po

rt
io

na
l 

us
e 

of
 t

he
 i

nf
or

m
al

 
di

sp
os

al
 o

f C
om

m
un

ity
 R

es
ol

ut
io

n.
 F

ur
th

er
 a

na
ly

si
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 d

ur
in

g 
14

/1
5 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 b

et
te

r 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 w
ha

t i
s 

dr
iv

in
g 

th
e 

di
ffe

re
nt

ia
l 

ra
te

s.
 T

he
 P

ol
ic

e 
po

lic
y 

on
 t

he
 u

se
 o

f 
C

om
m

un
ity

 R
es

ol
ut

io
ns

 c
ha

ng
es

 o
n 

1st
 A

pr
il 

20
14

 a
nd

 t
he

re
 i

s 
a 

ris
k 

th
at

 t
he

 
po

lic
y 

ch
an

ge
 m

ay
 le

ad
 t

o 
a 

sl
ig

ht
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 t
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

en
te

rin
g 

th
e 

yo
ut

h 
ju

st
ic

e 
sy

st
em

 f
or

 t
he

 f
irs

t 
tim

e,
 a

nd
 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
 o

f t
hi

s 
po

lic
y 

ch
an

ge
 w

ill
 b

e 
m

on
ito

re
d 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 1

4/
15

. 

82



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
6 

T
ar

ge
te

d 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

w
or

k 
is

 n
o 

lo
ng

er
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

Y
ou

th
 O

ffe
nd

in
g 

S
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

 f
or

m
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

E
ar

ly
 H

el
p 

of
fe

r 
in

 e
ac

h
 o

f 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l A

ut
ho

rit
ie

s.
 I

n 
20

14
/1

5 
th

e 
Y

O
S

 w
ill

 b
e 

co
nv

en
in

g 
a 

ta
sk

 a
nd

 f
in

is
h 

gr
ou

p 
on

 b
eh

al
f 

of
 t

he
 O

ffi
ce

 f
or

 P
ol

ic
e 

an
d 

C
rim

e 
C

om
m

is
si

on
er

 t
o 

se
ek

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 t

ha
t t

ho
se

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
m

os
t a

t r
is

k 
of

 e
nt

er
in

g 
th

e 
yo

ut
h 

ju
st

ic
e 

sy
st

em
 a

re
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
ta

rg
et

ed
 

fo
r 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n.

 

2.
 

U
se

 o
f 

C
u

st
o

d
y 

T
he

 u
se

 o
f c

us
to

dy
 m

ea
su

re
 is

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 a

s 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 c
us

to
di

al
 s

en
te

nc
es

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 o

f 1
0 

to
 1

7 
ye

ar
 p

op
ul

at
io

n.
 W

es
t M

er
ci

a 
ha

s,
 h

is
to

ric
al

ly
, h

ad
 a

 lo
w

 r
at

e 
of

 c
us

to
di

al
 s

en
te

nc
es

. A
 lo

w
er

 fi
gu

re
 d

en
ot

es
 g

oo
d 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

. 

F
or

 t
he

 y
ea

r 
en

di
ng

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

13
 t

he
 u

se
 o

f 
cu

st
od

y 
ra

te
 f

or
 W

es
t 

M
er

ci
a 

w
as

 0
.2

7 
ag

ai
ns

t 
th

e 
ra

te
 f

or
 E

ng
la

nd
 o

f 
0.

48
, 

W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

is
, 

th
er

ef
or

e,
 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 
be

tte
r 

th
an

 
th

e 
na

tio
na

l 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 b

ut
 s

lig
ht

ly
 w

or
se

 t
ha

n 
th

e 
fa

m
ily

 g
ro

up
 r

at
e 

of
 0

.2
2.

 T
he

 
W

es
t M

er
ci

a 
ra

te
 fo

r 
20

13
 h

as
 im

pr
ov

ed
 fr

om
 2

01
2 

w
he

n 
it 

w
as

 0
.4

0.
 

 O
ve

r 
th

e 
tw

o 
ye

ar
 p

er
io

d 
of

 th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

in
g 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

13
 a

nd
 th

e 
ye

ar
 

en
di

ng
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

11
 

th
e 

ra
te

 
ha

s 
re

du
ce

d 
fr

om
 

0.
44

 
to

 
0.

27
, 

a 
re

du
ct

io
n 

of
 -

39
%

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 a
 r

ed
uc

tio
n 

of
 -

42
%

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

pe
rio

d 
na

tio
na

lly
. 

 T
he

 a
ct

ua
l 

fa
ll 

in
 c

us
to

di
al

 s
en

te
nc

es
 w

as
 f

ro
m

 5
4 

in
 t

he
 y

ea
r 

en
di

ng
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

11
 t

o 
31

 in
 t

he
 y

ea
r 

en
di

ng
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
13

, 
a 

re
du

ct
io

n 
of

  
-4

3%
. 

In
te

ns
iv

e 
su

pe
rv

is
io

n 
an

d 
su

rv
ei

lla
nc

e 
(I

S
S

) 
is

 a
 c

om
m

un
ity

 b
as

ed
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
to

 c
us

to
di

al
 d

is
po

sa
ls

 a
nd

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 tw

o 
IS

S
 s

ch
em

es
 

op
er

at
e 

ac
ro

ss
 t

he
 a

re
a.

 I
n 

14
/1

5 
th

e 
Y

O
S

 w
ill

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

si
ng

le
 a

nd
 c

on
si

st
en

t 
IS

S
 s

ch
em

e 
fo

r 
W

es
t 

M
er

ci
a 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
p 

a 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 B
ai

l 
S

up
er

vi
si

on
 o

ffe
r 

as
 p

ar
t 

of
 t

he
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

to
 d

iv
er

t, 
w

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

, 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 f

ro
m

 c
us

to
di

al
 r

em
an

ds
 a

nd
 

se
nt

en
ce

s.
  

83



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
7 

3.
 

R
e-

O
ff

en
d

in
g

 

T
he

re
 a

re
 t

w
o 

re
-o

ffe
nd

in
g 

m
ea

su
re

s,
 b

ot
h 

m
ea

su
rin

g 
re

-o
ffe

nd
in

g 
in

 t
he

 
sa

m
e 

co
ho

rt
 o

f 
of

fe
nd

er
s 

ov
er

 a
 1

2 
m

on
th

 p
er

io
d 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
yo

ut
h 

ju
st

ic
e 

sa
nc

tio
n 

th
at

 p
la

ce
d 

th
e 

yo
un

g 
pe

rs
on

 in
 t

he
 c

oh
or

t. 
T

he
 f

irs
t, 

th
e 

fr
eq

ue
nc

y 
m

ea
su

re
, 

is
 t

he
 a

ve
ra

ge
 n

um
be

r 
of

 r
e-

of
fe

nc
es

 p
er

 o
ffe

nd
er

 in
 

th
e 

co
ho

rt
. 

T
he

 s
ec

on
d 

m
ea

su
re

, 
th

e 
bi

na
ry

 m
ea

su
re

, 
is

 t
he

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 t

he
 o

ffe
nd

er
s 

in
 t

he
 c

oh
or

t 
re

-o
ffe

nd
in

g.
 T

he
 m

os
t 

re
ce

nt
 d

at
a 

fo
r 

th
e 

re
-o

ffe
nd

in
g 

m
ea

su
re

 i
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

co
ho

rt
 i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 i
n 

ye
ar

 e
nd

in
g 

M
ar

ch
 

20
12

. I
n 

bo
th

 m
ea

su
re

s 
a 

lo
w

er
 fi

gu
re

 d
en

ot
es

 g
oo

d 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
. 

 F
or

 t
he

 y
ea

r 
en

di
ng

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

th
e 

fr
eq

ue
nc

y 
m

ea
su

re
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 f

or
 

W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
w

as
 0

.9
6,

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 n
at

io
na

l 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 1

.0
2.

 T
he

 
ra

ng
e 

of
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

cr
os

s 
Y

O
T

s 
in

 E
ng

la
nd

 f
or

 t
he

 s
am

e 
pe

rio
d 

is
 

0.
40

 t
o 

1.
83

. 
T

he
 W

es
t 

M
er

ci
a 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 is
 s

lig
ht

ly
 h

ig
he

r 
th

an
 f

or
 t

he
 

fa
m

ily
 g

ro
up

 w
hi

ch
 is

 a
t 0

.9
1.

 
 A

 c
om

pa
ris

on
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

th
re

e 
ye

ar
 p

er
io

d 
of

 t
he

 y
ea

r 
en

di
ng

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
9 

an
d 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

in
g 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2,

 s
ho

w
s 

an
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 th
e 

ra
te

 fr
om

 0
.8

6 
to

 0
.9

6 
an

 i
nc

re
as

e 
of

 1
2%

. 
T

he
 i

nc
re

as
e 

in
 t

he
 f

re
qu

en
cy

 r
at

e 
fo

r 
E

ng
la

nd
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
pe

rio
d 

is
 h

ig
he

r 
fr

om
 0

.9
0 

to
 1

.0
2,

 a
n 

in
cr

ea
se

 o
f 

13
%

. 
 T

he
 b

in
ar

y 
m

ea
su

re
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 f

or
 t

he
 y

ea
r 

en
di

ng
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

2 
fo

r 
W

es
t 

M
er

ci
a 

is
 3

4.
2%

 c
om

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 n

at
io

na
l 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
f 

35
.4

%
.  

T
he

 r
an

ge
 o

f p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 fo
r 

Y
O

T
s 

ac
ro

ss
 E

ng
la

nd
 is

 2
0.

9%
 to

 4
9.

7%
. 

 A
 c

om
pa

ris
on

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
th

re
e 

ye
ar

 p
er

io
d 

of
 t

he
 y

ea
r 

en
di

ng
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

9 
an

d 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
in

g 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

2,
 s

ho
w

s 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 t
he

 r
at

e 
fr

om
 3

0.
6%

 
to

 3
4.

2%
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 o

f 3
.5

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

po
in

ts
.  

  

84



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
8 

It 
ha

s 
be

en
 r

ec
og

ni
se

d 
by

 t
he

 Y
ou

th
 J

us
tic

e 
B

oa
rd

 (
Y

JB
) 

th
at

 a
lth

ou
gh

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t p

ro
gr

es
s,

 n
at

io
na

lly
, 

ha
s 

be
en

 m
ad

e 
in

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
fir

st
 t

im
e 

en
tr

an
ts

 a
nd

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
cu

st
od

y,
 t

he
 r

e-
of

fe
nd

in
g 

m
ea

su
re

 r
em

ai
ns

 a
n 

ar
ea

 o
f 

co
nc

er
n.

 T
he

re
 is

, 
cu

rr
en

tly
 ,

 li
ttl

e 
re

se
ar

ch
 

in
to

 th
e 

re
as

on
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

de
cr

ea
se

s 
in

 th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 b
ut

 it
 is

 th
ou

gh
t t

ha
t a

 la
rg

e 
pa

rt
 o

f t
hi

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
do

w
n 

to
 th

e 
di

ffe
re

n
ce

s 
in

 th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s 
of

 m
or

e 
re

ce
nt

 c
oh

or
ts

 t
o 

th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 c
oh

or
ts

 d
ue

 t
o 

ve
ry

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

de
cr

ea
se

s 
in

 f
irs

t 
tim

e 
en

tr
an

ts
 a

nd
 t

he
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f i
nf

or
m

al
 d

is
po

sa
ls

 fo
r 

m
in

or
 o

ffe
nc

es
. 

 A
na

ly
si

s 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 in
 W

es
t 

M
er

ci
a 

in
 1

3/
14

 c
on

fir
m

s 
th

at
 t

he
 c

oh
or

t 
is

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
in

 n
at

ur
e

 in
 W

es
t 

M
er

ci
a 

w
ith

 t
he

 p
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 o

ut
 o

f c
ou

rt
 d

is
po

sa
ls

, t
ho

se
 w

ith
 th

e 
lo

w
es

t r
is

k 
of

 r
e-

of
fe

nd
in

g,
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

by
 1

0 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 p
oi

nt
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

20
08

 a
nd

 2
01

2,
 t

he
 p

ro
po

rt
io

n 
of

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 c
om

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 c

us
to

di
al

 s
en

te
nc

es
, 

th
os

e 
w

ith
 t

he
 h

ig
he

st
 r

is
k 

of
 r

e
-

of
fe

nd
in

g,
 r

is
in

g 
by

 7
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
po

in
ts

. 
 It 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
no

te
d 

th
at

 th
e 

co
ho

rt
 s

iz
e 

is
 fa

lli
ng

, 
fr

om
 3

03
9 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 in
 th

e 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

9 
co

ho
rt

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 1
35

2 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 

in
 th

e 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

2 
co

ho
rt

. T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 r

e-
of

fe
nc

es
 h

as
 th

er
ef

or
e 

de
cr

ea
se

d 
ov

er
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

pe
rio

d 
fr

om
 2

61
4 

to
 1

29
6 

a 
de

cr
ea

se
 

of
 -

50
%

. 
 T

he
 Y

JB
 is

 u
nd

er
ta

ki
ng

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 Y

O
T

s 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

m
or

e 
w

ha
t 

is
 d

riv
in

g 
th

e 
tr

en
d 

in
 t

he
 r

e-
of

fe
nd

in
g 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
nd

 
lo

ok
 a

t 
ho

w
 Y

O
T

s 
ca

n 
be

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 in

 a
dd

re
ss

in
g 

re
du

ci
ng

 r
e-

of
fe

nd
in

g.
 I

n 
ea

rly
 2

01
4/

15
 t

he
 Y

JB
 w

ill
 b

e 
pu

bl
is

hi
ng

 a
 r

ev
is

ed
 r

e-
of

fe
nd

in
g 

to
ol

 k
it 

to
 a

ss
is

t 
lo

ca
l a

re
as

 in
 a

na
ly

si
ng

 t
he

ir 
re

-o
ffe

nd
in

g 
co

ho
rt

s.
 L

oc
al

ly
 t

he
 W

es
t 

M
er

ci
a 

Y
O

S
 w

ill
 b

e 
ut

ili
si

ng
 t

he
 t

oo
l 

ki
t t

o 
in

ve
st

ig
at

e 
th

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
ris

tic
s 

of
 c

oh
or

t m
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 in
fo

rm
 w

he
re

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

re
 b

es
t t

ar
ge

te
d 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 r

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
le

ve
ls

 o
f r

e-
of

fe
nd

in
g.

 
          

85



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
9 

3.
 

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 

 T
he

 Y
ou

th
 O

ffe
nd

in
g 

S
er

vi
ce

 h
as

 a
 c

om
pl

ex
 b

ud
ge

t 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

co
m

pr
is

in
g 

of
 p

ar
tn

er
 a

ge
nc

y 
ca

sh
, 

se
co

nd
ed

 s
ta

ff 
an

d 
in

 k
in

d 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

nd
 t

he
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

G
oo

d 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

G
ra

nt
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 Y
ou

th
 J

us
tic

e 
B

oa
rd

 f
or

 E
ng

la
nd

 a
nd

 W
al

es
. 

T
he

 t
ab

le
 b

el
ow

 
ou

tli
ne

s 
th

e 
ag

re
ed

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 fo

r 
20

14
/1

5.
  

 

In
 p

re
vi

ou
s 

ye
ar

s 
th

er
e 

w
as

 
an

 
in

 
ki

nd
 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

fr
om

 t
he

 P
ro

ba
tio

n 
S

er
vi

ce
 f

or
 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 u
np

ai
d 

w
or

k 
fo

r 
16

 a
nd

 1
7 

ye
ar

 o
ld

s.
 F

ro
m

 2
01

4/
15

 t
he

 r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 

fo
r 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 u
np

ai
d 

w
or

k 
fo

r 
yo

ut
h 

of
fe

nd
er

s 
tr

an
sf

er
s 

to
 

Y
O

T
s,

 
an

d 
th

e 
ac

tiv
ity

 fu
nd

ed
 v

ia
 a

 r
in

g 
fe

nc
ed

 g
ra

nt
 fr

om
 

th
e 

Y
JB

. 
A

t t
he

 ti
m

e 
of

 w
rit

in
g 

th
e 

pl
an

 th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f 
gr

an
t 

ha
d 

no
t 

be
en

 a
nn

ou
nc

ed
. 

In
 1

4/
15

 W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

O
S

 w
ill

 r
ec

ei
ve

 a
 

gr
an

t f
ro

m
 th

e 
Y

JB
 in

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 t

he
 G

oo
d 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
G

ra
nt

 
of

 
£3

2,
60

8 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

nt
in

ue
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 

re
st

or
at

iv
e 

ju
st

ic
e.

 

T
he

 Y
JB

 G
oo

d 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

G
ra

nt
 is

 to
 fu

nd
 d

ev
el

op
in

g 
go

od
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

an
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

us
ed

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 th

e 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

ou
tli

ne
d 

in
 s

ec
tio

n 
5 

an
d 

th
e 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 o

ut
lin

ed
 in

 s
ec

tio
n 

6 
of

 th
is

 p
la

n.
 T

he
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 fu

nd
in

g 
to

 e
ac

h 
pr

io
rit

y 
an

d 
to

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 w

ill
 b

e 
ou

tli
ne

d 
in

 a
 c

os
te

d 
pl

an
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 b
e 

su
bm

itt
ed

 to
 Y

JB
 a

lo
ng

 w
ith

 th
is

 p
la

n 
in

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

. 

 A
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

Y
O

S
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 e

st
ab

lis
hm

en
t 

of
 t

he
 W

es
t 

M
er

ci
a 

se
rv

ic
e 

a 
ta

rg
et

 w
as

 s
et

 o
f 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
an

 o
ve

ra
ll 

sa
vi

ng
 o

f 
20

%
, 

fr
om

 a
 2

01
1/

12
 b

as
el

in
e,

 b
y 

20
15

. T
he

 d
ra

ft 
bu

dg
et

 fo
r 

14
/1

5 
of

 £
3,

90
4,

90
9 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 a

 2
7%

 s
av

in
g 

fr
om

 th
e 

11
/1

2 
ba

se
lin

e.
 T

hi
s 

fig
ur

e 
in

cl
ud

es
 th

e 
Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

B
oa

rd
 G

ra
nt

. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
 

1  
W

he
re

 Y
O

T
s 

co
ve

r 
m

or
e 

th
an

 o
ne

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
ar

ea
 Y

JB
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

P
la

n 
gu

id
an

ce
 r

eq
ui

re
s 

th
e 

to
ta

lit
y 

of
 lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 to
 b

e 
de

sc
rib

ed
 a

s 
a 

si
ng

le
 fi

gu
re

. 
2  

N
ot

e:
 T

hi
s 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 fo

ur
 P

ro
ba

tio
n 

O
ffi

ce
rs

, h
ow

ev
er

 t
he

re
 a

re
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 o
nl

y 
tw

o 
P

ro
ba

tio
n 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 d
ep

lo
ye

d 
in

 t
he

 Y
O

S
 a

n
d 

ca
sh

 d
iff

er
en

ce
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 

th
e 

Y
O

S
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f 
th

e 
de

le
ga

te
d 

fu
nd

s 
an

d 
us

ed
 t

o 
di

re
ct

ly
 e

m
pl

oy
 t

w
o 

C
as

e 
M

an
ag

er
s.

 P
re

vi
ou

s 
pr

ac
tic

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 f

or
 t

he
 w

ho
le

 P
ro

ba
tio

n 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
to

 b
e 

tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

to
 

th
e 

Y
O

S
 a

nd
 th

en
 th

e 
Y

O
S

 r
e-

ch
ar

ge
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

sa
la

ry
, o

n 
co

st
s 

an
d 

ex
pe

ns
es

 fo
r 

th
e 

P
ro

ba
tio

n 
O

ffi
ce

rs
. 

A
g

en
cy

 
S

ta
ff

in
g

 c
o

st
s 

S
ec

o
n

d
ee

s 

(£
) 

P
ay

m
en

ts
 in

 
ki

n
d

 –
 r

ev
en

u
e 

(£
) 

O
th

er
 d

el
eg

at
ed

 
fu

n
d

s 
(£

) 
T

o
ta

l (
£)

 

L
o

ca
l A

u
th

o
ri

ti
es

1  
 

0 
68

,0
00

 
1,

42
6,

47
0 

1,
49

4,
47

0 

P
o

lic
e 

S
er

vi
ce

 
23

7,
89

2 
0 

63
,6

83
 

30
1,

57
5 

N
at

io
n

al
 

P
ro

b
at

io
n

 
S

er
vi

ce
 

16
8,

08
82  

0 
62

,0
43

 
23

0,
13

1 

H
ea

lt
h

 S
er

vi
ce

 
13

9,
70

5 
0 

39
,0

06
 

17
8,

71
1 

P
o

lic
e 

an
d

 
C

ri
m

e 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
er

 
0 

0 
17

3,
20

0 
17

3,
20

0 

Y
JB

 
G

o
o

d
 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
G

ra
n

t 
0 

0 
1,

52
6,

82
2 

1,
52

6,
82

2 

T
o

ta
l 

54
5,

68
5 

68
,0

00
 

3,
29

1,
22

4 
3,

90
4,

90
9 

86



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
10

 

4.
 

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E
, G

O
V

E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 A

N
D

 P
A

R
T

N
E

R
S

H
IP

S
 

 T
he

 W
es

t M
er

ci
a 

Y
ou

th
 O

ffe
nd

in
g 

S
er

vi
ce

 c
om

pr
is

es
 fi

ve
 m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 s

er
vi

ce
 d

el
iv

er
y 

te
am

s,
 a

lig
ne

d 
to

 th
e 

Lo
ca

l A
ut

ho
rit

y 
ar

ea
s 

(t
w

o 
te

am
s 

in
 W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

) 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 th
e 

m
aj

or
ity

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
s.

 T
he

se
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ar
e 

co
ur

t f
ac

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
of

 p
re

-s
en

te
nc

e 
re

po
rt

s 
an

d 
re

m
an

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
an

d 
ca

se
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
w

hi
ch

 in
cl

ud
es

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t, 

pl
an

ni
ng

 in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

, 
th

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
of

 r
is

k,
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

w
he

re
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 t
he

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t 
of

 c
ou

rt
 o

rd
er

s.
  

A
 c

en
tr

al
 

se
rv

ic
es

 t
ea

m
 s

up
po

rt
s 

th
e 

ar
ea

 t
ea

m
s 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
so

m
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 c
o-

or
di

na
te

d 
ac

ro
ss

 t
he

 w
ho

le
 s

er
vi

ce
 i

nc
lu

di
ng

 r
ep

ar
at

io
n 

an
d 

un
pa

id
 w

or
k,

 m
en

to
rin

g,
 a

nd
 t

he
 c

o-
or

di
na

tio
n 

of
 R

ef
er

ra
l 

O
rd

er
 w

or
k,

 i
nc

lu
di

ng
 t

he
 r

ec
ru

itm
en

t, 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
of

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 P
an

el
 M

em
be

rs
. A

 s
up

po
rt

 te
am

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
qu

al
ity

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
, c

om
m

is
si

on
in

g,
 d

at
a 

an
d 

fin
an

ce
 s

up
po

rt
 fu

nc
tio

ns
.  

 T
he

re
 a

re
 8

5 
fu

ll 
tim

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

 p
os

ts
 i

n 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

su
pp

or
t 

an
d 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

po
st

s.
 T

he
 a

re
a 

ba
se

d 
te

am
s 

in
cl

ud
e 

C
as

e 
M

an
ag

er
s,

 A
ss

is
ta

nt
 C

as
e 

M
an

ag
er

s,
 P

ro
ba

tio
n 

O
ffi

ce
rs

, 
H

ea
lth

 W
or

ke
rs

, 
P

ol
ic

e 
O

ffi
ce

rs
, 

IS
S

 W
or

ke
rs

, 
V

ic
tim

 L
ia

is
on

 
O

ffi
ce

rs
, S

ub
st

an
ce

 M
is

us
e 

W
or

ke
rs

, E
T

E
 W

or
ke

rs
 a

nd
 A

dm
in

is
tr

at
or

s.
 

 T
he

 Y
O

S
 is

 m
an

ag
ed

 o
n 

be
ha

lf 
of

 t
he

 L
oc

al
 A

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
th

e 
Y

O
S

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 b
y 

W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 C

ou
nt

y 
C

ou
nc

il.
 D

ay
 t

o 
da

y 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
of

 t
he

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 i
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

D
C

S
 o

f 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 C
ou

nt
y 

C
ou

nc
il.

 T
he

 Y
ou

th
 O

ffe
nd

in
g 

S
er

vi
ce

 i
s 

ac
co

un
ta

bl
e 

to
 th

e 
Y

O
S

 M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd

. T
he

 M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd

 c
om

pr
is

es
 r

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

es
 o

f t
he

 r
ig

ht
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 le
ve

l. 
 T

he
 B

oa
rd

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 c
ha

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f C
hi

ld
re

n 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 C
ou

nt
y 

C
ou

nc
il.

 
 T

he
 M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
of

 th
e 

B
oa

rd
 a

t 1
st
 A

pr
il 

20
14

 is
 o

ut
lin

ed
 in

 th
e 

ta
bl

e 
be

lo
w

: 
 A

g
en

cy
 

R
ep

re
se

n
ta

ti
ve

 
R

o
le

 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 C
ou

nt
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

G
ai

l Q
ui

nt
on

 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f C
hi

ld
re

n 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

S
hr

op
sh

ire
 C

ou
nc

il 
K

ar
en

 B
ra

ds
ha

w
 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f C

hi
ld

re
n 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
T

el
fo

rd
 a

nd
 W

re
ki

n 
C

ou
nc

il 
La

ur
a 

Jo
hn

st
on

 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
F

am
ily

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il 

Jo
 D

av
id

so
n 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f C

hi
ld

re
ns

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
 

W
es

t M
er

ci
a 

P
ro

ba
tio

n 
T

ru
st

 
D

av
id

 C
ha

nt
le

r 
C

hi
ef

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
W

es
t M

er
ci

a 
P

ol
ic

e 
G

ar
et

h 
M

or
ga

n 
A

ss
is

ta
nt

 C
hi

ef
 C

on
st

ab
le

 
Lo

ca
l A

re
a 

T
ea

m
 –

 N
H

S
 E

ng
la

nd
 

B
ec

ki
 H

ip
ki

ns
 

P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

 
O

ffi
ce

 fo
r 

th
e 

W
es

t M
er

ci
a 

P
ol

ic
e 

an
d 

C
rim

e 
C

om
m

is
si

on
er

 
A

nd
y 

C
ha

m
pn

es
s 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

 In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 th
e 

m
em

be
rs

 a
 Y

ou
th

 J
us

tic
e 

B
oa

rd
 r

eg
io

na
l r

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

e 
at

te
nd

s 
m

ee
tin

gs
 in

 a
n 

ad
vi

so
ry

 c
ap

ac
ity

  

87



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
11

 

 T
he

 B
oa

rd
 h

as
 a

do
pt

ed
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

pu
rp

os
e 

an
d 

un
de

rly
in

g 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

: 
 P

u
rp

o
se

 
 

· 
T

o 
fo

cu
s 

co
lla

bo
ra

tiv
e 

m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 e
ffo

rt
 o

n 
w

or
k 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
ou

tc
om

es
 fo

r 
Y

ou
ng

 O
ffe

nd
er

s 
by

 o
ffe

rin
g 

an
 e

xe
m

pl
ar

y 
se

rv
ic

e,
 w

ith
 ti

m
el

y 
in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 a

nd
 s

tr
on

g 
lin

ks
 a

nd
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 a

cr
os

s 
al

l l
oc

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
C

hi
ld

re
n'

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s,

 
cr

im
in

al
 ju

st
ic

e 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
af

et
y 

se
ct

or
s.

 
· 

T
o 

se
t s

tr
at

eg
ic

 d
ire

ct
io

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
Y

ou
th

 O
ffe

nd
in

g 
S

er
vi

ce
 a

cr
os

s 
W

es
t M

er
ci

a 
an

d 
ag

re
e 

an
d 

re
vi

ew
 lo

ca
l y

ou
th

 ju
st

ic
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
· 

T
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

su
pp

or
t a

nd
 c

ha
lle

ng
e 

to
 th

e 
W

es
t M

er
ci

a 
Y

O
S

 o
n 

op
er

at
io

na
l p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
. 

 
U

n
d

er
p

in
n

in
g

 P
ri

n
ci

p
le

s 
 

· 
T

o 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

le
ad

er
sh

ip
, s

up
po

rt
 a

nd
 c

ha
lle

ng
e 

to
 th

e 
W

es
t M

er
ci

a 
Y

O
S

. 
· 

T
o 

en
su

re
 th

at
 th

e 
Y

O
S

 is
 c

om
pl

ia
nt

 w
ith

 r
el

ev
an

t n
at

io
na

l s
ta

nd
ar

ds
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 Y
ou

th
 J

us
tic

e 
B

oa
rd

 a
n

d 
lo

ca
l a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

, 
an

d 
de

al
s 

w
ith

 e
xc

ep
tio

ns
/r

is
ks

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

ly
 

· 
T

o 
en

su
re

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

ar
e 

us
ed

 e
ffi

ci
en

tly
 to

 r
un

 a
n 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
Y

O
S

. 
· 

T
o 

en
su

re
 th

at
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

jo
in

tly
 a

nd
 s

in
gl

y 
m

an
ag

e 
th

e 
ag

re
em

en
t w

ith
 th

e 
ho

st
 a

ge
nc

y 
(W

M
P

T
).

  
· 

T
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

th
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 to
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
st

ee
r 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e
 

 In
 2

01
3/

14
 th

e 
B

oa
rd

 h
as

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

a 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

gr
ou

p 
to

 a
na

ly
se

 is
su

es
 r

el
at

in
g 

to
 L

oo
ke

d 
A

fte
r 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
C

ar
e 

Le
av

er
s 

w
ho

 
ar

e 
in

 th
e 

Y
ou

th
 J

us
tic

e 
S

ys
te

m
, t

he
 w

or
k 

of
 th

is
 g

ro
up

 w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 1

4/
15

 
 T

he
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
B

oa
rd

 w
ill

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

, 
w

he
re

 r
el

ev
an

t, 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
ac

ro
ss

 p
ar

tn
er

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
ta

ke
 a

cc
ou

nt
 o

f 
th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 in
 o

r 
at

 r
is

k 
of

 e
nt

er
in

g 
th

e 
yo

ut
h 

ju
st

ic
e 

sy
st

em
, a

nd
 w

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 e
xp

lo
re

 jo
in

t c
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

.  
     

88



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
12

 

P
ri

o
ri

ti
es

 f
o

r 
20

14
/1

5 
 T

he
 M

an
ag

em
en

t B
oa

rd
 h

av
e 

ag
re

ed
 fi

ve
 m

ai
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
w

ith
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 k

ey
 a

re
as

 o
f f

oc
us

 fo
r 

ea
ch

 o
f t

he
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

fo
r 

20
14

/1
5.

 
 T

he
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

ke
y 

ar
ea

s 
of

 fo
cu

s 
ar

e 
ou

tli
ne

d 
in

 th
e 

ta
bl

e 
be

lo
w

 a
nd

 o
ut

lin
ed

 in
 m

or
e 

de
ta

il 
in

 s
ec

tio
n 

5 
of

 th
is

 p
la

n.
 

 
S

er
vi

ce
 P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
K

ey
 A

re
as

 o
f 

F
o

cu
s 

fo
r 

20
14

/1
5 

    1.
 R

ed
u

ce
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 P
ro

te
ct

 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

fr
o

m
 H

ar
m

 

 1a
. R

ed
uc

in
g 

re
-o

ffe
nd

in
g 

1a
(i

) 
A

P
IS

 
1a

(i
i)

 M
an

ag
em

en
t o

f R
is

k 
1a

(i
ii)

 S
ex

ua
lly

 H
ar

m
fu

l B
eh

av
io

ur
 

1b
.L

A
C

 a
nd

 C
ar

e 
Le

av
er

s 
 1c

. D
iv

er
si

on
 

1c
(i

) 
O

ut
 o

f C
ou

rt
 D

is
po

sa
ls

 
1c

(i
i)

 F
irs

t T
im

e 
E

nt
ra

nt
s 

1c
(i

ii)
 C

us
to

dy
 a

nd
 IS

S
 

1d
. R

es
to

ra
tiv

e 
P

ro
ce

ss
 

1d
 (

i)
 R

ep
ar

at
io

n 
1d

(i
i)

 E
m

be
dd

in
g 

R
J 

1e
. S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

2.
 E

n
ab

lin
g

 S
ta

ff
 t

o
 D

el
iv

er
 N

o
w

 a
n

d
 in

to
 t

h
e 

fu
tu

re
 

2a
. T

ra
in

in
g 

an
d 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
2b

. C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

an
d 

E
ng

ag
em

en
t 

2c
. M

an
ag

em
en

t O
ve

rs
ig

ht
 

   3.
 F

in
is

h
 t

h
e 

Jo
b

 

  3a
. F

it 
fo

r 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

 

3a
(i

) 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f U
np

ai
d 

W
or

k 
3a

(i
i)

 T
ra

ns
iti

on
 to

 A
du

lth
oo

d 
3a

(i
ii)

 C
on

si
st

en
cy

 in
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

3a
(i

v)
 A

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

20
15

 
 3b

. I
C

T
 

3b
(i

) 
Im

pl
em

en
t s

in
gl

e 
IC

T
 s

ys
te

m
 

3b
(i

i)
 U

pg
ra

de
 C

as
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ys
te

m
 

3c
. A

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
 

 4.
 G

et
 C

o
n

n
ec

te
d

, S
ta

y 
C

o
n

n
ec

te
d

 
4a

. P
at

hw
ay

s 
an

d 
P

ro
to

co
ls

 
4a

(i
) 

A
cc

es
s 

to
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

4a
(i

i)
 S

M
, E

T
E

 a
nd

 P
ar

en
tin

g 
4b

. H
ow

 w
e 

be
co

m
e 

m
or

e 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 
  5.

 K
n

o
w

 t
h

e 
R

ig
h

t 
T

h
in

g
 

5a
. Q

A
 a

nd
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

5a
(i

) 
O

ut
co

m
es

 
5a

(i
i)

 R
e-

of
fe

nd
in

g 
A

na
ly

si
s 

5b
. V

oi
ce

 o
f t

he
 C

hi
ld

 
5c

. P
ol

ic
ie

s 
an

d 
P

ro
ce

du
re

s 

89



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
13

 

  P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
 T

he
 Y

ou
th

 O
ffe

nd
in

g 
S

er
vi

ce
 o

nl
y 

ha
s 

on
e 

ou
ts

ou
rc

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
, 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 A
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 A
du

lts
 f

or
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

in
 P

ol
ic

e 
cu

st
od

y.
 T

he
 s

er
vi

ce
 is

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 a
 lo

ca
l v

ol
un

ta
ry

 s
ec

to
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

Y
S

S
. D

ue
 to

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
co

nt
ra

ct
in

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 w

ith
 Y

S
S

, 
th

e 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
cu

rr
en

tly
 s

ec
on

ds
 5

 s
ta

ff 
in

to
 W

es
t 

M
er

ci
a 

Y
O

S
 w

ho
 a

re
 d

ep
lo

ye
d 

in
 t

he
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 I

S
S

, 
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

as
si

st
an

t 
ca

se
 m

an
ag

er
 r

ol
es

. 
 T

he
 Y

O
S

 is
 a

 m
em

be
r 

of
 t

he
 f

ou
r 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

B
oa

rd
s 

an
d 

th
e 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

T
ru

st
s 

or
 e

qu
iv

al
en

t 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps
. 

T
he

 Y
O

S
 is

 
re

pr
es

en
te

d 
on

 t
he

 C
rim

e 
an

d 
D

is
or

de
r 

re
du

ct
io

n 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

ps
 a

t 
th

e 
un

ita
ry

 o
r 

to
p 

tie
r 

au
th

or
ity

 l
ev

el
. 

T
he

 Y
O

S
 i

s 
an

 a
ct

iv
e 

m
em

be
r 

of
 th

e 
W

es
t M

er
ci

a 
C

rim
in

al
 J

us
tic

e 
B

oa
rd

. 
 T

he
 Y

O
S

 i
s 

co
nt

rib
ut

in
g 

to
 t

he
 T

ro
ub

le
d 

F
am

ili
es

 p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

4 
ar

ea
s 

an
d 

is
 r

ep
re

se
nt

ed
 a

t 
tw

o 
of

 t
he

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 g
ro

up
s.

 
 In

 s
et

tin
g 

th
e 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
fo

r 
14

/1
5 

th
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd

 h
as

 e
ns

ur
ed

 th
at

 th
es

e 
su

pp
or

t t
hr

ee
 o

f t
he

 fo
ur

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 a

im
s 

of
 t

he
 W

es
t 

M
er

ci
a 

P
ol

ic
e 

an
d 

C
rim

e 
P

la
n.

  
T

he
 Y

O
S

 w
ill

 d
ire

ct
ly

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
e 

to
 o

bj
ec

tiv
e 

5 
of

 th
e 

P
ol

ic
e 

an
d 

C
rim

e 
P

la
n,

 to
 r

ed
uc

e 
re

-o
ffe

nd
in

g 
an

d 
br

in
g 

of
fe

nd
er

s 
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

, 
un

de
r 

w
hi

ch
 t

w
o 

of
 t

he
 s

uc
ce

ss
 m

ea
su

re
s 

ar
e 

th
e 

Y
O

S
 F

irs
t 

T
im

e 
E

nt
ra

nt
 a

nd
 R

e
-o

ffe
nd

in
g 

In
di

ca
to

rs
. 

            

90



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
14

 

5.
 

P
R

IO
R

IT
IE

S
 F

O
R

 2
01

4/
15

 
 1 

R
ed

u
ce

 Y
o

u
th

 O
ff

en
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 P

ro
te

ct
in

g
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

fr
o

m
 H

ar
m

 
 T

he
 Y

O
S

 is
 c

om
m

itt
ed

 t
o 

en
su

rin
g 

th
at

 t
he

 r
is

ks
 p

os
ed

 b
y 

an
d 

to
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

in
 t

he
 y

ou
th

 ju
st

ic
e 

sy
st

em
 a

re
 m

in
im

is
ed

 t
hr

ou
g

h 
ro

bu
st

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 r

is
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

K
ey

 a
re

as
 o

f f
oc

us
 u

nd
er

 th
is

 p
rio

rit
y 

fo
r 

20
14

/1
5 

ar
e 

re
du

ci
ng

 r
e-

of
fe

nd
in

g,
 lo

ok
ed

 a
fte

r 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
ca

re
 le

av
er

s,
 d

iv
er

si
on

 a
nd

 r
es

to
ra

tiv
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

es
 a

nd
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

 1a
 

R
ed

uc
in

g 
R

e-
of

fe
nd

in
g 

 T
he

 r
e-

of
fe

nd
in

g 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 is

 w
or

se
ni

ng
, h

ow
ev

er
 th

e 
nu

m
be

rs
 in

 th
e 

co
ho

rt
 h

av
e 

be
en

 fa
lli

ng
 s

o 
th

er
e 

a
re

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 le
ss

 r
e-

of
fe

nc
es

. I
n 

14
/1

4 
th

e 
Y

O
S

 w
ill

 c
on

ce
nt

ra
te

 o
n 

th
re

e 
ar

ea
s,

 th
os

e 
of

;  
  

1a
(i)

  
A

ss
es

sm
en

t a
nd

 P
la

nn
in

g 
– 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f a

ss
es

sm
en

t a
nd

 in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 p
la

nn
in

g 
fo

r 
th

e 
 

 
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 A
ss

et
P

lu
s,

 th
e 

ne
w

 n
at

io
na

l a
ss

es
sm

en
t t

oo
l f

or
 y

ou
th

 o
ffe

nd
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

 
1a

(ii
) 

M
an

ag
em

en
t o

f R
is

k 
– 

R
ev

ie
w

in
g 

an
d 

re
vi

si
ng

 th
e 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 D

Y
O

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
ar

ea
. 

 
1a

(ii
i) 

S
ex

ua
lly

 H
ar

m
fu

l B
eh

av
io

ur
 –

 F
ur

th
er

 im
pl

em
en

t a
nd

 e
m

be
d 

th
e 

A
IM

2 
as

se
ss

m
en

t a
nd

 in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

w
or

k 
fo

r 
yo

un
g 

 
 

pe
op

le
 d

em
on

st
ra

tin
g 

se
xu

al
ly

 h
ar

m
fu

l b
eh

av
io

ur
 

 1b
 

Lo
ok

ed
 a

fte
r 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
C

ar
e 

Le
av

er
s 

 Lo
ok

ed
 a

fte
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

(L
A

C
) 

an
d 

ca
re

 le
av

er
s 

w
ho

 a
re

 in
 t

he
 y

ou
th

 ju
st

ic
e 

sy
st

em
 h

av
e 

be
en

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
as

 a
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
su

bs
et

 o
f b

ot
h 

th
e 

LA
C

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

an
d 

th
e 

yo
ut

h 
of

fe
nd

in
g 

po
pu

la
tio

n.
 L

A
C

 fo
rm

 a
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t p
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 y

ou
ng

  
pe

op
le

 o
n 

Y
O

S
 

ca
se

 lo
ad

s 
ac

ro
ss

 t
he

 W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
ar

ea
 t

ea
m

s.
 T

he
re

 is
 a

ls
o 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 p
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 L

A
C

 f
ro

m
 o

th
er

 L
oc

al
 A

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
w

ho
 a

re
 

te
m

po
ra

ril
y 

pl
ac

ed
 in

 S
hr

op
sh

ire
 a

nd
 in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 a

nd
 m

an
ag

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Y

O
S

. A
n 

op
er

at
io

na
l r

ef
er

en
ce

 g
ro

up
, a

s 
a 

su
b

-g
ro

up
 o

f 
th

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
B

oa
rd

, 
w

as
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
in

 1
3/

14
, 

co
m

pr
is

in
g 

of
 r

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

es
 o

f 
th

e 
so

ci
al

 c
ar

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 t

he
 Y

O
S

 t
o 

an
al

ys
e 

th
e 

jo
in

t i
ss

ue
s 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
p 

jo
in

t w
or

ki
ng

 in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 L

A
C

 a
nd

 c
ar

e 
le

av
er

s.
 T

he
 g

ro
up

 w
ill

 r
ef

re
sh

 th
ei

r 
w

or
k 

pl
an

, w
hi

ch
 

w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e 

pu
tti

ng
 in

 p
la

ce
 jo

in
t p

ro
to

co
ls

 b
et

w
ee

n 
Y

O
S

 a
nd

 S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

an
d 

es
ta

bl
is

hi
ng

 a
n 

ar
ea

 w
id

e 
pr

ot
oc

ol
 to

 r
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

ne
ed

 
to

 c
rim

in
al

is
e 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 in
 th

e 
lo

ok
ed

 a
fte

r 
sy

st
em

. 
   

91



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
15

 

1c
 

D
iv

er
si

on
 

  
1c

(i)
 

T
he

 n
ew

 o
ut

 o
f c

ou
rt

 d
is

po
sa

l f
ra

m
ew

or
k 

ha
s 

be
en

 in
 o

pe
ra

tio
n 

fo
r 

a 
ye

ar
. A

 p
rio

rit
y 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
in

g 
th

e 
cu

rr
en

t  
 

 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
jo

in
t d

ec
is

io
n 

m
ak

in
g 

an
d 

fu
rt

he
r 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 t

he
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 f

or
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

su
bj

ec
t 

 
 

to
 c

au
tio

ns
.  

 
1c

(ii
) 

D
iv

er
si

on
 fr

om
 th

e 
yo

ut
h 

ju
st

ic
e 

sy
st

em
 th

ro
ug

h 
ta

rg
et

ed
 in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

es
 to

 r
ed

uc
in

g 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 fi
rs

t t
im

e 
 

 
en

tr
an

ts
 t

o 
th

e 
yo

ut
h 

ju
st

ic
e 

sy
st

em
. W

ith
 t

ar
ge

te
d 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
w

or
k 

 m
ov

ed
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 Y
O

S
 a

nd
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 e
ar

ly
 h

el
p 

 
 

se
rv

ic
es

, t
he

 Y
O

S
 w

ill
 c

on
ve

ne
 a

 g
ro

up
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
os

e 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 o

n 
th

e 
ed

ge
 o

f t
he

 y
ou

th
 ju

st
ic

e 
sy

st
em

  
 

 
an

d 
ar

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
ta

rg
et

ed
 fo

r 
he

lp
.  

 
1c

(ii
i) 

R
ed

uc
in

g 
cu

st
od

y 
is

 a
no

th
er

 a
re

a 
of

 fo
cu

s 
an

d 
in

 2
01

4/
15

 th
e 

Y
O

S
 w

ill
 c

on
ce

nt
ra

te
 o

n 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 r
ob

us
t a

lte
rn

at
iv

es
 

 
 

to
 s

ec
ur

e 
re

m
an

ds
, e

st
ab

lis
hi

ng
 a

 c
on

si
st

en
t I

S
S

 o
ffe

r 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

ar
ea

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

re
se

ttl
em

en
t s

up
po

rt
. 

 1d
 

R
es

to
ra

tiv
e 

A
pp

ro
ac

he
s 

 T
he

 Y
O

S
 h

as
 g

oo
d 

re
pa

ra
tio

n 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 v

ic
tim

 li
ai

so
n 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

. D
es

pi
te

 th
is

 th
e 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 v
ic

tim
s 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
in

g 
in

 d
ire

ct
 

re
st

or
at

iv
e 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
re

m
ai

ns
 l

ow
. 

In
 1

4/
15

 t
he

 Y
O

S
 w

ill
 c

om
pl

et
e 

th
e 

R
J 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

th
at

 c
om

m
en

ce
d 

in
 1

3/
14

 a
nd

 
en

su
re

 th
at

 r
es

to
ra

tiv
e 

pr
ac

tic
es

 b
ec

om
e 

em
be

dd
ed

 in
 th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 th

e 
Y

O
S

 
 1e

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

 In
 1

4/
15

 t
he

 Y
O

S
 w

ill
 i

m
pl

em
en

t 
a 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 t

o 
en

su
re

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
Y

O
S

 i
s 

fu
lly

 c
om

pl
ia

nt
 w

ith
 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

un
de

r 
se

ct
io

n 
11

 o
f t

he
 C

hi
ld

re
n 

A
ct

.  
 

 
2.

 
E

n
ab

lin
g

 s
ta

ff
 t

o
 d

el
iv

er
 n

o
w

 a
n

d
 in

to
 t

h
e 

fu
tu

re
 

 T
hi

s 
pr

io
rit

y 
is

 c
on

ce
rn

ed
 w

ith
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 s
ta

ff 
ha

ve
 t

he
 r

ig
ht

 t
ra

in
in

g,
 k

no
w

le
dg

e 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

se
rv

ic
es

 f
or

 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
. K

ey
 a

re
as

 fo
r 

fo
cu

s 
fo

r 
14

/1
5 

ar
e 

tr
ai

ni
ng

, c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

an
d 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t a

nd
 m

an
ag

em
en

t o
ve

rs
ig

ht
. 

 2a
 

T
ra

in
in

g 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d 

P
la

n 
 In

 1
3/

14
 t

w
o 

su
rv

ey
s 

w
er

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 in
 t

he
 Y

O
S

, 
on

e 
on

 g
en

er
al

 t
ra

in
in

g 
ne

ed
s 

an
d 

th
e 

se
co

nd
 o

n 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 t

ra
in

in
g 

ne
ed

s.
 

T
he

se
 s

ur
ve

ys
 a

re
 in

fo
rm

in
g 

th
e 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 p
la

n 
fo

r 
14

/1
5.

  

92



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
16

 

 2b
 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

an
d 

E
ng

ag
em

en
t 

 S
ta

ff 
ha

ve
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

at
 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

w
ith

in
 

th
e 

Y
O

S
 

co
ul

d 
be

 
im

pr
ov

ed
. 

In
 

14
/1

5 
it 

is
 

in
te

nd
ed

 
to

 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

a 
st

af
f 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 g
ro

up
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 o
ve

rs
ee

 a
 Y

O
S

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

st
ra

te
gy

 a
nd

 p
la

n.
 

 2c
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t O

ve
rs

ig
ht

 
 In

 t
he

 la
tte

r 
pa

rt
 o

f 
13

/1
4 

it 
ha

s 
be

en
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
at

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

ov
er

si
gh

t 
is

 in
co

ns
is

te
nt

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e.

 I
n 

14
/1

5 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
w

ill
 f

ur
th

er
 d

ef
in

e 
th

os
e 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 w
he

re
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ov

er
si

gh
t 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d,

 a
nd

 h
ow

 t
ha

t 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ov

er
si

gh
t 

is
 a

ch
ie

ve
d,

 
en

su
rin

g 
th

is
 is

 c
on

si
st

en
t a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e.
 T

hi
s 

in
cl

ud
es

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 th

e 
ne

w
 s

er
vi

ce
 s

up
er

vi
si

on
 is

 im
pl

em
en

te
d.

 
 3 

F
in

is
h

in
g

 t
h

e 
Jo

b
 

 A
lth

ou
gh

 W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

O
S

 w
as

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

on
 1

st
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
2,

 a
t 

1st
 A

pr
il 

20
14

 t
he

 Y
O

S
 is

 im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

th
e 

se
co

nd
 p

ha
se

 o
f 

th
e 

re
st

ru
ct

ur
in

g 
of

 y
ou

th
 ju

st
ic

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

cr
os

s 
W

es
t M

er
ci

a 
 3a

 
F

it 
fo

r 
P

ur
po

se
 

 T
he

 Y
O

S
 fo

ur
 m

ai
n 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
un

de
r 

th
is

 k
ey

 a
re

a 
of

 fo
cu

s 
ar

e;
  

  
3a

(i)
  

U
np

ai
d 

W
or

k 
- 

 T
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f a

n 
un

pa
id

 w
or

k 
sc

he
m

e 
fo

r 
w

he
n 

th
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r 
th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 u
np

ai
d 

w
or

k 
 

 
fo

r 
16

 a
nd

 1
7 

ye
ar

 o
ld

s 
tr

an
sf

er
s 

fr
om

 p
ro

vi
de

r 
of

 p
ro

ba
tio

n 
se

rv
ic

es
 to

 Y
O

T
s 

in
 J

un
e 

20
14

.  
 

3a
(ii

) 
T

ra
ns

iti
on

 to
 a

du
lth

oo
d 

- 
T

he
 Y

O
S

 w
ill

 s
ee

k 
to

 c
on

tin
ue

 th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 p

la
nn

ed
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 th
e 

P
ro

ba
tio

n 
T

ru
st

, w
ith

 th
e 

 
 

ne
w

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
 o

f p
ro

ba
tio

n 
se

rv
ic

es
.  

 
3a

(ii
i) 

E
ns

ur
in

g 
co

ns
is

te
nc

y 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

- 
 T

he
re

 a
re

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 q

ua
lit

y 
di

ffe
re

nc
es

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
ar

ea
 

 
 

te
am

s,
 a

nd
 Y

O
S

 in
te

nd
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ll 
te

am
s 

ar
e 

op
er

at
in

g 
to

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
hi

gh
 s

ta
nd

ar
d.

  
 

3a
(iv

) 
S

er
vi

ce
 r

ev
ie

w
 -

 R
ev

ie
w

in
g 

th
e 

lo
ng

er
 te

rm
 s

er
vi

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 d
el

iv
er

y 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
1st

 A
pr

il 
20

15
  

 
 

on
w

ar
ds

 
   

93



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
17

 

3b
 

IC
T

 
 T

he
re

 a
re

 tw
o 

m
ai

n 
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g 
ar

ea
s 

of
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

un
de

r 
th

is
 a

re
a 

of
 fo

cu
s 

to
 b

e 
pr

og
re

ss
ed

 in
 1

4/
15

; 
  

3b
(i)

 
S

in
gl

e 
IC

T
 s

ys
te

m
 –

 Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 a
 s

in
gl

e 
IC

T
 s

ys
te

m
 fo

r W
es

t M
er

ci
a 

Y
O

S
.  

 
3b

(ii
) 

Im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

C
hi

ld
V

ie
w

 -
 M

er
gi

ng
 th

e 
tw

o 
ca

se
 m

an
ag

em
en

t s
ys

te
m

 d
at

a 
se

ts
 a

nd
 u

pg
ra

di
ng

 th
e 

ca
se

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

 
 

sy
st

em
. 

 3c
 

A
cc

om
m

od
at

io
n 

 
 

In
 2

01
3/

14
 t

he
 n

ew
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 w

er
e 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

T
el

fo
rd

 a
nd

 W
re

ki
n 

an
d 

S
hr

op
sh

ire
 T

ea
m

s.
 I

n 
14

/1
5 

it 
is

 th
e 

in
te

nt
io

n 
to

 r
el

oc
at

e 
th

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 T
ea

m
 a

nd
 c

o-
lo

ca
te

 th
e 

tw
o 

W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 T

ea
m

s.
 

 4.
 

G
et

 C
o

n
n

ec
te

d
, S

ta
y 

C
o

n
n

ec
te

d
 

O
ne

 o
f 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
is

 t
o 

pr
om

ot
e 

be
tte

r 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 w
or

ki
ng

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
 Y

O
S

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

fa
m

ily
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

w
ith

 
th

e 
sh

ar
ed

 a
im

 o
f i

m
pr

ov
in

g 
ou

tc
om

es
 fo

r 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 in

 th
e 

yo
ut

h 
ju

st
ic

e 
sy

st
em

. 
K

ey
 a

re
as

 o
f f

oc
us

 fo
r 

th
is

 p
rio

rit
y 

in
 1

4/
15

 a
re

 
pa

th
w

ay
s 

an
d 

pr
ot

oc
ol

s 
an

d 
ho

w
 th

e 
Y

O
S

 b
ec

om
es

 m
or

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
. 

4a
 

P
at

hw
ay

s 
an

d 
P

ro
to

co
ls

 

 
4a

(i)
 

P
ro

to
co

ls
 -

 In
 1

4/
15

 th
e 

Y
O

S
 w

ill
 c

on
tin

ue
 th

e 
w

or
k 

to
 d

ef
in

e 
 p

at
hw

ay
s 

fo
r 

 yo
un

g 
of

fe
nd

er
s 

in
to

 t
ar

ge
te

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 s

o 
 

 
th

ey
 to

 o
bt

ai
n 

tim
el

y 
an

d 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
w

ith
 k

ey
 a

ge
nc

ie
s.

 T
he

se
 p

at
hw

ay
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

un
de

rp
in

ne
d 

by
 jo

in
t  

 
 

pr
ot

oc
ol

s.
 

4a
(ii

) 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
- 

T
he

 c
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

pr
oc

es
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 fo

r 
E

T
E

, P
ar

en
tin

g 
an

d 
S

ub
st

an
ce

 M
is

us
e 

w
or

k 

4b
 

H
ow

 w
e 

be
co

m
e 

m
or

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 

P
ro

m
ot

in
g 

gr
ea

te
r 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 a

nd
 jo

in
t w

or
ki

ng
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

Y
O

S
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
is

 a
 k

ey
 a

re
a 

of
 fo

cu
s.

 In
iti

al
ly

 in
 1

4/
15

 th
is

 w
ill

 
be

 fo
cu

se
d,

 in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

, o
n 

th
e 

w
or

k 
to

 b
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 o

n 
jo

in
t i

ss
ue

s 
w

ith
 L

A
C

 a
nd

 c
ar

e 
le

av
er

s,
 in

  
en

su
rin

g 
lin

ka
ge

s 
w

ith
 

th
e 

T
ro

ub
le

d 
F

am
ili

es
 a

nd
 E

ar
ly

 H
el

p 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 a

nd
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ex

ch
an

ge
 w

ith
 th

e 
so

ci
al

 c
ar

e 
se

rv
ic

es
.  

94



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
18

 

 
 

5.
 

K
n

o
w

 t
h

e 
R

ig
h

t 
T

h
in

g
 

 K
no

w
in

g 
th

e 
rig

ht
 t

hi
ng

 is
 a

bo
ut

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 t

he
 Y

O
S

, 
th

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
B

oa
rd

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 a

ge
nc

ie
s 

ha
ve

 t
he

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

ou
tc

om
es

 f
or

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 i

n 
th

e 
yo

ut
h 

ju
st

ic
e 

sy
st

em
 a

nd
 t

ho
se

 a
s 

ris
k 

of
 

en
te

rin
g 

th
e 

yo
ut

h 
ju

st
ic

e 
sy

st
em

. 
 5a

 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 Q

ua
lit

y 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

  
 T

he
 s

er
vi

ce
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 a
nd

 a
gr

ee
d 

a 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 a

nd
 Q

A
 f

ra
m

ew
or

k 
in

 1
3/

14
, b

ut
 h

as
 w

or
k 

to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

in
 te

rm
s 

of
 i

m
pl

em
en

tin
g 

an
d 

em
be

dd
in

g 
th

e 
fr

am
ew

or
ks

, d
ev

el
op

in
g 

so
m

e 
of

 th
e 

qu
al

ity
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 to
ol

s 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 th
e 

qu
al

ity
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 r
ol

e 
of

 n
ew

ly
 

re
cr

ui
te

d 
A

dv
an

ce
 C

as
e 

M
an

ag
er

 te
am

. T
w

o 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 a
re

as
 o

f f
oc

us
 fo

r 
14

/1
5 

ar
e;

 
  

5a
(i)

 
O

ut
co

m
es

 –
 In

fo
rm

in
g 

a 
se

rv
ic

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t p
la

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
un

de
rt

ak
in

g 
a 

m
oc

k 
in

sp
ec

tio
n,

 a
 N

at
io

na
l S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
ud

it 
 

 
an

d 
 s

el
f a

ss
es

sm
en

t o
f k

ey
 a

re
as

 o
f w

or
k.

 
 

5a
(ii

) 
R

e-
O

ffe
nd

in
g 

– 
C

on
tin

ua
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f t

he
 r

e-
of

fe
nd

in
g 

co
ho

rt
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

w
he

re
 a

nd
 h

ow
  

 
 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
ar

e 
be

st
 ta

rg
et

ed
. 

 5b
 

V
oi

ce
 o

f t
he

 C
hi

ld
 

 A
 k

ey
 a

re
a 

of
 fo

cu
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

th
e 

vo
ic

e 
of

 c
hi

ld
, e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 s
er

vi
ce

 u
se

rs
 a

re
 in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 th
ei

r 
as

se
ss

m
en

t a
nd

 p
la

nn
in

g 
pr

o
ce

ss
es

, 
in

 e
va

lu
at

io
n 

an
d 

in
 h

el
pi

ng
 t

o 
in

fo
rm

 s
er

vi
ce

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
V

ie
w

po
in

t f
ee

db
ac

k 
pr

oc
es

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
In

sp
ec

to
ra

te
 

w
ill

 fo
rm

 p
ar

t o
f w

or
k 

un
de

r 
th

is
 k

ey
 a

re
a 

of
 fo

cu
s.

 
 5c

 
P

ut
tin

g 
th

e 
rig

ht
 p

ol
ic

ie
s,

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

an
d 

gu
id

an
ce

 in
 p

la
ce

 
 In

 1
3/

14
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 c
as

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
gu

id
an

ce
 i

nc
lu

di
ng

 a
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
of

 r
is

k 
p

ol
ic

y 
w

as
 p

ut
 i

n 
pl

ac
e 

as
 w

el
l 

as
 a

 
sa

fe
gu

ar
di

ng
 p

ol
ic

y,
 a

lle
ga

tio
ns

 a
ga

in
st

 s
ta

ff 
po

lic
y,

 o
ut

 o
f c

ou
rt

 d
is

po
sa

l g
ui

da
nc

e 
an

d 
su

pe
rv

is
io

n 
po

lic
y.

 In
 1

4/
15

 fu
rt

he
r 

gu
id

an
ce

 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d,

 in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

on
 r

ec
or

di
ng

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

as
 a

 p
rio

rit
y.

 
   

95



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
19

 

6.
 

R
IS

K
S

 T
O

 F
U

T
U

R
E

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y
 –

 T
H

E
 A

C
T

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

 
 

R
is

k 
to

 F
u

tu
re

 D
el

iv
er

y 
A

ct
io

n
 

K
ey

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
an

d
 A

re
a 

o
f 

F
o

cu
s 

O
w

n
er

 
T

im
es

ca
le

 
(b

y 
en

d
 o

f 
q

u
ar

te
r)

 

In
te

rv
en

tio
n 

pl
an

s 
no

t 
su

ffi
ci

en
tly

 a
dd

re
ss

in
g 

as
se

ss
ed

 
ris

ks
 le

ad
in

g 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
ris

k 
of

 
re

-o
ffe

nd
in

g 

R
ev

ie
w

 c
ur

re
nt

 u
se

 o
f i

nt
er

ve
nt

io
n 

an
d 

ris
k 

pl
an

s,
 e

va
lu

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 to

 a
 s

in
gl

e 
pl

an
 

1a
(i)

 
T

M
T

 
Q

2 

D
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

t Q
A

 to
ol

 a
nd

 p
ro

ce
ss

 fo
r 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
1a

(i)
 

C
P

M
 

Q
2 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 A
ss

et
 P

lu
s 

– 
P

re
pa

re
 s

er
vi

ce
 fo

r 
A

ss
et

 P
lu

s 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

1a
(i)

 
T

M
T

 
Q

2 
–Q

4 
R

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 r

ev
is

e 
gu

id
an

ce
 r

eg
ar

di
ng

 in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

an
d 

ris
k 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
1a

(i)
 

T
M

T
 

Q
3 

G
ap

 in
 k

no
w

le
dg

e 
in

 w
ha

t 
pr

om
ot

es
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
le

ad
in

g 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
le

ve
ls

 o
f b

re
ac

h 

R
ec

or
di

ng
 o

f o
ut

co
m

es
 to

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 r

ec
or

di
ng

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
1a

(i)
 

C
P

M
 

Q
2 

U
se

 a
na

ly
si

s 
of

 b
re

ac
h 

st
at

is
tic

s 
to

 in
fo

rm
 w

he
th

er
 to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

pa
ne

l 
1a

(i)
 

C
P

M
/ 

T
M

T
 

Q
3 

In
co

ns
is

te
nt

 r
is

k 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 r
ev

is
e 

ke
y 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
es

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

ns
is

te
nc

y 
– 

C
as

e 
P

la
nn

in
g 

F
or

um
s 

an
d 

D
Y

O
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 a
nd

 p
ap

er
w

or
k 

1a
(ii

) 
T

M
T

/ 
T

M
H

 
Q

2 

R
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

ro
le

 o
f Y

O
S

 w
ith

in
 IO

M
  

1a
(ii

) 
C

P
M

 
Q

2 
T

he
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 in

  a
ss

es
sm

en
t a

nd
 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

fo
r 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 
en

ga
ge

d 
in

 s
ex

ua
l h

ar
m

fu
l 

be
ha

vi
ou

r 
(S

H
B

) 
no

t e
m

be
dd

ed
 

in
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f l

ea
rn

in
g 

ci
rc

le
s 

an
d 

bu
dd

y 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
st

af
f e

ng
ag

ed
 in

 
S

H
B

 w
or

k 
1a

(ii
i) 

T
M

H
 

Q
1 

La
un

ch
 S

H
B

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 v

ia
 w

or
ks

ho
p 

1a
(ii

i) 
T

M
H

/ 
T

M
W

N
 

Q
2 

D
is

pr
op

or
tio

na
te

 c
rim

in
al

is
at

io
n 

of
 L

A
C

 a
ffe

ct
in

g 
F

T
E

 a
nd

 r
e -

of
fe

nd
in

g 
ra

te
s 

A
gr

ee
m

en
t o

f m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 p
ro

to
co

l t
o 

re
du

ce
 c

rim
in

al
is

at
io

n 
of

 L
A

C
 

1b
 

T
M

S
 

Q
3 

La
ck

 o
f c

oh
er

en
t r

em
an

d 
st

ra
te

gy
 r

is
ks

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 r
em

an
ds

 to
 c

us
to

dy
  

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f a

 r
em

an
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t s

tr
at

eg
y 

1b
 

C
P

M
 

Q
2 

In
co

ns
is

te
nt

 d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ak
in

g 
ac

ro
ss

 W
es

t M
er

ci
a 

in
 r

es
pe

ct
 

to
 o

ut
 o

f c
ou

rt
 d

is
po

sa
ls

 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
jo

in
t Y

O
S

/P
ol

ic
e 

ou
t o

f c
ou

rt
 d

is
po

sa
l p

ro
to

co
l  

1c
(i)

 
T

M
W

S
 

Q
3 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
ut

 o
f c

ou
rt

 jo
in

t d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ak
in

g 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

1c
(i)

 
T

M
W

S
 

Q
3 

Y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
at

 r
is

k 
of

 e
nt

er
in

g 
th

e 
Y

JS
 n

ot
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
ta

rg
et

ed
 

fo
r 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
th

e 
O

P
C

C
 T

as
k 

an
d 

F
in

is
h 

gr
ou

p 
to

 m
on

ito
r 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
w

or
k 

    

1c
(ii

) 
H

O
S

 
Q

1 

96



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
20

 

R
is

k 
to

 F
u

tu
re

 D
el

iv
er

y 
A

ct
io

n
 

K
ey

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
an

d
 A

re
a 

o
f 

F
o

cu
s 

O
w

n
er

 
T

im
es

ca
le

 
(b

y 
en

d
 o

f 
q

u
ar

te
r)

 

In
su

ffi
ci

en
t u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 o
f 

re
as

on
s 

fo
r 

di
ffe

re
nt

ia
l F

T
E

 
ra

te
s 

an
d 

ne
w

 P
ol

ic
e 

C
R

 p
ol

ic
y 

le
ad

in
g 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

F
T

E
s  

  

A
na

ly
si

s 
of

 d
iff

er
en

tia
l r

at
es

 o
f F

T
E

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
cr

os
s 

W
es

t M
er

ci
a 

1c
(ii

) 
C

P
M

 
Q

2 
M

on
ito

r 
pr

op
or

tio
na

te
 u

se
 in

fo
rm

al
 d

is
po

sa
ls

 a
nd

 o
ut

 o
f c

ou
rt

 s
an

ct
io

ns
 

1c
(ii

) 
C

P
M

 
Q

1 
– 

Q
4 

In
co

ns
is

te
nt

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
ac

ro
ss

 
W

es
t M

er
ci

a 
le

ad
in

g 
to

 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

us
e 

of
 c

us
to

di
al

 
se

nt
en

ce
s 

an
d 

re
m

an
ds

 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 a
 c

en
tr

al
is

ed
 c

us
to

dy
 r

ev
ie

w
 p

ro
ce

ss
 

1c
(ii

i) 
T

M
H

 
Q

2 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 a

 W
es

t M
er

ci
a 

w
id

e 
si

ng
le

 IS
S

 s
ch

em
e 

1c
(ii

i) 
T

M
H

 
Q

2 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f a
 c

on
si

st
en

t b
ai

l s
up

po
rt

 o
ffe

r 
ac

ro
ss

 W
es

t M
er

ci
a 

1c
(ii

i) 
C

P
M

 
Q

3 

In
co

ns
is

te
nt

 r
ep

ar
at

io
n 

pr
ac

tic
e 

ac
ro

ss
 W

es
t M

er
ci

a 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 a

 W
es

t M
er

ci
a 

w
id

e 
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

sc
he

m
e 

1d
(i)

 
T

M
C

S
 

Q
1 

R
es

to
ra

tiv
e 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
no

t 
em

be
dd

ed
 in

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
C

om
pl

et
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

w
id

e 
R

J 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 fo

r 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

st
af

f 
1d

(ii
) 

T
M

H
 

Q
1 

R
ev

is
e 

an
d 

ag
re

e 
th

e 
Y

O
S

 R
J 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
1d

(ii
) 

T
M

H
 

Q
1 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

se
rv

ic
e 

w
id

e 
R

J 
se

rv
ic

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t g
ro

up
 

1d
(ii

) 
T

M
H

 
Q

1 
In

su
ffi

ci
en

t r
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 w

ith
 r

es
pe

ct
 to

 
vu

ln
er

ab
ili

ty
 a

nd
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

R
ol

l o
ut

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
pe

er
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
1e

 
T

H
W

S
 

Q
1 

Im
pl

em
en

t S
11

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s 
1e

 
H

O
S

 
Q

1 
– 

Q
4 

N
o 

de
fin

ed
 w

or
kf

or
ce

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
la

n 
D

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
t s

er
vi

ce
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 p

la
n 

fo
r 

14
/1

5 
2a

 
C

P
M

 
Q

2 

In
co

ns
is

te
nt

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
E

st
ab

lis
h 

Y
O

S
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 G

ro
up

 
2b

 
H

O
S

 
Q

1 
D

ev
el

op
 Y

O
S

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

st
ra

te
gy

 a
nd

 p
la

n 
fo

r 
14

/1
5 

2b
 

H
O

S
 

Q
1 

In
co

ns
is

te
nt

 s
up

er
vi

si
on

 
pr

ac
tic

es
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
E

ns
ur

e 
ne

w
 s

up
er

vi
si

on
 p

ol
ic

y 
em

be
dd

ed
 b

y 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

au
di

ts
 a

t 2
 a

nd
 5

 
m

on
th

s 
 

2c
 

C
P

M
 

Q
3 

R
is

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t g
ui

da
nc

e 
do

es
 n

ot
 r

ef
le

ct
 r

ev
is

ed
 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
fo

r 
C

P
F

 a
nd

 D
Y

O
 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 r
ev

is
e 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 c

as
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t g

ui
da

nc
e

 
2c

 
T

M
T

 
Q

2 

N
o 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
fo

r 
un

pa
id

 w
or

k 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f U

np
ai

d 
W

or
k 

sc
he

m
e 

fo
r 

16
 a

nd
 1

7 
ye

ar
 o

ld
s 

3a
(i)

 
T

M
C

S
 

Q
2 

U
np

la
nn

ed
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 m
ov

in
g 

be
tw

ee
n 

yo
ut

h 
an

d 
ad

ul
t s

ys
te

m
s 

E
ns

ur
e 

ca
se

 tr
an

sf
er

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
/p

ro
to

co
ls

 in
 p

la
ce

 w
ith

 n
ew

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
 o

f 
P

ro
ba

tio
n  

  

3a
(ii

) 
C

P
M

 
Q

2 

97



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
21

 

R
is

k 
to

 F
u

tu
re

 D
el

iv
er

y 
A

ct
io

n
 

K
ey

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
an

d
 A

re
a 

o
f 

F
o

cu
s 

O
w

n
er

 
T

im
es

ca
le

 
(b

y 
en

d
 o

f 
q

u
ar

te
r)

 

R
is

ks
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 N

P
S

 
ha

vi
ng

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

 
fo

r 
Y

O
T

s 
bu

t t
he

 m
aj

or
ity

 o
f 

tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

w
or

k 
be

in
g 

to
 C

R
C

 

E
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

Y
O

S
 r

ef
er

en
ce

 g
ro

up
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

es
 o

f N
P

S
 a

nd
 C

R
C

 
3a

(ii
) 

H
O

S
 

Q
2 

In
co

ns
is

te
nt

 r
ec

or
di

ng
 p

ra
ct

ic
es

 
P

ut
 in

 p
la

ce
 r

ev
is

ed
 r

ec
or

di
ng

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
fo

r 
ca

se
 m

an
ag

em
en

t s
ys

te
m

 
3a

(ii
i) 

C
P

M
 

Q
1 

In
co

ns
is

te
nt

 q
ua

lit
y 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
pr

ac
tic

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

se
rv

ic
e 

te
am

s 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 c
ro

ss
 s

er
vi

ce
 Q

A
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 
3a

(ii
i) 

C
P

M
 

Q
1 

In
su

ffi
ci

en
t r

an
ge

 o
f 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 

as
se

ss
ed

 r
is

k 
fa

ct
or

s 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f A

ct
iv

ity
 a

nd
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
w

or
k 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e
 

3a
(ii

i) 
C

P
M

W
N

 
Q

3 

U
nc

er
ta

in
 d

el
iv

er
y 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 fr
om

 1
st
 A

pr
il 

20
15

 

S
co

pe
 a

nd
 d

ec
id

e 
on

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 d

el
iv

er
y 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 fo
r 

20
15

 o
nw

ar
ds

 
3a

(iv
) 

C
M

B
 

Q
3 

T
w

o 
IC

T
 s

ys
te

m
s 

cr
ea

te
 

ba
rr

ie
rs

 to
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ov

er
si

gh
t 

Im
pl

em
en

t Y
O

S
/W

M
P

 p
ro

je
ct

 p
la

n 
fo

r 
ro

lli
ng

 o
ut

 W
M

P
 h

os
te

d 
IC

T
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e  
3b

(i)
 

P
R

M
B

 
Q

2 

Y
O

IS
 d

oe
s 

no
t s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
ne

w
 

as
se

ss
m

en
t f

ra
m

ew
or

k 
U

pg
ra

de
 C

lie
nt

/M
an

ag
em

en
t I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

sy
st

em
 to

 C
hi

ld
V

ie
w

 
3b

(ii
) 

C
P

M
 

Q
4 

Le
as

es
 c

om
in

g 
to

 e
nd

 o
n 

so
m

e 
bu

ild
in

gs
  

R
el

oc
at

io
n 

of
 W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 a
nd

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 T

ea
m

s 
3c

 
C

P
M

 
Q

4 

In
co

ns
is

te
nt

 a
nd

 a
d 

ho
c 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 w
ith

 k
ey

 p
ar

tn
er

s 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f a
gr

ee
d 

pa
th

w
ay

s/
pr

ot
oc

ol
s 

in
to

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
w

he
re

 th
es

e 
do

 n
ot

 
cu

rr
en

tly
 e

xi
st

, i
n 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
;  

S
ig

n 
of

f o
f t

he
 r

em
an

d 
pr

ot
oc

ol
s 

w
ith

 L
.A

.s
, P

ro
to

co
ls

 w
ith

 C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

an
d 

jo
in

t p
ro

to
co

l r
eg

ar
di

ng
 Y

P
 in

 P
ol

ic
e 

C
us

to
dy

 

4a
(i)

 
C

P
M

 
Q

2 

R
ob

us
t a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 n
ot

 in
 

pl
ac

e 
fo

r 
so

m
e 

ke
y 

ar
ea

s 
of

 
di

sc
re

tio
na

ry
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

C
om

pl
et

e 
co

m
m

is
si

on
in

g 
 w

or
k 

an
d 

ag
re

e 
de

liv
er

y 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
E

T
E

 
lia

is
on

, S
ub

st
an

ce
 M

is
us

e 
an

d 
P

ar
en

tin
g 

4a
(ii

) 
C

P
M

 
Q

3 

A
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 n
ot

 ta
ki

ng
 a

cc
ou

nt
 

of
 fu

ll 
ra

ng
e 

of
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
so

ur
ce

s 
 

E
xp

lo
re

 th
e 

po
ss

ib
ili

ty
 o

f a
cc

es
s 

to
 C

hi
ld

re
n 

S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

sy
st

em
s 

in
 

ar
ea

s 
w

he
re

 th
is

 d
oe

s 
no

t e
xi

st
 

4b
 

C
P

M
 

Q
3 

98



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
22

 

R
is

k 
to

 F
u

tu
re

 D
el

iv
er

y 
A

ct
io

n
 

K
ey

 
P

ri
o

ri
ty

 
an

d
 A

re
a 

o
f 

F
o

cu
s 

O
w

n
er

 
T

im
es

ca
le

 
(b

y 
en

d
 o

f 
q

u
ar

te
r)

 

Y
O

S
 d

oe
s 

no
t h

av
e 

co
m

pl
ia

nt
 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
if 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 o

ut
 

In
ve

st
ig

at
e 

w
ith

 D
C

S
s 

se
co

nd
m

en
t o

f s
oc

ia
l w

or
ke

rs
 

4b
 

H
O

S
 

Q
3 

Y
O

S
 n

ot
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

re
ad

y 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t m
oc

k 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

to
 in

fo
rm

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t p

la
n

 
5a

(i)
 

C
P

M
 

Q
1 

Y
O

S
 n

ot
 N

S
 c

om
pl

ia
nt

 
U

nd
er

ta
ke

 N
at

io
na

l S
ta

nd
ar

d 
au

di
t 

5a
(i)

 
C

P
M

 
Q

2 
F

ut
ur

e 
pl

an
s 

no
t e

vi
de

nc
e 

ba
se

d 
U

nd
er

ta
ke

 s
el

f a
ud

it 
on

 k
ey

 a
re

as
 o

f w
or

k 
to

 in
fo

rm
 fu

tu
re

 p
la

nn
in

g 
5a

(i)
 

H
O

S
 

Q
4 

M
er

ge
r 

of
 Y

ou
th

 P
an

el
s,

 a
nd

 
tr

ia
ls

 b
ei

ng
 h

el
d 

ac
ro

ss
 C

ou
rt

 
ce

nt
re

s 
le

ad
in

g 
to

 in
co

ns
is

te
nt

 
se

nt
en

ci
ng

 

M
on

ito
r 

se
nt

en
ci

ng
 o

ut
co

m
es

 o
f t

ria
ls

 h
el

d 
ac

ro
ss

 d
iff

er
en

t W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 c

ou
rt

 
ce

nt
re

s 
5a

(i)
 

C
P

M
 

Q
4 

N
ot

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 m

at
te

rs
 

af
fe

ct
in

g 
re

-o
ffe

nd
in

g 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
  

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 fu

rt
he

r 
re

-o
ffe

nd
in

g 
an

al
ys

is
 

5a
(i)

 
T

M
T

 
Q

2 

S
er

vi
ce

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t n
ot

 
in

fo
rm

ed
 b

y 
us

er
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 

Im
pl

em
en

t V
ie

w
po

in
t f

ee
db

ac
k 

pr
oc

es
s 

fo
r 

H
M

IP
 

5b
 

T
M

T
 

Q
1 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 r
ev

is
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

us
er

 fe
ed

ba
ck

 p
ro

ce
ss

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

5b
 

C
P

M
 

Q
2 

In
co

ns
is

te
nt

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
Id

en
tif

y 
ke

y 
ar

ea
s 

w
he

re
 p

ol
ic

y 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t i
s 

re
qu

ire
d 

an
d 

pu
t p

ol
ic

ie
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 
5c

 
H

O
S

 
Q

3 
 K

ey
 t

o
 A

ct
io

n
 O

w
n

er
s:

 
 H

O
S

 
H

ea
d 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
  

 
 

 
C

P
M

 
C

P
 a

nd
 Q

A
 M

an
ag

er
 

 
 

T
M

H
 

T
ea

m
 M

an
ag

er
 –

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
  

T
M

S
 

T
ea

m
 M

an
ag

er
 –

 S
hr

op
sh

ire
 

 
 

T
M

T
 

T
ea

m
 M

an
ag

er
 –

 T
el

fo
rd

 
 

T
M

W
N

 T
ea

m
 M

an
ag

er
 –

 N
or

th
 W

or
cs

 
T

M
W

S
 T

ea
m

 M
an

ag
er

 –
 S

ou
th

 W
or

cs
 

 
 

T
M

C
S

 
T

ea
m

 M
an

ag
er

 –
 C

en
tr

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

C
M

B
 

C
ha

ir 
of

 th
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd

  
P

R
M

B
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd

 P
ol

ic
e 

R
ep

re
se

nt
at

iv
e 

         

99



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
23

 

 7 
M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 B

O
A

R
D

 A
P

P
R

O
V

A
L

 
   A

g
en

cy
 

A
g

en
cy

 
S

ig
n

at
u

re
 

D
at

e 
G

ai
l Q

ui
nt

on
 

W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 C

ou
nt

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
   

23
.0

5.
14

 

K
ar

en
 B

ra
ds

ha
w

 
S

hr
op

sh
ire

 C
ou

nc
il 

    

23
.0

5.
14

 

La
ur

a 
Jo

hn
st

on
 

T
el

fo
rd

 a
nd

 W
re

ki
n 

C
ou

nc
il 

   

24
.0

5.
14

 

Jo
 D

av
id

so
n 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
   

23
.0

5.
14

 

D
av

id
 C

ha
nt

le
r 

W
es

t M
er

ci
a 

P
ro

ba
tio

n 
T

ru
st

 
    

23
.0

5.
14

 

G
ar

et
h 

M
or

ga
n 

W
es

t M
er

ci
a 

P
ol

ic
e 

   

23
.0

5.
14

 

B
ec

ki
 H

ip
ki

ns
 

N
H

S
 E

ng
la

nd
 

   

23
.0

5.
14

 

A
nd

y 
C

ha
m

pn
es

s 
O

ffi
ce

 o
f t

he
 W

es
t M

er
ci

a 
P

ol
ic

e 
an

d 
C

rim
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

er
 

 

 
23

.0
5.

14
 

   

100



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
24

 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 -
 A

R
E

A
 P

R
O

F
IL

E
 –

 H
E

R
E

F
O

R
D

S
H

IR
E

 
  Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 –

 a
ll 

Y
o

u
n

g
 P

eo
p

le
 

 T
he

re
 a

re
 1

6,
81

0 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 a

ge
d 

10
 t

o 
17

 in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

. 
In

 2
01

3 
th

er
e 

w
er

e 
24

4 
yo

ut
h 

ju
st

ic
e 

sa
nc

tio
ns

 (
yo

ut
h 

ca
ut

io
ns

, 
yo

ut
h 

co
nd

iti
on

al
 c

au
tio

ns
 o

r 
co

nv
ic

tio
ns

) 
m

ad
e 

on
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e.
 A

 t
ot

al
 o

f 
16

9 
in

di
vi

du
al

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
ac

co
un

te
d 

fo
r 

th
es

e 
24

4 
ou

tc
om

es
, 1

%
 o

f t
he

 y
ou

th
 p

op
ul

at
io

n.
 

 
 O

f 
th

e 
16

9 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 e

nt
er

in
g 

or
 in

 t
he

 y
ou

th
 ju

st
ic

e 
sy

st
em

 in
 2

01
3,

 7
5%

 w
er

e 
m

al
e.

 T
he

 m
aj

or
ity

, 
74

%
, 

w
er

e 
ag

ed
 1

5 
to

 1
7 

ye
ar

s.
 T

he
 p

ea
k 

ag
e 

of
 o

ffe
nd

in
g 

fo
r 

yo
un

g 
m

al
es

 w
as

 1
7 

ye
ar

s 
an

d 
fo

r 
yo

un
g 

fe
m

al
es

 1
6 

ye
ar

s.
 

 Y
o

u
th

 O
ff

en
d

in
g

 P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 –
  Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 S
u

b
je

ct
 t

o
 O

u
t 

o
f 

C
o

u
rt

 D
is

p
o

sa
ls

 
 D

ur
in

g 
20

13
 th

er
e 

w
er

e 
a 

to
ta

l o
f 1

37
 p

re
-c

ou
rt

 d
is

po
sa

ls
 m

ad
e 

on
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e,
 3

0 
of

 th
es

e 
w

er
e 

R
ep

rim
an

ds
,  

14
 

F
in

al
 W

ar
ni

ng
s,

 8
6 

Y
ou

th
 C

au
tio

ns
 a

nd
 7

 Y
ou

th
 C

on
di

tio
na

l 
C

au
tio

ns
. 

T
he

 Y
O

S
 i

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 a
ss

es
s 

al
l 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 m
ad

e 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 F
in

al
 W

ar
ni

ng
s,

 s
ec

on
d 

an
d 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 Y

ou
th

 C
au

tio
ns

 a
nd

 Y
ou

th
 C

on
di

tio
na

l 
C

au
tio

ns
 a

nd
 i

f 
as

se
ss

ed
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 in
te

rv
en

tio
n,

 in
 2

01
3 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 w
er

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 fo

r 
25

 p
re

-c
ou

rt
 d

is
po

sa
ls

. 
 

H
er

ef
o

rd
sh

ir
e 

O
ff

en
d

er
s 

b
y 

ag
e 

an
d

 g
en

d
er

05101520253035404550 10
Fem

ale
10

Male 11
Fem

ale
11

Male 12
Fem

ale
12

Male 13
Fem

ale
13

Male 14
Fem

ale
14

Male 15
Fem

ale
15

Male 16
Fem

ale
16

Male 17
Fem

ale
17

Male

He
re

fo
rd

sh
ir

e 
of

fe
nd

er
s 

by
 a

ge

14
y

14
%

15
y

17
%

16
y

24
%

17
y

33
%

10
y

1%

11
y

2%
12

y
2%

13
y

7%

He
re

fo
rd

sh
ir

e 
of

fe
nd

er
s 

by
 g

en
de

r
Fe

m
al

e
25

%

M
al

e
75

%

101



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
25

 

H
e

re
fo

rd
sh

ir
e

 o
u

t 
o

f 
co

u
rt

 d
is

p
o

sa
ls

 b
y 

o
ff

e
n

ce
 t

yp
e

0510152025303540 Vio
len

ce

The
ft 

an
d H

an
dli

ng

Dru
gs

Crim
in

al 
Dam

ag
e Pub

lic
 O

rd
er

Sex
ua

l

Non
 D

om
es

tic
 B

ur
gl

ar
y

O
th

er
M

ot
orin

g Veh
icl

e 
The

ft

Dom
es

tic
 B

ur
gl

ar
y

Rac
ial

ly 
Agg

ra
va

te
d

 
 T

he
 m

os
t 

fr
eq

ue
nt

ly
 o

cc
ur

rin
g 

pr
im

ar
y 

of
fe

nc
e 

fo
r 

ou
t 

of
 c

ou
rt

 d
is

po
sa

ls
 w

as
 v

io
le

nc
e 

ag
ai

ns
t 

th
e 

pe
rs

on
, 

27
%

, 
fo

llo
w

ed
 b

y 
th

ef
t 

an
d 

ha
nd

lin
g,

 1
9%

, d
ru

g 
of

fe
nc

es
, 1

5%
, c

rim
in

al
 d

am
ag

e 
12

%
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

 o
rd

er
 9

%
.  

 
 Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 –

  Y
o

u
n

g
 P

eo
p

le
 S

u
b

je
ct

 t
o

 C
o

u
rt

 O
u

tc
o

m
es

 
 

In
 2

01
3 

a 
to

ta
l o

f 
57

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

ac
co

un
te

d 
fo

r 
10

7 
co

ur
t 

ou
tc

om
es

. O
rd

er
s 

re
qu

iri
ng

 Y
O

S
 in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 (

R
ef

er
ra

l O
rd

er
s,

 Y
R

O
s 

an
d 

C
us

to
di

al
 s

en
te

nc
es

) 
ac

co
un

te
d 

fo
r 

51
 o

f t
he

 1
07

 c
ou

rt
 o

ut
co

m
es

.  
 T

he
 m

aj
or

ity
, 

88
%

 o
f 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 r
ec

ei
vi

ng
 c

ou
rt

 s
en

te
nc

es
 w

er
e 

ag
ed

 
15

 t
o 

17
, 

w
ith

 1
7 

ye
ar

 o
ld

s 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

fo
r 

ju
st

 u
nd

er
 h

al
f 

(4
9%

) 
of

 y
ou

ng
 

pe
op

le
 r

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
 c

ou
rt

 s
en

te
nc

e.
  

 T
he

 m
os

t 
fr

eq
ue

nt
ly

 o
cc

ur
rin

g 
pr

im
ar

y 
of

fe
nc

e 
fo

r 
co

ur
t 

se
nt

en
ce

s 
w

as
 

br
ea

ch
 o

f 
an

 o
rd

er
, 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
fo

r 
27

%
 o

f 
al

l 
ou

tc
om

es
. 

V
io

le
nc

e 
ag

ai
ns

t 
th

e 
pe

rs
on

 w
as

 t
he

 n
ex

t 
fr

eq
ue

nt
ly

 o
cc

ur
rin

g 
of

fe
nc

e,
 1

9%
, 

fo
llo

w
ed

 b
y 

th
ef

t a
nd

 h
an

dl
in

g,
 1

3%
 a

nd
 c

rim
in

al
 d

am
ag

e 
8%

. T
he

se
 fo

ur
 c

at
eg

or
ie

s 
of

 
of

fe
nc

es
 a

cc
ou

nt
ed

 fo
r 

67
%

 o
f a

ll 
se

nt
en

ci
ng

 o
ut

co
m

es
. 

H
e

re
fo

rd
sh

ir
e

 S
e

n
te

n
ce

s 
b

y 
ty

p
e

 o
f 

o
ff

e
n

ce

05101520253035

Bre
ac

h o
f O

rd
er

Viol
en

ce

The
ft a

nd
 H

an
dli

ng

Crim
ina

l D
amag

e

Dom
es

tic
 B

ur
gla

ry
Othe

r
Pub

lic
 O

rde
r Rob

be
ry

Sex
ua

l
Dru

gs
Moto

rin
g

Non
 D

om
es

tic
 B

urg
lar

y
Veh

icl
e T

he
ft

102



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
26

 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 A
g

ai
n

st
 N

at
io

n
al

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
 (i)

 F
irs

t T
im

e 
E

nt
ra

nt
s 

 T
he

 f
irs

t 
tim

e 
en

tr
an

t 
m

ea
su

re
 is

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 a

s 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 f
irs

t 
tim

e 
en

tr
an

ts
 p

er
 1

00
,0

00
 o

f 
10

 t
o 

17
 y

ea
r 

ol
d 

po
pu

la
tio

n.
 F

irs
t 

tim
e 

en
tr

an
ts

 a
re

 t
ho

se
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
a 

fir
st

 f
or

m
al

 y
ou

th
 j

us
tic

e 
sa

nc
tio

n 
(p

rio
r 

to
 0

1.
04

.1
3 

th
es

e 
w

er
e 

a 
R

ep
rim

an
d,

 
F

in
al

 W
ar

ni
ng

 o
r 

C
on

vi
ct

io
n,

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 a

 Y
ou

th
 C

au
tio

n,
 C

on
di

tio
na

l 
C

au
tio

n 
or

 C
on

vi
ct

io
n)

. 
G

oo
d 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 i
s 

in
di

ct
ed

 b
y 

a 
lo

w
er

 r
at

e.
 

 
In

 t
he

 y
ea

r 
en

di
ng

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
13

 t
he

re
 w

er
e 

58
9 

fir
st

 t
im

e 
en

tr
an

ts
 p

er
 

10
0,

00
0 

yo
ut

h 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

, 
re

pr
es

en
tin

g 
a 

re
du

ct
io

n 
of

   
   

  
-6

5%
 

si
nc

e 
th

e 
ye

ar
 

en
di

ng
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
08

. 
T

hi
s 

co
m

pa
re

s 
w

ith
 

a 
re

du
ct

io
n 

fo
r 

E
ng

la
nd

 o
f 

-7
1.

6%
 a

nd
 f

or
 W

es
t 

M
er

ci
a 

of
 -

66
.7

%
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
pe

rio
d.

 T
he

 a
ct

ua
l 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 f

irs
t 

tim
e 

en
tr

an
ts

 i
n 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

in
g 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
13

 is
 9

9,
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 3

09
 in

 2
00

8.
 

 A
t 5

89
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 h
as

 th
e 

hi
gh

es
t r

at
e 

of
 F

T
E

s 
ac

ro
ss

 W
es

t M
er

ci
a,

 th
e 

ne
xt

 h
ig

he
st

 r
at

e 
be

in
g 

53
5.

 S
om

e 
an

al
ys

is
 in

to
 r

ea
so

ns
 fo

r 
th

e 
hi

gh
er

 h
as

 
be

en
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
du

rin
g 

13
/1

4,
 a

nd
 it

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
fo

un
d 

th
at

 in
 p

ar
t i

t i
s 

du
e 

to
 

a 
hi

gh
er

 d
et

ec
tio

n 
ra

te
 a

nd
 a

 lo
w

er
 p

ro
po

rt
io

na
l u

se
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

al
 d

is
po

sa
ls

. 
F

ur
th

er
 a

na
ly

si
s 

is
 p

la
nn

ed
 fo

r 
14

/1
5.

 
 

 (ii
) 

U
se

 o
f C

us
to

dy
 

 T
he

 u
se

 o
f c

us
to

dy
 m

ea
su

re
 is

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 a

s 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 c
us

to
di

al
 s

en
te

nc
es

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 o

f 1
0 

to
 1

7 
ye

ar
 p

op
ul

at
io

n
, a

 lo
w

er
 r

at
e 

in
di

ca
te

s 
be

tte
r 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

. H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 h

as
, h

is
to

ric
al

ly
, h

ad
 a

 lo
w

 r
at

e 
of

 c
us

to
di

al
 s

en
te

nc
es

.  
 T

he
re

 w
er

e 
5 

cu
st

od
ia

l 
se

nt
en

ce
s 

du
rin

g 
20

13
, 

eq
ua

tin
g 

to
 a

 r
at

e 
of

 0
.3

 c
us

to
di

al
 s

en
te

nc
es

 p
er

 1
00

0 
yo

ut
h 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
th

is
 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 a

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 c
us

to
di

al
 s

en
te

nc
es

 f
ro

m
 2

01
2 

w
he

re
 t

he
re

 w
er

e 
6 

cu
st

od
ia

l s
en

te
nc

es
 e

qu
at

in
g 

to
 a

 r
at

e 
of

 0
.3

6
. 

T
he

 
20

13
 r

at
e 

of
 0

.3
%

 c
om

pa
re

s 
to

 a
 W

es
t 

M
er

ci
a 

ra
te

 o
f 

0.
27

 a
nd

 a
 n

at
io

na
l r

at
e 

of
 0

.6
7.

 C
us

to
di

al
 s

en
te

nc
es

 a
cc

ou
nt

ed
 fo

r 
4.

2%
 o

f 
al

l c
ou

rt
 o

ut
co

m
es

 in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

, c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 6
.5

%
 o

f a
ll 

co
ur

t o
ut

co
m

es
 a

cr
os

s 
W

es
t M

er
ci

a.
 

F
ir

st
 T

im
e 

E
n

tr
an

ts
 p

er
 1

00
,0

00
 Y

o
u

th
 P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 -

 H
er

ef
o

rd
sh

ir
e

40
0

60
0

80
0

10
00

12
00

14
00

16
00

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

in
g

 S
ep

te
m

b
er

FTE/100,000 Youth Population

H
er

ef
or

d
W

es
t M

er
ci

a
E

ng
la

nd

103



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
27

 

(ii
i) 

R
e-

O
ffe

nd
in

g 
 

T
he

re
 a

re
 t

w
o 

re
-o

ffe
nd

in
g 

m
ea

su
re

s,
 b

ot
h 

m
ea

su
rin

g 
re

-o
ffe

nd
in

g 
in

 t
he

 
sa

m
e 

co
ho

rt
 o

f 
of

fe
nd

er
s 

ov
er

 a
 1

2 
m

on
th

 p
er

io
d 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
yo

ut
h 

ju
st

ic
e 

sa
nc

tio
n 

th
at

 p
la

ce
d 

th
e 

yo
un

g 
pe

rs
on

 i
n 

th
e 

co
ho

rt
. 

T
he

 f
irs

t, 
th

e 
fr

eq
ue

nc
y 

m
ea

su
re

, i
s 

th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 r

e-
of

fe
nc

es
 p

er
 o

ffe
nd

er
 in

 th
e 

co
ho

rt
. T

he
 

se
co

nd
 m

ea
su

re
, t

he
 b

in
ar

y 
m

ea
su

re
, i

s 
th

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f t

he
 o

ffe
nd

er
s 

in
 th

e 
co

ho
rt

 r
e-

of
fe

nd
in

g.
 I

n 
bo

th
 c

as
es

 a
 l

ow
er

 r
at

e 
de

no
te

s 
be

tte
r 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

. 
T

he
 m

os
t 

re
ce

nt
 d

at
a 

fo
r 

th
e 

re
-o

ffe
nd

in
g 

m
ea

su
re

 i
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

in
g 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2.

 
 T

he
 f

re
qu

en
cy

 m
ea

su
re

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 f
or

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 f

or
 t

he
 y

ea
r 

en
di

ng
 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

is
 1

.3
5,

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 t
he

 W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f 
0.

96
 a

nd
 

na
tio

na
l p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f 
1.

02
. 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 is

, 
th

er
ef

or
e,

 p
er

fo
rm

in
g 

le
ss

 w
el

l 
th

an
 f

or
 W

es
t 

M
er

ci
a 

an
d 

E
ng

la
nd

, 
w

hi
ch

 i
s 

a 
ch

an
ge

d 
pi

ct
ur

e 
fr

om
 t

he
 y

ea
r 

en
di

ng
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 
w

he
n 

th
e 

fr
eq

ue
nc

y 
ra

te
 w

as
 0

.8
8 

w
hi

ch
 w

as
 s

lig
ht

ly
 

be
tte

r 
th

an
 f

or
 W

es
t 

M
er

ci
a 

(0
.8

9)
 a

nd
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 b

et
te

r 
th

an
 f

or
 E

ng
la

nd
 

(1
.0

3)
.  

T
he

 fr
eq

ue
nc

y 
ra

te
 n

at
io

na
lly

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 s
in

ce
 2

00
8.

 
 F

or
 t

he
 y

ea
r 

en
di

ng
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

2 
th

e 
bi

na
ry

 m
ea

su
re

 f
or

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 i

s 
40

.8
%

 c
om

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 a

 W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f 
34

.2
%

 a
nd

 a
 n

at
io

na
l 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
of

 
35

.4
%

. 
It 

sh
ou

ld
 

be
 

no
te

d,
 

ho
w

ev
er

, 
th

at
 

al
th

ou
gh

 
th

e 
fr

eq
ue

nc
y 

an
d 

bi
na

ry
 

ra
te

s 
ha

ve
 

in
cr

ea
se

d,
 

th
e 

ov
er

al
l 

co
ho

rt
 

si
ze

s 
ar

e 
de

cr
ea

si
ng

 y
ea

r 
on

 y
ea

r.
 I

n 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
in

g 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

8 
th

er
e 

w
er

e 
61

7 
of

fe
nd

er
s 

in
 t

he
 c

oh
or

t 
an

d 
57

5 
re

-o
ffe

nc
es

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 a
 c

oh
or

t 
si

ze
 o

f 
34

7 
w

ith
 3

44
 r

e-
of

fe
nc

es
 in

 2
01

2.
 T

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 a
ct

ua
l r

e-
of

fe
nc

es
 h

as
 t

he
re

fo
re

 
de

cr
ea

se
d 

by
 -

40
.2

%
 b

et
w

ee
n 

20
08

 a
nd

 2
01

2.
  

 In
cr

ea
si

ng
 r

at
es

 a
re

 n
at

io
na

l p
ic

tu
re

 a
nd

 t
he

 Y
JB

 h
as

 n
ot

ed
 t

ha
t 

th
er

e 
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 li

ttl
e 

ev
id

en
ce

 a
s 

to
 w

hy
 t

hi
s 

is
 h

ap
pe

ni
ng

. 
It 

is
 

th
ou

gh
t 

th
at

 i
n 

pa
rt

 i
t 

is
 d

ue
 t

o 
de

cr
ea

si
ng

 n
um

be
rs

 i
n 

co
ho

rt
s 

du
e 

to
 t

he
 d

iv
er

si
on

 o
f 

fir
st

 t
im

e 
of

fe
nd

er
s 

fr
om

 t
he

 f
or

m
al

 j
us

tic
e 

sy
st

em
, 

le
av

in
g 

a 
co

ho
rt

 o
f 

m
or

e 
se

rio
us

 a
nd

 c
om

pl
ex

 o
ffe

nd
er

s 
w

ho
 a

re
 m

or
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 r
e-

of
fe

nd
. 

T
he

 Y
JB

 is
 c

on
tin

ui
ng

 t
o 

w
or

k 

R
e-

O
ff

en
d

in
g

 F
re

q
u

en
cy

 In
d

ic
at

o
r

0

0.
2

0.
4

0.
6

0.
81

1.
2

1.
4

1.
6

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

in
g

 M
ar

ch

Frequency

H
er

ef
or

d
W

es
t M

er
ci

a
E

ng
la

nd

R
e-

O
ff

en
d

in
g

 B
in

ar
y 

M
ea

su
re

202530354045

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

in
g

 M
ar

ch

Percentage Re-offending

H
er

ef
or

d
W

es
t M

er
ci

a
E

ng
la

nd

104



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
28

 

w
ith

 Y
O

T
s 

du
rin

g 
20

14
/1

5 
in

 o
rd

er
 t

o 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 m
or

e 
w

ha
t 

is
 d

riv
in

g 
th

e 
tr

en
d 

in
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 i

s 
la

un
ch

in
g 

a 
re

vi
se

d 
re

-
of

fe
nd

in
g 

to
ol

 k
it 

in
 th

e 
fir

st
 q

ua
rt

er
 o

f 1
4/

15
 to

 a
ss

is
t Y

O
T

s 
in

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 b

et
te

r 
th

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
ris

tic
s 

of
 th

ei
r 

co
ho

rt
s.

  
 Lo

ca
lly

 t
he

 W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

O
S

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 s

om
e 

an
al

ys
is

 in
 1

3/
14

, 
w

hi
ch

 s
ho

w
ed

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
f 

th
e 

co
ho

rt
s 

ha
d 

ch
an

ge
d 

ov
er

 
tim

e,
 w

ith
 t

he
 p

ro
po

rt
io

n 
of

 o
ffe

nd
er

s 
in

 t
he

 c
oh

or
t 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 o

ut
 o

f 
co

ur
t 

di
sp

os
al

 d
ec

re
as

in
g 

be
tw

ee
n 

20
08

 a
nd

 2
01

2 
by

 1
0 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 p

oi
nt

s,
 w

hi
ls

t 
th

e 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

of
 th

os
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
co

m
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 c
us

to
di

al
 s

en
te

nc
es

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 b

y 
7 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 p

oi
nt

s.
 

F
ur

th
er

 a
na

ly
si

s 
is

 p
la

nn
ed

 in
 2

01
4/

15
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 in
fo

rm
 m

or
e 

ta
rg

et
ed

 w
or

k.
  

 E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
, T

ra
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 E

m
p

lo
ym

en
t 

 T
he

 Y
O

S
 h

as
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
m

ea
su

re
d 

w
he

th
er

 a
 y

ou
ng

 p
er

so
n 

is
 i

n 
fu

ll 
tim

e 
ed

uc
at

io
n,

 t
ra

in
in

g 
or

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
at

 t
he

 e
nd

 o
f 

th
ei

r 
or

de
r.

 T
he

 ta
bl

e 
be

lo
w

 o
ut

lin
es

 th
e 

re
su

lts
 fo

r 
20

12
/1

3.
   

  
T

he
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 f

or
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 f
or

 s
ch

oo
l 

ag
e 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 i
s 

be
tte

r 
th

an
 f

or
 W

es
t 

M
er

ci
a,

 a
nd

 t
he

 s
am

e 
fo

r 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 a

bo
ve

 s
ch

oo
l a

ge
.  

 
   

It 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

no
te

d 
th

at
 t

ho
se

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
of

 s
ch

oo
l a

ge
 n

ot
 in

 f
ul

l t
im

e 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

ar
e 

no
t n

ec
es

sa
ril

y 
N

E
E

T
, 

bu
t 

ar
e 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
an

 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
w

hi
ch

 is
 n

ot
 2

5 
ho

ur
s 

a 
w

ee
k.

 
 L

o
o

ke
d

 A
ft

er
 C

h
ild

re
n

 
 A

t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 

20
13

 a
n 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f L

A
C

 o
n 

th
e 

Y
O

S
 c

as
e 

lo
ad

 w
as

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n.

 T
hi

s 
sh

ow
ed

 th
at

 o
f t

he
 to

ta
l c

as
e 

lo
ad

 o
f 

th
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 Y

O
S

 T
ea

m
, 4

5%
 w

er
e 

lo
ok

ed
 a

fte
r 

ch
ild

re
n.

 A
t t

hi
s 

po
in

t i
n 

tim
e 

17
%

 o
f t

he
 c

as
e 

lo
ad

 w
er

e 
LA

C
 fr

om
 o

th
er

 a
re

as
 

te
m

po
ra

ril
y 

pl
ac

ed
 in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
.  

 T
he

 Y
O

S
 M

an
ag

em
en

t B
oa

rd
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
an

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l r

ef
er

en
ce

 g
ro

up
 t

o 
an

al
ys

e 
th

e 
is

su
es

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
Y

O
S

 a
nd

 S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 L

A
C

 a
nd

 C
ar

e 
Le

av
er

s 
an

d 
m

ak
e 

op
er

at
io

na
l r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 jo
in

t 
w

or
ki

ng
 t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ou

tc
om

es
 

fo
r 

LA
C

 a
nd

 C
ar

e 
Le

av
er

s 
w

ho
 a

re
 in

 th
e 

yo
ut

h 
ju

st
ic

e 
sy

st
em

. 
  

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

%
 in

 E
T

E
 

W
es

t M
er

ci
a 

%
 in

 E
T

E
 

Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
of

 S
ch

oo
l A

ge
 

79
%

 (
37

) 
73

%
 

Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
ab

ov
e 

S
ch

oo
l A

ge
 

59
%

(3
7)

 
59

%
 

O
ve

ra
ll 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
67

%
(7

4)
 

64
%

  

105



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
29

 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 2

 -
 A

R
E

A
 P

R
O

F
IL

E
 –

 S
H

R
O

P
S

H
IR

E
 

 Y
o

u
th

 O
ff

en
d

in
g

 P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 –
 a

ll 
Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 
 T

he
re

 a
re

 2
8,

90
9 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 a
ge

d 
10

 to
 1

7 
in

 S
hr

op
sh

ire
. I

n 
20

13
 th

er
e 

w
er

e 
17

7 
yo

ut
h 

ju
st

ic
e 

sa
nc

tio
ns

 (
yo

u
th

 c
au

tio
ns

, y
ou

th
 

co
nd

iti
on

al
 c

au
tio

ns
 o

r 
co

nv
ic

tio
ns

) 
m

ad
e 

on
 S

hr
op

sh
ire

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e.
 A

 t
ot

al
 o

f 
15

4 
in

di
vi

du
al

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
ac

co
un

te
d 

fo
r 

th
es

e 
17

7 
ou

tc
om

es
, 0

.5
%

 o
f t

he
 y

ou
th

 p
op

ul
at

io
n.

 

  O
f 

th
e 

15
4 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 e
nt

er
in

g 
or

 in
 t

he
 y

ou
th

 ju
st

ic
e 

sy
st

em
 in

 2
01

3,
 8

2%
 w

er
e 

m
al

e.
 T

he
 m

aj
or

ity
, 

83
%

, 
w

er
e 

ag
ed

 1
5 

to
 1

7 
ye

ar
s.

 T
he

 p
ea

k 
ag

e 
of

 o
ffe

nd
in

g 
fo

r 
bo

th
 y

ou
ng

 m
al

es
 w

as
 1

7 
ye

ar
s 

an
d 

fo
r 

yo
un

g 
fe

m
al

es
 1

6 
ye

ar
s.

 
 Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 –

  Y
o

u
n

g
 P

eo
p

le
 S

u
b

je
ct

 t
o

 O
u

t 
o

f 
C

o
u

rt
 D

is
p

o
sa

ls
 

 D
ur

in
g 

20
13

 t
he

re
 w

er
e 

a 
to

ta
l o

f 
10

3 
pr

e-
co

ur
t 

di
sp

os
al

s 
m

ad
e 

on
 S

hr
op

sh
ire

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e,
 1

9 
of

 t
he

se
 w

er
e 

R
ep

rim
an

ds
, 

 1
6 

F
in

al
 W

ar
ni

ng
s,

 6
1 

Y
ou

th
 C

au
tio

ns
 a

nd
 7

 Y
ou

th
 C

on
di

tio
na

l 
C

au
tio

ns
. 

T
he

 Y
O

S
 i

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 a
ss

es
s 

al
l 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 m
ad

e 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 F
in

al
 W

ar
ni

ng
s,

 s
ec

on
d 

an
d 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 Y

ou
th

 C
au

tio
ns

 a
nd

 Y
ou

th
 C

on
di

tio
na

l 
C

au
tio

ns
 a

nd
 i

f 
as

se
ss

ed
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 in
te

rv
en

tio
n,

 in
 2

01
3 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 w
er

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 fo

r 
19

 p
re

-c
ou

rt
 d

is
po

sa
ls

. 
 

Sh
ro

ps
hi

re
 o

ffe
nd

er
s 

by
 g

en
de

r
Fe

ma
le

18
%

Ma
le

82
%

Sh
ro

ps
hi

re
 o

ff
en

de
rs

 b
y 

ag
e

12 1%

15 20
%

16 23
%

40
%

11 0%
13 6%

14 10
%

S
hr

op
sh

ire
 O

ffe
nd

er
s 

by
 a

ge
 a

nd
 g

en
de

r

0102030405060

11
yrs

 F
em

ale 11
yrs

 M
ale 12

yrs
 F

em
ale 12

yrs
 M

ale 13
yrs

 F
em

ale 13
yrs

 M
ale 14

yrs
 F

em
ale 14

yrs
 M

ale 15
yrs

 F
em

ale 15
yrs

 M
ale 16

yrs
 F

em
ale 16

yrs
 M

ale 17
yrs

 F
em

ale 17
yrs

 M
ale

106



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
30

 

 
            T

he
 m

os
t 

fr
eq

ue
nt

ly
 o

cc
ur

rin
g 

pr
im

ar
y 

of
fe

nc
e 

fo
r 

ou
t 

of
 c

ou
rt

 d
is

po
sa

ls
 w

er
e 

dr
ug

 o
ffe

nc
es

, 
22

%
, 

fo
llo

w
ed

 b
y 

th
ef

t 
an

d 
ha

nd
lin

g,
 

18
%

, v
io

le
nc

e 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 p
er

so
n,

 1
7%

, c
rim

in
al

 d
am

ag
e 

17
%

 a
nd

 p
ub

lic
 o

rd
er

 1
1%

.  
 

 Y
o

u
th

 O
ff

en
d

in
g

 P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 –
  Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 S
u

b
je

ct
 t

o
 C

o
u

rt
 O

u
tc

o
m

es
 

 
In

 
20

13
 

a 
to

ta
l 

of
 

46
 

S
hr

op
sh

ire
 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 
ac

co
un

te
d 

fo
r 

72
 

co
ur

t 
ou

tc
om

es
. 

O
rd

er
s 

re
qu

iri
ng

 Y
O

S
 i

nt
er

ve
nt

io
ns

 (
R

ef
er

ra
l 

O
rd

er
s,

 Y
R

O
s 

an
d 

C
us

to
di

al
 s

en
te

nc
es

) 
ac

co
un

te
d 

fo
r 

59
 o

f t
he

 7
2 

co
ur

t o
ut

co
m

es
.  

 T
he

 m
aj

or
ity

, 9
4%

 o
f 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 r
ec

ei
vi

ng
 c

ou
rt

 s
en

te
nc

es
 w

er
e 

ag
ed

 1
5 

to
 

17
, 

w
ith

 1
7 

ye
ar

 o
ld

s 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

fo
r 

ju
st

 o
ve

r 
ha

lf 
(5

1%
) 

of
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
a 

co
ur

t s
en

te
nc

e.
  

 T
he

 
m

os
t 

fr
eq

ue
nt

ly
 

oc
cu

rr
in

g 
of

fe
nc

e 
fo

r 
co

ur
t 

se
nt

en
ce

s 
w

as
 

vi
ol

en
ce

 
ag

ai
ns

t 
th

e 
pe

rs
on

, 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

fo
r 

24
%

 o
f 

al
l o

ut
co

m
es

. 
B

re
ac

h 
of

 a
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 
or

de
r 

w
as

 t
he

 n
ex

t 
fr

eq
ue

nt
ly

 o
cc

ur
rin

g 
of

fe
nc

e,
 1

7%
, 

fo
llo

w
ed

 b
y 

cr
im

in
al

 
da

m
ag

e,
 1

4%
 a

nd
 t

he
ft 

an
d 

ha
nd

lin
g 

12
%

. 
T

he
se

 f
ou

r 
ca

te
go

rie
s 

of
 o

ffe
nc

es
 

ac
co

un
te

d 
fo

r 
67

%
 o

f a
ll 

se
nt

en
ci

ng
 o

ut
co

m
es

. 
 

S
h

ro
p

sh
ir

e
 o

u
t 

o
f 

co
u

rt
 d

is
p

o
sa

ls
 b

y 
o

ff
e

n
ce

 t
yp

e

02040608010
0

12
0 Dru

gs

The
ft a

nd
 H

an
dli

ng

Viol
en

ce
 A

ga
ins

t th
e P

...

Crim
ina

l D
amag

e
Pub

lic
 O

rde
r

Non
 D

om
es

tic
 B

urg
lar

y
Othe

r
Sex

ua
l

Veh
icl

e T
he

ft Moto
rin

g

Rac
ial

ly 
Agg

ra
va

ted
Ars

on

Dom
es

tic
 B

ur
gla

ry

Fra
ud

 an
d F

or
ge

ry Gran
d T

otal

S
h

ro
p

sh
ir

e
 c

o
u

rt
 S

e
n

te
n

ce
s 

b
y 

ty
p

e
 o

f 
o

ff
e

n
ce

05101520253035404550

Viol
en

ce
 A

ga
ins

t th
e P

er
so

n

Bre
ac

h o
f S

tat
uto

ry 
Ord

er

Crim
ina

l D
amag

e

The
ft a

nd
 H

an
dli

ng
Moto

rin
g

Othe
r

Non
 D

om
es

tic
 B

urg
lar

y

Dom
es

tic
 B

ur
gla

ry
Sex

ua
l

Pub
lic

 O
rde

r

Bre
ac

h o
f B

ail
Dru

gs
Rob

be
ry

107



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
31

 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 A
g

ai
n

st
 N

at
io

n
al

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
 (i)

 F
irs

t T
im

e 
E

nt
ra

nt
s 

 T
he

 f
irs

t 
tim

e 
en

tr
an

t 
m

ea
su

re
 is

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 a

s 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 f
irs

t 
tim

e 
en

tr
an

ts
 p

er
 1

00
,0

00
 o

f 
10

 t
o 

17
 y

ea
r 

ol
d 

po
pu

la
tio

n.
 F

irs
t 

tim
e 

en
tr

an
ts

 a
re

 t
ho

se
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
a 

fir
st

 f
or

m
al

 y
ou

th
 j

us
tic

e 
sa

nc
tio

n 
(p

rio
r 

to
 0

1.
04

.1
3 

th
es

e 
w

er
e 

a 
R

ep
rim

an
d,

 
F

in
al

 W
ar

ni
ng

 o
r 

C
on

vi
ct

io
n,

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 a

 Y
ou

th
 C

au
tio

n,
 C

on
di

tio
na

l 
C

au
tio

n 
or

 C
on

vi
ct

io
n)

. 
G

oo
d 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 i
s 

in
di

ct
ed

 b
y 

a 
lo

w
er

 r
at

e 
 

In
 t

he
 y

ea
r 

en
di

ng
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

13
 t

he
re

 w
er

e 
32

9 
fir

st
 t

im
e 

en
tr

an
ts

 p
er

 
10

0,
00

0 
yo

ut
h 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
in

 S
hr

op
sh

ire
, r

ep
re

se
nt

in
g 

a 
re

du
ct

io
n 

of
 -

71
.4

%
 

si
nc

e 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
in

g 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

08
. T

hi
s 

co
m

pa
re

s 
w

ith
 a

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
fo

r 
E

ng
la

nd
 o

f 
-7

1.
6%

 a
nd

 f
or

 W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
of

 -
66

.7
%

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

pe
rio

d.
 

T
he

 a
ct

ua
l n

um
be

r 
of

 fi
rs

t t
im

e 
en

tr
an

ts
 in

 th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

in
g 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
13

 
is

 9
5,

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 3
59

 in
 2

00
8.

 
 A

t 
32

9 
S

hr
op

sh
ire

 h
as

 t
he

 l
ow

es
t 

ra
te

 o
f 

F
T

E
s 

ac
ro

ss
 W

es
t 

M
er

ci
a.

 T
hi

s 
ra

te
 is

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 lo
w

er
 t

ha
n 

th
e 

ot
he

r 
ar

ea
s 

in
 W

es
t 

M
er

ci
a 

w
ith

 t
he

 n
ex

t 
lo

w
es

t 
ra

te
 b

ei
ng

 5
04

, 
an

d 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 lo

w
er

 t
ha

n 
th

e 
pr

ev
io

us
 y

ea
r 

w
he

n 
th

e 
ra

te
 w

as
 5

53
.  

 A
na

ly
si

s 
is

 p
la

nn
ed

 fo
r 

14
/1

5 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

th
e 

fa
ct

or
s 

th
at

 
ha

ve
 

co
nt

rib
ut

ed
 

to
 

th
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 
F

T
E

s 
in

 
S

hr
op

sh
ire

 in
 th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
in

g 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

13
. 

 (ii
) 

U
se

 o
f C

us
to

dy
 

 T
he

 u
se

 o
f c

us
to

dy
 m

ea
su

re
 is

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 a

s 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 c
us

to
di

al
 s

en
te

nc
es

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 o

f 1
0 

to
 1

7 
ye

ar
 p

op
ul

at
io

n,
 a

 lo
w

er
 r

at
e 

in
di

ca
te

s 
be

tte
r 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

. S
hr

op
sh

ire
 h

as
, h

is
to

ric
al

ly
, h

ad
 a

 lo
w

 r
at

e 
of

 c
us

to
di

al
 s

en
te

nc
es

.  
 T

he
re

 w
er

e 
3 

cu
st

od
ia

l 
se

nt
en

ce
s 

du
rin

g 
20

13
, 

eq
ua

tin
g 

to
 a

 r
at

e 
of

 0
.1

 c
us

to
di

al
 s

en
te

nc
es

 p
er

 1
00

0 
yo

ut
h 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
th

is
 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 a

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 c
us

to
di

al
 s

en
te

nc
es

 f
ro

m
 2

01
2 

w
he

re
 t

he
re

 w
er

e 
5 

cu
st

od
ia

l s
en

te
nc

es
 e

qu
at

in
g 

to
 a

 r
at

e 
of

 0
.1

7.
 T

he
 

20
13

 r
at

e 
of

 0
.3

%
 c

om
pa

re
s 

to
 a

 W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
ra

te
 o

f 
0.

27
 a

nd
 a

 n
at

io
na

l r
at

e 
of

 0
.6

7.
 C

us
to

di
al

 s
en

te
nc

es
 a

cc
ou

nt
ed

 fo
r 

5.
1%

 o
f 

al
l c

ou
rt

 o
ut

co
m

es
 in

 S
hr

op
sh

ire
, c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 6

.5
%

 o
f a

ll 
co

ur
t o

ut
co

m
es

 a
cr

os
s 

W
es

t M
er

ci
a.

 

F
ir

st
 T

im
e 

E
n

tr
an

ts
 p

er
 1

00
,0

00
 Y

o
u

th
 P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 -

 S
h

ro
p

sh
ir

e

0

20
0

40
0

60
0

80
0

10
00

12
00

14
00

16
00

18
00

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

in
g

 S
ep

te
m

b
er

 

FTE/100,000 Youth Population

S
hr

op
sh

ire
W

es
t M

er
ci

a
E

ng
la

nd

108



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
32

 

(ii
i) 

R
e-

O
ffe

nd
in

g 
 T

he
re

 a
re

 t
w

o 
re

-o
ffe

nd
in

g 
m

ea
su

re
s,

 b
ot

h 
m

ea
su

rin
g 

re
-o

ffe
nd

in
g 

in
 t

he
 

sa
m

e 
co

ho
rt

 o
f 

of
fe

nd
er

s 
ov

er
 a

 1
2 

m
on

th
 p

er
io

d 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

yo
ut

h 
ju

st
ic

e 
sa

nc
tio

n 
th

at
 p

la
ce

d 
th

e 
yo

un
g 

pe
rs

on
 i

n 
th

e 
co

ho
rt

. 
T

he
 f

irs
t, 

th
e 

fr
eq

ue
nc

y 
m

ea
su

re
, i

s 
th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 r
e-

of
fe

nc
es

 p
er

 o
ffe

nd
er

 in
 th

e 
co

ho
rt

. T
he

 
se

co
nd

 m
ea

su
re

, t
he

 b
in

ar
y 

m
ea

su
re

, i
s 

th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f t
he

 o
ffe

nd
er

s 
in

 th
e 

co
ho

rt
 r

e-
of

fe
nd

in
g.

 I
n 

bo
th

 c
as

es
 a

 l
ow

er
 r

at
e 

de
no

te
s 

be
tte

r 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
. 

T
he

 m
os

t 
re

ce
nt

 d
at

a 
fo

r 
th

e 
re

-o
ffe

nd
in

g 
m

ea
su

re
 i

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
in

g 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

2.
 

 T
he

 fr
eq

ue
nc

y 
m

ea
su

re
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 fo

r 
S

hr
op

sh
ire

 fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

in
g 

M
ar

ch
 

20
12

 is
 0

.9
2,

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 t
he

 W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f 
0.

96
 a

nd
 n

at
io

na
l 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
f 

1.
02

. 
S

hr
op

sh
ire

 is
, 

th
er

ef
or

e 
be

tte
r 

th
an

 f
or

 W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
an

d 
E

ng
la

nd
, 

w
hi

ch
 i

s 
a 

ch
an

ge
d 

pi
ct

ur
e 

fr
om

 t
he

 y
ea

r 
en

di
ng

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

w
he

n 
th

e 
fr

eq
ue

nc
y 

ra
te

 w
as

 0
.9

3 
w

hi
ch

 w
as

 s
lig

ht
ly

 w
or

se
 t

ha
n 

fo
r 

W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
(0

.8
9)

  
bu

t 
be

tte
r 

th
an

 f
or

 E
ng

la
nd

 (
1.

03
).

  
T

he
 f

re
qu

en
cy

 r
at

e 
na

tio
na

lly
 h

as
 

be
en

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 s

in
ce

 2
00

8.
 

 F
or

 t
he

 y
ea

r 
en

di
ng

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

th
e 

bi
na

ry
 m

ea
su

re
 f

or
 S

hr
op

sh
ire

 i
s 

34
.2

%
 

w
hi

ch
 e

qu
al

s 
th

e 
 W

es
t 

M
er

ci
a 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
f 

34
.2

%
 a

nd
 i

s 
be

tte
r 

th
an

 t
he

 
na

tio
na

l p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f 

35
.4

%
. I

t 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

no
te

d,
 h

ow
ev

er
, 

th
at

 a
lth

ou
gh

 th
e 

fr
eq

ue
nc

y 
an

d 
bi

na
ry

 r
at

es
 h

av
e 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
si

nc
e 

20
08

, t
he

 o
ve

ra
ll 

co
ho

rt
 s

iz
es

 
ar

e 
de

cr
ea

si
ng

 y
ea

r 
on

 y
ea

r.
 I

n 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
in

g 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

8 
th

er
e 

w
er

e 
70

9 
of

fe
nd

er
s 

in
 t

he
 c

oh
or

t 
an

d 
57

0 
re

-o
ffe

nc
es

 c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 a
 c

oh
or

t 
si

ze
 o

f 
30

4 
w

ith
 2

79
 r

e-
of

fe
nc

es
 in

 2
01

2.
 T

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 a
ct

ua
l r

e-
of

fe
nc

es
 h

as
 t

he
re

fo
re

 
de

cr
ea

se
d 

by
 -

51
%

 b
et

w
ee

n 
20

08
 a

nd
 2

01
2.

  
 In

cr
ea

si
ng

 r
at

es
 a

re
 n

at
io

na
l p

ic
tu

re
 a

nd
 t

he
 Y

JB
 h

as
 n

ot
ed

 t
ha

t 
th

er
e 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 li
ttl

e 
ev

id
en

ce
 a

s 
to

 w
hy

 t
hi

s 
is

 h
ap

pe
ni

ng
. 

It 
is

 
th

ou
gh

t 
th

at
 i

n 
pa

rt
 i

t 
is

 d
ue

 t
o 

de
cr

ea
si

ng
 n

um
be

rs
 i

n 
co

ho
rt

s 
du

e 
to

 t
he

 d
iv

er
si

on
 o

f 
fir

st
 t

im
e 

of
fe

nd
er

s 
fr

om
 t

he
 f

or
m

al
 j

us
tic

e 
sy

st
em

, 
le

av
in

g 
a 

co
ho

rt
 o

f 
m

or
e 

se
rio

us
 a

nd
 c

om
pl

ex
 o

ffe
nd

er
s 

w
ho

 a
re

 m
or

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 r

e
-o

ffe
nd

. 
T

he
 Y

JB
 is

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 t

o 
w

or
k 

R
e-

O
ff

en
d

in
g

 F
re

q
u

en
cy

 In
d

ic
at

o
r

0

0.
2

0.
4

0.
6

0.
81

1.
2

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

in
g

 M
ar

ch

Frequency

S
hr

op
sh

ire
W

es
t M

er
ci

a
E

ng
la

nd

R
e-

O
ff

en
d

in
g

 -
 B

in
ar

y 
In

d
ic

at
o

r

20222426283032343638

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

in
g

 M
ar

ch

Percentage Re-Offending

S
hr

op
sh

ire
W

es
t M

er
ci

a
E

ng
la

nd

109



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
33

 

w
ith

 Y
O

T
s 

du
rin

g 
20

14
/1

5 
in

 o
rd

er
 t

o 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 m
or

e 
w

ha
t 

is
 d

riv
in

g 
th

e 
tr

en
d 

in
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 i

s 
la

un
ch

in
g 

a 
re

vi
se

d 
re

-
of

fe
nd

in
g 

to
ol

 k
it 

in
 th

e 
fir

st
 q

ua
rt

er
 o

f 1
4/

15
 to

 a
ss

is
t Y

O
T

s 
in

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 b

et
te

r 
th

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
ris

tic
s 

of
 th

ei
r 

co
ho

rt
s.

  
 Lo

ca
lly

 t
he

 W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

O
S

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 s

om
e 

an
al

ys
is

 in
 1

3/
14

, 
w

hi
ch

 s
ho

w
ed

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
f 

th
e 

co
ho

rt
s 

ha
d 

ch
an

g
ed

 o
ve

r 
tim

e,
 w

ith
 t

he
 p

ro
po

rt
io

n 
of

 o
ffe

nd
er

s 
in

 t
he

 c
oh

or
t 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 o

ut
 o

f 
co

ur
t 

di
sp

os
al

 d
ec

re
as

in
g 

be
tw

ee
n 

20
08

 a
nd

 2
01

2 
by

 1
0 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 p

oi
nt

s,
 w

hi
ls

t 
th

e 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

of
 th

os
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
co

m
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 c
us

to
di

al
 s

en
te

nc
es

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 b

y 
7 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 p

oi
nt

s.
 

F
ur

th
er

 a
na

ly
si

s 
is

 p
la

nn
ed

 in
 2

01
4/

15
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 in
fo

rm
 m

or
e 

ta
rg

et
ed

 w
or

k.
  

 E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
, T

ra
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 E

m
p

lo
ym

en
t 

 T
he

 Y
O

S
 h

as
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
m

ea
su

re
d 

w
he

th
er

 a
 y

ou
ng

 p
er

so
n 

is
 i

n 
fu

ll 
tim

e 
ed

uc
at

io
n,

 t
ra

in
in

g 
or

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
at

 t
he

 e
nd

 o
f 

th
ei

r 
or

de
r.

 T
he

 ta
bl

e 
be

lo
w

 o
ut

lin
es

 th
e 

re
su

lts
 fo

r 
20

12
/1

3.
   

  
T

he
 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
fo

r 
S

hr
op

sh
ire

 
fo

r 
sc

ho
ol

 
ag

e 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 is

 s
lig

ht
ly

 lo
w

er
 th

an
 fo

r 
W

es
t M

er
ci

a,
 b

ut
 fo

r 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 a

bo
ve

 s
ch

oo
l a

ge
 is

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 b
et

te
r.

   
   

It 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

no
te

d 
th

at
 t

ho
se

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
of

 s
ch

oo
l a

ge
 n

ot
 in

 f
ul

l t
im

e 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

ar
e 

no
t n

ec
es

sa
ril

y 
N

E
E

T
, 

bu
t 

ar
e 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
an

 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
w

hi
ch

 is
 n

ot
 2

5 
ho

ur
s 

a 
w

ee
k.

 
 L

o
o

ke
d

 A
ft

er
 C

h
ild

re
n

 
 A

t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 

20
13

 a
n 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f L

A
C

 o
n 

th
e 

Y
O

S
 c

as
e 

lo
ad

 w
as

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n.

 T
hi

s 
sh

ow
ed

 th
at

 o
f t

he
 to

ta
l c

as
e 

lo
ad

 o
f 

th
e 

S
hr

op
sh

ire
 Y

O
S

 T
ea

m
, 

50
%

 w
er

e 
lo

ok
ed

 a
fte

r 
ch

ild
re

n.
 A

t 
th

is
 p

oi
nt

 in
 t

im
e 

31
%

 o
f 

th
e 

ca
se

 lo
ad

 w
er

e 
LA

C
 f

ro
m

 o
th

er
 a

re
as

 
te

m
po

ra
ril

y 
pl

ac
ed

 in
 S

hr
op

sh
ire

.  
 T

he
 Y

O
S

 M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

an
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l r
ef

er
en

ce
 g

ro
up

 to
 a

na
ly

se
 th

e 
is

su
es

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
Y

O
S

 a
nd

 S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e 

in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 L

A
C

 a
nd

 C
ar

e 
Le

av
er

s 
an

d 
m

ak
e 

op
er

at
io

na
l r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 jo
in

t 
w

or
ki

ng
 t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
ou

tc
om

es
 

fo
r 

LA
C

 a
nd

 C
ar

e 
Le

av
er

s 
w

ho
 a

re
 in

 th
e 

yo
ut

h 
ju

st
ic

e 
sy

st
em

. 
  

S
hr

op
sh

ire
 

%
 in

 E
T

E
 

W
es

t M
er

ci
a 

%
 in

 E
T

E
 

Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
of

 S
ch

oo
l A

ge
 

67
%

 (
16

) 
73

%
  

Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
ab

ov
e 

S
ch

oo
l A

ge
 

77
%

 (
27

) 
59

%
  

O
ve

ra
ll 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
73

%
 (

43
) 

64
%

  

110



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
34

 

 A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

 -
 A

R
E

A
 P

R
O

F
IL

E
 –

 T
E

L
F

O
R

D
 A

N
D

 W
R

E
K

IN
 

 Y
o

u
th

 O
ff

en
d

in
g

 P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 –
 a

ll 
Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 
 T

he
re

 a
re

 1
7,

07
2 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 a
ge

d 
10

 t
o 

17
 i

n 
T

el
fo

rd
 a

nd
 W

re
ki

n.
 I

n 
20

13
 t

he
re

 w
er

e 
16

0
 y

ou
th

 j
us

tic
e 

sa
nc

tio
ns

 (
yo

ut
h 

ca
ut

io
ns

, 
yo

ut
h 

co
nd

iti
on

al
 c

au
tio

ns
 o

r 
co

nv
ic

tio
ns

) 
m

ad
e 

on
 T

el
fo

rd
 a

nd
 W

re
ki

n 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
. 

A
 t

ot
al

 o
f 

15
0 

in
di

vi
du

al
 y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

 a
cc

ou
nt

ed
 fo

r 
th

es
e 

16
0 

ou
tc

om
es

, 0
.9

%
 o

f t
he

 y
ou

th
 p

op
ul

at
io

n.
 

 
 O

f 
th

e 
15

0 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 e

nt
er

in
g 

or
 in

 t
he

 y
ou

th
 ju

st
ic

e 
sy

st
em

 in
 2

01
3,

 7
6%

 w
er

e 
m

al
e.

 T
he

 m
aj

or
ity

, 
77

%
, 

w
er

e 
ag

ed
 1

5 
to

 1
7 

ye
ar

s.
 T

he
 p

ea
k 

ag
e 

of
 o

ffe
nd

in
g 

fo
r 

bo
th

 y
ou

ng
 m

al
es

 a
nd

 y
ou

ng
 fe

m
al

es
 w

as
 1

7 
ye

ar
s.

 
 Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 –

  Y
o

u
n

g
 P

eo
p

le
 S

u
b

je
ct

 t
o

 O
u

t 
o

f 
C

o
u

rt
 D

is
p

o
sa

ls
 

 D
ur

in
g 

20
13

 th
er

e 
w

er
e 

a 
to

ta
l o

f 1
02

 p
re

-c
ou

rt
 d

is
po

sa
ls

 m
ad

e 
on

 T
el

fo
rd

 a
nd

 W
re

ki
n 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

, 9
 o

f t
he

se
 w

er
e 

R
ep

rim
an

ds
,  

13
 F

in
al

 W
ar

ni
ng

s,
 7

2 
Y

ou
th

 C
au

tio
ns

 a
nd

 8
 Y

ou
th

 C
on

di
tio

na
l C

au
tio

ns
. 

T
he

 Y
O

S
 is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 a
ss

es
s 

al
l y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

m
ad

e 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 F
in

al
 W

ar
ni

ng
s,

 s
ec

on
d 

an
d 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 Y

ou
th

 C
au

tio
ns

 a
nd

 Y
ou

th
 C

on
di

tio
na

l 
C

au
tio

ns
 a

nd
 i

f 
as

se
ss

ed
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 in
te

rv
en

tio
n,

 in
 2

01
3 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 w
er

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 fo

r 
25

 p
re

-c
ou

rt
 d

is
po

sa
ls

. 
 

 

T&
W

 o
ffe

nd
er

s 
by

 g
en

de
r Fe

ma
le

24
%

Ma
le

76
%

T
&

W
 O

ff
en

d
er

s 
b

y 
ag

e 
an

d
 g

en
d

er

05101520253035404550

11
yrs

 F
em

ale 11
yrs

 M
ale 12

yrs
 F

em
ale 12

yrs
 M

ale 13
yrs

 F
em

ale 13
yrs

 M
ale 14

yrs
 F

em
ale 14

yrs
 M

ale 15
yrs

 F
em

ale 15
yrs

 M
ale 16

yrs
 F

em
ale 16

yrs
 M

ale 17
yrs

 F
em

ale 17
yrs

 M
ale

T&
W

 O
ffe

nd
er

s 
by

 A
ge

17
 ye

ar
s

16
 ye

ar
s

15
 ye

ar
s

14
 ye

ar
s

13
 ye

ar
s

12
 ye

ar
s

11
 ye

ar
s

111



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
35

 

             T
he

 m
os

t f
re

qu
en

tly
 o

cc
ur

rin
g 

pr
im

ar
y 

of
fe

nc
e 

fo
r 

ou
t o

f c
ou

rt
 d

is
po

sa
ls

 w
as

 v
io

le
nc

e 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 p
er

so
n,

 3
7%

, f
ol

lo
w

ed
 b

y 
cr

im
in

al
 

da
m

ag
e,

 1
8%

, t
he

ft 
an

d 
ha

nd
lin

g,
 1

7%
, d

ru
g 

of
fe

nc
es

 9
%

 a
nd

 p
ub

lic
 o

rd
er

 6
%

.  
 

 Y
o

u
th

 O
ff

en
d

in
g

 P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 –
  Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 S
u

b
je

ct
 t

o
 C

o
u

rt
 O

u
tc

o
m

es
 

 
In

 2
01

3 
a 

to
ta

l o
f 

43
 T

el
fo

rd
 a

nd
 W

re
ki

n 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 a

cc
ou

nt
ed

 f
or

 5
5

 
co

ur
t 

ou
tc

om
es

. 
O

rd
er

s 
re

qu
iri

ng
 Y

O
S

 i
nt

er
ve

nt
io

ns
 (

R
ef

er
ra

l 
O

rd
er

s,
 

Y
R

O
s 

an
d 

C
us

to
di

al
 

se
nt

en
ce

s)
 

ac
co

un
te

d 
fo

r 
45

 
of

 
th

e 
55

 
co

ur
t 

ou
tc

om
es

.  
 T

he
 m

aj
or

ity
, 

85
%

 o
f 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 r
ec

ei
vi

ng
 c

ou
rt

 s
en

te
nc

es
 w

er
e 

ag
ed

 
15

 t
o 

17
, 

w
ith

 1
7 

ye
ar

 o
ld

s 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

fo
r 

ha
lf 

(5
0%

) 
of

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
re

ce
iv

in
g 

a 
co

ur
t s

en
te

nc
e.

  
 T

he
 m

os
t 

fr
eq

ue
nt

ly
 o

cc
ur

rin
g 

of
fe

nc
e 

fo
r 

co
ur

t 
se

nt
en

ce
s 

w
as

 v
io

le
nc

e 
ag

ai
ns

t 
th

e 
pe

rs
on

, 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

fo
r 

19
%

 o
f 

al
l o

ut
co

m
es

. 
S

ex
ua

l o
ffe

nc
es

 
w

er
e 

th
e 

ne
xt

 
m

os
t 

fr
eq

ue
nt

ly
 

oc
cu

rr
in

g 
of

fe
nc

es
, 

16
%

, 
fo

llo
w

ed
 

by
 

cr
im

in
al

 d
am

ag
e,

 1
3%

 a
nd

 th
ef

t a
nd

 h
an

dl
in

g 
11

%
. T

he
se

 fo
ur

 c
at

eg
or

ie
s 

of
 o

ffe
nc

es
 a

cc
ou

nt
ed

 fo
r 

59
%

 o
f a

ll 
se

nt
en

ci
ng

 o
ut

co
m

es
. 

T
&

W
 O

u
t 

o
f 

C
o

u
rt

 D
is

p
o

sa
ls

 b
y 

O
ff

en
ce

 T
yp

e

0510152025303540

Viol
en

ce
 A

ga
ins

t t
he

 P
er

so
n Crim

ina
l D

am
ag

e
The

ft a
nd

 H
an

dli
ng

Dru
gs

Pub
lic

 O
rd

er

Moto
rin

g

Sex
ua

l
Dom

es
tic

 B
ur

gla
ry

Arso
n

Fra
ud

 an
d F

or
ge

ry

Non
 D

om
es

tic
 B

ur
gla

ry

Othe
r

Rac
ial

ly 
Agg

ra
va

ted
Veh

icl
e T

he
ft

T
&

W
 S

en
te

nc
es

 b
y 

ty
pe

 o
f o

ff
en

ce

051015202530354045

Sex
ua

l

Crim
ina

l D
amag

e

The
ft a

nd
 H

an
dli

ng

Bre
ac

h o
f S

tat
uto

ry 
Ord

er Pub
lic

 O
rde

r

Dom
es

tic
 B

ur
gla

ry Moto
rin

g
Othe

r
Bre

ac
h o

f B
ail

Non
 D

om
es

tic
 B

urg
lar

y
Veh

icl
e T

he
ft

Dru
gs

Rob
be

ry

112



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
36

 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 A
g

ai
n

st
 N

at
io

n
al

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
 (i)

 F
irs

t T
im

e 
E

nt
ra

nt
s 

 T
he

 f
irs

t 
tim

e 
en

tr
an

t 
m

ea
su

re
 is

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 a

s 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 f
irs

t 
tim

e 
en

tr
an

ts
 p

er
 1

00
,0

00
 o

f 
10

 t
o 

17
 y

ea
r 

o
ld

 p
op

ul
at

io
n.

 F
irs

t 
tim

e 
en

tr
an

ts
 a

re
 t

ho
se

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
re

ce
iv

in
g 

a 
fir

st
 f

or
m

al
 y

ou
th

 j
us

tic
e 

sa
nc

tio
n 

(p
rio

r 
to

 0
1.

04
.1

3 
th

es
e 

w
er

e 
a 

R
ep

rim
an

d,
 

F
in

al
 W

ar
ni

ng
 o

r 
C

on
vi

ct
io

n,
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 a
 Y

ou
th

 C
au

tio
n,

 C
on

di
tio

na
l 

C
au

tio
n 

or
 C

on
vi

ct
io

n)
. 

G
oo

d 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 i

s 
in

di
ct

ed
 b

y 
a 

lo
w

er
 r

at
e.

 
 In

 t
he

 y
ea

r 
en

di
ng

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
13

 t
he

re
 w

er
e 

50
4 

fir
st

 t
im

e 
en

tr
an

ts
 p

er
 

10
0,

00
0 

yo
ut

h 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

in
 T

el
fo

rd
 a

nd
 W

re
ki

n,
 r

ep
re

se
nt

in
g 

a 
re

du
ct

io
n 

of
 -

75
.6

%
 

si
nc

e 
th

e 
ye

ar
 

en
di

ng
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
08

. 
T

hi
s 

co
m

pa
re

s 
w

ith
 

a 
re

du
ct

io
n 

fo
r 

E
ng

la
nd

 o
f 

-7
1.

6%
 a

nd
 f

or
 W

es
t 

M
er

ci
a 

of
 -

66
.7

%
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
pe

rio
d.

 T
he

 a
ct

ua
l 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 f

irs
t 

tim
e 

en
tr

an
ts

 i
n 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

in
g 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
13

 is
 8

6,
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 3

81
 in

 2
00

8.
 

 A
t 

50
4 

T
el

fo
rd

 a
nd

 W
re

ki
n 

ha
s 

se
co

nd
 l

ow
es

t 
ra

te
 o

f 
F

T
E

s 
ac

ro
ss

 W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a,
 th

e 
ne

xt
 h

ig
he

st
 r

at
e 

be
in

g 
53

5 
an

d 
th

e 
hi

gh
es

t 5
89

.  
 

   
 (ii

) 
U

se
 o

f C
us

to
dy

 
 T

he
 u

se
 o

f c
us

to
dy

 m
ea

su
re

 is
 e

xp
re

ss
ed

 a
s 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 c

us
to

di
al

 s
en

te
nc

es
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 o
f 1

0 
to

 1
7 

ye
ar

 p
op

ul
at

io
n,

 a
 lo

w
er

 r
at

e 
in

di
ca

te
s 

be
tte

r 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
. T

el
fo

rd
 a

nd
 W

re
ki

n 
ha

s,
 h

is
to

ric
al

ly
, h

ad
 a

 lo
w

 r
at

e 
of

 c
us

to
di

al
 s

en
te

nc
es

.  
 T

he
re

 w
er

e 
8 

cu
st

od
ia

l 
se

nt
en

ce
s 

du
rin

g 
20

13
, 

eq
ua

tin
g 

to
 a

 r
at

e 
of

 0
.4

8 
cu

st
od

ia
l 

se
nt

en
ce

s 
pe

r 
10

00
 y

ou
th

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

th
is

 
re

pr
es

en
ts

 a
 s

lig
ht

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 c

us
to

di
al

 s
en

te
nc

es
 f

ro
m

 2
01

2 
w

he
re

 t
he

re
 w

er
e 

6 
cu

st
od

ia
l s

en
te

nc
es

 e
qu

at
in

g 
to

 a
 r

at
e 

of
 0

.3
5.

 
T

he
 2

01
3 

ra
te

 o
f 

0.
48

%
 c

om
pa

re
s 

to
 a

 W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
ra

te
 o

f 
0.

27
 a

nd
 a

 n
at

io
na

l 
ra

te
 o

f 
0.

67
. 

C
us

to
di

al
 s

en
te

nc
es

 a
cc

ou
nt

ed
 f

or
 

14
%

 o
f a

ll 
co

ur
t o

ut
co

m
es

 in
 T

el
fo

rd
 a

nd
 W

re
ki

n,
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 6

.5
%

 o
f a

ll 
co

ur
t o

ut
co

m
es

 a
cr

os
s 

W
es

t M
er

ci
a.

 
 

F
ir

st
 T

im
e 

E
n

tr
an

ts
 p

er
 1

00
,0

00
 Y

o
u

th
 P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 -

 T
el

fo
rd

 a
n

d
 W

re
ki

n

40
0

60
0

80
0

10
00

12
00

14
00

16
00

18
00

20
00

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

in
g

 S
ep

te
m

b
er

FTEs/100,000 Youth Population

T
&

W
W

es
t M

er
ci

a
E

ng
la

nd

113



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
37

 

(ii
i) 

R
e-

O
ffe

nd
in

g 
 T

he
re

 a
re

 t
w

o 
re

-o
ffe

nd
in

g 
m

ea
su

re
s,

 b
ot

h 
m

ea
su

rin
g 

re
-o

ffe
nd

in
g 

in
 t

he
 

sa
m

e 
co

ho
rt

 o
f 

of
fe

nd
er

s 
ov

er
 a

 1
2 

m
on

th
 p

er
io

d 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

yo
ut

h 
ju

st
ic

e 
sa

nc
tio

n 
th

at
 p

la
ce

d 
th

e 
yo

un
g 

pe
rs

on
 i

n 
th

e 
co

ho
rt

. 
T

he
 f

irs
t, 

th
e 

fr
eq

ue
nc

y 
m

ea
su

re
, i

s 
th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 r
e-

of
fe

nc
es

 p
er

 o
ffe

nd
er

 in
 th

e 
co

ho
rt

. T
he

 
se

co
nd

 m
ea

su
re

, t
he

 b
in

ar
y 

m
ea

su
re

, i
s 

th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f t
he

 o
ffe

nd
er

s 
in

 th
e 

co
ho

rt
 r

e-
of

fe
nd

in
g.

 I
n 

bo
th

 c
as

es
 a

 l
ow

er
 r

at
e 

de
no

te
s 

be
tte

r 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
. 

T
he

 m
os

t 
re

ce
nt

 d
at

a 
fo

r 
th

e 
re

-o
ffe

nd
in

g 
m

ea
su

re
 i

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
in

g 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

2.
 

 T
he

 f
re

qu
en

cy
 m

ea
su

re
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 f

or
 T

el
fo

rd
 a

nd
 W

re
ki

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 

en
di

ng
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

2 
is

 0
.8

5,
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 th

e 
W

es
t M

er
ci

a 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f 0
.9

6 
an

d 
na

tio
na

l p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f 

1.
02

. T
el

fo
rd

 a
nd

 W
re

ki
n 

is
, t

he
re

fo
re

, p
er

fo
rm

in
g 

be
tte

r 
th

an
 fo

r 
W

es
t M

er
ci

a 
an

d 
E

ng
la

nd
. T

he
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 is

 a
n 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 t
he

 y
ea

r 
en

di
ng

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
1 

w
he

n 
th

e 
fr

eq
ue

nc
y 

ra
te

 w
as

 0
.9

0 
w

hi
ch

 w
as

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 W

es
t 

M
er

ci
a 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 (
0.

89
) 

an
d 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 b
et

te
r 

th
an

 fo
r 

E
ng

la
nd

 (
1.

03
).

   
 

 F
or

 t
he

 y
ea

r 
en

di
ng

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

th
e 

bi
na

ry
 m

ea
su

re
 f

or
 T

el
fo

rd
 a

nd
 W

re
ki

n 
is

 
32

.7
%

 c
om

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 a

 W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f 
34

.2
%

 a
nd

 a
 n

at
io

na
l 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
of

 
35

.4
%

. 
It 

sh
ou

ld
 

be
 

no
te

d 
th

e 
ov

er
al

l 
co

ho
rt

 
si

ze
s 

ar
e 

de
cr

ea
si

ng
 y

ea
r 

on
 y

ea
r.

 I
n 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

in
g 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
8 

th
er

e 
w

er
e 

70
9 

of
fe

nd
er

s 
in

 t
he

 c
oh

or
t 

an
d 

57
0 

re
-o

ffe
nc

es
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 a

 c
oh

or
t 

si
ze

 o
f 

30
4 

w
ith

 2
79

 r
e-

of
fe

nc
es

 in
 2

01
2.

 T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 a

ct
ua

l r
e-

of
fe

nc
es

 h
av

e 
th

er
ef

or
e 

de
cr

ea
se

d 
by

 -
51

%
 b

et
w

ee
n 

20
08

 a
nd

 2
01

2.
  

 
In

cr
ea

si
ng

 r
at

es
 a

re
 n

at
io

na
l p

ic
tu

re
 a

nd
 t

he
 Y

JB
 h

as
 n

ot
ed

 t
ha

t 
th

er
e 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 li
ttl

e 
ev

id
en

ce
 a

s 
to

 w
hy

 t
hi

s 
is

 h
ap

pe
ni

ng
. 

It 
is

 
th

ou
gh

t 
th

at
 i

n 
pa

rt
 i

t 
is

 d
ue

 t
o 

de
cr

ea
si

ng
 n

um
be

rs
 i

n 
co

ho
rt

s 
du

e 
to

 t
he

 d
iv

er
si

on
 o

f 
fir

st
 t

im
e 

of
fe

nd
er

s 
fr

om
 t

he
 f

or
m

al
 j

us
tic

e 
sy

st
em

, 
le

av
in

g 
a 

co
ho

rt
 o

f 
m

or
e 

se
rio

us
 a

nd
 c

om
pl

ex
 o

ffe
nd

er
s 

w
ho

 a
re

 m
or

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 r

e
-o

ffe
nd

. 
T

he
 Y

JB
 is

 c
on

tin
ui

ng
 t

o 
w

or
k 

w
ith

 Y
O

T
s 

du
rin

g 
20

14
/1

5 
in

 o
rd

er
 t

o 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 m
or

e 
w

ha
t 

is
 d

riv
in

g 
th

e 
tr

en
d 

in
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 i

s 
la

un
ch

in
g 

a 
re

vi
se

d 
re

-
of

fe
nd

in
g 

to
ol

 k
it 

in
 th

e 
fir

st
 q

ua
rt

er
 o

f 1
4/

15
 to

 a
ss

is
t Y

O
T

s 
in

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 b

et
te

r 
th

e 
ch

ar
ac

te
ris

tic
s 

of
 th

ei
r 

co
ho

rt
s.

  

R
e-

O
ff

en
d

in
g

 -
 F

re
q

u
en

cy
 In

d
ic

at
o

r

0

0.
2

0.
4

0.
6

0.
81

1.
2

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

in
g

 M
ar

ch

Frequency

T
&

W
W

es
t M

er
ci

a
E

ng
la

nd

R
e-

O
ff

en
d

in
g

 -
 B

in
ar

y 
In

d
ic

at
o

r

2022242628303234363840

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

in
g

 M
ar

ch

Percentage Re-Offending

T
&

W
W

es
t M

er
ci

a
E

ng
la

nd

114



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
38

 

 Lo
ca

lly
 t

he
 W

es
t 

M
er

ci
a 

Y
O

S
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 s
om

e 
an

al
ys

is
 in

 1
3/

14
, 

w
hi

ch
 s

ho
w

ed
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

na
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e 
co

ho
rt

s 
ha

d 
ch

an
ge

d 
ov

er
 

tim
e,

 w
ith

 t
he

 p
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 o

ffe
nd

er
s 

in
 t

he
 c

oh
or

t 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 o
ut

 o
f 

co
ur

t 
di

sp
os

al
 d

ec
re

as
in

g 
be

tw
ee

n 
20

08
 a

nd
 2

01
2 

by
 1

0 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 p
oi

nt
s,

 w
hi

ls
t 

th
e 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 th
os

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

co
m

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 c

us
to

di
al

 s
en

te
nc

es
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 b
y 

7 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 p
oi

nt
s.

 
F

ur
th

er
 a

na
ly

si
s 

is
 p

la
nn

ed
 in

 2
01

4/
15

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 in

fo
rm

 m
or

e 
ta

rg
et

ed
 w

or
k.

  
 E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

, T
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 E
m

p
lo

ym
en

t 
 T

he
 Y

O
S

 h
as

 p
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

m
ea

su
re

d 
w

he
th

er
 a

 y
ou

ng
 p

er
so

n 
is

 i
n 

fu
ll 

tim
e 

ed
uc

at
io

n,
 t

ra
in

in
g 

or
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

at
 t

he
 e

nd
 o

f 
th

ei
r 

or
de

r.
 T

he
 ta

bl
e 

be
lo

w
 o

ut
lin

es
 th

e 
re

su
lts

 fo
r 

20
12

/1
3.

   
  

T
he

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 f
or

 T
el

fo
rd

 a
nd

 W
re

ki
n 

fo
r 

bo
th

 s
ch

oo
l 

ag
e 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

, 
an

d 
th

os
e 

ab
ov

e 
sc

ho
ol

 a
ge

 i
s 

be
tte

r 
th

an
 fo

r W
es

t M
er

ci
a.

   
   

It 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

no
te

d 
th

at
 t

ho
se

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
of

 s
ch

oo
l a

ge
 n

ot
 in

 f
ul

l t
im

e 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

ar
e 

no
t n

ec
es

sa
ril

y 
N

E
E

T
, 

bu
t 

ar
e 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
an

 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
w

hi
ch

 is
 n

ot
 2

5 
ho

ur
s 

a 
w

ee
k.

 
  L

o
o

ke
d

 A
ft

er
 C

h
ild

re
n

 
 A

t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 

20
13

 a
n 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f L

A
C

 o
n 

th
e 

Y
O

S
 c

as
e 

lo
ad

 w
as

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n.

 T
hi

s 
sh

ow
ed

 th
at

 o
f t

he
 to

ta
l c

as
e 

lo
ad

 o
f 

th
e 

T
el

fo
rd

 a
nd

 W
re

ki
n 

Y
O

S
 T

ea
m

, 4
7%

 w
er

e 
lo

ok
ed

 a
fte

r 
ch

ild
re

n.
 A

t t
hi

s 
po

in
t i

n 
tim

e 
17

%
 o

f t
he

 c
as

e 
lo

ad
 w

er
e 

LA
C

 fr
om

 o
th

er
 

ar
ea

s 
te

m
po

ra
ril

y 
pl

ac
ed

 in
 T

el
fo

rd
 a

nd
 W

re
ki

n.
  

 T
he

 Y
O

S
 M

an
ag

em
en

t B
oa

rd
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
an

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l r

ef
er

en
ce

 g
ro

up
 to

 a
na

ly
se

 th
e 

is
su

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

Y
O

S
 a

nd
 S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 
in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 L
A

C
 a

nd
 C

ar
e 

Le
av

er
s 

an
d 

m
ak

e 
op

er
at

io
na

l r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 jo

in
t 

w
or

ki
ng

 t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

ou
tc

om
es

 
fo

r 
LA

C
 a

nd
 C

ar
e 

Le
av

er
s 

w
ho

 a
re

 in
 th

e 
yo

ut
h 

ju
st

ic
e 

sy
st

em
. 

    
T

el
fo

rd
 

%
 in

 E
T

E
 

W
es

t M
er

ci
a 

%
 in

 E
T

E
 

Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
of

 S
ch

oo
l A

ge
 

77
%

 (
40

) 
73

%
  

Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
ab

ov
e 

S
ch

oo
l A

ge
 

73
%

 (
47

) 
59

%
  

O
ve

ra
ll 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
75

%
 (

87
) 

64
%

  

115



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
39

 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 4

 -
 A

R
E

A
 P

R
O

F
IL

E
 –

 W
O

R
C

E
S

T
E

R
S

H
IR

E
 

 Y
o

u
th

 O
ff

en
d

in
g

 P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 –
 a

ll 
Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 
  T

he
re

 a
re

 5
2,

28
0 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 a
ge

d 
10

 t
o 

17
 in

 W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
. 

In
 2

01
3 

th
er

e 
w

er
e 

56
1 

yo
ut

h 
ju

st
ic

e 
sa

nc
tio

ns
 (

yo
ut

h 
ca

ut
io

ns
, 

yo
ut

h 
co

nd
iti

on
al

 c
au

tio
ns

 o
r 

co
nv

ic
tio

ns
) 

m
ad

e 
on

 W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e.

 A
 to

ta
l o

f 4
49

 in
di

vi
du

al
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

ac
co

un
te

d 
fo

r 
th

es
e 

56
1 

ou
tc

om
es

, 0
.8

6%
 o

f t
he

 y
ou

th
 p

op
ul

at
io

n.
 

 O
f 

th
e 

44
9 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 e
nt

er
in

g 
or

 in
 t

he
 y

ou
th

 ju
st

ic
e 

sy
st

em
 in

 2
01

3,
 7

8%
 w

er
e 

m
al

e.
 T

he
 m

aj
or

ity
, 

74
%

, 
w

er
e 

ag
ed

 1
5 

to
 1

7 
ye

ar
s.

 T
he

 p
ea

k 
ag

e 
of

 o
ffe

nd
in

g 
fo

r 
bo

th
 y

ou
ng

 m
al

es
 a

nd
 y

ou
ng

 fe
m

al
es

 w
as

 1
7 

ye
ar

s.
 

 Y
o

u
th

 O
ff

en
d

in
g

 P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 –
  Y

o
u

n
g

 P
eo

p
le

 S
u

b
je

ct
 t

o
 O

u
t 

o
f 

C
o

u
rt

 D
is

p
o

sa
ls

 
 D

ur
in

g 
20

13
 t

he
re

 w
er

e 
a 

to
ta

l o
f 

33
4 

pr
e-

co
ur

t 
di

sp
os

al
s 

m
ad

e 
on

 W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e,

 4
7 

of
 t

he
se

 w
er

e 
R

ep
rim

an
ds

,  
19

 F
in

al
 W

ar
ni

ng
s,

 2
52

 Y
ou

th
 C

au
tio

ns
 a

nd
 1

6 
Y

ou
th

 C
on

di
tio

na
l C

au
tio

ns
. T

he
 Y

O
S

 is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 a

ss
es

s 
al

l y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
m

ad
e 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 F

in
al

 W
ar

ni
ng

s,
 s

ec
on

d 
an

d 
su

bs
eq

ue
nt

 Y
ou

th
 C

au
tio

ns
 a

nd
 Y

ou
th

 C
on

di
tio

na
l 

C
au

tio
ns

 a
nd

 i
f 

as
se

ss
ed

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n,
 in

 2
01

3 
in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 w

er
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 fo
r 

79
 p

re
-c

ou
rt

 d
is

po
sa

ls
. 

 
 

W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ir
e 

of
fe

nd
er

s 
by

 
ge

nd
er

Fe
m

al
e

22
%

M
al

e
78

%

W
o

rc
e

s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 o
ff

e
n

d
e

rs
 b

y 
ag

e
11

y
3%

14
y

12
%

15
y

17
%

16
y

27
%

17
y

29
%

10
y

1%
12

y
3%

13
y

8%

W
o

rc
es

te
rs

h
ir

e 
O

ff
en

d
er

s 
b

y 
ag

e 
an

d
 g

en
d

er

02040608010
0

12
0

10
Fem

ale
10

Male 11
Fem

ale
11

Male 12
Fem

ale
12

Male 13
Fem

ale
13

Male 14
Fem

ale
14

Male 15
Fem

ale
15

Male 16
Fem

ale
16

Male 17
Fem

ale
17

Male

116



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
40

 

             T
he

 m
os

t 
fr

eq
ue

nt
ly

 o
cc

ur
rin

g 
pr

im
ar

y 
of

fe
nc

e 
fo

r 
ou

t 
of

 c
ou

rt
 d

is
po

sa
ls

 w
as

 v
io

le
nc

e 
ag

ai
ns

t 
th

e 
pe

rs
on

, 
27

%
, 

fo
llo

w
ed

 d
ru

g 
of

fe
nc

es
, 2

4%
, t

he
ft 

an
d 

ha
nd

lin
g,

 1
8%

, p
ub

lic
 o

rd
er

 9
%

 a
nd

 c
rim

in
al

 d
am

ag
e 

8%
.  

 
 Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 –

  Y
o

u
n

g
 P

eo
p

le
 S

u
b

je
ct

 t
o

 C
o

u
rt

 O
u

tc
o

m
es

 
 

In
 2

01
3 

a 
to

ta
l o

f 
15

8 
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
ac

co
un

te
d 

fo
r 

22
7 

co
ur

t 
ou

tc
om

es
. 

O
rd

er
s 

re
qu

iri
ng

 Y
O

S
 i

nt
er

ve
nt

io
ns

 (
R

ef
er

ra
l 

O
rd

er
s,

 Y
R

O
s 

an
d 

C
us

to
di

al
 s

en
te

nc
es

) 
ac

co
un

te
d 

fo
r 

16
5 

of
 th

e 
22

7 
co

ur
t o

ut
co

m
es

.  
 T

he
 m

aj
or

ity
, 

86
%

 o
f 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 r
ec

ei
vi

ng
 c

ou
rt

 s
en

te
nc

es
 w

er
e 

ag
ed

 1
5 

to
 1

7,
 w

ith
 1

7 
ye

ar
 o

ld
s 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
fo

r 
39

%
 o

f y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
re

ce
iv

in
g 

a 
co

ur
t 

se
nt

en
ce

.  
 T

he
 

m
os

t 
fr

eq
ue

nt
ly

 
oc

cu
rr

in
g 

pr
im

ar
y 

of
fe

nc
e 

fo
r 

co
ur

t 
se

nt
en

ce
s 

w
as

 
vi

ol
en

ce
 a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
pe

rs
on

, a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

fo
r 

24
%

 o
f a

ll 
ou

tc
om

es
. B

re
ac

h 
of

 a
 

st
at

ut
or

y 
or

de
r 

w
as

 t
he

 n
ex

t 
fr

eq
ue

nt
ly

 o
cc

ur
rin

g 
of

fe
nc

e,
 1

3%
, 

fo
llo

w
ed

 b
y 

th
ef

t 
an

d 
ha

nd
lin

g,
 1

2%
 a

nd
 t

he
ft 

an
d 

cr
im

in
al

 d
am

ag
e 

9%
. 

T
he

se
 f

ou
r 

ca
te

go
rie

s 
of

 o
ffe

nc
es

 a
cc

ou
nt

ed
 fo

r 
58

%
 o

f a
ll 

se
nt

en
ci

ng
 o

ut
co

m
es

. 
 

W
o

rc
e

st
e

rs
h

ir
e

 o
u

t 
o

f 
co

u
rt

 d
is

p
o

sa
ls

 b
y 

o
ff

e
n

ce
 t

yp
e

010203040506070809010
0 Viol

en
ce

Dru
gs

The
ft a

nd
 H

an
dli

ng Pub
lic

 O
rde

r

Crim
ina

l D
amag

e
Othe

r
Sex

ua
l

Non
 D

om
es

tic
 B

urg
lar

y Rob
be

ry

Dom
es

tic
 B

ur
gla

ry

Rac
ial

ly 
Agg

ra
va

ted
Ars

on
Moto

rin
g

Fra
ud

 an
d F

or
ge

ry
Veh

icl
e T

he
ft

W
o

rc
e

st
e

rs
h

ir
e

 c
o

u
rt

 S
e

n
te

n
ce

s 
b

y 
ty

p
e

 o
f 

o
ff

e
n

ce

0102030405060 Viol
en

ce

Bre
ac

h o
f O

rd
er

The
ft a

nd
 H

an
dli

ng

Crim
ina

l D
amag

e
Pub

lic
 O

rde
r Moto

rin
g

Othe
r

Dru
gs

Veh
icl

e T
he

ft

Dom
es

tic
 B

ur
gla

ry
Sex

ua
l

Rac
ial

ly 
Agg

ra
va

ted
Rob

be
ry

Non
 D

om
es

tic
 B

urg
lar

y
Ars

on

117



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
41

 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 A
g

ai
n

st
 N

at
io

n
al

 In
d

ic
at

o
rs

 
 (i)

 F
irs

t T
im

e 
E

nt
ra

nt
s 

 T
he

 f
irs

t 
tim

e 
en

tr
an

t 
m

ea
su

re
 is

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 a

s 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 f
irs

t 
tim

e 
en

tr
an

ts
 p

er
 1

00
,0

00
 o

f 
10

 t
o 

17
 y

ea
r 

ol
d 

po
pu

la
tio

n.
 F

irs
t 

tim
e 

en
tr

an
ts

 a
re

 t
ho

se
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

re
ce

iv
in

g 
a 

fir
st

 f
or

m
al

 y
ou

th
 j

us
tic

e 
sa

nc
tio

n 
(p

rio
r 

to
 0

1.
04

.1
3 

th
es

e 
w

er
e 

a 
R

ep
rim

an
d,

 
F

in
al

 W
ar

ni
ng

 o
r 

C
on

vi
ct

io
n,

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 a

 Y
ou

th
 C

au
tio

n,
 C

on
di

tio
na

l 
C

au
tio

n 
or

 C
on

vi
ct

io
n)

. 
G

oo
d 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 i
s 

in
di

ct
ed

 b
y 

a 
lo

w
er

 r
at

e.
 

 
In

 t
he

 y
ea

r 
en

di
ng

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
13

 t
he

re
 w

er
e 

53
5 

fir
st

 t
im

e 
en

tr
an

ts
 p

er
 

10
0,

00
0 

yo
ut

h 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

in
 W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

, 
re

pr
es

en
tin

g 
a 

re
du

ct
io

n 
of

   
   

  
-6

1%
 

si
nc

e 
th

e 
ye

ar
 

en
di

ng
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
08

. 
T

hi
s 

co
m

pa
re

s 
w

ith
 

a 
re

du
ct

io
n 

fo
r 

E
ng

la
nd

 o
f 

-7
1.

6%
 a

nd
 f

or
 W

es
t 

M
er

ci
a 

of
 -

66
.7

%
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
pe

rio
d.

 T
he

 a
ct

ua
l 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 f

irs
t 

tim
e 

en
tr

an
ts

 i
n 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

in
g 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
13

 is
 2

80
, c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 7

74
 in

 2
00

8.
 

 A
t 

53
5 

W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 h

as
 t

he
 s

ec
on

d 
hi

gh
es

t 
ra

te
 o

f 
F

T
E

s 
ac

ro
ss

 W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a,
 th

e 
hi

gh
es

t r
at

e 
be

in
g 

58
9.

   
     

(ii
) 

U
se

 o
f C

us
to

dy
 

 T
he

 u
se

 o
f c

us
to

dy
 m

ea
su

re
 is

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 a

s 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 c
us

to
di

al
 s

en
te

nc
es

 p
er

 1
,0

00
 o

f 1
0 

to
 1

7 
ye

ar
 p

op
ul

at
io

n,
 a

 lo
w

er
 r

at
e 

in
di

ca
te

s 
be

tte
r 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

. W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 h

as
, h

is
to

ric
al

ly
, h

ad
 a

 lo
w

 r
at

e 
of

 c
us

to
di

al
 s

en
te

nc
es

.  
 T

he
re

 w
er

e 
14

 c
us

to
di

al
 s

en
te

nc
es

 d
ur

in
g 

20
13

, 
eq

ua
tin

g 
to

 a
 r

at
e 

of
 0

.2
7 

cu
st

od
ia

l 
se

nt
en

ce
s 

pe
r 

10
00

 y
ou

th
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
th

is
 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 a

 r
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 c
us

to
di

al
 s

en
te

nc
es

 f
ro

m
 2

01
2 

w
he

re
 t

he
re

 w
er

e 
25

 c
us

to
di

al
 s

en
te

nc
es

 e
qu

at
in

g 
to

 a
 r

at
e 

of
 0

.4
8.

 T
he

 
20

13
 r

at
e 

of
 0

.2
7%

 i
s 

in
 l

in
e 

w
ith

 t
he

 W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
ra

te
 o

f 
0.

27
 a

nd
 i

s 
be

tte
r 

th
an

 t
he

 n
at

io
na

l 
ra

te
 o

f 
0.

67
. 

C
us

to
di

al
 s

en
te

nc
es

 
ac

co
un

te
d 

fo
r 

5.
2%

 o
f a

ll 
co

ur
t o

ut
co

m
es

 in
 W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

, c
om

pa
re

d 
to

 6
.5

%
 o

f a
ll 

co
ur

t o
ut

co
m

es
 a

cr
os

s 
W

es
t M

er
ci

a.
 

F
ir

st
 T

im
e 

E
n

tr
an

ts
 p

er
 1

00
,0

00
 Y

o
u

th
 P

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n

40
0

60
0

80
0

10
00

12
00

14
00

16
00

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

in
g

 S
ep

te
m

b
er

FTEs/100,000 Youth Population

W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
W

es
t M

er
ci

a
E

ng
la

nd

118



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
42

 

(ii
i) 

R
e-

O
ffe

nd
in

g 
 T

he
re

 a
re

 t
w

o 
re

-o
ffe

nd
in

g 
m

ea
su

re
s,

 b
ot

h 
m

ea
su

rin
g 

re
-o

ffe
nd

in
g 

in
 t

he
 

sa
m

e 
co

ho
rt

 o
f 

of
fe

nd
er

s 
ov

er
 a

 1
2 

m
on

th
 p

er
io

d 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

yo
ut

h 
ju

st
ic

e 
sa

nc
tio

n 
th

at
 p

la
ce

d 
th

e 
yo

un
g 

pe
rs

on
 i

n 
th

e 
co

ho
rt

. 
T

he
 f

irs
t, 

th
e 

fr
eq

ue
nc

y 
m

ea
su

re
, i

s 
th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 r
e-

of
fe

nc
es

 p
er

 o
ffe

nd
er

 in
 th

e 
co

ho
rt

. T
he

 
se

co
nd

 m
ea

su
re

, t
he

 b
in

ar
y 

m
ea

su
re

, i
s 

th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f t
he

 o
ffe

nd
er

s 
in

 th
e 

co
ho

rt
 r

e-
of

fe
nd

in
g.

 I
n 

bo
th

 c
as

es
 a

 l
ow

er
 r

at
e 

de
no

te
s 

be
tte

r 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
. 

T
he

 m
os

t 
re

ce
nt

 d
at

a 
fo

r 
th

e 
re

-o
ffe

nd
in

g 
m

ea
su

re
 i

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
in

g 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

2.
 

 T
he

 f
re

qu
en

cy
 m

ea
su

re
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 f

or
 W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 f
or

 t
he

 y
ea

r 
en

di
ng

 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

2 
is

 0
.8

5,
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 t

he
 W

es
t 

M
er

ci
a 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
f 

0.
96

 a
nd

 
na

tio
na

l p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f 1

.0
2.

 W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 is

, t
he

re
fo

re
, b

et
te

r 
th

an
 fo

r W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
an

d 
E

ng
la

nd
. 

T
he

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 is
 s

lig
ht

ly
 b

et
te

r 
th

an
 f

or
 2

01
2 

w
he

n 
it 

w
as

 0
.8

6 
an

d 
ap

ar
t f

ro
m

 2
01

0 
 h

as
 r

em
ai

ne
d 

fa
irl

y 
co

ns
ta

nt
 s

in
ce

 2
00

8.
 

 F
or

 t
he

 y
ea

r 
en

di
ng

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

th
e 

bi
na

ry
 m

ea
su

re
 f

or
 W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 i
s 

31
.8

%
 c

om
pa

re
d 

w
ith

 a
 W

es
t 

M
er

ci
a 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
f 

34
.2

%
 a

nd
 a

 n
at

io
na

l 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f 
35

.4
%

. 
T

hi
s 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 i

m
pr

ov
ed

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 s
in

ce
 2

01
2 

w
he

n 
it 

w
as

 3
4.

2.
 I

t 
sh

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
be

 n
ot

ed
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

ov
er

al
l 

co
ho

rt
 s

iz
es

 a
re

 
de

cr
ea

si
ng

 y
ea

r 
on

 y
ea

r.
 I

n 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
in

g 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

8 
th

er
e 

w
er

e 
11

42
 

of
fe

nd
er

s 
in

 th
e 

co
ho

rt
 a

nd
 1

33
1 

re
-o

ffe
nc

es
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 a

 c
oh

or
t s

iz
e 

of
 5

85
 

w
ith

 4
97

 r
e-

of
fe

nc
es

 in
 2

01
2.

 T
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 a

ct
ua

l r
e-

of
fe

nc
es

 h
as

 t
he

re
fo

re
 

de
cr

ea
se

d 
by

 -
63

%
 b

et
w

ee
n 

20
08

 a
nd

 2
01

2.
  

 
In

cr
ea

si
ng

 r
at

es
 a

re
 n

at
io

na
l p

ic
tu

re
 a

nd
 t

he
 Y

JB
 h

as
 n

ot
ed

 t
ha

t 
th

er
e 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 li
ttl

e 
ev

id
en

ce
 a

s 
to

 w
hy

 t
hi

s 
is

 h
ap

pe
ni

ng
. 

It 
is

 
th

ou
gh

t 
th

at
 i

n 
pa

rt
 i

t 
is

 d
ue

 t
o 

de
cr

ea
si

ng
 n

um
be

rs
 i

n 
co

ho
rt

s 
du

e 
to

 t
he

 d
iv

er
si

on
 o

f 
fir

st
 t

im
e 

of
fe

nd
er

s 
fr

o
m

 t
he

 f
or

m
al

 j
us

tic
e 

sy
st

em
, 

le
av

in
g 

a 
co

ho
rt

 o
f 

m
or

e 
se

rio
us

 a
nd

 c
om

pl
ex

 o
ffe

nd
er

s 
w

ho
 a

re
 m

or
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 r
e

-o
ffe

nd
. 

T
he

 Y
JB

 is
 c

on
tin

ui
ng

 t
o 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 Y

O
T

s 
du

rin
g 

20
14

/1
5 

in
 o

rd
er

 t
o 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
 m

or
e 

w
ha

t 
is

 d
riv

in
g 

th
e 

tr
en

d 
in

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
nd

 i
s 

la
un

ch
in

g 
a 

re
vi

se
d 

re
-

of
fe

nd
in

g 
to

ol
 k

it 
in

 th
e 

fir
st

 q
ua

rt
er

 o
f 1

4/
15

 to
 a

ss
is

t Y
O

T
s 

in
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 b
et

te
r 

th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s 
of

 th
ei

r 
co

ho
rt

s.
  

 

R
e-

O
ff

en
d

in
g

 -
 F

re
q

u
en

cy
 In

d
ic

at
o

r

0

0.
2

0.
4

0.
6

0.
81

1.
2

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

in
g

 M
ar

ch

Frequency

W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
W

es
t M

er
ci

a
E

ng
la

nd

R
e-

O
ff

en
d

in
g

 -
 B

in
ar

y 
In

d
ic

at
o

r

2022242628303234363840

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

Y
ea

r 
E

n
d

in
g

 M
ar

ch

Percentage Re-Offending

W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
W

es
t M

er
ci

a
E

ng
la

nd

119



W
es

t 
M

er
ci

a 
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
en

d
in

g
 S

er
vi

ce
 

Y
o

u
th

 J
u

st
ic

e 
P

la
n

 2
01

4/
15

   
43

 

Lo
ca

lly
 t

he
 W

es
t 

M
er

ci
a 

Y
O

S
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 s
om

e 
an

al
ys

is
 in

 1
3/

14
, 

w
hi

ch
 s

ho
w

ed
 t

ha
t 

th
e 

na
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e 
co

ho
rt

s 
ha

d 
ch

an
ge

d 
ov

er
 

tim
e,

 w
ith

 t
he

 p
ro

po
rt

io
n 

of
 o

ffe
nd

er
s 

in
 t

he
 c

oh
or

t 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 o
ut

 o
f 

co
ur

t 
di

sp
os

al
 d

ec
re

as
in

g 
be

tw
ee

n 
20

08
 a

nd
 2

01
2 

by
 1

0 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 p
oi

nt
s,

 w
hi

ls
t 

th
e 

pr
op

or
tio

n 
of

 th
os

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

co
m

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 c

us
to

di
al

 s
en

te
nc

es
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 b
y 

7 
pe

rc
en

ta
g

e 
po

in
ts

. 
F

ur
th

er
 a

na
ly

si
s 

is
 p

la
nn

ed
 in

 2
01

4/
15

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 in

fo
rm

 m
or

e 
ta

rg
et

ed
 w

or
k.

  
 E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

, T
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 E
m

p
lo

ym
en

t 
 T

he
 Y

O
S

 h
as

 p
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

m
ea

su
re

d 
w

he
th

er
 a

 y
ou

ng
 p

er
so

n 
is

 i
n 

fu
ll 

tim
e 

ed
uc

at
io

n,
 t

ra
in

in
g 

or
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t 

at
 t

he
 e

nd
 o

f 
th

ei
r 

or
de

r.
 T

he
 ta

bl
e 

be
lo

w
 o

ut
lin

es
 th

e 
re

su
lts

 fo
r 

20
12

/1
3.

   
  

T
he

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 fo
r 

W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 is

 s
lig

ht
ly

 lo
w

er
 th

an
 

fo
r W

es
t M

er
ci

a.
  

    
It 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
no

te
d 

th
at

 th
os

e 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 o

f 
sc

ho
ol

 a
ge

 n
ot

 in
 fu

ll 
tim

e 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

 a
re

 n
ot

 n
ec

es
sa

ril
y 

N
E

E
T

, b
ut

 a
re

 r
ec

ei
vi

ng
 a

n 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
w

hi
ch

 is
 n

ot
 2

5 
ho

ur
s 

a 
w

ee
k.

 
 L

o
o

ke
d

 A
ft

er
 C

h
ild

re
n

 
 A

t t
he

 e
nd

 o
f D

ec
em

be
r 

20
13

 a
n 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f L

A
C

 o
n 

th
e 

Y
O

S
 c

as
e 

lo
ad

 w
as

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n.

 T
hi

s 
sh

ow
ed

 th
at

 o
f t

he
 to

ta
l c

as
e 

lo
ad

 o
f 

th
e 

W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 Y

O
S

 T
ea

m
s,

 2
5%

 w
er

e 
lo

ok
ed

 a
fte

r 
ch

ild
re

n.
 A

t 
th

is
 p

oi
nt

 i
n 

tim
e 

4%
 o

f 
th

e 
ca

se
 lo

ad
 w

er
e 

LA
C

 f
ro

m
 o

th
er

 
ar

ea
s 

te
m

po
ra

ril
y 

pl
ac

ed
 in

 W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
.  

 T
he

 Y
O

S
 M

an
ag

em
en

t B
oa

rd
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
an

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l r

ef
er

en
ce

 g
ro

up
 to

 a
na

ly
se

 th
e 

is
su

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

Y
O

S
 a

nd
 S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 
in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 L
A

C
 a

nd
 C

ar
e 

Le
av

er
s 

an
d 

m
ak

e 
op

er
at

io
na

l r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 j

oi
nt

 w
or

ki
ng

 t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

ou
tc

om
es

 
fo

r 
LA

C
 a

nd
 C

ar
e 

Le
av

er
s 

w
ho

 a
re

 in
 th

e 
yo

ut
h 

ju
st

ic
e 

sy
st

em
. 

    
W

or
ce

st
er

sh
ire

 
%

 in
 E

T
E

 
W

es
t M

er
ci

a 
%

 in
 E

T
E

 
Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e 

of
 S

ch
oo

l A
ge

 
69

%
   

(6
6)

 
73

%
  

Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e 
ab

ov
e 

S
ch

oo
l A

ge
 

50
%

   
(8

7)
 

59
%

  
O

ve
ra

ll 
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

57
%

 (
15

3)
 

64
%

  

120



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Bill Norman, Assistant Director, Governance on Tel (01432) 260200 

 

 

MEETING: CABINET 

MEETING DATE: 31 July 2014 

TITLE OF REPORT: Marches Local Enterprise Partnership: 
Governance 

REPORT BY: Assistant Director, Governance 
 

Alternative Options 

1 Executive decisions could continue to be taken, as currently, by each council 
separately through their respective governance processes. This option is not 
recommended as it adds unnecessary bureaucracy and potential delay to decision-
making by duplicating process and crucially does not meet the expectation set 
nationally that authorities must demonstrate how they are operating together to make 

Classification  

Open 

Key Decision  

This is not a key decision. 

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To approve governance arrangements for the joint exercise of executive functions in 
relation to the Marches Local Enterprise Partnership (the LEP).  
 

Recommendations 

THAT:  
(a) the establishment of a joint committee to exercise executive functions in 

relation to the Marches LEP be established; 
(b) The proposed constitution for the joint committee, as outlined at appendix 1, 

be approved; and 
(c) Herefordshire Council provide governance support for the LEP joint 

arrangements.  
 

AGENDA ITEM 8

121



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Bill Norman, Assistant Director, Governance on Tel (01432) 260200 

 

best use of shared resources and act collectively in the best interests of the LEP 
area. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 To ensure efficiency, openness, and transparency of decision-making in relation to 
the LEP. 

Key Considerations 

3 The Marches LEP is an informal, business sector led private/public sector 
partnership, tasked with creating the conditions for economic vitality and sustainable 
employment across this diverse region.  

4 The work of the LEP is directed by a board which provides the strategic lead and is 
responsible for setting the overall strategy for growth including: the development of its 
strategic economic plan priorities; oversight and endorsement of strategic projects; 
and monitoring of expenditure and output performance for the programme of work. 
The board is chaired by one of the area’s business leaders and board members are 
drawn from the areas’ three business boards, the skills sector, business champions 
from across the LEP area, and the Leaders of the three unitary councils. 

5 As an informal partnership the LEP has no legal entity and therefore one of the three 
councils (Shropshire) acts as accountable body.    

6 Nationally there is an expectation that the involvement and engagement of the 
relevant local authorities, and in accordance with their community leadership role, will 
ensure there remains democratic accountability around decision-making regarding 
use of public funds. To ensure that this is delivered in the most efficient way possible 
it is proposed that this is secured in the Marches by the establishment of an executive 
joint committee to which each of the three executives delegate authority to take 
decisions regarding strategic economic policy for the LEP area, and use of public 
funding to support those priorities. 

7 A draft constitution for such an executive joint committee is attached at appendix 1. 
Each of the three councils involved is seeking similar approval to this arrangement in 
accordance with their respective decision-making processes. 

8 It is proposed that, to provide some balance to the overall workload across the three 
authorities, Herefordshire Council will take the lead in relation to governance and will 
therefore act as ‘host’ for this joint committee and provide relevant governance 
support. 

9 To provide context for how such an executive joint committee fits within the overall 
LEP governance, attached at appendix 2 is the LEP governance structure. 

Community Impact 

10 The council’s corporate plan includes the priority to support economic growth and 
connectivity, and engagement with the LEP is one of the mechanisms for achieving 
this. In addition the council is committed both to making best use of the resources 
available to meet the council’s priorities and to maintaining openness and 
accountability for decision-making. The recommendations are in support of these 
objectives.   

122



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Bill Norman, Assistant Director, Governance on Tel (01432) 260200 

 

Equality and Human Rights 

11 There are no equality and human rights implications arising from the proposal. 

Financial Implications 

12 There are minimal financial implications arising from the proposals; member costs 
incurred in attending meetings will be covered by the respective authorities’ schemes 
of allowances. Costs of governance support to the joint committee will be met from 
central LEP budgets. The delegation of authority to a joint committee does not of itself 
commit any funding. 

Legal Implications 

13 Part VI of the Local Government Act 1972 and Part 1, Chapter 2 of the Local 
Government Act 2000 (as amended) makes provision for local authorities to establish 
joint committees. Provided that the functions to be exercised are executive functions, 
it is a matter for the respective Cabinets to determine the establishment of an 
executive joint committee and to agree the executive functions to be delegated to that 
joint committee.  Every member of the joint committee must be a member of their 
nominating council’s Cabinet. 

14 In the absence of an established joint scrutiny committee, decisions of the joint 
committee will remain subject to call in under each of the delegating authorities’ 
respective call in procedures. 

Risk Management 

15 Should governance arrangements not be robust and transparent there is a risk that 
the reputation of any or all of the participating authorities will be damaged. There is 
also a significant risk that if there are not clear arrangements for ensuring democratic 
accountability in the decision-making relating to allocation of public funding the 
Marches LEP will not secure central government funding.   

Consultees 

16 The Marches LEP Board has confirmed its support for this proposal to ensure timely 
decision-making and accountability.  

Appendices 

Appendix 1 - Draft Joint Executive Committee Constitution 

Appendix 2 – Marches LEP Governance 

Background Papers 

• None identified. 

123



124



Appendix A 

 

Marches Enterprise Joint Executive Committee 

Constitution 

Purpose 
1. Herefordshire Council, Shropshire Council and Telford & Wrekin Council have 

established an executive joint committee, known as the Marches Enterprise Joint 
Committee (MEJC) for the purpose of discharging the functions set out in paragraph 13 
below.  

2. MEJC is a joint committee of the executive for the purposes of Part VI of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and Part 1, Chapter 2 of the Local Government Act 2000 and the 
provisions applicable to joint committees of the executive shall apply to MEJC. 

3. MEJC will take decisions in accordance with the principles of good decision-making 
namely: 

• giving consideration to all options available;  

• having regard to due consultation;  

• giving consideration to professional advice from officers;  

• having clarity of aims and desired outcomes;  

• the action proposed must be proportionate to the desired outcome;  

• having respect and regard for human rights;  

• a presumption for openness, transparency and accountability;  

• only relevant matters being taken into account;  

• due weight to all material considerations (including opportunities and risks);  

• proper procedures being followed. 

Membership and voting 
4. MEJC shall comprise four members as follows: three voting members, each council 

being entitled to appoint one voting member who shall be a member of that council’s 
Cabinet; and one non-voting member, being the Marches Local Enterprise Board Chair. 
In the event of a voting member of the MEJC ceasing to be a member or executive 
member of their appointing council, that council shall appoint another voting member in 
their place. Only a voting member is entitled to be Chair or Vice Chair of MEJC. 

5. Each council may appoint members of its executive as named substitutes for voting 
members to attend meetings in the absence of a voting member appointed under 4 
above. The secretary of MEJC shall be notified of any named substitutes before 
commencement of the meeting. 

6. For the avoidance of doubt, it is a matter for the respective councils’ executives to 
appoint their voting members/substitutes. 

7. The MEJC shall, at its annual meeting, elect a Chair and Vice Chair from among its 
voting members; or may choose to adopt for that year a rotating Chair. In the event of an 
elected Chair and Vice Chair not being present the MEJC shall elect a Chair for the 
meeting from the voting members present. 

125



Appendix A 

 

8. Two voting members shall constitute a quorum. Unless the law provides otherwise all 
matters shall be decided by a majority of the votes of the voting members present; if 
there are equal numbers of votes for and against, the Chair shall exercise a second, 
casting vote. 

Meeting Arrangements 
9. Herefordshire Council will act as secretariat to MEJC and provide all necessary 

governance support.  

10. MEJC shall meet at least annually and otherwise as may be determined by the Chair, or 
at the written (electronically or otherwise) request of any two voting members; any such 
request should be forwarded to  the secretariat who will convene a meeting within 28 
working days of receiving the request. 

11. The secretariat will give notice of time, date and venue for the meetings in accordance 
with the provisions of the access to information requirements of the Local Government 
Act 2000 as amended and ensure compliance with The Local Authorities (Executive 
Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. 

12. Unless explicitly provided for within this constitution; the relevant standing orders for 
MEJC are those of Herefordshire Council. 

Functions 
13. MEJC shall fulfil the following executive functions, at all times having regard to the duty 

to co-operate and the views of the Marches LEP Board: 

a) Set, monitor and review objectives and priorities for strategic economic investment 
across the Marches LEP area 

b) Agree allocation of Marches LEP revenue and capital spend that is under the control of 
the LEP Board and relating to the delivery of the LEP Economic Plan 

c) Agree Marches LEP capital expenditure programmes relating to the delivery of the 
LEP Strategic Economic Plan, and ensure policy and programmes are delivered 
effectively 

d) Agree Major Transport Scheme funding allocation in line with the LEP Strategic 
Economic Plan 

e) Ensure alignment between decision making regarding achievement of the Marches 
Strategic Economic Plan and decisions on other related areas of policy such as land 
use, transportation and wider community and economic regeneration 

f) Influence and align government and public investment in order to boost economic 
growth within the Marches LEP area 

g) Provide an annual report on the activities of MEJC to the three partner councils 

h) Agree lead or accountable body status for any particular issue as necessary 

i) Review and (where all three Leaders are present) amend the Terms of Reference of 
the MJEC. 

126



Appendix B 

 

LEP Structure 
 
Marches LEP Board (11 Board Members) 

Ø Chairman 
Ø 3 Area Business Board Chairs, providing an underlying 60-strong business constituency 
Ø Skills Champion 
Ø 3 Co-opted Business Champions 
Ø 3 Unitary Council Leaders 

 
 
Marches Joint Executive Committee  

 

Marches LEP Team 
Ø LEP Executive Group LEP Management 
Ø LEP Chair Partnership Manager 
Ø Partnership Manager x2 Project Officers 
Ø X3 LA Directors Finance Officer 
Ø X3 LA Heads of Service Office Administrator 
Ø S.151 Officer Technical Assistance 
Ø Governance Officer EZ Managing Director 
Ø Risk Management PR & Communications 

 
 

Marches Sub Committees & Working Groups 
Ø Marches Local Transport Body 
Ø Marches Skills Board 
Ø Hereford Enterprise Zone Board 
Ø Marches Planning & Housing Partnership 
Ø Food, Drink, Agri-Tech 
Ø Commissioning Groups 
Ø Assurance Groups 
Ø Funding Forum 

 
 

127



128



 

Further information on the subject of this r
Richard Ball Assistant Director Place Based Commissioning

 

MEETING: 

MEETING DATE: 

TITLE OF REPORT: 

REPORT BY: 

 

Classification  

Open 

Key Decision  

This is a key decision because
is, or the making of savings which are, si
the service or function to which the decision relates
 

NOTICE has been served in accordance with P
Key Decisions) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) (England) Regulations 2012

Wards Affected 

County-wide. 

Purpose 

To consider the future approach to the commissioning

Recommendation(s) 
THAT:  
 
(a) In considering the need to put in place arrangements for the period beyond the 
end of the current contract in 2016, t
of support services be via a Teckal compliant entity
the council and other 
offering value for money;

(b) A business case and implementation plan be developed
Hoople and its board, for 
that the council can continue to procure support services through a
with Teckal status and that 
develop wider commercial benefits

(c) The business case and implementation plan required under recommendation 
be the subject of a further report for consideration and approval by the Cabinet 
Member Corporate Services

rmation on the subject of this report is available from
Richard Ball Assistant Director Place Based Commissioning on Tel (01432) 26

 

CABINET  

31 July 2014 

HOOPLE 

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR PLACE BASED 
COMMISSIONING 

ecision because it is likely to result in the council incurring expenditure which 
is, or the making of savings which are, significant having regard to the council’s budget for 

n to which the decision relates. 

in accordance with Part 3, Section 9 (Publicity in Connection W
ecisions) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 

Information) (England) Regulations 2012.  

future approach to the commissioning of services provided by Hoople

In considering the need to put in place arrangements for the period beyond the 
end of the current contract in 2016, the preferred approach to the commissioning 

be via a Teckal compliant entity operating under  control of 
ouncil and other shareholders and it’s board, subject to these services 

offering value for money; 
business case and implementation plan be developed, in partnership 

for the establishment of appropriate legal entities to ensure 
can continue to procure support services through a

that a commercial trading company is able to continue to 
develop wider commercial benefits; and, 
The business case and implementation plan required under recommendation 
be the subject of a further report for consideration and approval by the Cabinet 
Member Corporate Services.  

eport is available from 
on Tel (01432) 260965 

ASSISTANT DIRECTOR PLACE BASED 

ouncil incurring expenditure which 
ouncil’s budget for 

art 3, Section 9 (Publicity in Connection With 
ecisions) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 

of services provided by Hoople 

In considering the need to put in place arrangements for the period beyond the 
he preferred approach to the commissioning 

operating under  control of 
, subject to these services 

, in partnership with 
the establishment of appropriate legal entities to ensure 

can continue to procure support services through a company 
is able to continue to 

The business case and implementation plan required under recommendation (b) 
be the subject of a further report for consideration and approval by the Cabinet 

AGENDA ITEM 9

129



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Richard Ball Assistant Director Place Based Commissioning on Tel (01432) 260965 

 

Alternative Options 

1 A review of potential commissioning options has been undertaken jointly with Hoople.  
This identified a wide range of alternative options which are outlined within this report. 
They have been assessed against the key criteria outlined below to determine the 
recommended approach.  Whilst other options could be adopted, they are not 
recommended as they are not considered to meet the commissioning objectives to 
the same extent as the recommended option and would lead to higher costs of 
implementation, which would not represent value for money. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 Firstly, the recommended approach ensures continued compliance with the European 
Union (EU) procurement regulations without the costs associated with a major re-
procurement exercise. Secondly, the Teckal compliant entity would continue to have 
its primary focus as providing support services to the shareholders. This will help to 
ensure that these areas of service are in line with future needs and continue to 
provide value for money. This is crucial as the council will continue to transform itself 
and will have constant pressure on resources. Finally, the recommended approach 
will ensure Hoople continues its commercial development in line with the council’s 
aspiration to support the economic development of Herefordshire. 

Key Considerations 

Introduction 
3 Since Hoople was established in 2011, the landscape within which the public sector 

and local government has to operate has changed radically.  Government funding for 
local authorities across the country has been reduced substantially over recent years. 
These reductions have led the council to make savings of £34m in the three years 
since April 2011. Financial pressure on the council will continue with a further £33m 
savings needed by 2016/17 to ensure that the council stays within its budget. These 
pressures come at a time when the council is serving more and more people, 
particularly in essential areas such as children’s safeguarding and adult social care. 
As the range of services provided directly by the council, and the size of its core body 
reduces, so the scale of the support service requirement reduces.   

4 The NHS nationally has also undergone significant restructuring which has had 
consequential impacts on the requirement for and commissioning of support services 
for NHS bodies in Herefordshire. 

5 Hoople was established in April 2011 to provide a range of “back office” services as 
set out in the Cabinet report of 21 October 2010 and cabinet member report of 30 
March 2011. Hoople was set up as a joint venture company with Wye Valley NHS 
Trust and the then Primary Care Trust (PCT) to provide shared services initially 
across the three public sector bodies. The remaining shareholders are now the 
council and Wye Valley NHS Trust.  Although the council contract with Hoople is not 
exclusive, the partnership aims for the company assumed that Hoople would be the 
shareholders’ provider of choice for back office services. 

6 Since it was established Hoople has delivered significant savings to the council and 
has secured business from a range of customers.  Training and its employment 

 

130



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Richard Ball Assistant Director Place Based Commissioning on Tel (01432) 260965 

 

agency have been particularly successful although it has a number of contracts for 
other services, as well as schools.  Hoople has successfully developed a positive and 
customer focused staff culture which has contributed to the company’s success.  An 
update on the company was presented to the General Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee at the meeting on the 12 May 2014. 

7 During 2013/14, the council and Hoople negotiated variations to the current contract 
which secured, by agreement, savings in excess of £1.2m in the current financial 
year.   

8  In confirming this contract variation, the cabinet member also asked that a strategy 
be developed to determine the future commissioning of services beyond the period of 
the current contract with Hoople which ends in 2016. 

9 Hoople currently provides services to the council in relation to human resources, 
finance, revenues and benefits and ICT at a cost of over £4m per annum.   

Service £’000 

HR 419 

Finance 1.381 

Revenues & Benefits 1,596 

ICT 1,383 

Training 71 

Total 4,850 

  

10 The recent contract variations have changed the way of working in a number of areas 
to remove duplication and improve efficiency.  For example, an integrated 
management structure is now in place with the council’s Chief Finance Officer 
providing management control over the strategic financial services (management and 
technical accounting) provided to the council.  A similar model has also been put in 
place in relation to Human Resources.   

11 The modernisation of council business areas over the coming years will require a 
strong and clear ICT resource to help deliver improved systems and infrastructure to 
improve efficiency and reduce cost.  It will be important to ensure that the service is 
agile and able to effectively ensure the council makes best use of new and emerging 
technology. 

12 When reviewing future commissioning strategies it is important to recognise that in 
future the council will continue to need:  

• Back office services with the right level of expertise and flexibility;  

• Good relationships with back office services with the ability to plan for future needs 
and exercise the necessary control over what is delivered;  

• Clear value for money, the ability to reduce costs; and the flexibility to respond to 
changing needs and opportunities. 

131



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Richard Ball Assistant Director Place Based Commissioning on Tel (01432) 260965 

 

Joint review 

12 The council’s current contract with Hoople comes to an end on 31st March 2016. 
Given that certain options could require a significant period of time to put in place, 
now is the right time to determine the approach to commissioning the services that 
would need to be in place from April 2016. 

13  As a shareholder as well as a client, the council has a particular relationship with 
Hoople. Therefore a joint review was considered appropriate and has been carried 
out by a joint project team comprising representatives from the council’s 
commissioning and commercial teams alongside representatives from the Hoople 
management team.  This has identified and examined the options available to the 
council for future service delivery arrangements. The results of this review have been 
shared with the Hoople Board and this report takes account of these results in 
recommending to Cabinet the approach to future commissioning of services. 

14 In considering the potential future commissioning options, it is important to be aware 
of the Teckal exemption to EU procurement requirements, (under which Hoople was 
originally established) which currently allows the council to purchase services from 
Hoople without the need for an open procurement process.  

15 The requirements for a Teckal exemption have recently been clarified and are 
described in the 2014 EU Directive Procurement Directives: DIRECTIVE 2014/24/EU, 
Article 12: 

 “A public contract awarded by a contracting authority to a legal person governed by 
private or public law shall fall outside the scope of this Directive where all of the 
following conditions are fulfilled: 

(a) the contracting authority exercises over the legal person concerned a control 
which is similar to that which it exercises over its own departments; 

 (b) more than 80 % of the activities of the controlled legal person are carried out 
in the performance of tasks entrusted to it by the controlling contracting authority or 
by other legal persons controlled by that contracting authority; and 

 (c) there is no direct private capital participation in the controlled legal person with 
the exception of non-controlling and non-blocking forms of private capital participation 
required by national legislative provisions, in conformity with the Treaties, which do 
not exert a decisive influence on the controlled legal person. 

  A contracting authority shall be deemed to exercise over a legal person a control 
similar to that which it exercises over its own departments within the meaning of point 
(a) of the first subparagraph where it exercises a decisive influence over both 
strategic objectives and significant decisions of the controlled legal person. Such 
control may also be exercised by another legal person, which is itself controlled in the 
same way by the contracting authority.” 

16 The 2014 EU Procurement Directives have been adopted by the EU institutions and 
were published in the Official Journal of the EU on 28 March 2014. They came into 
force on 17 April 2014. EU member states now have 2 years to implement them in 
national legislation. The UK government is aiming to implement these directives 
quickly as they offer improved flexibility. The detailed UK legislation has yet to be 
published but is expected in October 2014.  

132



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Richard Ball Assistant Director Place Based Commissioning on Tel (01432) 260965 

 

17  Hoople was established with the remit to grow non-partner business.  The directive 
has recently given increased clarity to the Teckal exemption.  This review has 
provided an opportunity to look forward and effectively plan well in advance of the end 
of the current contract to enable this new directive to be taken into account.  Given 
the success of Hoople in delivering savings to the council and securing commercial 
business, it is likely that beyond April 2016 Hoople would not be compliant with this 
directive without some form of restructuring of the business.  This has been taken into 
account when considering the range of options outlined below. 

Approach to review of future commissioning options 

18 The first stage in the review was to define a set of criteria used to ensure a consistent 
approach to assessing the options. The criteria were developed jointly with Hoople 
and were based on the council’s Commissioning and Commercial Strategy and 
previous major commissioning exercises such as the procurement of public realm 
services. Draft criteria were developed in discussion with Cabinet and presented to 
the General Overview and Scrutiny Committee at their meeting on 12th May 2014. 

19 The General Overview and Scrutiny Committee noted the approach to the joint review 
of the future approach to commissioning services currently being delivered by Hoople.  
In particular, it was noted that criteria should not undervalue the relationships 
between the council and Hoople and the benefits to the local economy.  Also that, 
value for money criteria should not be defined too narrowly and should reflect the 
council’s positions as both shareholder and customer. 

20 These comments were taken into account when finalising and using the criteria  listed 
below.  These were divided into primary and secondary criteria with the primary 
criteria being given more weight in the assessment.  

Primary Criteria 

Value for money: 

• Delivery of further savings and demonstration of value for money 

Improved service delivery: 

• Improved service delivery and efficiency 

• Future flexibility in service delivery 

• More resilient service delivery 

Legal and deliverable 

Secondary Criteria 

Economic impact:  

• Support for local economy,  jobs , training and  income generation 

• Value of Council shareholding 

 

 

133



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Richard Ball Assistant Director Place Based Commissioning on Tel (01432) 260965 

 

Cost of implementation: 

• One off project costs 

• On-going management costs 

 
21 Five broad options were considered by the review, are summarised in the following 

diagram and the key characteristics described below: 

 

22 ‘As-is’ model could include: Do nothing – continue service delivery as-is; short term 
contract extension – extend the current contract for a fixed period to allow other 
arrangements to be put in place. Continuing with the current arrangements beyond 
the current contract term is potentially unlawful if Teckal exemption is not maintained 
and there is a risk of procurement challenge. The risk might be reduced if a contract 
extension were only to be short term to enable alternative arrangements. 

23 Commercial / Public – Create separate trading arm – services provided 
commercially by Hoople – excluding council support services – would be structured 
into a separate corporate entity: a trading company. A council support organisation 
would maintain its Teckal status. The council could put additional services into the 
Teckal company as part of a transformation. The trading company’s aim would be 
profitable growth. Splitting the organisation, if done in the right way, could ensure the 
Teckal status of the company delivering services to the council leaving the trading 
company free to pursue its corporate aims. 

24 Re-procure – council services competitively tendered – re-procure council 
services from:  

• Strategic partner – open procurement of council services putting in place a 
strategic partner 

• Tactical procurements – procure from existing framework (where they exist); 
obtain from public sector, or open tendering for individual services according to 
the needs of their users.  

Hoople would continue to exist as a company and is likely to bid for some or all of the 
council’s support services. Procuring services in line with EU rules removes need for 
Teckal immunity. Service cost and quality would be competitively tested, however, 
procurement would be costly and the outcome is uncertain. The council’s shares in 
Hoople could either be retained or divested – transfer of Hoople Ltd into an employee 
owned mutual/social enterprise, management buy-out, or private market sale. 

As-is Commercial 
/ Public

Re-
procure

Merge or 
expand

Close

Current 
structure and 
ownership 
maintained

One legal entity 
delivering 
services to the 
council… 
And another 
delivering 
commercial 
services

Procure the 
services in line 
with EU rules 
while keeping 
Hoople (either 
council owned 
or not)

Maintain the 
shared service 
model by 
merging with 
another Teckal
organisation or 
increasing 
Hoople’s scope

Close Hoople; 
services brought 
back in-house or 
outsourced; stop 
all commercial 
activity

134



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Richard Ball Assistant Director Place Based Commissioning on Tel (01432) 260965 

 

25 Merge or expand – assure Teckal status by increasing the services delivered by 
Hoople or by collaborating with one of the other shared service organisations that 
exist across local government. A best value appraisal would be required in place of 
market testing. 

26 Close – close the Hoople organisation and either re-procure the services that it 
currently delivers or council internalise all Hoople service delivery and staff. Hoople’s 
commercial contracts would need to be dealt with on a case by case basis. 

Evaluation and recommendation 

27 The five high level approaches led to 10 delivery options. These were scored by the 
project team against the primary and secondary criteria. The highest scoring option 
was: Commercial / Public – Create separate trading arm: which would involve 
restructuring Hoople to ensure a trading company and a Teckal compliant public 
service company.  

 

28 The highest scoring option would enable the council to continue to obtain services 
without the significant costs associated with a major procurement exercise.  It is 
proposed that a business case and implementation plan be developed in partnership 
with Hoople.  This would be the subject of a further report for consideration by the 
Cabinet Member Corporate Services.   

Do nothing

Short term contract 
extension

Trading Co / 
Teckal Co

Trading Co / 
in-house services

Strategic partner

Tactical procurement

Merge with shared 
services

Expand scope of 
Hoople

Close Hoople -
outsource

Close Hoople – in 
house

Low

Low

Low

Low

High

High

High

Low

High

Low

Rank Cost

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

135



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Richard Ball Assistant Director Place Based Commissioning on Tel (01432) 260965 

 

30 In simple terms this would mean that, from the current Hoople, two companies would 
be created: 

i. Commercial trading company; and, 

ii. Public sector (Teckal) company. 
 
31 The key characteristics and advantages of establishing these two legal entities would 

be as follows: 

Commercial: 

This entity would be owned by the existing shareholders and be overseen and led by 
an independent Board with a continued focus on securing commercial business.  
Advantages include: 

• Safeguards existing Hoople commercial activity with other customers and 
captures value of this for the shareholders 

• Commercial entity would focus on growth and securing new business and 
shareholder benefits 

• Board focus for this entity would be  focused on commercial activity 

• Council could retain shareholding and receive dividends or potentially realise it as 
an asset in the future 

• Provides a flexible vehicle for other commercial services if required in future 

• Opportunity to re-focus and rationalise senior management input to improve 
competitiveness.   

Public (Teckal): 

This entity would be owned by the current shareholders and operate under the control 
of it’s board focusing on those services provided to the shareholders.  Existing 
management capacity within the council would be used to provide management 
control to guide and support the operational management of this entity, as currently 
occurs in relation to the council’s financial services. Advantages include: 

• Teckal legal status allows the council as a shareholder to exercise controls over 
service delivery in line with the EU Directive outlined in paragraph 16 above. 

• Direct control over service delivery would ensure a strong focus on services to 
the council and the ability to react to changing requirements 

• Avoids the potential disruption to front line services that reintegration could cause 

• Continues to provide a flexible vehicle to allow the sale of existing or new 
services and to work in partnership with other public agencies if required in the 
future 

 
32 It is considered that the proposals may allow for the reduction in management 

overheads for services directly managed by the council this will be verified by the 

136



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Richard Ball Assistant Director Place Based Commissioning on Tel (01432) 260965 

 

business case.  If successful, the commercial trading company could generate new 
jobs in the county and any dividends from the company would provide a financial 
return to the council which could be invested in other services. 

Conclusion 

33 Since being established, Hoople has delivered the savings in accordance with the 
original business plan; it has also secured business from other customers and 
developed a positive staff culture.  This joint review has been carried out to inform the 
future commissioning of the council’s back office services whilst recognising the 
specific relationship with Hoople which results from the council shareholding.    In 
considering the need to put in place arrangements for the period beyond the end of 
the current contract in 2016, Cabinet is asked to approve the recommendation that 
the preferred approach to the commissioning of support services be via a Teckal 
compliant company under the control of the shareholders and it’s board, subject to 
these services offering value for money.  In order to take this forward, it is 
recommended that a business case and implementation plan be developed, in 
partnership with Hoople and its Board, for the establishment of appropriate legal 
entities to ensure that the council can continue to procure support services through a 
company with Teckal status and that a commercial trading company is able to 
continue to develop wider commercial benefits. 

34 Whilst this review has outlined a strategic approach for future commissioning, the 
delivery of back office services will need to demonstrate value for money.  Going 
forward, service leads will need to regularly review the approach to delivering their 
services to ensure that the council continues to get value for money in an 
environment where the pressure on resources will continue.  

Community Impact 

35 The services delivered by Hoople underpin the delivery of the range of services 
provided by the council, and ensuring these services are provided in the most 
efficient and cost effective way supports the council’s corporate plan aim of making 
the best use of the resources available to meet the council’s priorities.  

36 In addition, Hoople has become a provider to a range of community focussed 
organisations, offering the back office support that enables them to continue to 
provide services. As a local employer, the successful growth of Hoople could make a 
contribution to the local economy and employment opportunities within the County. 

Equality and Human Rights 

37 Equalities and diversity requirements will be considered as part of the joint review and 
an equality impact assessment will be carried out, if necessary, before any new 
arrangements are put in place.  

Financial Implications 

38 The Medium Term Financial Strategy sets out ongoing savings for the next three 
years, to be delivered through efficiencies and change, this strategy applies both in-
house and to those organisations providing key services. The business case will 
establish what will be accomplished from the proposed changes both in terms of 
savings and service delivery approaches.    

137



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Richard Ball Assistant Director Place Based Commissioning on Tel (01432) 260965 

 

Legal Implications 

39 Detailed legal advice will be required in relation to the development of the business 
case to ensure that the status of the entity providing services to the council is Teckal 
compliant.  Legal services will be involved in the development of the business case 
and implementation plan. 

Risk Management 

40 The current contract arrangements with Hoople are based on an agreed service level 
which is managed in accordance with contract procedures with risks identified and 
escalated where appropriate.  Given that the current contract with Hoople comes to 
an end on 31 March 2016 and the core nature of the services provided, it is important 
to consider the Council’s future approach to commissioning such services well in 
advance.  This is important to mitigate any risks associated with service continuity 
and value for money and enable effective planning and delivery of any changes that 
might be necessary in advance of the end of the current contract. 

Consultees 

41 Hoople was consulted during the review and has indicated that the company is willing 
to work with the council in taking a joint approach to the development of the proposed 
business case and implementation plan.  General Overview & Scrutiny received a 
report on Hoople at the meeting of the 12 May 2014 and their comments upon the 
draft commissioning criteria as outlined in paragraph 14 above were taken into 
account in finalising the criteria and applying them through the review. 

Appendices 

• None 

Background Papers 

• None identified 

138


	Agenda
	
	3 MINUTES
	4 Budget Monitoring Report
	APPENDIX A Revenue Forecast Final
	APPENDIX B Capital Forecast Final
	APPENDIX C Treasury Forecast

	5 Quarterly Performance Report
	APPENDIX A - AWB Databook
	APPENDIX Bi - CWB Databook
	APPENDIX Bii - CWB Databook
	APPENDIX Biii - CWBDatabook
	APPENDIX Biv - CWB Databook
	APPENDIX Bv - CWB Databook
	APPENDIX C - ECC Databook

	6 Herefordshire Safeguarding Children Board Business Plan
	APPENDIX A
	APPENDIX B

	7 West Mercia Youth Justice Plan
	APPENDIX A WM Youth Justice Plan 14 15

	8 Marches Local Enterprise Partnership
	APPENDIX A LEP Report
	APPENDIX B LEP Report

	9 Hoople

